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2

The Board, Supervisory Committee, Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company undertake

that the content of this report is true, accurate, complete and without any false record, misrepresentation or
material omission and are severally and jointly liable therefor.

This report has been considered and approved at the fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Board and the
fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee where all the Directors and Supervisors were
present, respectively. No Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company declared that they could
not guarantee or had any objection to the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of this report.

The financial report for 2018 prepared by the Company, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards and China’'s Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises, has been audited by RSM Hong Kong and
Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP, respectively, each of whom had issued a standard unqualified audit
report. All amounts set out in this report are stated in RMB unless otherwise stated.

Mr. Pang Jiemin (the chairman of the Board), Mr. Niu Zhuang (the president), Ms. Yang Shufei (the chief financial
officer) and Mr. Yang Liyang (the finance manager) declared that they undertake the financial statements in this
report are true, accurate and complete.

The forward-looking statements including future plans and development strategies involved in this report do not

constitute the Company’s substantive commitment to investors. The investors are advised to pay attention to
investment risks.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Chairman’s Statement

In 2018, China maintained the trend of “strengthening financial regulation and fully enhancing the capacity of
preventing and dissolving risks” on industry regulation since the “19th CPC National Congress”. Regulatory
authorities have released various new policies. The implementation of new regulations on the asset management
business and the introduction of the Chinese Depositary Receipts (CDR) will have profound influence on the
market and industry. In 2018, as a result of the trade conflict, the downward pressures on economic growth and
other uncertainties, the overall performance of the domestic stock market was sluggish. The Shanghai Composite
Index and the Shenzhen Component Index closed 24.59% and 34.42% lower in 2018 as compared with the end
of the previous year. The turnover of stocks and funds in the Shanghai and Shenzhen stock markets recorded
a year-on-year decrease of 17.98%. In 2018, as affected by the market conditions, the operating results of
domestic securities companies declined to different extent. The profit contribution of the brokerage, investment
banking and other traditional businesses of the Company plunged while proprietary businesses recorded losses to
a relatively high extent. Facing the adverse situation, the Company strived to adjust the structure and consolidate
the foundation of various businesses, deeply advanced business transformation and adhered to regulatory-

compliant operation to enhance the overall capacity of preventing and controlling risks.

The Company will face both opportunities and challenges in 2019. The Central Economic Work Conference
convened at the end of 2018 proposed that a slight movement in the capital market will affect the operation of
the whole financial sector. China will deepen reform to build a standardized, transparent, open, vibrant and tough
capital market. Further deepening the reform of the capital market will drive a new round of development of
securities companies. The Company should follow the development pace of times, keep firm beliefs and work
harder to actively advance various work. The Company will continue to adhere to regulatory-compliant operation,
enhance the awareness on risk prevention and control and continue to improve the compliance and risk control
system. It will speed up in promoting business transformation and upgrading and consolidate business foundation
to ensure the stable and rapid development of all operation businesses and fully improve the profitability of
businesses. It will also strengthen back-office capacity in providing support to make progress in all businesses of

the Company.

Pang Jiemin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2019
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Section 1 Definitions

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms and expressions have the meanings set

forth below:

APP

Articles of Association

Asset securitisation

Baotou Huazi

Board

Company or Hengtou Securities

Corporate Governance Code

CSRC

Director(s)

Domestic Share(s)

end of Reporting Period

HENGTOU SECURITIES

application, which generally refers to mobile applications

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

an act of converting less liquid assets into securities that can be traded
freely in the financial market to have them become liquid and a direct way of

financing through issuing securities in capital market and monetary market

Baotou Huazi Industry Co., Ltd. (BEEEEEXRHBR AT, listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600191), a substantial shareholder of
the Company

the board of directors of the Company

a company established as a limited liability company in the PRC on 28
December 1998 and converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability under the PRC laws on 3 November 2008 under the corporate
name “"BRIFTHFRMD AR AF" (Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd), and carrying
on business in Hong Kong as “18# %" (in Chinese) and "HENGTOU
SECURITIES” (in English) as approved by and registered with the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong on 27 April 2015, and whose H shares are listed

on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

Y

1o
B

the China Securities Regulatory Commission (fF BB AFEEE BB L E

director(s) of the Company

ordinary share(s) issued by the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00

each, which are subscribed for or credited as paid-up in RMB

31 December 2018



Finance Street Capital

Finance Street Investment

Finance Street Xihuan Properties

FOF

GDP

Group

H Share(s)

Hangzhou Ruisi

Hengtai Capital

Hengtai Changcai

Hengtai Futures

Hengtai Pioneer

HK$

Hong Kong

Section 1 Definitions (Continued)

Beijing Finance Street Capital Management Centre (1t R & REE B AEZ A L)),
which holds 100% equity interest in Huarong Infrastructure

Beijing Finance Street Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (At R & @A E (£ )
BBRRAF]), formerly known as Beijing Finance Street Construction Group
Co., Ltd. Ut REREEREME), a subsidiary of SASAC Xicheng District and a
shareholder of the Company

Beijing Finance Street Xihuan Properties Co., Ltd. Jt R&BHERIREE AR
‘A 7)), formerly known as Beijing Xihuan Properties Co., Ltd. bt RFARE %
BRAT]), a subsidiary of SASAC Xicheng District and a shareholder of the
Company

Fund of Fund, a fund which specially invests in other securities investment
funds

gross domestic product

the Company and its subsidiaries

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each in the share capital of the Company, which are listed on the Main Board

of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Hangzhou Ruisi Industrial Co., Ltd. (fi/NiK B EZEBR2AF]), which holds
98.67% equity interest in Shaanxi Tianchen

Hengtai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (EREARZEBRET AR, 100%
equity interest of which is held by the Company

Hengtai Changcai Securities Co., Ltd. (EREH B HBRETAT]), 100%
equity interest of which is held by the Company

Hengtai Futures Co., Ltd. (EFRHERM AR A F]), 80% and 20% equity
interest of which is held by the Company and Hengtai Capital, respectively

Hengtai Pioneer Investment Co., Ltd. (EFLELEBRAF]), 100% equity
interest of which is held by the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Hongzhi Huitong

Huarong Infrastructure

Huarong Investment

Huifa Investment

Huijin Jiaye

IPO

Listing

Listing Date

Listing Rules

Margin financing and

securities lending

Model Code

MOM

NEEQ

HENGTOU SECURITIES

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Beijing Hongzhi Huitong Industrial Co., Ltd. (It REHEREXERAA), a
shareholder of the Company

EN——

Beijing Huarong Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd. (It RERVEM R it EH
R E{L/AR]), a subsidiary of SASAC Xicheng District and a shareholder of the
Company

Beijing Huarong Comprehensive Investment Company (It RERIGARE R

A]), which holds 90% equity interest in Finance Street Xihuan Properties
Tibet Dazi Huifa Investment Co., Ltd. (FEHEEZIREHBR A ), formerly
known as Shenzhen City Huifa Investment Co., Ltd. (RIIFEZEZERRE A

7)), a shareholder of the Company

Beijing Huijin Jiaye Investment Co., Ltd. (It RESZEREEGRAA), a
shareholder of the Company

Initial Public Offering

the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 15 October 2015

15 October 2015

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

a collateral-backed operating activity in which securities firms provide clients

with monies to buy listed securities or with listed securities for sale

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

Manager of Managers, which is a fund type whereby a manager chooses

managers for an investment program

National Equities Exchange and Quotations



New China Fund

Ningbo Shike

P2P

PRC or China

Prospectus

Qingyun Intercontinental

Reporting Period

RMB

SASAC Xicheng District

SFO

Shaanxi Hongya

Shaanxi Tianchen

Shanghai Julu

Shanghai Xishida

Section 1 Definitions (Continued)

New China Fund Management Co., Ltd. (3T1EHE&EERMHBER A7), 58.62%
equity interest of which is held by the Company

Ningbo Shike Trading Co., Ltd. (22X EREHEHR A F]), which holds 70%
equity interest in Qingyun Intercontinental

Peer to Peer lending platforms

for the purpose of this report, the People’s Republic of China (excluding
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administration Region of the PRC and Taiwan)

the H Shares prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2015

Beijing Qingyun Intercontinental Technology Co., Ltd. (It REZMERIE AR
/2 A]), a substantial shareholder of the Company

the year ended 31 December 2018

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China, the basic unit of which is Yuan

The State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
Xicheng District People’s Government of Beijing Municipality (1b3 1 Fa
BEARBFREEELESE®ELZEE), which holds 100% equity interest in
each of Huarong Investment, Finance Street Capital and Finance Street

Investment, respectively

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong)

Shaanxi Hongya Ruijiu Trading Co., Ltd. (BRPEsLAHEIR AR B AR A7), which
holds 99.60% equity interest in Ningbo Shike

Shaanxi Tianchen Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (BREEAERIZE AR QA F)),
which holds 97.08% equity interest in Hongzhi Huitong

Shanghai Julu Information Technology Co., Ltd. (E8E#EEREAR A F),
which holds 99.47% equity interest in Shenzhen Zhongxin

Shanghai Xishida Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. (H/BEMEEFRMAER R
Al), which holds 99.99% equity interest in Huijin Jiaye

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Shanghai Yida

Shenzhen Zhongxin

stock pledged repurchase
transaction

substantial shareholder(s)

Supervisor(s)

Supervisory Committee

Suzhou Bingtai

this report

Tomorrow Holding

Wind Info

Zhongchang Hengyuan

8 HENGTOU SECURITIES

Shanghai Yida Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (E/8EZERFIREBR S TR
7)), a substantial shareholder of the Company

Shenzhen Zhongxin Tuoye Technology Co., Ltd. (RINFFFHAEREZBR A F]),
which holds 95% equity interest in Shanghai Xishida

a transaction in which eligible funds receivers get financing from eligible
funds givers by pledging the stocks or other securities they hold and agree

to return the funds and cancel the pledge some day in the future

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

supervisor(s) of the Company

the supervisory committee of the Company

Suzhou Bingtai Trading Co., Ltd. (8:/N3RZ=E SHERAF]), which holds 94%
equity interest in Hangzhou Ruisi

the 2018 annual report of the Company

Tomorrow Holding Limited Company (BBXIZRE BB A A]), which holds
approximately 54% equity interest in Baotou Huazi, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company

Wind Info Co., Ltd. (E/88BEBHMRMHER AR, a joint stock company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a service provider of
financial data, information and software, being an independent third party of
the Company

Zhongchang Hengyuan Holdings Limited (R EEEZEKRER AT, a
substantial shareholder of the Company



Section 2 Material Risks

The Company’s business is highly dependent on economy and market conditions in China. China’s capital market
conditions may change suddenly and dramatically, which could materially and adversely affect the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operation. Further, the Company’s business is also susceptible to
changes under relevant PRC government policies, such as monetary policies, fiscal policies, foreign exchange
policies, interest rate fluctuation, cost of funding, taxation policies, availability of short-term and long-term market

funding sources, and legislation and regulations affecting the finance and securities industries.

The major risks faced by the Company include: strategic risk arising from change of strategic plans and
management risk arising from internal operation in response to changes of the macro-economy and the capital
markets; credit risk resulting from the failure of a debtor or counterparty to timely perform its contractual
obligations; market risk of loss or revenue decline resulting from the overall or partial change of the market,
including the risk of price fluctuation in equity-based assets, interest rate risk and exchange rate risk; liquidity risk
of the inability to raise funds on a timely basis at a reasonable cost to settle liabilities as they fall due, perform
other payment obligations and satisfy other funding demands of normal business development; operation risk
of financial loss resulting from the improper operation in transactional processes or the management system;
legal and compliance risk resulting from the failure of making timely adjustment to the Company’s operation
and relevant standards corresponding to the adjustment to laws, regulations and provisions set by regulatory

authorities; etc.
In view of the above-mentioned risks, the Company has established internal control and risk management

system, compliance management system and risk control indicators monitoring system to prevent and reduce

various risks the Company is exposed to in the course of operation.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Name of Company

Chinese name:  BZFILFMARH AR F], being the corporate name in the PRC (carrying on business in Hong

Kong as "B FEH")

English name: HENGTAI SECURITIES CO., LTD, being English translation of the corporate name in the PRC
(carrying on business in Hong Kong as “HENGTOU SECURITIES")

Board of Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Jiemin (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Yigang (Vice chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Tao

Mr. Sun Chao

Ms. Dong Hong

Ms. Gao Liang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Jianjun

Dr. Lam Sek Kong

Mr. Lv Wendong

Special Committees of the Board

Strategy and Investment Committee

Mr. Pang Jiemin (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Sun Chao

Dr. Lam Sek Kong

Risk Control and Supervisory Committee
Mr. Pang Jiemin (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Wu Yigang

Mr. Zhang Tao

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Section 3 Company Profile (Continued)

Audit Committee

Ms. Zhou Jianjun (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Zhang Tao

Dr. Lam Sek Kong

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Ms. Zhou Jianjun (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Pang Jiemin

Dr. Lam Sek Kong

Supervisory Committee

Mr. Guo Liwen (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Ms. Pei Jingjing

Mr. Wang Hui

Legal Representative: Mr. Pang Jiemin
President: Mr. Niu Zhuang

Registered capital: RMB2,604,567,412
Net capital: RMB6,104,858,301.23

Qualifications for Businesses in China

The Company is qualified for: securities and futures business operation, financial advice business on
activities related to security investment, proprietary securities business, foreign exchange business,
access to national inter-bank funding business, online securities commission business, entrusted
investment management business, proxy sale of open-end investment funds, chief agency broker
in the agency system, provision of intermediary services for futures companies, margin financing
and securities lending business, chief agency broker on the NEEQ, distribution of financial products,
refinancing business, stock pledged repurchase transaction business, online account opening
business, stock option brokerage and proprietary business, market-making activities on the NEEQ,
lending business for margin and securities refinancing, Southbound Trading under the Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, pilot over-the-counter (“OTC") trading, administration of overseas
securities investment of qualified domestic institutional investors, trial Internet-based securities
services, custodian business for securities investment funds and Southbound Trading under the

Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT
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10.

11.

Head Office in China

Registered address:  14-18/F, Everbright Bank Building, Oriental Junzuo Block D, Chile Chuan
Avenue, Saihan District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, the
PRC (post code: 010098)

Head office address:  11/F, China Life Centre, No. 17 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the
PRC (post code: 100033)

Website: www.cnht.com.cn

Email: dongban@cnht.com.cn

Place of Business in Hong Kong
40th Floor, Sunlight Tower, No. 248 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Secretary of the Board

Mr. Zhang Wei

Tel: +86 10 5667 3898

Fax: +86 10 5667 3777
Email: zhangwei@cnht.com.cn

Address: Room 509, Block C, Tongtai Building, No. 33 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing,
the PRC (post code: 100033)

Chief Compliance Officer

Mr. Pang Jiemin (acting)

Tel: +86 10 8327 0999
Fax: +86 10 8327 0998
Email: pangjiemin@cnht.com.cn

Address: 11/F, China Life Centre, No. 17 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC
(post code: 100033)

Chief Risk Officer

Ms. Yu Fang

Tel: +86 10 8327 0999
Fax: +86 10 8327 0998
Email: yufang@cnht.com.cn

Address: 11/F, China Life Centre, No. 17 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC
(post code: 100033)

HENGTOU SECURITIES



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Zhang Wei, Ms. Leung Wing Han Sharon

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Pang Jiemin, Ms. Leung Wing Han Sharon

Auditors

International accounting firm: RSM Hong Kong (in November 2018, its Chinese name was
changed from "FInEE (B ) QA EISFT to "BHESFTAISEAT,
while there is no change of its English name)

Domestic accounting firm: Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP

Hong Kong Legal Advisor

Luk & Partners
In Association with

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

Principal Bankers
China Minsheng Bank, Hohhot Branch

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Hohhot Branch
China Construction Bank Corporation, Hulun South Road Branch of Hohhot

H Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Stock Code (H Shares)

01476

2018 ANNUAL REPORT 13



Section 3 Company Profile (Continued)

The Company'’s predecessor is Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region Securities Company (A5 & B A& &
%2 7)), which was established by Inner Mongolia branch of the People’s Bank of China upon the approval
of the People’'s Bank of China in April 1992. In November 1998, the Company was converted into a
limited liability company as approved by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Capital Increase and
Conversion of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region Securities Company (Zheng Jian Ji Gou Zi [1998] No.39)

(ARNERNT S BARES R FIEE LH LR (B BB F(1998]395%)).

On 2 July 2002, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of the Capital Injection of
Inner Mongolia Securities Co., Ltd. (REGEHFBREE AR (Zheng Jian Ji Gou Zi [2002] No. 194) (K
REZAENZEIZFERECTARNIEEREKRNILE) (FEMET(2002]1945%)), Inner Mongolia Securities
Co., Ltd. completed the capital increase with its registered capital increased from RMB94,000,000 to
RMB655,569,950. On 9 October 2002, upon approval by the Inner Mongolia Administration for Industry
and Commerce, the Company was re-named as Hengtai Securities Limited Liability Company (lEZRIEHA
FREEAR).

On 3 November 2008, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Conversion into a
Joint Stock Company with Limited Liability and the Change of Registered Capital of Hengtai Securities
Limited Liability Company (Zheng Jian Ji Gou Zi [2008] No. 1148) (BN ZEERIEAERET A FE
RBOBERARIAREEFMERNILE) (BEHIEF(2008]111485%)), Hengtai Securities Limited Liability
Company was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability under the name of Hengtai
Securities Co., Ltd (IBZUEAR 1D B R A7), with its registered capital increased to RMB2,006,247,412.

On 10 March 2009, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Hengtai Securities
Co., Ltd's Acquisition of Changcai Securities Brokerage Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2009] No. 223) ({#
REZEBRIESKROBRAFRIMERMESFCLERATNIE) (FEFTAI[2009]223%F)), the Company
acquired Changcai Securities Brokerage Co., Ltd.. The registered capital of the Company was increased to
RMB2,194,707,412 and Hengtai Changcai became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the

completion of the acquisition.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Section 3 Company Profile (Continued)

On 22 May 2009, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Change in Equity Interest
in Shanghai Yongda Futures Brokerage Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2009] No. 423) ((BERE M _E 8Kk AHA
BELABR AR EERRENILTE) (BEEFFAI[2009]142358)), the Company acquired Shanghai Yongda Futures
Brokerage Co., Ltd., and Shanghai Yongda Futures Brokerage Co., Ltd. became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Shanghai Yongda Futures Brokerage Co., Ltd. changed its name to Hengtai Futures
Brokerage Co., Ltd. in August 2010, and then to Hengtai Futures Co., Ltd. in May 2011. On 30 June 2015,
the registered capital of Hengtai Futures was increased from RMB100 million to RMB125 million. Hengtai
Capital subscribed for the additional registered capital in a cash consideration of RMB50 million, at the
price of RMB2 for RMB1 registered capital. Hengtai Futures was held by the Company and Hengtai Capital
as to 80% and 20%, respectively, upon completion of the capital increase. On 16 September 2015, Hengtai
Futures was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability as a whole through converting its

original net asset value into shares.

On 25 January 2013, the Company established Hengtai Pioneer Investment Co., Ltd. ([EZREHEREFR A
AJ) in Beijing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with a registered capital of RMB100 million.

On 3 June 2013, the Company established Hengtai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. ((ERE AR EBR ST
2A]) in Shenzhen as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with a registered capital of RMB200
million. On 29 January 2016, Hengtai Capital increased its registered capital from RMBO0.2 billion to RMB1
billion in order to supplement working capital. On 10 November 2016, Hengtai Capital further increased
its registered capital from RMB1 billion to RMB1.5 billion in order to supplement working capital. On 22
August 2018, Hengtai Capital changed its registered capital from RMB1.5 billion to RMB1.2 billion. On 11
March 2019, Hengtai Capital changed its registered capital from RMB1.2 billion to RMBO0.8 billion.

On 30 October 2013, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Change in Equity
Interest in New China Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2013] No. 1376) ((BRtx R
SEEARA RS ERENOIE) EEFFA[2013]13765F)), the Company acquired 43.75% equity interest in
New China Fund Management Co., Ltd. and became the second largest shareholder of New China Fund.
On 29 July 2015, upon approval by the CSRC with the Reply on the Approval of Change in Equity Interest
in New China Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1669) (BRI EFEHELERAE
RN FIEEARAEMIE) (FFEEFFAI[2015]1669%%)), the Company completed the subscription for additional
57,500,000 shares (representing 14.87% equity interest in New China Fund) at a consideration of
RMB97,750,000. Upon completion of the capital increase, New China Fund was held by the Company as to
58.62% and became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. On 28 September 2015, New China
Fund Management Co., Ltd. was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability as a whole by

converting its original net asset value into shares.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Section 3 Company Profile (Continued)

On 9 September 2015, the Company received the Reply on the Approval of Issue of Overseas-Listed
Foreign-Invested Shares by Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 2089) ((BAm iz 18
ZTEHR D BR AR ZEITIRIN ETINE IR HEE) (B EEFF ] [2015]208955%)) from CSRC, which approved the
Company to publicly issue the overseas listed foreign-invested shares (H Shares) and the listing of such
shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On 15 October 2015, the overseas-listed
shares of the Company were officially listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 01476). The
Company issued an aggregate of 450,846,000 H Shares (including the portion of reduced state-owned
shares) (all being ordinary shares) with a nominal value of RMB1 each. The total share capital of Company

was 2,604,567,412 shares upon completion of the issue.

Strategic and

General Meetin ‘ )
’ ° Investment Committee

Risk Control and
Supervisory Committee

’Supervisory Commit‘tee‘ ’ Board }—
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’ Management ‘
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Iv.

SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2018, major subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

n

Controlled Subsidiaries

Date of Registered Shareholding Legal
No. Name Address (in China) Principal business establishment Capital ~ percentage representative Telephone (+86)
(RMBO'000)
1 Hengtai Changcai Section 479, 5/F, No. 57 Securities underwriting 10 January 2002 20,000 100%  Zhang Wei 010-56673702
Securities Co., Ltd. Changjiang Road, Changjiang  business, securities &
(BREHAESERE  Road Economic Development  investment and fund
| Zone, Chang Chun, Jilin distribution business and
Province (EMERETRIT  securities sponsoring
REEREERTIROTERE  business
479%)
2 Hengtai Pioneer Building 5, No. 25 Shuntong ~ Investment of equity and 25 January 2013 10,000 100% Wu Lihui 010-83270868
Investment Co., Ltd. ~ Road, Shunyi District, Beijing  financial products other (REE)
(ERABREBRE  (tRMEEEIERR555E)  than those stated in the List
) of Securities Investment
Products for the Proprietary
Trading of Securities
Companies ((BHAEES
EERERBEE)) withits
own funds
3 Hengtai Capital Room 201, Block A, 1 Equity investment,; 3 June 2013 120,000' 100% NiuZhuang  0755-83700311
Investment Co., Ltd. ~ Qianwan First Road, Qianhai  equity-related debt (%)
(ERBIEEERE  ShenzhenHong Kong investment; funds
A7) Cooperation Zone, Shenzhen, ~ management; financial
Guangdong Province (%% information consultation
AITHEREA R
RIAR01Z)
4 Hengtai Futures Co.,  Unit 201, 2/F, No. 120 Block ~ Commodity futures 20 December 1992 12,500 80%”  Fu Lixin 021-68405668
L, (EXHERHE 91, E'shan Road, China brokerage; financial futures (R
BAT) (Shanghail Pilot Free Trade brokerage; advisory
Zone (FE(LE)EHESH  services related to futures
BERILENEI2082B201  investment and asset
£7) management
5 New China Fund 19JF, Building 2, Lifan Centre, ~ Fund raising, fund distribution, 9 December 2004 21,750 58.62% ChenZhong  010-68779666
Management Co., No. 6 Juxianyan Square, asset management and (RE)
Ltd. GTEESEERE  Jiangbei District, Chongging ~ other business as permitted
(ERAR) (EETIIREEEERCE by the CSRC
HRBLIEHDEZ 198
Notes:
1. On 11 March 2019, Hengtai Capital completed the industrial and commercial registration for the change
of registered capital from RMB1.2 billion to RMBO0.8 billion.
2. The Company's shareholding percentage in such company is presented as direct shareholding

percentage.
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(II) Major Subsidiaries of Hengtai Capital

Date of Registered Shareholding Legal
No. Name Address (in China) Principal business establishment capital  percentage representative Telephone (+86)
(RMBO'000)
1 Shanghai Yingwo Room 358, Building 3, No.806  Investment management, 2July 2013 2,000 100% NiuZhuang 02168506779
Investment Fengzhen Road, Hongkou asset management, (%)
Management Co., District, Shanghai (E/74L  investment consultation,
Lo (HERRAEE  PELHEHG06%3EBE)  industrial investment
BERRA)
2 Shenzhen Hengtai Room 201, Building A, 1 Entrusted management 9 September 2013 2,000 100% XinBenhua  0755-83700311
Capital Equity Qianwan Yi Road, Qianhai of equity investment (FAE)
Investment Fund Shenzhen-Hong Kong funds, equity investment,
Management Co., Cooperation Zone, Shenzhen,  funds management and
Ld. (FIIEZEAK  Guangdong Province (BRE  investment consultation
BREEGERER  RITHERESfRAL-
EfERF) FIFAR201Z)
3 Beijing Hengtai Hongze  F2-1(B)701-2,7/F, No.2and 4  Project investment, 8 April 2015 1,000 100% XinBenhua  010-57649363
Investment Co., Ltd. ~ Wudinghou Street, Xicheng investment management, (E4E)
(tREFLERES  District, Beijing Gt RTH asset management;
RAR) HERTREALS  ARE investment consultation;
F2-1(8)701-2) corporate management
consulting
4 Shanghai Hongdian Room 2506, No.99 Huangpu ~~ Investment management, 4 May 2015 10,000 100% Huang Weiguo  021-33821309
Investment Road, Hongkou District, industrial investment, asset (BEE)
Management Co., Shanghai (- OEER  management, business
L. (EBRAREE  H99512506%) consulting, corporate
BERAR) management consulting
5 Inner Mongolia Hengtai  6/F, Region 2, Block A, Jindi Asset management, 2 November 2015 3,000 51% NiuZhuang  010-53621186
Shengda Investment  Business Building, Xincheng  investment management, (Fit)
Management Co., District, Chifeng, Innner investment advisory
L. (REZEZEE  Mongolia Autonomous services

REERERLR) Region (M5 & B IR ETRET
FHELFEBARARR
6)
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Section 3 Company Profile (Continued)

(Ill) Major Subsidiary of Hengtai Futures

Date of Registered Shareholding Legal
No.  Name Address (in China) Principal business establishment capital  percentage representative Telephone (+86)
(RMBO000)
1 Hengtai Yingwo Asset  Room 915, No. 857 Laolu Road,  Asset management, 5 February 2016 5,000 100%  Fu Lixin 021-60212780
Management Co., Shuyuan Town, Pudong New  investment management, ()
Lid. (EFEXEEE  District, Shanghai (% industrial investment,
EBRAT) RHIEEREZENKS7E  venture capital investment,
915%) investment consulting,
corporate management
services, financial
consulting, planning
of corporate asset
reorganisation and merger
and acquisition, marketing
planning, etc.
(IV) Major Subsidiary of New China Fund
No. Name Address (in China) Principal business Date of Registered Shareholding Legal Telephone (+86)
establishment Capital  percentage representative
(RMBO000)
1 Beijing New China Fushi - Room 3-01 Building 6, Asset management for 10 April 2013 30,800 76.62% LinYanfang ~ 010-58010865
Asset Management Ronghuiyuan, Airport specific customers and (HEF)

A

Co., Ltd. JtFHMEE  Economic Core Zong, Shunyi  other businesses as
BEEERARDA)  District, Beijing HtAAIEE  approved by CSRC
BREEFEECORREER

#3-01)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had two branch offices in Shenzhen and Changchun, respectively,
details of which are as follows:

Date of Person in
No. Name Address (in China) establishment ~ Working capital charge Telephone (+86)
(RMB0°000)

1 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd, ~ Rooms 2001-2020, Shenzhen 17 August 2009 500 Hu Sanming 0755-82033486
Shenzhen Branch Office Central Business Building, No. 88 (FH=")
(BREFRABRAFAFI  Fuhua First Road, Futian District,

ARF) Shenzhen (R REERE—%
885 AYI L A K E2001-2020
2

2 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd,  Rooms 2501 and 2502, Office 27 May 2014 300 Cao Yalou 0431-82970822
Changchun Branch Office  Building 11, Weifeng New (BT
(ERIHBHERAERE  Ecological City, Jingyue
ART) Development Zone, Changchun

City, Jilin Province (E#4 &M
FAREEREELTAIHELE
2501 + 25025 5%)
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VI.

DISTRIBUTION OF SECURITIES BRANCHES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had a total of 144 securities branches (please refer to Appendix to

this report). Number and distribution of securities branches of the Company are as follows:

Number of Number of

securities securities
Location (PRC) branches Location (PRC) branches
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region 27 Hubei Province 2
Guangdong Province 23 Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region 2
Shanghai 20 Shanxi Province 1
Beijing 19 Hebei Province 1
Jilin Province 14 Chongging 1
Zhejiang Province 13 Shaanxi Province 1
Shandong Province 8 Henan Province 1
Liaoning Province 4 Hunan Province 1
Fujian Province 2 Tianjin 1
Jiangsu Province 2 Sichuan Province 1
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDEXES

(Accounting data and financial indexes set out in this report are prepared in accordance with the

International Financial Reporting Standards)

n

Principal Accounting Data and Financial Indexes for the Recent Three Years

Increase/
(decrease)
from last
Item 2018 2017 period 2016
Operating results (RMB'000)
Revenue and other income 2,099,654 4,234,363 (50.41%) 3,541,155
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,420) 1,012,905 (181.00%) 642,577
(Loss)/profit for the year-attributable (673,446) 706,202 (195.36%) 454,723
to ordinary shareholders of the
Company
Net cash generated from/(used in) 7,315 (1,970,096) 100.37% 1,384,606
operating activities
Earnings per share (RMB/share)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share' (0.30) 0.23 (230.43%) 0.14
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share' (0.30) 0.23 (230.43%) 0.14
Profitability index
Weighted average rate of return on (9.10) 7.06 Decreased 4.38
net assets (%)? by 16.16
percentage
points

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Section 4 Summary of Accounting and Business Data (Continued)

Increase/
(decrease)
31 December 31 December from the end 31 December
Item 2018 2017 of last period 2016

Scale indicators (RMB'000)

Total assets 29,915,079 36,416,987 (17.85%) 37,148,596

Total liabilities 19,970,258 25,474,555 (21.61%) 27,212,391

Accounts payable to brokerage 7,691,497 10,028,333 (23.30%) 12,201,337
clients

Equity attributable to ordinary 9,536,409 10,571,277 (9.79%) 9,660,960

shareholders and holders of

perpetual capital securities

Total share capital (‘000 shares) 2,604,567 2,604,567 0.00% 2,604,567
Net assets per share attributable 3.09 3.48 (11.21%) S
to ordinary shareholders® (RMB/
share)
Gearing ratio (%)* 55.25 58.53 Decreased 60.17
by 3.28
percentage
points
Notes:
1. The index is calculated based on the assumption of deducting the dividends of the holders of cumulative

perpetual capital securities.

2. Weighted average rate of return on net assets (%)=P/(Eo+P—+2+Ei X Mi——Mo-Ej X Mj=-Mo), in which
P represents net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company during the Reporting
Period; Eo represents net assets attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company at the beginning
of the period; Ei represents additional net assets from issuance of new shares or from debt to equity
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company during the Reporting Period; Ej represents reduced
net assets from repurchase or from cash dividend attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
during the Reporting Period; Mo represents the number of months of the Reporting Period; Mi represents
the accumulative number of months calculated from the month following the increase in net assets to
the end of the Reporting Period; Mj represents the accumulative number of months calculated from the

month following the reduction in net assets to the end of the Reporting Period.

3. Net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders = (Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders
and holders of perpetual capital securities — perpetual capital securities) = total share capital

4. Gearing ratio (%) = (Total liabilities—Accounts payable to brokerage clients)/(Total assets —Accounts

payable to brokerage clients)
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(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company

Revenue and other income

(RMB100 million) (RMB100 million)
50.00 8.00 - 7.06
42.34 -
40.00 009 Sl
: 35.41 4.00 -
30.00 F 2.00 .
21.00 0.00
20.00 200k
10.00 - 400
-6.001 6.73
0.00 -8.00- '
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
Weighted average return Gearing ratio
on net assets 70% - 60 17% o
12.00% - 60% |- /% 5833% 55759
7.06%
50%
6.00% - 4. 38% )
40% -
0.00% Sl
20%
-6.00% 10% -
0%
o [0)
-12.00% - Al 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
Scale indicators
(RMB100 million)
400.00 - 371.49 364.17
350.00

300.00
250.00
200.00

299.15
105.71 I
100.00 96.61 95.36
0.00

150.00
50.00
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2018

m Total assets

m Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company and holders of perpetual
capital securities
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(m

Principal Accounting Data and Financial Indexes for the Recent Five Years

Earnings (RMB'000)

Item 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Revenue and other income 2,099,654 4,234,363 3,541,155 5,676,190 2,269,453
Total operating expenses (2,918,406) (3,219,772) (2,897,455) (3,493,386) (1,447,271)
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,420) 1,012,905 642,577 2,195,270 837,334
(Loss)/profit for the year —

attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company (673,446) 706,202 454,723 1,700,772 654,105

Assets, liabilities and equity (RMB’000)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

31 December

Item 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total assets 29,915,079 36,416,987 37,148,596 39,167,673 21,817,518
Total liabilities 19,970,258 25,474,555 27,212,391 29,434,641 16,542,521
Accounts payable to brokerage clients 7,691,497 10,028,333 12,201,337 13,977,558 7,655,457
Equity attributable to ordinary

shareholders and holders of

perpetual capital securities 9,536,409 10,571,277 9,660,960 9,531,668 5,274,997
Total share capital (‘000 shares) 2,604,567 2,604,567 2,604,567 2,604,567 2,194,707
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Key financial indexes

Item 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(RMB/share) (0.30) 0.23 0.14 0.72 0.30
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(RMB/share) (0.30) 0.23 0.14 0.72 0.30
Weighted average rate of return on net

assets (%) (9.10) 7.06 4.38 26.62 13.22

Gearing ratio (%)
Net assets per share attributable to
ordinary shareholders (RMB/share)

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
55.25 58.563
3.09 3.48

31 December
2016
60.17

3.13

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
61.36 63.01
3.08 2.40
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60.00

50.00
40.00

30.00

20.00
10.00

0.00

30.00%
24.00%
18.00%
12.00%
6.00%
0.00%
-6.00%
-12.00%

120.00
100.00
80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00

0.00

Revenue and other income
(RMB100 million)

56.76

42.34
35.41

22.69 21.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Weighted average return
on net assets

26.62%

13.22%

7.06%
4.38%

-9.10%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Equity attributable to
ordinary shareholders of
the Company and holders of
perpetual capital securities
(RMB100 million)

105.71
95.32 96.61 95.36

31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company
(RMB100 million)

205 17.01

15

10 6.54 7.06
5 4.55

-6.73
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

N
o
f

Total assets
(RMB100 million)
450.00 -
400.00 |-
350.00 -
300.00 -
250.00 -
200.00 -
150.00 -
100.00 -
50.00 -
0.00

391.68 371.49364.17

299.15

218.18

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Gearing ratio

70%
60% -
50% [~
40%
30% -
20%
10%
0%

63'010/81 36%60.17 %
5 (o] .
058.53% cc 5eq,

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 215 216 2017 2018



ummary ot Accounting an

usiness Data

DIFFERENCES OF ACCOUNTING DATA UNDER DOMESTIC AND
OVERSEAS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

There is no material difference as to Company's net profit for 2018 and 2017 and net assets as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 shown on the consolidated financial statements prepared under

the International Financial Reporting Standards and those shown on the consolidated financial statements

prepared under China’s Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

THE COMPANY’S NET CAPITAL AND RELATED RISK CONTROL

INDEXES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s net capital amounted to RMB6,104.86 million, representing
a decrease of RMB1,729.38 million as compared with RMB7,834.24 million at the end of 2017. During
the Reporting Period, related risk control indexes including the Company’s net capital met the regulatory

requirements.

Unit: in RMB’'000

31 December 31 December Regulatory
Item 2018 2017 standard
Net capital 6,104,858 7,834,239 N/A
Including: Net core capital 4,604,858 5,734,239 N/A
Net supplement capital 1,500,000 2,100,000 N/A
Net assets 9,008,517 9,939,416 N/A
Total risk capital provision 2,389,348 3,844,433 N/A
Total assets on and off statement of
financial position 19,804,395 21,841,596 N/A
Risk coverage ratio 255.50% 203.78% >100%
Capital leverage ratio 23.25% 26.25% >8%
Liquidity coverage ratio 244.24% 520.72% >100%
Net stable funding ratio 162.58% 154.83% >100%
Net capital/net assets 67.77% 78.82% >20%
Net capital/liabilities 57.62% 71.19% >8%
Net assets/liabilities 85.02% 90.32% >10%
Proprietary equity securities and securities
derivatives/net capital 42.61% 33.28% <100%
Proprietary non-equity securities and
securities derivatives/net capital 112.80% 86.58% <500%
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Reporting Period, China’s macro economy has seen changes amid overall stability with
increased downward pressure against the backdrop of complex and severe external environment. In the
year of 2018, China's GDP grew by 6.6% year-on-year, 0.3 percentage points lower than that of 2017. The
People’s Bank of China continued to follow a prudent and neutral monetary policy to maintain liquidity in
the banking system at a reasonably sufficient level, and increased financial support for key economic field
like private enterprises and small and minor enterprises amid a complex international economic and political
environment like the Sino-US trade fraction, and the gradual withdrawal of the United States, the European
Union and other major developed economies from unconventional monetary policy. Monetary loans and
social financings witnessed moderate growth, interest rates stayed at an appropriate level and the RMB
exchange rate remained basically stable at a reasonable and balanced level. In the year, newly-added social
financings totaled RMB19.26 trillion, representing a decrease of RMB3.14 trillion compared to 2017, with
growth of broad money and narrow money by 8.1% and 1.5% year-on-year, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, major Chinese stock indices saw significant drop, and the trading volumes
declined dramatically as compared with 2017. In 2018, the Shanghai Composite Index opened at 3,314.03
points, and then fell to as low as 2,449.20 points and closed at 2,493.90 points at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of 24.59% for the year; the Shenzhen Component Index opened at 11,079.76
points at the beginning of the year, and then fell to as low as 7,084.44 points and closed at 7,239.79 points
at the end of the year, representing a decrease of 34.42% for the year; the GEM Index opened at 1,759.02
points, and then fell to as low as 1,184.91 points and closed at 1,250.53 points at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of 28.65% for the year. In 2018, the turnover of stocks and funds on Shanghai
Stock Exchange amounted to RMB47,483.587 billion, the turnover of stocks and funds on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange amounted to RMB53,082.752 billion, and the total turnover of stock and funds in the Shanghai
and Shenzhen stock markets amounted to RMB100,566.339 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 17.98%. (data source: websites of State Statistics Bureau, People’s Bank of China, Shanghai Stock

Exchange, Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Wind Info)
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue and other income of RMB2,099.65 million and
a loss of RMB635.98 million, representing a decrease of 50.41% and 182.69% as compared with 2017,

respectively.

(I) Brokerage and Wealth Management Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue and other income from brokerage and wealth management
business amounted to RMB1,326.64 million, representing a decrease of 32.77% as compared with
2017.

1. Securities brokerage

During the Reporting Period, the Company has always adhered to the “client-centric” service
concept. On one hand, the Company reinforced its awareness of client service and improved
client service standards with steady steps to actively broadened institutional cooperation
channels. It also hosted the “Hengtai Yangzheng” Public Welfare Private Placement Contest
("BEFRFHR " FALELZEBAE) in association with the Finance Research Institute of China
Central Television Finance. While greatly improving its influence in the industry, the Company
continued to optimize the service functions of “Toupai (8JK)" and “Jinyu Manager (£ £ &
ZX)" APPs to improve client services in every detail. On the other hand, the Company has
been perfecting the network layout of the branches and further sparking the operating vitality
of the light branches through intensified assessment, supervision and training system, which
resulted in considerable progress in its business development. However, as major indexes
and trade volume in the market declined under the overall downturn shock in China’s stock
market in 2018, the growth of the securities brokerage business of the Company slowed

down as compared with that in 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the number of new accounts opened reached 60,500, and the
total number of clients reached 2,338,900, representing an increase of 2.66% as compared
with the end of 2017. The total assets under custody for clients reached RMB108,153.31
million, representing a decrease of 29.75% as compared with the end of 2017. The turnover
of stocks and funds reached RMB1,211,633.30 million, representing a decrease of 20.48% as
compared with 2017, while the market share of stocks and funds was 0.61%, representing a

decrease of 1.61% as compared with that in 2017.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Prospects for 2019

The Company will continue to seek new development of securities brokerage business
through innovation, to further advance the transformation of revenue model. The Company
will continue to develop share option and other innovative businesses, and seize market
opportunities to enhance the proportion of share option business. It will also advance the
development of information system to establish an integrated service system of trading,
custody and clearing centering on the needs of institutional clients, so as to improve its
capability to serve institutional clients. By doing so, the Company could develop more
institutional clients to rapidly increase the proportion of the assets of institutional clients, and

thus further improve the Company’s market share.

2. Futures brokerage

During the Reporting Period, guided by the principles of “institution-orientation, production
development and professional operation” in business transformation, Hengtai Futures has
established a full-fledged derivative platform systems based on its futures brokerage business
as the main body, by virtue of assets management business and risk management business as
the two wings, and as complemented by the outbound business. Hengtai Futures has seen
a steady increase in the size of customer deposits, a significant increase in the proportion
of institutional clients and a further improved customer structure. Three new branches were
established in Jinan, Qingdao and Shenyang in China. While improving the mechanism and
enriching the business system, Hengtai Futures further strengthened its ability to prevent
and mitigate risks. At the 16th China Financial Billboard (81 £ 2 #5) in 2018, Hengtai Futures
was awarded the Growth Futures Company of the Year Award (FERK EIEEIE A E]) and the
Gold Medal Industrial Research of the Year Award (%€ & f# & ¥/ 3£ %), During the Reporting
Period, the number of new-added clients of Hengtai Futures was 2,634.

Prospects for 2019

Based on the geographical characteristics, Hengtai Futures will consolidate its advantages
in research and development, management, compliance, information technology and other
aspects. While focusing on the futures brokerage business, Hengtai Futures will promote the
transformation of assets management business and develop the risk management business
into a new driver of profit growth and, in combination with the international business,
improve its service quality and work efficiency. Hengtai Futures will further strengthen
its comprehensive strategic synergy with other intra-group members so as to strengthen
its ability to serve financial institutions and physical enterprises and to create its core

competitiveness.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Wealth management

During the Reporting Period, the Company adapted to the market change and took the
opportunity arising from the transformation of the wealth management business to promote
the upgrade and development of the wealth management business from various aspects
including performance assessment system, organizational structure, staffing of the wealth
management business, aiming at developing the asset end, assessment end, sales end
and after-sales end. Under the customer-centric principle, the Company made market-
oriented entry at the asset end in a standardized manner, made scientific assessment
on a multi-dimensional and multi-index basis, marketed its products under the concept
of asset allocation and provided customer services on the basis of timely and effective
communication. Through the guidance and education of investors’ asset allocation concept,
the Company strengthened risk control and enhanced risk awareness on the basis of
suitability of sales and allocated funds to public funds, private equity funds, bank wealth
management and assets management products and other large-scale assets. Throughout the
year, the Company sold 123 financial products and recorded sales of RMB8,049.34 million,
representing a decrease of 8.21% as compared with that of 2017.

Prospects for 2019

It will continue to replenish product supply, and introduce more core assets and excellent
managers in the market; it will continue to refine product category and review the product
pool for product segmentation and sales positioning; and it will continue to develop new
products and meet the specific requirements of investors through the application of various
financial instruments and innovative product designs. Moreover, it will further strengthen
management of compliance operation, enhance the compliance consciousness of its
employees, spend more efforts on education of risk consciousness of the investors and
undertake work in relation to the suitability of investors. Moreover, the Company will solidify
its investment and consultation efforts, so as to improve its investment and consultation
service standard. Meanwhile, it will also establish an online investment and consultation
platform that integrates the basic elements such as clients, staff and products so as to
facilitate seamless communication between staff and client, thus further improving its

investment and consultation service capability.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

4. Capital-based intermediary business

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to improve the quality of customer
services, increase the efficiency of capital utilisation and strengthen risk management while
maintaining strict control over business risks. As a result of increasingly stringent regulatory
environment and a downward trend in the securities market, the size of capital-based
intermediary business narrowed. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the size of stock-
pledged repurchase amounted to RMB753.16 million, representing a decrease of 11.30% as
compared with the end of 2017; the balance of the margin financing and securities lending
business amounted to RMB3,248.68 million, representing a decrease of 39.30% as compared
with that by the end of 2017.

Prospects for 2019

The Company will level up the client service standards so as to attract prime client
resources, promote the scaling up of financing business and stabilize the interest rate of
margin financing and securities lending by way of providing the clients with professional
investment advice. Meanwhile, it will intensify capital management and control capital costs
within a reasonable scope so as to further increase the profit margin of margin financing and
securities lending. Moreover, it will improve risk management by reasonable control over
risks, intensified efforts on education of investors and client suitability management and

proactive management of risk management and control mechanism.

b Asset custody business

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued updating the business systems,
optimized customer service processes and strengthened market development efforts based
on customer needs, thereby achieving steady growth in asset custody business. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, the Company provided custody services for 867 funds, fund
services for 452 funds and fund raising supervision services for 199 funds. The total size of
asset custody, fund services and fund raising supervision increased to RMB120,030 million,

representing an increase of RMB8,170 million as compared with that by the end of 2017.
Prospects for 2019

For the asset custody business, the Company will further strengthen in-depth cooperation
with various financial institutions, expand business cooperation channels, further develop
financial institutions and other institutional clients, and proactively develop large fund
managers. In addition, it will continue to devote efforts to team building, consummate

business processes, and improve the quality of client services.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(n)

Investment Banking Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue and other income from investment banking business
amounted to RMB191.65 million, representing a decrease of 35.72% as compared to that of 2017.

China’s security market slumped sharply in 2018 as affected by macro economic trend and a number
of market factors, and the investment banking business was largely impacted. Under such heavy
operating pressure, Hengtai Changcai, in the business course of its investment banking business,
adapted to the changes in the market while actively capitalizing on the opportunities arising from
such changes in close adherence to the regulatory requirements, held fast to the three defense
lines for internal control and carried out prudent operations, thereby achieving stable development

in debt financing.
1. Equity financing

During the Reporting Period, Hengtai Changcai proactively implemented the Guidelines for
Internal Control of Investment Banking Business of Securities Companies ({(FE5H A FI% & iR
TR EFSAERIEHI1E5])) to strengthen the internal quality control for the investment banking
business. It also set up an investment banking business quality control department to
improve the business approval procedures and exert overall control over the business quality
within the greater investment banking system. Meanwhile, it also vigorously pressed ahead
such reserve projects as merger and reorganization and issuance of convertible bonds, and

devoted intensive efforts to quality customers to level up its comprehensive service capacity.

2. Debt financing

In 2018, in the face of regulatory policies, sluggish security market, tightening liquidity,
frequent occurrence of default and other factors, during the Reporting Period, while
solidifying its own strength in respect of enterprise bond, Hengtai Changcai strengthened its
ability of bond sales and made proactive attempts on new business directions. As a result,
it completed 13 enterprise bonds projects and 3 corporate bonds projects, achieving a total
financing amount of RMB10,340 million.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Prospects for 2019

In the progress of continuous development, Hengtai Changcai will follow with the
requirements of the Guidelines for Internal Control of Investment Banking Business of
Securities Companies, strictly control various risks and adapt to changes in the market when
proactively developing innovation-based business and expanding its business channels on
condition of continuous enhancement of its own strengths. Meanwhile, it will constantly
intensify cooperation with the existing partners and tap into high quality enterprises and
projects so as to pave the way for its future development. Holding fast to the mission of
serving the real economy, it will constantly increase input in direct financing businesses such
as IPO, refinancing, merger and reorganization, as well as direct debt financing and improve

its competitive edges.

3. Business of listing on the NEEQ

During the Reporting Period, the securities industry continued the regulatory framework
of strict supervision, intensive compliance and quality improvement. Under such fierce
competition circumstances, the Company adhered to the principles of risk control, system
improvement, and enhancement of quality and efficiency for the NEEQ listing business,
followed the policy preference of serving the real economy with finance, and actively served
the capital market demands of the NEEQ listing companies. During the Reporting Period,
the Company completed 21 listing projects, ranking the 3rd in the listing recommendation
market (data source: 2018 Market Statistic Bulletin of NEEQ ({2 B/ {7 8% X 452018
FEMEFETRE))), 6 targeted capital increase projects, 1 preference share issuance project
and 1 merger and reorganization project. As at the end of the Reporting Period, it provided
continuous steering services for 125 listed companies, ranking the 29th in the market (data

source: choice finance terminal of Eastmoney).
Prospects for 2019

The Company will continue to replenish its business types, accelerate the implementation
of the existing projects and carry forward the development of businesses such as targeted
capital increase and merger and reorganization of listed companies. It will also continue
to accelerate the contract signing of new projects and consolidate the foundation for its
subsequent development in a consistent manner. It will prolong the business value chain and
create benefits synergistically in active cooperation with other departments of the Company.
In addition, it will strictly follow the regulatory and guidance requirements, ameliorate the
kernel internal control mechanism and improve the capability to comprehend and control risks

so as to guarantee the effective completion of business projects at high quality.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(lll) Investment Management Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue and other income from investment management business

amounted to RMB807.40 million, representing a decrease of 18.61% as compared to that of 2017.

1.

Assets management

During the Reporting Period, China’s securities market fluctuated downwards. Due to the
market fluctuations, the issuance of new active management products and the investment
income therefrom under the assets management business were significantly impacted. In
the meantime, with the increasingly stringent regulation, the first half of 2018 witnessed the
implementation of the harshest-ever asset management standards, and, as a consequence,
the passive management products in the existing asset management business scaled down
sharply. As affected by the tightening regulatory policies and market volatility, product
issuance within the industry was generally downbeat. Notwithstanding, the Company
proactively expanded the market of active management business, adhered to its consistent
strategy of balanced layout to improve its capability of investment research in an ongoing
manner, so as to improve operating results and boost sales growth. As a result, 4 collective
asset management schemes were established during the Reporting Period, the open
products under which would continue to be on sale within the subsisting period. In particular,
Wenjian Huifu series products with fixed income have received continuous attention of the
investors, and the subsisting active management products had a midstream performance in
the market.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total size of asset management business was
RMB58,056.36 million, of which the size of collective schemes amounted to RMB1,833.98
million; the size of targeted schemes amounted to RMB28,229.74 million; the size of the

asset-backed securities special schemes amounted to RMB27,992.64 million.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the numbers of subsisting products of the collective,

targeted asset management schemes and the asset-backed securities special schemes

were 32, 37 and 18, respectively.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Prospects for 2019

In respect of the assets management, the Company will prioritize the fixed income
investment business, forge characteristic advantages out of its equity investment business,
and establish kernel competitiveness of asset management business based on the FOF and
MOM businesses so as to provide customers with diversified products. The construction of
investment research system will be consummated so as to ripen the fruits of investment
research. In addition, it will replenish the asset management product lines, enhance its
creativity in products and stress the layout with regard to equity-based and fixed income
investment products. In respect of asset securitisation, the Company will continue to
proactively store up projects and embrace manifold development opportunities in the trading
markets. Meanwhile, it will continue to develop thorough cooperation with banks and
insurance setups, conduct innovation on the business mode in combination of investment
and financing and purchase and sales and further meliorate the business systems, reinforce
compliance consciousness and comprehend and control operation risks, whereby the smooth

development of its businesses can be ensured.

2. Fund management

During the Reporting Period, in the depressed security market, the stocks and bond funds
both underperformed, issuance and operation of new products were facing headwinds, and
non-monetary funds scaled down substantially; New China Fund adjusted the organizational
structure of special accounts business and expanded such relevant business in a positive
stance, to seek for new business growth drivers through multiple channels, having thus

resulted in a rapid growth in the special accounts business.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, New China Fund had 45 publicly-raised funds with
management size of RMB40,051 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB3,964
million or 9.01%. The size of asset management with special accounts reached RMB50,744

million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB32,535 million or 178.68%.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Prospects for 2019

While regaining the stable performance of bond-based funds, New China Fund will be
devoted to leveling up the performance of investment in equity-based fund. It will reinforce
the construction of the investment research team so as to maintain its core competitiveness
in respect of investment research; strive to capitalize on opportunities in the market to
sell funds and facilitate the increase in the size of fund management; set new records in
respect of special accounts business while consolidating the existing achievements and
spending more efforts on developing active management products; give the reign to the
support effects of the mid and back end, intensify standardized management and improve
work efficiency and quality to advance business development; devote more efforts to
work concerning auditing, supervision and information disclosure, carry out procedural and
information-based risk control and keep abreast of the development trend; speed up the
business transformation of subsidiaries in line with the times; and continue to facilitate

poverty-alleviation work.

3. Private equity investment

During the Reporting Period, as required by the Management Standards for Private
Investment Fund Subsidiary of Securities Company (FEHRARIILEREE S T AR EIRRF))
promulgated by the Securities Association of China, Hengtai Capital principally carried out
comprehensive rectification in respect of the business scope, fund products and subordinate
organs and phased out its existing projects directly invested by it in an orderly fashion. As at
the end of the Reporting Period, Hengtai Capital managed a total of 9 private equity funds in
an aggregate amount of RMB9,697 million. Moreover, Hengtai Capital strengthened the post-
investment management of the existing business on the one hand and reserved a number of

new projects on the other hands.
Prospects for 2019

Hengtai Capital will continue to emphasize the expansion in the private equity segment,
further invest in and make presence in more industries, enhance the investment fund
raising abilities of the teams and expand the management scale of private equity funds.
Meanwhile, it will proceed with the post-investment management of the existing businesses
in an attempt to maximize customers’ interests, and continue to level up compliance
operation standards and improve the risk control capacity. Besides, Hengtai Capital will
uphold the corporate development concept featuring openness and inclusiveness to attract
more preeminent brains and tirelessly promote the corporate culture construction, thereby
improving cohesiveness and cooperative effects and establishing professional private equity
management teams.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

4. Alternative investment

During the Reporting Period, Hengtai Pioneer completed its rectification according to
the rectification plan as approved by the Securities Association of China and obtained
the business license for the business operations after the changes. While continuously
reinforcing the post-investment management of the existing projects, Hengtai Pioneer
proactively conducted new investment business. During the Reporting Period, Hengtai

Pioneer maintained steady operation and implemented each system in an effective manner.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, Hengtai Pioneer invested in 10 direct investment

projects with its own funds for an investment size of RMB114 million.
Prospects for 2019

Hengtai Pioneer will put further efforts into the management of investment projects
financed by self-own capital, intensify internal control and improve team building. In respect
of business investment, it will pay consistent attention to the investment in film funds,
strengthen researches and analyses in the film industry and funds, and identify quality

projects for further investment.

(IV) Proprietary Trading Business

During the Reporting Period, the revenue and other income from the proprietary trading business

amounted to RMB-303.05 million, representing a decrease of 134.14% as compared to 2017.

During the Reporting Period, as affected by the economic de-leveraging and increasingly stringent
financial regulations in China, the international trade frictions and other domestic and overseas
factors, China’'s stock market were under adjustment amongst downward shock. In response,
the Company adopted such measures as lightening up optimizing the position portfolio in a timely
manner to control the overall risks for its stock investment business. The domestic bond market
showed a divergent trend, low-risk bonds such as interest rate bonds and high-grade credit bonds
kept rising, while low-grade bonds, convertible bonds and exchangeable bonds continued to decline.
Against such backdrop, the Company made timely adjustments to the position structure of its bonds
and managed to achieve certain investment returns in respect of its fixed income business. During
the Reporting Period, the Company recorded certain losses from its proprietary trading business,
owning to the overall downwardness in the equity market. In 2019, the Company will strengthen the
forward-looking research of listed companies and the industries in which it is engaged, dynamically
adjust the position structure, and optimize the position portfolio, so as to effectively improve the

overall profitability.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In terms of stock investment, in adherence to the principle of stable operation and the physiology of
value investment, the Company gave priority to allocation of the blue-chip stocks with low valuations
and high-quality stocks with relatively affirmative earnings, and thereby avoided non-systemic risks
of the market in a relatively effective way. Nonetheless, losses still incurred to some extent due to
the substantial drawdown in the entire stock market.

In terms of fixed income business, faced with the complicated and unpredictable economic
fundamentals, the Company strengthened the forward-looking research, made timely adjustments to
bond holding structure and increased the placement of long-term interest rate bonds and high-grade
bonds with great efforts, having thus resulted in investment returns. As to the innovative business,
the Company rolled out the securities lending business, applied for pledged bond repurchase from
the third parties and was approved for filing, and completed the preparatory work for interest rate

swap business.

In terms of the share transfer market-making business, as affected by the inadequate liquidity in the
NEEQ market, the overall market remained sluggish. The Company, temporising with the changes in
the market, adopted prudent investment strategies and reduced its position size of equities held for

market making.
Prospects for 2019

In terms of stock investment business, the Company will continue to handpick stocks, increase
investment in convertible bonds, and proactively expand new investment methods, such as
quantitative investment, Hong Kong Stock Connect program and commodity, to create more profit
channels. As for fixed income business, the Company will reinforce its forward-looking research
on macro-economy and policy, adopt prudent interest arbitrage strategies with low interest rate of
funds and hedge duration risks by employing bond futures, securities lending and other instruments
in a flexible manner. Moreover, it will continue to promote the development of interest rate swap,
credit default swap and other derivatives business in this regard. In terms of the share transfer
market-making business, the Company will make timely adjustment to the market making strategies
in close adherence to the development status of enterprises under market making, scale up the
holding proportion of shares of high-quality enterprises, and continue to explore and improve the

automated market-making trading system.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(V)

(1

)

International Business

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to push ahead its international business by
proactively contacting the potential cooperative institutions and establishing communications and
cooperation with them. Meanwhile, it explored the overseas business opportunities, understood
the demand of its clients for the overseas market and carried out relevant matching work, while
providing assistance in relationship maintenance and communication for the Company’s overseas
exhibition business. Further, it selected and reserved talents in foreign affairs, worked out overseas
training program for the senior management, and maintained communication and contacts with the

regulatory authorities.
Prospects for 2019

The Company will fully expand its resource network for international business, continually explore
and foster various businesses in the overseas market and actively push ahead the application
for establishment of the Hong Kong subsidiary, thus promoting the development of international

business.

Analysis on the Profitability during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue and other income of RMB2,099.65 million
in aggregate, representing a year-on-year decrease of 50.41%. Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to RMB-673.45 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
195.36%. Earnings per share amounted to RMB-0.30, representing a year-on-year decrease of
230.43%. Weighted average return on net assets was -9.10%, representing a year-on-year decrease

of 16.16 percentage points.

Asset Structure and Asset Quality

As at the end of the Reporting Period, total assets of the Group amounted to RMB29,915.08 million,
down by 17.85% as compared to RMB36,416.99 million as at the end of 2017. Total liabilities
amounted to RMB19,970.26 million, down by 21.61% as compared to RMB25,474.56 million as at
the end of 2017. Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB9,536.41
million, down by 9.79% as compared to RMB10,571.28 million as at the end of 2017.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(1)

(V)

The Group’s asset structure remained stable with sound asset quality and liquidity. As at the end
of the Reporting Period, the total assets of the Group comprised of: cash assets, which primarily
included cash and bank balances (including cash held on behalf of brokerage clients), clearing
settlement funds and refundable deposits, amounted to RMB12,051.67 million, representing
40.29% of the Group's total assets; margin assets, which primarily included margin accounts
receivable and financial asset held under resale agreements, amounted to RMB4,399.91 million,
representing 14.71% of the Group’s total assets; financial investment assets, which primarily
included investment in associates and investment in financial assets, amounted to RMB11,908.58
million, representing 39.81% of the Group's total assets; save for the above items, assets of other

categories amounted to RMB1,554.92 million, representing 5.19% of the Group's total assets.

The Group's gearing ratio and operating leverage ratio remained relatively stable. As at the end of
the Reporting Period, liabilities after deducting accounts payable to brokerage clients amounted to
RMB12,278.76 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB3,167.46 million or 20.51%.
The gearing ratio of the Group was 55.25%, down by 3.28 percentage points from 58.53% as at
the end of 2017 (Note: gearing ratio = (total liabilities —accounts payable to brokerage clients)/(total
assets—accounts payable to brokerage clients)). Operating leverage ratio was 2.33 folds, down
by 6.80% from 2.50 folds as at the end of 2017 (Note: operating leverage ratio = (total assets —
accounts payable to brokerage clients)/equity attributable to shareholders of the Company).

Financing Channels and Financing Ability

During the Reporting Period, the Company met its operating capital requirement through debt
financing. Debt financing of the Company included margin and securities refinancing and beneficiary
certificates and transfer of income right of margin financing and securities lending. During the
Reporting Period, accumulated placements from China Securities Finance Corporation Limited
amounted to RMB4,100 million and accumulated capital inflow from beneficiary certificates
amounted to RMB2,946 million. Meanwhile, the Company received comprehensive credit line with

greater limit granted by several banks.

Liquidity Management of the Company

The Company focuses on its liquidity management. It has established a specific department
responsible for liquidity management. The Company’s liquidity management focused on the
organic combination of the security, liquidity and profitability of capital. As requested by the CSRC,
the Company established sound management system and contingency measure for liquidity
risk. The Company has prepared monthly liquidity monitor statement. The liquidity monitor index
of the Company in each month throughout the Reporting Period complied with the regulatory

requirements.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(V)

(vn)

Cash Flow

Net cash flow of the Group arising from operating activities for 2018 amounted to RMB7.32 million,
up by RMB1,977.41 million from RMB-1,970.10 million in the corresponding period in 2017. Net
cash flow arising from investment activities for 2018 amounted to RMB-243.45 million, down by
RMB3,032.40 million from RMB2,788.95 million in the corresponding period in 2017. Net cash flow
arising from financing activities for 2018 amounted to RMB603.04 million, up by RMB2,326.78
million from RMB-1,723.74 million in the corresponding period in 2017. Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents for 2018 amounted to RMB366.90 million, up by RMB1,271.80 million from RMB-
904.90 million in the corresponding period in 2017.

Changes in Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

During the Reporting Period, changes in the accounting policies have been made due to the

adoption of new Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises by the Company.

The Ministry of Finance of the PRC promulgated the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 22 —Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments (revised in 2017)"
(Cai Kuai [2017] No.7), "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 23 —-Transfer of
Financial Assets (revised in 2017)" (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 8), and”Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 24 —Hedge Accounting (revised in 2017)" (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 9) on 31 March
2017,"”Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 37 —Presentation and Reporting of
Financial Instrument (revised in 2017)" (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 14) on 2 May 2017 (together the “"New
Financial Instrument Standards”), and”Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 —
Revenue (revised in 2017)"” (Cai Kuai [2017] No. 22) (the “New Revenue Standards”) on 5 July 2017,
respectively, requiring companies that are listed on both domestic and overseas stock markets,
and those that are listed on overseas stock markets and adopt the International Financial Reporting
Standards or Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for statement preparation to adopt the
New Financial Instrument Standards and the New Revenue Standards from 1 January 2018. The
Company has started adopting the aforesaid Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises since
the time prescribed by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

On 7 December 2018, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC promulgated the “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 21 —Leasing (revised in 2018)" (Cai Kuai [2018] No. 35), requiring
companies that are listed on both domestic and overseas stock markets, and those that are listed
on overseas stock markets and adopt the International Financial Reporting Standards or Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises for statement preparation to adopt the aforesaid standards from
1 January 2019. The Company has started adopting the aforesaid Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises since the time prescribed by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.
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(VII) Analysis on Operating Revenue and Profit

1.

Items under statement of profit or loss

During the Reporting Period, the Group's loss before tax amounted to RMB820.42 million,

representing a year-on-year decrease of 181.00%. The key financial results are as follows:

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
from last from last
Items 2018 2017 period period
(%)
Revenue
Fees and commission
income 1,475.73 1,945.06 (469.33) (24.13%)
Interest income 790.04 862.42 (72.38) (8.39%)
Net investment (loss)/
income (180.42) 1,313.64 (1,494.06) (113.73%)
Other income and gains 14.30 113.24 (98.94) (87.37%)
Total revenue and other
income 2,099.65 4,234.36 (2,134.71) (50.41%)
Total operating expenses (2,918.41) (3,219.77) 301.36 9.36%
(Loss)/profit before tax (820.42) 1,012.91 (1,833.33) (181.00%)
Income tax (credit)/
expense (184.44) 243.83 (428.27) (175.64%)
(Loss)/profit for the year (635.98) 769.07 (1,405.05) (182.69%)
Net (loss)/profit
attributable to
shareholders of the
Company (673.45) 706.20 (1,379.65) (195.36%)
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Revenue structure

During the Reporting Period, total revenue and other income of the Group amounted to
RMB2,099.65 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 50.41%. Among which, the
proportion of commission and fee income was 70.28%, representing a year-on-year increase
of 24.34 percentage points. The proportion of interest income was 37.63%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 17.26 percentage points. The proportion of net investment gains
was -8.569%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 39.61 percentage points. The revenue
structures of the Group in the past five years are as follow:

Items 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Fees and

commission

income 70.28% 45.94% 64.42% 57.17% 48.76%
Interest income 37.63% 20.37% 23.14% 16.19% 15.03%
Net investment

(loss)/income (8.59%) 31.02% 11.88% 25.38% 35.27%
Other income and

gains 0.68% 2.67% 0.56% 1.26% 0.94%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Fees and commission income

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s fees and commission income consists of the

following:
Unit: in RMB million
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
from last from last
Items 2018 2017 period period
(%)
Fees and commission
income
Securities brokerage
business 624.22 868.10 (243.88) (28.09%)
Assets management
business 548.78 619.25 (70.47) (11.38%)
Underwriting and
sponsorship business 115.11 162.91 (47.80) (29.34%)
Financial advisory
business 58.23 115.54 (67.31) (49.60%)
Futures brokerage
business 61.28 70.67 (9.39) (13.29%)
Investment advisory
business 17.22 62.72 (45.50) (72.54%)
Assets custody business 50.89 45.87 5.02 10.94%
Total fees and
commission income 1,475.73 1,945.06 (469.33) (24.13%)
Fees and commission
expenses 147.34 156.59 (9.25) (5.91%)
Net fees and commission
income 1,328.39 1,788.47 (460.08) (25.72%)
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The Group's fees and commission income consists of:
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2018 2017

During the Reporting Period, net fees and commission income of the Group amounted to
RMB1,328.39 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.72%. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the significant decrease in fees and commission generated from
securities brokerage business, assets management business, underwriting and sponsorship
business, financial advisory business, futures brokerage business and investment advisory

business.

Fees and commission income generated from securities brokerage business decreased
by RMB243.88 million or 28.09% year-on-year, primarily attributable to the upheaval in A
share market for the year 2018 and the significant decrease in fees and commission income

generated from securities brokerage business.

Fees income generated from assets management business decreased by RMB70.47
million, or 11.38% year-on-year, primarily attributable to decrease in income generated from
collective assets management business, targeted assets management business, and special

assets management business.

Underwriting and sponsorship income generated from investment banking business
decreased by RMB47.80 million or 29.34% year-on-year, mainly because of a substantial
decrease in underwriting and sponsorship income generated from investment banking

business of subsidiaries.

Income generated from assets custody business increased by RMB5.02 million or 10.94%
year-on-year, mainly because the Company took full advantage of the opportunities brought
by fast development of the market and adjusted its business structure in a timely manner,
recording an increase in the income generated from such business as compared with last

year.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Interest income
During the Reporting Period, net interest income of the Group amounted to RMB254.35
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 113.18%. The Group's net interest income for

2018 consists of the following:

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
from last from last
Items 2018 2017 period period
(%)
Interest income
Deposit in financial
institutions 318.95 376.18 (57.23) (15.21%)
Margin financing and
securities lending 370.80 396.77 (25.97) (6.55%)
Financial assets held under
resale agreements 85.79 88.94 (3.15) (3.54%)
Others 14.50 0.53 13.97 2,635.85%
Total interest income 790.04 862.42 (72.38) (8.39%)
Interest expense 535.69 743.11 (207.42) (27.91%)
Net interest income 254.35 119.31 135.04 113.18%

Interest income from deposits in financial institutions decreased by RMB57.23 million or

15.21% year-on-year, primarily attributable to the decrease in client deposits.

Interest income from financial assets held under resale agreements decreased by RMB3.15
million or 3.54% year-on-year, primarily attributable to the decrease in size of stock-pledged
repurchase business of the Company.

Interest income from margin financing and securities lending decreased by RMB25.97 million
or 6.55% year-on-year, primarily attributable to the monthly average decrease in size of

margin financing and securities lending business.
Interest expenses decreased by RMB207.42 million or 27.91% year-on-year, primarily

attributable to the decrease in the interest expenses arising from other investors under the

assets management schemes and limited partners under limited partnerships.
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Net investment income

During the Reporting Period, net investment income of the Group amounted to RMB-180.42

million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 113.73%. The Group’s net investment

income for 2018 consists of the following:

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
from last from last
Items 2018 2017 period period
(%)
Net investment income
Net realised gains from
disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets 0.00 320.09 (320.09) (100.00%)
Dividends income and
interest income from
available-for-sale
financial assets 0.00 1.24 (1.24) (100.00%)
Net gain on disposal of
financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income 0.90 0.00 0.90 N/A
Dividends income from
financial instruments
and derivative financial
instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 474.05 707.94 (233.89) (33.04 %)
Net realised (losses)/
gains from disposal of
financial instruments
and derivative financial
instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (656.18) 271.19 (927.37) (341.96%)
Gain on disposal of an
associate 0.02 0.00 0.02 N/A
Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries 0.00 14.64 (14.64) (100.00%)
Other 0.79 (1.46) 2.25 154.11%
Total (180.42) 1,313.64 (1,494.06) (113.73%)
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Operating expenses

During the Reporting Period, operating expenses of the Group (excluding fees and
commission expenses, interest expenses and fair value losses from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments) amounted to RMB1,798.66
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 10.08%. The Group's operating expenses
primarily consist of the following:

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

from last from last

Items 2018 2017 period period

(%)

Staff costs 863.72 1,086.40 (222.68) (20.50%)

Depreciation and

amortisations expenses 97.15 93.07 4.08 4.38%
Other operating expenses

and tax and surcharges 685.71 785.47 (99.76) (12.70%)

Impairment losses 152.08 35.42 116.66 329.36%

Total 1,798.66 2,000.36 (201.70) (10.08%)

Staff costs decreased by RMB222.68 million or 20.50% year-on-year, primarily attributable
to the decreasing business performance and bonus as a result of the impact on the business
development of the Company caused by market fluctuation to a certain extent.

Depreciation and amortisation increased by RMB4.08 million or 4.38% year-on-year, primarily
attributable to the depreciation or amortisation for the additional properties and equipment

and intangible assets.

Other operating expenses and tax and surcharges decreased by RMB99.76 million or 12.70%

year-on-year, primarily attributable to the decrease of certain expenses.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

49



50

Impairment losses amounted to RMB152.08 million, representing a year-on-year increase of

RMB116.66 million. Details are as follows:

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
from last from last
Items 2018 2017 period period
(%)
Impairment losses
Provision of/(Reversal of)
margin financing and
securities lending 4.13 0.66 3.47 525.76%
Provision of available-for-
sale financial assets 0.00 19.68 (19.68) (100.00%)
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income 0.06 0.00 0.06 N/A
Provision/(Reversal of)
of financial assets
held under resale
agreements 7.43 (0.59) 8.02 1,359.32%
Provision of other current
assets 140.46 2.33 138.13 5,928.33%
Provision of other non-
current assets 0.00 13.34 (13.34) (100.00%)
Total 152.08 35.42 116.66 329.36%

Impairment losses on assets primarily included provision for impairment losses on margin

financing and securities lending, financial assets held under resale agreements and other

current assets. Among which, impairment losses on margin financing and securities lending

during the Reporting Period were RMB4.13 million; impairment losses on financial assets held

under resale agreements during the Reporting Period were RMB7.43 million and impairment

losses on other current assets during the Reporting Period were RMB140.46 million.
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Assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, total assets of the Group amounted to RMB29,915.08

million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.85%, of which, cash assets amounted

to RMB12,051.67 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 8.82%; margin financing
assets amounted to RMB4,399.91 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 37.00%;
financial investment assets amounted to RMB11,908.58 million, representing a year-on-year

decrease of 19.29%; and property, equipment and other operating assets amounted to

RMB1,554.92 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.47%. Changes in the total

major assets of the Group are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Total assets
Cash assets 12,051.67 13,218.13 (1,166.46) (8.82%)
Margin financing assets 4,399.91 6,984.49 (2,584.58) (37.00%)
Financial investment

assets 11,908.58 14,753.96 (2,845.38) (19.29%)
Property, equipment and

other operating assets 1,554.92 1,460.41 94.51 6.47%
Total 29,915.08 36,416.99 (6,501.91) (17.85%)
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Total assets of the Group consist of:

5% 4%

41%

15%
31 December 2018

Cash assets

19% [ ]

31 December 2017

Cash assets
Margin financing assets
Financial investment assets

Property, equipment and
other operating assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, cash assets of the Group decreased by RMB1,166.46

million or 8.82% year-on-year, representing 40.29% of the Group’s total assets. The Group's

cash assets consist of the following:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Cash assets
Cash and bank balances

(including cash held

on behalf of brokerage

clients) 10,591.10 11,830.24 (1,239.14) (10.47 %)
Clearing settlement funds 980.06 773.39 206.67 26.72%
Refundable deposits 480.51 614.50 (133.99) (21.80%)
Total 12,051.67 13,218.13 (1,166.46) (8.82%)

Changes in cash assets primarily reflected in cash and bank balances (including cash held

on behalf of brokerage clients), which decreased by RMB1,239.14 million or 10.47%, mainly

due to the decrease in client deposits as a result of the inactive exchanging actives of the

customers as affected by the sluggish market this year.
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Margin financing assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, margin financing assets of the Group decreased by
RMB2,584.58 million or 37.00% year-on-year, representing 14.71% of the Group’s total

assets. The Group's margin financing assets consist of the followings:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

from the end from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Margin financing assets
Margin account

receivables 3,237.92 5,322.84 (2,084.92) (39.17%)
Financial assets held under

resale agreements 1,161.99 1,661.65 (499.66) (30.07%)
Total 4,399.91 6,984.49 (2,584.58) (37.00%)

Margin account receivables amounted to RMB3,237.92 million, representing a year-on-year

decrease of 39.17%. The increase was primarily attributable to the decrease in the size of the

Group’s margin financing business.
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Financial investment assets

As at the end of Reporting Period, financial investment assets of the Group decreased by
RMB2,845.38 million or 19.29% year-on-year, representing 39.81% of the Group’s total
assets. The following table set forth the composition of the Group's financial investment

assets:
Unit: in RMB million
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
31 December 31 December  from the end  from the end
Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)
Financial investment
assets
Interests in associates 12.56 16.10 (3.54) (21.99%)
Available-for-sale financial
assets 0.00 1,740.30 (1,740.30) (100.00%)
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income 55.42 0.00 55.42 N/A
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss 11,840.60 12,997.56 (1,156.96) (8.90%)
Total 11,908.58 14,753.96 (2,845.38) (19.29%)
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Available-for-sale financial assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the available-for-sale financial assets of the Group
decreased by RMB1,740.30 million or 100.00% year-on-year, representing 0.00% of the

Group's total assets. The Group's available-for-sale financial assets consist of the following:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)
Available-for-sale
financial assets
Debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A
Equity securities 0.00 1,695.76 (1,595.76) (100.00%)
Assets management
schemes 0.00 71.06 (71.06) (100.00%)
Investment funds 0.00 73.48 (73.48) (100.00%)
Total 0.00 1,740.30 (1,740.30) (100.00%)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of the Group decreased by RMB1,156.96 million or 8.90% year-on-year, representing 39.58%

of the Group’s total assets. The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

consist of the following:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss
Debt securities 6,398.43 8,306.95 (1,908.52) (22.97 %)
Equity securities 3,617.25 2,432.19 1,185.06 48.72%
Investment funds 1,228.27 789.99 438.28 55.48%
Asset management

schemes 596.65 1,024.16 (427.51) (41.74%)
Financial assets

designated at fair value

through profit or loss:

debt securities 0.00 444.27 (444.27) (100.00%)
Total 11,840.60 12,997.56 (1,156.96) (8.90%)
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Property, equipment and other operating assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, property, equipment and other operating assets of the
Group amounted to RMB1,554.92 million, increased by RMB94.51 million or 6.47% year-on-
year, representing 5.19% of the Group's total assets. The following table sets forth the

composition of the Group's property, equipment and other operating assets:

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Property, equipment and

other operating assets
Property and equipment

and investment

properties 564.54 535.06 29.48 5.51%
Goodwill 43.74 43.74 0.00 0.00%
Intangible assets 115.27 117.47 (2.20) (1.87%)
Deferred tax assets 231.10 112.19 118.91 105.99%
Other current assets and

other non-current assets 600.27 651.95 (51.68) (7.93%)
Total 1,554.92 1,460.41 94.51 6.47%
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3. Liabilities

As at the end of the Reporting Period, total liabilities of the Group amounted to
RMB19,970.26 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB5,504.30 million or
21.61%. As at the end of the Reporting Period, accounts payable to brokerage clients
amounted to RMB7,691.50 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 23.30%. Financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements amounted to RMB3,742.33 million, down by
33.83% year-on-year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the significant decrease
in the income right of margin financing and securities lending. Placements from a financial
institution and debt instruments issued amounted to RMB6,571.32 million, up by 18.51%
year-on-year. Major changes in the Group's total liabilities are as follows:

Unit: in RMB million
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)
31 December 31 December from the end from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)
Liabilities
Accounts payable to
brokerage clients 7,691.50 10,028.33 (2,336.83) (23.30%)
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 3,742.33 5,655.78 (1,913.45) (33.83%)

Placements from a

financial institution and

issued debt instruments 6,571.32 5,544 .86 1,026.46 18.51%
Other operating liabilities 1,965.11 4,245.59 (2,280.48) (63.71%)
Total 19,970.26 25,474.56 (5,504.30) (21.61%)
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The Group's total liabilities consist of:

10% 17%

= Accounts payable to brokerage clients
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

B Placements from a financial
institution and issued debt instruments

19% 22% B Other operating liabilities
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Placements from a financial institution and debt instruments

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

31 December 31 December  from the end  from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Placements from a
financial institution
and issued debt
instruments

Placements from a

financial institution 500.00 700.00 (200.00) (28.57 %)
Debt instruments 6,071.32 4,844.86 1,226.46 25.31%
Total 6,571.32 5,544.86 1,026.46 18.51%

Placements from a financial institution amounted to RMB500 million, decreased by 28.57%
year-on-year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the repayment of the borrowing from

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited.

Debt instruments increased by RMB1,226.46 million year-on-year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the increase in the closing balance of beneficiary certificates for the period.
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Other operating liabilities

31 December

31 December

Unit: in RMB million

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period
(%)

Other operating

liabilities

Employee benefits payable 287.69 415.73 (128.04) (30.80%)

Deferred revenue 0.00 6.94 (6.94) (100.00%)

Contract liabilities 34.33 - 34.33 N/A

Other liabilities 1,626.36 3,701.09 (2,074.73) (56.06%)

Deferred tax liabilities 16.73 121.83 (105.10) (86.27 %)

Total 1,965.11 4,245.59 (2,280.48) (63.71%)

Employee benefits payable decreased by RMB128.04 million or 30.80% year-on-year,

primarily attributable to the decrease in staff costs resulting from worse operating results and

decreased provision for bonus brought about by the Group’s declining revenue and profit.

Other liabilities decreased by RMB2,074.73 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of

56.06% primarily attributable to the decrease in payables to other investors of consolidated

structured entities.
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Equity

As at the end of the Reporting Period, total equity of the Group amounted to RMB9,944.82
million, down by 9.12% year-on-year. The decrease was primarily attributable to operating
loss, distribution of dividends and payment of interests on perpetual bond. The following
table sets forth the composition of the Group's equity:

Unit: in RMB million

31 December

31 December

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Increase/
(decrease)
from the end

Items 2018 2017  of last period  of last period

(%)
Share capital 2,604.57 2,604.57 0.00 0.00%
Share premium 1,665.24 1,665.24 0.00 0.00%
Perpetual capital securities 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00%
Reserves 3,766.60 4,801.47 (1,034.87) (21.55%)
Non-controlling interests 408.41 371.15 37.26 10.04%
Total 9,944.82 10,942.43 (997.61) (9.12%)

Segment results

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business
segments.

The Group has five principal business lines: (i) brokerage and wealth management, (ii)
investment banking, (iii) investment management, (iv) proprietary trading and (v) others. The
following discussions of the Group’s segment revenue and other income, segment expenses

and segment results include the Group’s inter-segment revenue and inter-segment expenses.
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The following table sets forth the Group’'s segment revenue

inter-segment revenue) for the years indicated:

and other income (including

Unit: in RMB million

2018 2017

Items Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Brokerage and wealth

management 1,326.64 63.18% 1,973.28 46.60%
Investment banking 191.65 9.13% 298.15 7.04%
Proprietary trading (303.05) (14.43%) 887.79 20.97%
Investment management 807.40 38.45% 991.98 23.43%
Others 77.01 3.67% 83.16 1.96%
Total 2,099.65 100.00% 4,234.36 100.00%

The following table sets forth the Group's segment expenses (including inter-segment

expenses) for the years indicated:

Unit: in RMB million

2018 2017

Items Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Brokerage and wealth

management 1,213.11 41.57% 1,797.22 55.82%
Investment banking 166.92 5.72% 227.25 7.06%
Proprietary trading 516.07 17.68% 298.41 9.27%
Investment management 836.83 28.67% 706.71 21.95%
Others 185.47 6.36% 190.18 5.90%
Total 2,918.40 100.00% 3,219.77 100.00%
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The following table sets forth the Group’'s segment operating profits/(losses) (including

intersegment profits) for the years indicated:

Unit: in RMB million

2018 2017

Items Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Brokerage and wealth

management 113.53 (13.87%) 176.06 17.35%
Investment banking 24.73 (3.02%) 70.90 6.99%
Proprietary trading (819.12) 100.05% 589.38 58.09%
Investment management (29.43) 3.59% 285.27 28.12%
Others (108.46) 13.25% (107.02) (10.55%)
Total (818.75) 100.00% 1,014.59 100.00%

(VIll) Contingent Liability, Capital Commitment and other Commitment

Please refer to Note 56 to the consolidated financial statements in this report for particulars of
contingent liability.

Please refer to Note 54 to the consolidated financial statement in this report for particulars of capital
commitment and other commitment.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any security over its assets.
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IV. CHANGES IN BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES AND IMPACT ON

RESULTS
(I) Branches of the Company
1. Establishment of securities branches and changes in securities branches
(1) Newly-established securities branches

None in the Reporting Period.

Relocation of securities branches

2)

During the Reporting Period, 21 securities branches of the Company were relocated,

details of which are as follows:

Name of securities branch
No. before relocation

Name of securities branch
after relocation

Address of securities branch
after relocation (PRC)

1 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Wuhan Yanjiang Avenue
Securities Branch (EF LR (7
ERAARENINEEREX
)

2 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing
Jianguo Road Securities Branch
BRIFROARAANL REE
REFEEH)

3 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dalian
Huizhan Road Securities Branch
([BFRIFROARAANEER

4 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhai
Wuda District Bayinsai Street
Securities Branch (EZ AR
ERAFSESEREEEEE
FEEH)
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Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhan
Optics Valley International Plaza
Securities Branch (BRI A1
ARAANEXRERESE S
EXH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing
Guanghua Road Securities
Branch (ER ISR ERAH
IRAEREFEXD)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dalian
Huizhan Road Securities Branch
([ERIFROBRAANEER
REFEEXW

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhai
Wuda District Bayinsai Street
Securities Branch (BRI AR
ERAFSESEREERGE
HFEZH)

Room 1706, 17/F, Rongzhong International Office
Building, the north of Luoyu Road and the west
of Lumo Road, East Lake High-Tech Development
Zone, Wuhan, Hubei (1t & B ETR IR IAE
BRMBML - BERARRRERETE17E1706
%)

Room B207A, 2/F, Building 30, No.8 Guanghua Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (Jt R T 83F5 R % 585
30(E=EB207A B)

Room 2, 11/F, Building 3, No.67 Huizhan Road,
Shahekou District, Dalian, Liaoning (E%4 X&)
MORERKETHIET 1 ELR)

Room 301, No.1 Jiefang South Road, Wuda District,
Wuhai, Inner Mongolia (N5 & B /AE 8T S ER
BHERI%301E)



anagemen ISCUSSION an

Name of securities branch
No. before relocation

Name of securities branch

after relocation

nalysis

Address of securities branch
after relocation (PRC)

5 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Beijing Jiancaicheng West Road
Securities Branch (EF LR (7
ARARNRENAARESE
4

6  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shanghai Chengshan Road
Securities Branch (EF LR (7
BRAR LERILBESEEH)

7 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shenyang Fengtian Street
Securities Branch (EF LR (7
ERAAEREREESFEEH)

8 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jiaxing
Huayuan Road Securities
Branch (ERITARAERAE
FELEREREXY)

9 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Linyi
Fugian Road Securities Branch
(BRIEFROARR AETHA
REHLED)

10 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Hohhot Zhongshan West Road
Securities Branch (EF AR
RRARMAESTUARES
£

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Beijing Jiancaicheng West Road
Securities Branch (B M1
ERDRL REIIERESE
L0

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shanghai South Henan Road
Securities Branch (B
BRAR LEmmAERES
B2H)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shenyang Fengtian Street
Securities Branch (B M1
ARARRRERNGE
BEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jiaxing
Nanhu Avenue Road Securities
Branch (BRIEABNER A
FEMAREEFERY)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Linyi
Guangzhou Road Securities
Branch (BRIEFRER AR
BTEMNREF 2R

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Hohhot Daxue West Street
Securities Branch (BF AR
ARAAMHEEREELES
B

Room 1005, Unit 2, 10/F, Building 2, No.87,
Jiancaicheng West Road, Huilongguan Town,
Changping District, Beijing (b= & TR EI5EE
BT EKETH 25 810822 71005)

Room 15J, 13/F, No.33 South Henan Road, Huangpu
District, Shanghai [ H/8ME AR @R EK33% 138
15J%)

{Room 601-609) No.351 Fengtian Street, Shenhe
District, Shenyang, Liaoning (ZE& B HILTES
K3515£(601-609%))

Room B1601, Building 1, Business & Finance Tower,
Jiaxing Economic and Technology Development
Zone, Jiaxing, Zhejiang (/T8 EE ML BRI
BEKSEARIENBI601E)

North side of 3/F, Daguanyuan, Block A of Yanjie
Building, Intersection of Guangzhou Road and
Menghe Road, Liuging Avenue, Lanshan District,
Linyi, Shandong (LR AETHH LENEEEEN
BEFTRREATRMERARZEILE)

No. 1802, 1803, and 1804, 18/F Mengxi Cultural
Plaza, Daxue West Street, Yuquan district, Hohhot,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region(R5 & &34
BEAEETERBAEEARAER18E
1802,1803,18045%)
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No.

Name of securities branch

before relocation

Name of securities branch
after relocation

Address of securities branch
after relocation (PRC)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Baotou Qingshan District Ziyou
Road Securities Branch (EZIE
BRNERLFDESLEAH

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Yantai
Yingchun Avenue Securities
Branch (ERITARAER AT
BEORAERFEEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Liaocheng Huangshan South
Road Securities Branch (EZ1E
FROBRAAWAEEEE
HEXH

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shangyu Civic Blvd Securities
Branch (ERISHRAERAT
LETRAEEFEEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shanghai Changliu Road
Securities Branch (EZIERRH
ERAF LERMBESEEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shenyang Yunfeng Street
Securities Branch (B LA
ERAFAERZREESEEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Baotou Wenhua Road Securities
Branch(BRIEARAERAFE
BXBEHEE)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Yantai
Yingchun Avenue Securities
Branch (BRILABNER AT
ESUEINEEE -3 N

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Liaocheng Dongchang Road
Securities Branch (BRI {7
BRAFHNREREFEE)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shaoxing Zhongxing South
Road Securities Branch (E%1E
FROARAAARDRERE
FEEH)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Shanghai Haichao Road
Securities Branch (BRI
ERARLESHRESERX)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd.
Shenyang Hun'nan Third Road
Securities Branch (B LA
BRAFBGER=REFEX
)

10-103, Guanghui st District, Jiankang Xincheng,
No. 4 Neighborhood, Minzhu Road, Qingshan
District Baotou, Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region (W& 4 BB AT IER TH4REHR
REBE—R10-103)

Room 1903 and 1904, 19/F, Building 1, Runhua
Building, No. 177, Yingchun Avenue, Laishan
District, Yantai, Shandong (LR & EETR LENE
RE1TTREERE—HE1981903M1904F)

Room 1027, Wealth Center Building, No. 86,

Dongchang Road, Economic & Technological
Development Area, Liaocheng, Shandong (&4
PR TR ERRERe6RH EROAR1027

)

103-105, 1/F, Zhongxing South Road, Yuecheng

District, Shaoxing, Zhejiang [T & RETHHEP
HFH103 105—F)

Room 1242, 1243, No. 133, Haichao Road, Huangpu

District, Shanghai (LS E AR E 85 133%
1242 - 1243%)

Room 902, Block A, Tongfang Building, 1-8, Hun'nan

Third Road, Hun'nan District, Shenyang, Liaoning
(BELREMENEEN=11-8F 7 KEARI

)



(3)

Name of securities branch Name of securities branch Address of securities branch
No. before relocation after relocation after relocation (PRC)
17 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Room 515, No. 1067, Zhixin Center, Jinxiu Road,

Wenzhou Haichuan Road
Securities Branch (BEFIL AR {7
ARADEME)EEFLED)

18 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing
Xisihuan North Road Securities
Branch (ERIESHRAERAT
IRERBREFEED)

19 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Xi‘an Qujiangchi North Road
Securities Branch (EF LK (7
BRARBREIAERE
4

20 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Beijing Suzhou Street Securities
Branch (ERITARAERAT
IREMEERFEEM)

21 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd
Baicheng Changging South
Street Securities Branch (B%
EARAERAFAANRERE
EHEEH)

Note:

Wenzhou Jinxiu Road Securities  Lucheng District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang (114 &M
Branch (BRIARNERAR  EHEBBRI0675EEHL18515%)
AMSEREREE)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd 104, 1/F, No. 2 Building, No. 88 Courtyard, Liuxiang
Beijing Liuxiang Road Securities  Road, Fengtai District, Beijing (St R 24 & 45
Branch (ERIARHERAE 885251218 104)

IRBRRESEED)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Xi'an ~ Room 1803, Financial Building of PICC Building
Gaoxin Third Road Securities (Shaanxi), No. 12, Gaoxin Third Road, Zhangba
Branch (EZ AR ERA Road, High-tech District, Xi'an, Shaanxi (A& F%

AR = RERLEY) TEHELN\EHET =R 12RPAARKEGR)
SBAE1803%)

Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing 1293, 12/F, Building 1, No. 128, Zhichun Road,
Zhichun Road Securities Branch ~ Haidian District, Beijing (3t /8 2 M1E 1285
(ERIARHERLTLRAE 1581281293

BEFEEH)
Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Room 2-2, Changaing South Street, Baicheng, Jilin
Baicheng Changging South [EME R RERH2-2%)

Street Securities Branch' (B%&
EARHERAFARREDS
BHEEY)

1. Name of the securities branch remained unchanged after relocation.

Deregistration of securities branches

None in the Reporting Period.
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Section 5 Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Establishment of new branch offices and changes in branch offices

None in the Reporting Period.

() Subsidiaries of the Company
During the Reporting Period, changes in the Company’s major subsidiaries are as follows:

1. On 22 January 2018, as Shenzhen Hengtai Baojuchang Investment Management Co., Ltd.
does not conduct actual operation activities, Hengtai Capital transferred the 51% equity
interests in Shenzhen Hengtai Baojuchang Investment Management Co., Ltd. to Liu Zhihong
(817 7), an independent third party, at a consideration of RMB1. Upon completion of the
transfer, Hengtai Capital no longer held any equity interests in Shenzhen Hengtai Baojuchang
Investment Management Co., Ltd.

2. On 16 May 2018, the proposal regarding Reduction of Registered Capital of Hengtai Capital
Investment Co., Ltd., a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company was considered and
approved at the 5th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board, pursuant to
which it was approved to reduce the registered capital of Hengtai Capital to RMBO0.6 billion
in steps. On 22 August 2018, Hengtai Capital completed the industrial and commercial
registration for the change of registered capital from RMB1.5 billion to RMB1.2 billion.

(1) Impact on Results

During the Reporting Period, in accordance with the requirements of the Management Standards
for Private Investment Fund Subsidiary of Securities Company ({(EH5RAAEIREEES T RAAE
28 %1)) issued by the Securities Association of China, Hengtai Capital continued to sort through
its businesses, ceased to engage in direct investment business, and disposed subsidiaries whose
activities were not covered by its business scope. Therefore, Hengtai Capital focused on private
equity fund business and improved the utilization efficiency of its own proceeds with the view to
achieving better results.
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V. MAJOR INVESTMENT AND FINANCING
() Equity Financing
None in the Reporting Period.
() Major Debt Financing

1. Issue of long-term corporate bonds

No long-term corporate bonds were issued by the Company in 2018. As at 31 December
2018, the outstanding balance of long-term corporate bonds amounted to RMB1.5 billion,
which were issued by the Company on 29 January 2016 and will be mature on 29 January
2019.

2. Issue of beneficiary certificates

The Company raised an aggregate of RMB2.946 billion through issue of beneficiary
certificates in 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding balance of the beneficiary
certificates amounted to RMB3.047 billion. The particulars of the issuance of beneficiary

certificates of the Company in 2018 are set out below:

Size of the Interest
Abbreviation Issuance rate Term lIssue Date Maturity date
(RMB’00
million) (days)
BEE 145 0.60 5.50% 364 18 January 2018 17 January 2019
BEIRE13% 5.00 6.20% 365 14 March 2018 14 March 2019
EE 165 1.40 6.20% 733 11 April 2018 13 April 2020
EE175% 1.41 5.60% 364 27 June 2018 26 June 2019
BEIFRE145% 5.00 5.85% 365 4 July 2018 4 July 2019
EE 185 1.48 5.80% 546 11 July 2018 8 January 2020
EE 195 1.60 5.60% 364 25 July 2018 24 July 2019
BEIRE 15% 5.00 5.50% 365 25 July 2018 25 July 2019
EEIFEE16% 0.80 5.40% 454 31 August 2018 28 November 2019
BRIRE17H 3.00 5.40% 364 27 September 2018 26 September 2019
BAIRE19% 3.00 5.75% 731 16 November 2018 16 November 2020
EE205 0.85 5.00% 726 26 December 2018 21 December 2020
BE215% 0.32 5.00% 726 27 December 2018 22 December 2020
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(1)

3. Issue of subordinated bonds by the Company
No subordinated bonds were issued by the Company in 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the
outstanding balance of subordinated bonds amounted to RMB1.5 billion, which were issued

by the Company on 1 November 2017 and will be mature on 1 November 2022.

Equity Investment

None in the Reporting Period.

Save for the matters stated above in IV and V under this Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis”,

the Company had no other material assets disposal, acquisition, merger, division or reorganization of other

companies.

During the Reporting Period, there was no external guarantee, mortgage, pledge and material contingent

liability that may affect the Company's financial position and operating results.

n

Business Innovation and its Impact

In 2018, the Company clarified the need to focus on wealth management and investment advisory
business in the transformation of the brokerage and wealth management business. By broking
the inherent business framework to eliminate the differences caused by the original system,
the Company made further efforts to support the wealth management and investment advisory
business. Meanwhile, the Company spared no efforts to maintain the foundation of its sale of
financial products business by strengthening its ability to screen financial products, enlarging the
pool of financial products, widening the product supply channel, and actively building the mechanism
for cooperation with financial product managers and fund managers, which has made preliminary
achievements at this stage. In addition, the internet finance business of the Company has evolved
from “opening and connection” into “technology empowering”. The Company strengthened channel
building, reinforced product research and development, optimized business operation and strived to
build a standardized service system featuring technology empowering and continued to pursue new

growth driver of profit by technological means.
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()

Risk Control of Business Innovation

In 2018, the Company continued to optimize internal control and risk management system,
intensified compliance review and risk assessment, enhanced risk identification and prevention
abilities, executing internal control and risk management throughout the whole process of business
innovation. The Company also procured its business departments to enhance the awareness of
risk prevention and control through organization optimization and promotion and training programs,
effectively performing the duties of the first line of defense.

The Company strengthened pre-management of risks relating to new businesses by perfecting its
risk preference system, exercising risk quota management, upgrading risk management information
system, deepening stress test mechanism, promoting project review quality and evaluation
and ensuring the independence of review opinions. The Company continued to promote the
development of a comprehensive risk management system, and improved the risk management
of the Company by establishing and perfecting the mechanism for risk identification, evaluation,
monitoring and control from the perspectives of credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks, operation
risks and reputation risks.

Prospects of Business Innovation

With increasingly intensified competition in the industry, securities companies with higher rankings
enjoy apparent competitive advantages. Furthermore, the policy on financial deleveraging will also
have a far-reaching impact on the development of small and medium-sized securities companies.
Against this backdrop, only by quickening the pace of business transformation can we effectively
strengthen our market competitiveness. In 2019, the Company will continue to promote innovation
and transformation of its various line of business while effectively enhancing its risk prevention
capability, which is mainly reflected in the followings:

1. In terms of brokerage business, the Company will accelerate the transformation of it from
a “revenue and profit center” into a “wealth management center”. Efforts will be made
to build the sales channel in order to strengthen our customer acquisition capability. The
Company will strengthen outlet management, push forward the transformation of old
business outlets and make great efforts to support new business outlets, in an effort to
comprehensively increasing the speed of business transformation and upgrading; it will carry
out traditional brokerage business in a steadily manner while rapidly developing the share
option business by actively securing a first mover advantage in the share option market and
other innovative business markets and strengthening business training and marketing, so as
to turn it into a new growth driver of profit for the brokerage business. In terms of futures
brokerage business, continued efforts will be made to promote transformation of the assets
management business, and the risk management business will be nurtured as a new growth
driver of profit. These two businesses, in combination with the futures internationalization
business will further enhance our ability to serve financial institutions and real enterprises
and help us build our core competitiveness.
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n

In terms of investment banking business, the Company will continue to pursue the
competitive strategy of “professionalism, market-oriented development, standardized
operation and principle of risk minimization” and attach equal importance to compliance, risk
control and innovative development of business. On the basis of consolidation of its existing
business advantages, the Company will accelerate the realization of business transformation
and promote the introduction of new businesses. Based on customer demands, the Company
will strengthen business collaboration and continue to improve its service standards,
thus building itself into a professional investment banking platform with sound corporate
governance, standardized management, excellent business and distinctive characteristics.

In terms of public-raised funds business, the Company will continue to strengthen
management of investment and research work, so as to improve the performance of our
funds business. The Company will strengthen investment team building and management,
and perfect the performance appraisal mechanism, in a bid to achieving rapid increase
in management size of the public-raised funds and its profit. The Company will optimize
the modes and approaches used in the investment and research work, strive to make a
breakthrough in key research and in-depth research, thus creating a synergy between
investment and research and leveraging the overall advantages in resources; and it will
strengthen product research and development and intensify its efforts in funds marketing,
so as to rapidly increase the management size of funds. The Company will carry out the
special accounts business in a steady manner, and seek to increase its percentage of profit

contribution.

In terms of private equity investment funds business, the Company will further define its
business positioning, actively build presence in private funds business and financial advisory
business, and shift its business model towards investment in enterprises with growth

potential.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of loss caused by our counterparty’s failure to perform a contract or a
change in its credit rating or ability to perform. Credit risk of the Company is mainly generated from
two aspects: (i) financing business such as margin financing and securities lending and securities-

backed lending; and (ii) proprietary credit bond investment business.
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Credit risk from financing activities can be controlled by (i) determination of reasonable credit line
which is managed through client suitability management, daily mark to market, risk reminders and
forced liquidation of client’'s positions upon credit investigation via the internal credit rating system;
and (ii) conducting sufficient due diligence on the financer and analysis on the fundamentals of
pledge target prior to the implementation of securities pledged projects to reasonably determine key
risk factors including pledge rate and performance guarantee proportion, and maintaining constant
risk monitoring over projects in performance to address problems once detected. Investment credit
risks can be controlled by establishing securities pool, internal rating, risk indicator limit and other

measures.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to risk of unexpected potential value losses of the financial assets held by the
Company resulting from adverse changes in securities price, interest rate and exchange rate. In
particular, risk of adverse price fluctuations refers to the risk that the stock market may fluctuate
and cause the prices of stocks and other securities products to change, which may incur losses for
the Company. Interest rate risk refers to the risk arising from changes in market interest rates and
credit spread that could result in changes in the prices of bonds and other fixed-income securities.
Exchange rate risk refers to possibility that the Company may incur losses due to changes in
exchange rates during operating activities involving possession or use of foreign exchanges.
Market risk of the Company mainly derives from proprietary businesses including equity securities
investment, fixed income securities investment, financial derivatives investment and NEEQ market-

making business.

Market risk is mainly managed by the Company through implementation of limit management,
securities pool system, daily mark to market, stress test, monitoring and warning, stop-loss and
stop-profit, risk hedge, risk report and other systems and measures. Based on risk tolerance
preferences, the Company sets the annual overall limits of market risk for proprietary businesses
which are decomposed and assigned to the respective business departments level by level. The
Company has established a market risk indicator system including Value at Risk (VaR), Basis Point
Value (DVO1) and Max Drawdown. The risk management department conducts a daily monitoring
over the proprietary position risk and regularly carries out stress test to estimate the losses under
extreme circumstances and timely make risk warning and urge relevant business department to
handle it when the risk control indicator exceeds the warning threshold.
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(V)

(V)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to risk where the Company fails to obtain sufficient funds in time at reasonable
costs in order to repay mature debts, fulfill other payment obligations and satisfy the funding
needs for carrying on normal business. The planning and financing department of the Company is
responsible for liquidity risk management. The Company constantly monitors Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR), Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) and other liquidity risk control indicators and conducts
semi-annual liquidity risk stress tests through which its liquidity risk level under the extreme
circumstance is evaluated and the risk emergency plans are established. The Company has set
threshold values for liquidity risk control indicators, and a risk warning will be sent to the relevant
responsible person of the Company once such threshold values are exceeded. The Company
monitors and analyzes the matching of the Company’s assets and liabilities from various time
periods under both normal and stressed situations, the diversification and stability of the Company’s
capital resources, the cashability of high-quality liquid assets and market liquidity and at the same
time strengthens the management of the Company’s liquidity during operating hours and makes

reasonable arrangements for financing activities to maintain adequate intraday liquidity position.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk refers to risk of a securities company being subject to legal sanctions, regulatory
measures and self-discipline penalties due to violations of laws, regulations or rules in its business
activities or employee conducts. The Company has established an effective and sound compliance
management system and compliance management framework. The compliance management
department of the Company manages compliance risk through compliance review, compliance

monitoring, compliance examination, compliance supervision and compliance training.
Operational Risk

Operational risk is possibility of losses caused by the failures of internal systems and procedures,
improper employee behaviors, information system defect and the influence of external events. The
Company has formulated operational risk management system and internal management system
of various businesses and regulated its business activities. It has established an identification,
assessment and control system for operational risk that fully covers the Company’s business
activities. The Company mainly managed operational risks through self-appraisal of risks and control

(RCSA), loss data collection (LDC), key risk indicator (KRI) monitoring, and other measures.
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(V1) Reputation Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of negative assessment or comments on the Company from
stakeholders as a result of its operation, management and other companies or external events.
Reputational risk management refers to the process and method for ensuring the achievement of
the overall objective of reputational risk management based on the reputational risk management
objective and planning, through the establishment and improvement of the reputational risk
management system and through daily reputational risk management and proper handling of
reputational events. The Company has established a sound reputation risk management system and
workflow, to provide guarantee for the improvement of the all-round risk management system, the
enhancement of the reputation risk management capability and the maintenance and promotion of

the reputation and image of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively implemented various requirements of the Norms for
the All-round Risk Management of Securities Companies ((FF5 A R 2HE AR E IR E)), conducted routine

risk management and various key projects based on the requirements of full coverage, monitorability,

measurability, analysis and risk-response ability on risk management and continuously improved the

comprehensive risk management system.

N

Management System

The Company established the Measures for All-round Risk Management of Hengtai Securities
Co., Ltd KEFRIEHFERHER A ZEAEKREENE)), which set overall requirements on the
comprehensive risk management. It has established special risk management systems on liquidity
risks, market risks, credit risks, operation risks, reputation risks and other risks. It also specified
the risk management requirements on various businesses, including but not limited to the risk

identification, evaluation, measurement, monitoring and response in relevant businesses.
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(V)

Framework

The Company established a four-level risk management system including the Board, the
management, the risk management department and business departments. It specified the
responsibilities of the Board, the Supervisory Committee, the management, all departments,
branches and subsidiaries in performing the comprehensive risk management and established a
multi-layered and inter-connected operation mechanism with effective balances. Meanwhile, the
Company has gradually incorporated all subsidiaries into the comprehensive risk management
system and guided subsidiaries in establishing and improving the governance structure, setting
risk preference and perfecting the risk monitoring, reporting and response mechanism. It specified
the responsible person for the risk management of subsidiaries and the chief risk officer of the

Company conducts appraisal on the responsible person.

Information Technology

The Company has established a securities risk monitoring and management platform with the
integration of dynamic risks monitoring on net capitals, market risk management, credit risk
management, operation risk management, liquidity risk management, abnormal transaction
monitoring and other functions. It supports the collection, identification, measurement, appraisal,
monitoring and reporting of various risk information and can meet the demands of the Company in

risk management and decision-making.
Indicator System

The Company has established a risk preference indicator system with net capital and liquidity as the
core covering concentration risks, market risks, credit risks and operation risks. The risk preference
of the Company can cover all business line, including proprietary investment business, asset
management business, securities brokerage business and investment banking business. Based
on the development strategy, operation targets and financial conditions of the Company, it set
management and control quota on major risks, including but not limited to risk quota, business size,
value at risk, sensitivity indicator, concentration, stop-loss and stop-profit. It also regularly appraises

the risk tolerance through stress test and other methods and guides resources allocation.
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Talent Team

The risk management department of the Company has established four professional teams on
net capital and market risk, credit risk, operation risk and comprehensive risks. The planning and
financial department and the board office designate special persons to be responsible for the
management of liquidity risks and reputation risks. Currently, risk management staff with over
three years of relevant working experience account for over 2% of the total staff at the head office
of the Company, which provided talent guarantees to effectively conducting the comprehensive
risk management work. In addition, all business and functional departments of the Company have
set business risk management positions as an integral part of the risk management system. They

accept the business guidance of the risk management department and serve as the bridge link.
Response Mechanism

The Company established a working mechanism on regular reporting and stress test to identify
significant potential risks in the business process in a timely manner and actively take prevention
and response measures. The Company also has risk emergency plans on significant risks and
emergencies, specified the emergency triggering conditions, the organizational system, measures,
methods and procedures in risk disposal and continuously improved them through emergency
exercises. The Company has established a performance appraisal and accountability mechanism
linked to risk management results. It regularly appraises the risk management performance of
all business departments and branches and the appraisal results are included in the performance
appraisal system. Meanwhile, the audit department regularly appraises the comprehensive risk

management system to guarantee the effectiveness of the comprehensive risk management.

In October 2018, the Company successfully passed the field inspection on the comprehensive risk

management organized by the Inner Mongolia Securities Regulatory Bureau of the CSRC.

The Company has always attached great importance to compliance and risk management and insisted

on providing adequate guarantee for compliance and risk management. During the Reporting Period, the

Company continued to increase investment in compliance and risk management, including preparation of

annual budget for compliance and risk management, establishment of a professional compliance and risk

management talent team, strengthening personnel training, launch or upgrading of the compliance and risk

management information systems, etc. During the Reporting Period, the Company further strengthened

the construction of information system to provide support for the development of various businesses. The

investment in the fields of electronic equipment operation, communication lines, and use of facilities at the

exchange amounted to approximately RMB33.91 million.
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Competition in the Industry

In the year of 2018, the trend of “stringent financial regulatory and enhanced ability to prevent and
resolve risks across the board” in the aspect of industrial regulation since the convening of the
19th CPC National Congress still continued. In terms of the securities industry, there was a general
declining trend in the operating results of securities companies due to the continued zigzagged
downward trend in the domestic stock markets. However, large securities companies with higher
rankings continued to register a larger portion of the industry’s total net profit, and there was a
significant increase in concentration of business undertakings in the industry, creating a more

arduous market competition environment for small and medium-sized securities companies.
Market Position

According to the statistical data of the Securities Association of China, as at 31 December 2018,
there were 131 securities companies in the PRC, and the average total assets, net assets and
net capital size of a single securities company amounted to approximately RMB47,786 million,
RMB14,427 million and RMB11,985 million, respectively. In 2018, the average operating revenue
of a single securities company amounted to approximately RMB2,033 million and the average net

profit of a single securities company amounted to approximately RMB508 million.

The 2018 industry data show that the Company remained as a small and medium securities
company in the industry. In 2018, the Company experienced a significant decline in the percentage
of profit contribution from its traditional businesses such as brokerage and investment banking
business and recorded a significant loss in its proprietary trading business due to the impact of the
external environment. The weak market environment has restricted the development of various

businesses of the Company to a certain extent.

Core Competitiveness

1. Professional and stable management team

The management team of the Company has extensive experience in the securities and
financial service industries with their average experience in the securities industry close to 17
years. The stable management team with extensive management experience in the industry
enables the Company to quickly respond to the changes in the regulatory requirements and
the competitive conditions in the market and make prompt adjustments of the business

strategy of the Company, thus ensuring long-term stable development of the Company.
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2. Implementation of effective risk management and internal control systems

The long-term implementation of effective risk management and internal control systems
enables the Company to carry out compliance work and foster compliance awareness in
respect of all businesses and all staff of the Company, and to identify, assess, reduce and
manage various risks in the course of business. The Company has always been dedicated
to strengthening risk management and internal control, corporate governance and building
corporate compliance culture, and continuously optimizing the risk management and internal
control systems to enhance the ability of the Company in identifying compliance risks, with a
view to identifying and correcting the shortcomings in risk management and internal control
in a prompt manner, and continuously improving the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems by means of quantifying control over risk management and operation

risks, thus ensuring sound and stable growth of the Company’s business.
3. Sound capability in continuous innovation

The continuous and initiative innovation capability plays a key role in the development of the
Company. The innovation work of the Company has focused on continuous understanding,
research and satisfaction of different demands of the customers. The Company proactively
responds to the competition in the market through initiative innovation. With admirable
customer service and effective risk management capacity, the Company has made great
achievements in customer financing business, and other innovative businesses in recent

years.

In addition, the Company has always attached importance to innovative application in the
Internet and fintech field. The traditional securities business has been transformed to adopt
the online business model due to cooperation with third party Internet service suppliers based
on legal compliance and effective control, thus accessing to and getting more customer
resources. The Company also provides one-stop comprehensive online diversified financial
services including payment, financial management, investment and financing to satisfy the

customers demands.
4, Effective business layout to promote transformation and upgrade

In the past two years, the Company has made certain achievements through the establishment
of new securities branches and the adjustment of the layout of branches, which laid a solid
foundation for further improving the market share of the brokerage business of the Company
and the overall business development of the Company. Meanwhile, the early layout of the

Company in the purchaser’s business has achieved preliminary results.
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The Company highly values the future development and reform of the securities industry and
proactively deepens transformation and upgrade of the Company’s businesses. It vigorously
reinforces synergistic effects among business departments to continuously improve the
customer service capacity. Facing the future challenges in the market, on the basis of
intensifying compliance management and control and prevention of risks, the Company
will continue to deepen the innovation and transformation of businesses to enhance the
advantages of characteristic and differentiated businesses and expand its business size and

market influence.
5. Excellent corporate culture

The Company will always hold the corporate culture of “innovation, being practical,
integrity and cooperation”. The instant promotion of corporate culture construction further
enhances staff's recognition of corporate culture and cohesiveness and ensures the smooth
implementation of the Company’s overall strategy and specific businesses. At the same time,
the open cooperation mechanism also laid a favorable foundation for the Company to attract
excellent talents and intensify its cooperation with the external world.

6. Talent strategy centered, market-oriented staff incentive mechanism

The Company always insists on centering on talent strategy, pays great attention to the
introduction, absorption, stability and promotion of the talents, especially the stability of the
core talents. Through the provision of professional training and a good operation platform,
the Company effectively improved the staff's professional ability and career value. The
Company has developed the market-oriented staff remuneration structure based on the
risk management and performance appraisal, and executed the standard multi-level review
mechanism. Furthermore, it has established a reasonable talent development system to

foster professionals and set up channels for promotion.

In 2019, China will face a severe and complicated environment and situation in opening up to the outside
world amidst mounting downward pressure on the economy and a slowdown in GDP growth rate. In
terms of the capital markets, the Central Economic Work Conference, which was concluded at the end
of 2018, further reiterated the importance of capital markets in financial operation as a single step having
the potential to affect the overall situation, and the reform of the capital markets will be further deepened,
which heralds the chance of improvement in the business environment of the industry.
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The Company will further reinforce its efforts in compliance and risk control, so as to facilitate mutual

promotion and coordinated development between compliance, risk control and business operation. The
Company will accelerate the transformation of various businesses, gradually implement a differentiated
competition strategy, explore and apply a long-term sustainable profit model, and study and solidify
a robust investment model that is suitable for the development of the Company, thus stabilizing and
improving its profitability. Also, the Company will strengthen management of its subsidiaries and allocate
a variety of resources to support the professional and market-oriented development of its two subsidiaries
with the financial licenses to carry out funds and futures business. A management approach which
prioritizes risk control and efficiency will be established and the synergy effect of front and back offices
will be enhanced through an effective internal management system and allocation of resources, thus
fully coordinate and support business operation. Meanwhile, the Company will actively perform its social
responsibilities, so as to enhance the social value and brand reputation of the Company.
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INFORMATION ON THE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Relevant information on the principal activities is set out in the subsection headed “ll. Analysis of Principal
Business” under Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis” and forms a part of this Report of the
Board of Directors.

The relevant information on the principal subsidiaries is set out in the subsection headed “IV. Subsidiaries”
under Section 3 “Company Profile” and forms a part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The relevant information is set out in the sub-section headed “Ill. Financial Statements Analysis” under
Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis” and forms a part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The relevant information is set out in the sub-section headed “VIII. Risk Factors and Countermeasures”
under Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis” and forms a part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PLAN

() Formulation, Implementation or Adjustment of the Profit Distribution Policy

The Company has been attaching great importance to reasonable investment return to its
shareholders, and emphasising the stability and continuity of investment return. According to the
order of profit distribution specified in the Articles of Association, the Company may distribute
dividend by way of cash or shares. When the Board proposes declaration of dividends, the Board has
formulated its profit distribution plan on a reasonable basis to safeguard shareholders’ interests in accordance
with relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and with reference to the the Group’s
financial performance, overall financial position, expected working capital needs and surplus, future
development plan and external financing environment. The annual profit distribution plan shall be
proposed by the Board and subject to consideration and approval at the general meeting of the
Company. During the Reporting Period, the profit distribution policy was strictly implemented
without any adjustment.
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() Implementation of the 2017 Profit Distribution Plan

The Company held the 2017 annual general meeting on 31 May 2018 to consider and approve the
resolution in relation to the 2017 Profit Distribution Plan, pursuant to which, based on the total
number of share capital of the Company of 2,604,567,412 shares as at 31 December 2017, the
cash dividend of RMB1.00 per 10 shares (tax inclusive) and RMB260,456,741.20 in aggregate (tax
inclusive) was distributed to holders of Domestic Shares and H Shares whose names appeared on

the register of members of the Company after the business hours on 12 June 2018.

The 2017 final dividend was denominated and declared in RMB and payable in RMB to holders of
Domestic Shares, and in HK dollars to holders of H Shares. The average benchmark exchange rate
of RMB against HK dollar announced by the People’'s Bank of China for the five working days prior
to the date of the 2017 annual general meeting was HK$1.00 to RMBO0.815352. Accordingly, the
dividend payable per 10 H Shares was HK$1.226464 (tax inclusive). The distribution of the final
dividend for the year 2017 was completed on 25 July 2018.

() The 2018 Annual Profit Distribution Plan

The 2018 annual profit distribution plan of the Company: no profit will be distributed.

On 15 October 2015, the Company raised total proceeds of HK$1,767,316,320 through public issue of
450,846,000 H Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The actual proceeds finally received by the
Company (deducting the Listing related expenses and the amount directly transferred into the national
treasury pool due to share selling by the selling shareholders (namely reduction of state-owned shares))
was RMB1,306,244,936.55 due to the impact arising from foreign exchange gains or losses, interest and

other related fees.
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The funds raised shall be used as per the following purposes as specified in the Company’s Prospectus:

1. about 50% of the funds will be used for the Company’s capital-based intermediary business,

including margin financing and securities lending and securities pledged repurchase business

and for the development of online margin financing and securities lending and securities pledged

repurchase business services.

2. about 30% of the funds will be used for the development of the Company’s NEEQ market-making
business.
3. about 20% of the funds will be used for the development and enhancement of the internet-based

finance business of the Company.

On 22 December 2017, the resolution in relation to “Change of the Use of Proceeds of the Company” was

considered and approved at the 2017 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company to change the use

of the remaining available proceeds for NEEQ market-making business and use RMB320 million of which

for the Company's capital-based intermediary business and replenishing working capital.

The use of the proceeds of the Company was detailed in the table below:

Use of proceeds
as specified
in the Prospectus

50% of

the funds
being used
for the
capital-based
intermediary

business

30% of

the funds
being used

for the NEEQ
market-making

business

20% of

the funds
being used
for the
internet-based
finance

business Total

Amount of proceeds available for
use before change (RMB)
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For the
capital-based
intermediary For the
Use of proceeds business and  For the NEEQ internet-based
upon change on replenishing market-making finance
22 December 2017 working capital business business Total
Amount of proceeds available
for use upon change (RMB) 973,122,468.27  71,873,480.97 261,248,987.31 1,306,244,936.55
Accumulated amount of
proceeds used as of 31
December 2018 (RMB) 970,902,777.77  50,000,000.00  95,995,131.61 1,116,897,909.38
Remaining amount of proceeds
available for use (RMB) 2,219,690.50 21,873,480.97 165,253,855.70 189,347,027.17
Expected timeline for use of Rational use Rational use Rational use
the remaining proceeds based on actual based on actual based on actual
available for use business needs business needs business needs -

The proceeds were used and are proposed to be used according to the intentions previously disclosed.

Details of the Directors and the Supervisors during the Reporting Period and as at the date of this report
are set out in “Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees”, which forms a part
of this Report of the Board of Directors.

The Company has received the annual written independence confirmation prepared by each independent

non-executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and believes that all the independent

non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which

shall be compensated (except for statutory compensation) upon termination within one year.
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VIII. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of Directors and Supervisors in Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or Supervisor or an entity connected
with any Director or Supervisor had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, has been entered into
and subsisted during the Reporting Period.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to and in which a controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, has been entered into and subsisted during the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this

report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE BUSINESS COMPETING WITH THE
COMPANY

None of the Directors has interest in business competing with the Company during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Period, no Directors, Supervisors of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under the age of 18 purchased the shares or debentures of the Company to obtain rights, nor did
such persons exercise any such rights; and no arrangements have been made by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to enable any Directors, Supervisors of the Company or their respective spouses or children
under the age of 18 to obtain such rights from any other body corporate.
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As at 31 December 2018, based on the information acquired by the Company and to the knowledge of
the Directors, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company have no (i) interests or
short positions (including the interests or short positions considered or deemed to have according to
such provisions of the SFO) which shall be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in accordance with Sections 7 and 8 of Part XV under the SFO; (ii) interests or short positions which shall
be recorded in the interests register in accordance with section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) interests or short
positions which shall be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in accordance with
the requirements of the Model Code in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO), save as disclosed as follows:

Approximate

Approximate percentage of
percentage of  the Company’s  Long positions/
total number of total issued  short positions/
Class of Number of  issued shares of Domestic Shares/  shares available
Name shares Nature of interest Shares held the Company' H Shares’ for lending
(shares) (%) (%)
Supervisor
Ms. Pei Jingjing Domestic  Interest in a controlled 206,182,000 7.92 9.57 Long positions
EXT-r e Shares corporation
Notes:
1. As at 31 December 2018, the Company has issued a total number of 2,604,567,412 shares, comprising
2,1563,721,412 Domestic Shares and 450,846,000 H Shares.
2. 99.99% and 0.01% of the equity interest in Huijin Jiaye are held by Shanghai Xishida and Ms. Pei Jingjing (3%

fkes 2 T) who is a Supervisor of the Company, respectively. 95% and 2% of the equity interest in Shanghai
Xishida are held by Shenzhen Zhongxin and Ms. Pei Jingjing (¥£& &% 1), respectively. Approximately 99.47%
of the equity interest in Shenzhen Zhongxin is held by Shanghai Julu. 35% and 35% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Julu are held by Ms. Pei Jingjing (2f &t 22 £) and Mr. Ci Penghui (Z&BE#E %), respectively. Therefore,
Ms. Pei Jingjing (3 S %2 I) is deemed to be interested in 206,182,000 Domestic Shares held by Huijin Jiaye.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Baotou Huazi, Qingyun Intercontinental, Finance Street Xihuan
Properties, Huijin Jiaye, Finance Street Investment, Huarong Infrastructure, Huifa Investment, Hongzhi
Huitong, Zhongchang Hengyuan, Shanghai Yida and Tomorrow Holding has signed a non-competition

undertaking (collectively, “Non-competition Undertakings”). Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertakings:

(a) each of Baotou Huazi, Qingyun Intercontinental, Huijin Jiaye, Huifa Investment and Hongzhi Huitong
has undertaken that (i) it and its controlled entities do not currently engage in any business which
competes with our business; and (ii) after the Listing, it and its controlled entities will not engage in
any competing business that is the same as or similar with our business;

(b) each of Finance Street Xihuan Properties, Finance Street Investment and Huarong Infrastructure
has undertaken that (i) it and its controlled entities do not currently engage in any business which
requires approvals from CSRC and competes with our primary business; and (ii) after the Listing, it
and its respective controlled entities will not directly or indirectly hold any equity interests in other
securities companies by establishment or acquisition of companies; and

(c) each of Zhongchang Hengyuan, Shanghai Yida and Tomorrow Holding has undertaken that, other
than their shareholding interests in New Times Securities Co., Ltd, (i) it and its controlled entities do
not currently engage in any business which requires approvals from CSRC and competes with our
primary business; and (ii) after the Listing, it and its respective controlled entities will not directly or
indirectly hold any equity interests in other securities companies by establishment or acquisition of

companies.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for all the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to cover their indemnity liabilities arising out of corporate
affairs.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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Section 6 Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

Share Capital

Information on share capital is contained in Note 49(a) to the consolidated financial statements of
this report and forms a part of the Report of the Board of Directors.

Pre-emptive Rights Arrangements

According to the PRC laws and the Articles of Association, currently, the Company has no pre-

emptive rights arrangements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

During the Reporting Period, according to the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the public shareholding of H Shares has satisfied the minimum
percentage as modified in the waiver granted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from strict
compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules.

Management Contract

During the Reporting Period, no management and administration contracts relating to all or any

substantial part of the business of the Company was entered or existed.
Data on Tax Reduction and Exemption by the Shareholders of H Shares

Individual investors

In accordance with the Individual Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China (2018
Amendment) ({(FFZE AR LF B E A FTEFE) (2018/2 1E)) and the Regulations for the Implementation
of the Individual Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (2018 Revision) ({FF# A R0
B @ AP E TR E IS (20181&5])), the dividends paid by the Chinese companies shall be subject
to the withholding tax at a uniform rate of 20%. Non-Chinese resident foreign individuals shall be
imposed 20% of individual income tax on the dividends gained from Chinese companies, except
for specific exemptions allowed by the tax authorities of the State Council or special deductions in

accordance with an applicable tax treaty.
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According to the Notice on the Management of Individual Income Tax Impose after the Abolition
of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 Document (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) (B % 4E BEMNEH
Z£[199310455% S 1 RE 12 B B E A FTS BB E M RE a0 A0) (BIHE (1 [2011]3485%)) issued by the State
Administration of Taxation, for domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises making public offering in
Hong Kong, the foreign resident individual shareholders are entitled to the associated tax preference
according to the provisions in the taxation treaties signed between their nations and China as well
as the taxation arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macao). The dividends paid
by domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises which have made the public offering in Hong Kong
to foreign resident H Shares individual holders shall be imposed individual income tax at the rate
of 10%, without having to make applications to the Chinese tax authorities. If the tax rate of 10%
is not applicable, (1) for a foreign resident who is H Shares individual holder to receive dividend,
if his country has signed income tax treaty at the rate of less than 10% with China, non-foreign-
invested enterprises which have made public offering in Hong Kong may, on behalf of such holder,
apply for lower tax rate preference; upon approved by the tax authorities, the excessive part of
withholding tax paid will be refunded; (2) for a foreign resident who is H Shares individual holder to
receive dividend, if his country has signed income tax treaty at the rate of higher than 10% but less
than 20% with China, non-foreign-invested enterprises which have made public offering in Hong
Kong shall pay withholding tax in accordance with the treaty and no need to make an application;
and (3) for a foreign resident who is H Share individual holder to receive dividend, if his country has
not signed any tax treaty or otherwise, non-foreign-invested enterprises which have made public
offering in Hong Kong shall pay withholding tax at the rate of 20%.

Enterprise

According to the Enterprise Income Tax law of the People’s Republic of China ({fFZE A RFEFME
¥FT18%45%)) and the Regulations on the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People's Republic of China ((fF#E AR MBI EMEEEFIEMS)) effective on 1 January 2008,
if non-resident enterprises do not establish organizations and sites within the territory of China,
or though establishing organizations and sites but the dividends and bonus received have no real
connection to the organizations and sites established, such enterprises shall pay the corporate
income tax at the rate of 10% of its income from the Chinese territory.

According to the Circular concerning Questions on Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income
Tax when PRC Resident Enterprises Distribute Dividends to Non-resident Corporate Shareholders of
Foreign H Shares (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) (KB H EIE R EMHINMRIEE R AR RIRE
PRI DTSR A RBM BRI (BRI 1H2008]18975%)) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, which became effective on 6 November 2008, PRC resident enterprises should withhold
enterprise income tax at a unified rate of 10% when they distribute dividends for the year of 2008
and beyond to non-resident corporate shareholders of foreign H Shares. After receiving dividends,
non-resident corporate shareholders may apply to the relevant tax authorities for enjoying treatment

of taxation treaties (arrangement) in person or by proxy or by a person who has obligation for
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withholding or paying dividend and provide information to prove it is an actual beneficiary under the
requirement of taxation treaties (arrangement). After the relevant tax authorities have verified that
there is no error, it shall refund tax with reference to the tax levied and the difference in the amount
of tax payable calculated at the tax rate under the taxation treaties (arrangement).

Reserves and Reserves of Profits Available for Distribution

Reserves and the changes in reserves of profits available for distribution of the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements and the
“consolidated statement of changes in equity” in this report, which forms a part of the Report of
the Board of Directors.

(VIl) Relationship with Key Stakeholders

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the Group. The
Group has established complete systems and procedures of human resource management
in order to regulate the use of human resources and realistically protect employees’ rights
and interests. Through compensation and welfare schemes and annual appraisal plans, the
Company has awarded and commended outstanding employees while enhancing employees’
vocational capabilities and widening their room for promotion by way of training and others.

Details of the employees are contained in “VI. Details and Remuneration of Staff” under
Section 9 "Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees”, which forms a part
of this Report of the Board of Directors.

Major customers and suppliers

The Company provides services for the various individual customers and institutional
customers. The Company’s large customers include financial institutions, large, small and
medium enterprises, institutional investors and individual customers. Most customers of the
Company are located in China, mainly in Inner Mongolia. As at 31 December 2018, revenue
and other income generated from the top five customers accounted for 7.09% of the revenue
and other income of the Group, and revenue and other income generated from the largest
customer accounted for 2.00% of the revenue and other income of the Group. During the
Reporting Period, as far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholders who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest
in the five largest customers.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company does not have major suppliers.
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(Vi) Property and Equipment

The relevant information is set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this report,

which forms a part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

(IX) Fulfillment of Social Responsibilities

1.

Investor education

The Company actively undertakes the corporate mission of performing social responsibilities
and attaches great importance to investor education in protecting the legitimate interests of
investors and promoting the standardized, healthy and orderly development of the market. In
adherence to the concept of “actively protecting investors” and undertaking the mission of
carrying forward and fostering a rational investment culture, the Company actively organized
and conducted a total of 386 investor education activities focusing on popularizing securities
knowledge, establishing rational investment concept and promoting risk prevention with the
participation of nearly 100,000 investors in 2018. It has distributed nearly 100,000 copies
of brochures and booklets on investor education to investors. In addition, the Company
also vigorously participated in activities organized by regulatory authorities. Its products on
investor education have been displayed by the CSRC and other regulatory authorities on their
websites and official accounts. It also obtained the award of excellence in the activities on
the handling of compliant cases organized by Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the honor of

excellent H-share securities companies issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

In order to effectively facilitate the visit and learning of investors and enable the investors
to have better experience, the Company selected the 13/F of the headquarters of the
Company besides streets in the downtown area of Hohhot, Inner Mongolia, the PRC for the
construction of the investor education base covering a land area of 537 square meters. It will
build ten major functional areas and highlight the characteristics of ethnic minorities in the
overall design. The layout of all functional areas is unique and equipped with professionals on
investor education devoted to work. Focusing on investors’ demands through “inviting into
the inside” and “reaching out to the outside”, the Company organized education activities
for different types of investors. Through the course system on investor education established
with the hierarchical and classified investor education concept, the Company conducted
activities in universities and provided continuous investor education services to energetically
advance the effective implementation of the “adopting investor education into the national
education system”, help young students set up a right investment concept and master
fundamental investment knowledge to inject new vitality into the capital market in the future.
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In the future, the Company will stay true to its original aspirations, work even harder and
improve various work on investor education in a practical and effective way to provide
investors with considerate products and services on investor education and carry out the

protection of the legitimate interests of medium and small investors.

2. Social activities and public benefit donations

During the Reporting Period, in active response to the industry call, the Company pooled
resources and strengths in all aspects together in carrying out poverty alleviation and other
social activities for public benefit in a proactive manner to perform its social responsibilities

through practical actions.

In respect of poverty alleviation through industrial development, the Company completed the
recommended listing of Gansu Kaikai Agricultural Science And Technology Development Co.,
Ltd. (HERS I 2 ERI R AR 2 7)) and Xilin Gol League Yangyang Husbandry Co., Ltd.
(SR BEEMER DB IRAF) on NEEQ and advanced the recommended listing of Hebei
Wuhuatou Ecological Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. (At AfETBA RE E R AR A F)
and obtained the reply to the listing on the NEEQ within the year. Meanwhile, the Company
also assisted in the financing through additional issuance of shares by Jiangxi Boyang
Shengtai Food Industrial Co., Ltd. (TR B EERREXABMRAF]) and Xilin Gol League
Yangyang Husbandry Co., Ltd., raising RMB20.16 million and RMB10.02 million, respectively.
Hengtai Changcai completed the issuance of corporate bonds with RMB500 million in the
corporate bond program (Phase |) of Nanchong Jialing Development Investment Co., Ltd. (&

AREERREGRRR).

In respect of poverty alleviation through public welfare undertakings, the Company continued
to advance the implementation of poverty alleviation programs in the first half to ensure
that they can put into operation successfully, which have achieved excellent economic and
social effects. Given various fruitful work conducted by the Company in poverty alleviation,
the Company was awarded the “Prize of Excellence in Medical Poverty Alleviation” ({855
B&E KB #¥) and the “Prize of Excellence in Targeted Poverty Alleviation” (B85 E 2hk B 48)
for companies at the awards ceremony of the “Selection of Chinese Securities Companies
with Contributions in Poverty Alleviation in 2018" (2018FFBI&E 4R A3k B 7TiE) & “Display of
Poverty Alleviation Results in Securities Industry in 2018" (2018:&F A5 1T kB K RE) held by
the Securities Association of China and the China Futures Association in October 2018 under
the guidance of the CSRC and the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation
and Development.
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During the Reporting Period, in order to further facilitate the poverty alleviation in
impoverished counties with targeted aid, the Company dispatched one key business staff to
hold positions in Arxan City, a targeted aid city in Inner Mongolia to display his professional
advantages, provide specific services, seek the target for the Company’s aid and bolster up

local poverty elimination.

For other poverty alleviation efforts, New China Fund donated RMB400,000 to Chongging
Youth Development Foundation and Hengtai Futures donated RMB100,000 to the Niujie
Primary Middle School in Eryuan County, Dali Prefecture, Yunnan, respectively, to improve
the education in poverty-stricken areas. In addition, Hengtai Futures carried out poverty
alleviation through consumption in Chahar Right Middle Banner, Ulangab City, Inner Mongolia
and spent RMB100,000 on the purchase of featured agricultural products to boost the

industrialized development of local featured agriculture.

(X) Material Events after the Reporting Period

The relevant information is set out in “IX. Other Important Particulars and Subsequent Events”
under Section 7 “Other Material Particulars”, which forms a part of this Report of the Board of

Directors.

(XI) Compliance of Laws and Regulations

The Company operated in strict compliance with requirements of laws, regulations and regulatory
documents of the PRC and jurisdictions where the Company’s shares are listed, including the
Company Law of the PRC, the Securities Law of the PRC, the Regulations on the Supervision and
Administration of Securities Companies, the Corporate Governance Rules for Securities Companies,
the Listing Rules and the SFO, to standardize the operation of the Company and improve the
management system. For punishment or public censure on the Company during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the subsection headed “l. Punishment or Public Censure in the Reporting

Period” under Section 7 “Other Material Particulars” of this report.

(XIl) Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group has been attaching importance to environmental protection and reducing the impact
on the environment through measures as resource protection, resource recycling as well as
energy conservation and emission reduction. The Group constantly carries out internal recycling
measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. toner cartridge and paper) in order to lessen its impact
on consumption of resources and impact on environment resulting from the operating activities.
Furthermore, the Company encourages employees to adopt the duplex printing when printing and

collect one-side paper for recycling.
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The Group implements energy saving measures in its offices, branches and other areas, encourages
its employees to reduce unnecessary use of lighting and air conditioning, and actively promotes

green travel.

For more details, please refer to the “2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report” to be

published separately.

(XI) Business Review

The relevant information is set out in Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis”, which

forms a part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

(XIV) Future Development

The relevant information is set out in XlII. “Prospects” under Section 5 “Management Discussion
Analysis”, which forms a part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

(XV) Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

The relevant information is set out in Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis”, which

forms a part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

(XVl) Donations

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations amounting to RMB500,000.
Please refer to (IX) “Fulfillment of Social Responsibilities” under XV. “Other Disclosures” in this

section.

(XVIl) Bonds

The relevant information is set out in V. “Major Investment and Financing” under Section 5
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, which forms a part of this Report of the Board of

Directors.
By order of the Board
Pang Jiemin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2019
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During the Reporting Period, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company were not
punished or subject to any public censure. The punishments or public censures against the Company are
set out below:

1. On 23 October 2018 and 1 November 2018, the Company received the Prior Notification on
Rectification (Nei Zheng Jian Han [2018] No. 576) ((BE<RIEE A EME) (NFEK[2018]576%7))
and the Notice of Rectification Measures on Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd. (Notice on Administrative
Regulatory Measures [2018] No. 9) ((BREBRIEFRHD BR A FIERERE L B IERE MEHRE ) (1T
ELE R EZE([2018]95%)) from the Inner Mongolia Bureau of the CSRC, pursuant to which, the
Company was ordered to make rectification in respect of the illegal behaviors of the Company
in agency sale of the platform-based P2P financial products of Beijing Hengtai Puhui Information
Service Co., Ltd. without entering into the agency sale agreement and in illegally guaranteeing the
minimum rate of return of Hengtai Chuangfu No. 51 Collective Assets Management Scheme ({8 Z=&ll
E515E A BEEIETEl) to customers by practitioners through WeChat.

The Company paid high attention to the problems revealed in the notices and conducted overall
rectification in respect of them. The Company revised and formulated various management systems
on internal control, which standardized the management on the process of entering into agreements
and sale activities, enhanced the awareness of employees on product risks. It further improved the
compliance awareness of all staff and strengthened the management and inspection on suitability to
prevent re-occurrence of such incidents in the future. It also submitted the rectification report to the

Inner Mongolia Bureau of the CSRC in a timely manner.

2. On 11 July 2018, the Company received the Letter of Regulation to Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd.
(Nei Zheng Jian Han [2018] No. 347) (KBAREMERIE AN AR R B M EEE [K) (N5 ES K[2018]347
%)), requiring the Company rectifying the problems in a timely manner in failure to sign the
tripartite supervision agreement on certain bonds, non-standard draft of due diligence programs for
asset-backed specialized schemes, incomplete disclosure of prospectus and disqualified operation
of underlying assets and collection of cash flow, which were found in the on-site inspection on the
entrusted management of bonds and the management of asset-backed specialized schemes by the

Company conducted in June 2018.

The Company paid high attention to the problems revealed in the letter and sorted out and rectified
the problems strictly following relevant requirements. The Company strengthened internal control,
implemented the requirements on due diligence and standardized the performance of relevant
procedures. It also further enhanced the management of information disclosure and archives
safeguarding and urged equity originators and others to follow the provisions of laws and contractual
obligations to protect the interests of investors in a practical way. It also submitted the rectification

report to the Inner Mongolia Bureau of the CSRC in a timely manner.
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New Lawsuits and Arbitration Cases in the Reporting Period

1.

The dispute with regard to the Qinghui Leasing asset-backed special scheme Phase |
under the management of the Company

(1)

The lawsuits filed by the Company against Hongyuan Petrochemical and Qinghui
Leasing

On 7 January 2016, the Company established the Qinghui Leasing asset-backed special
scheme Phase | (the “Project”, “Special Scheme”) and acted as the manager thereof.
The underlying assets are the rental claim and other rights as well as their auxiliary
guarantee rights under a single lease contract. The Project fell due on 4 November
2018 in plan. In December 2017, the Company learned that Xianyang Hongyuan
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (Rif5%8 Tt AMBIETHREFEAF]) (“"Hongyuan Petrochemical”),
the single lessee of the Special Scheme, ceased to be a going concern and had been
taken to legal proceedings for debt collection by a number of financial institutions.
As Hongyuan Petrochemical faces risks and cannot pay the rental with the sufficient
amount, it triggered the events on the early termination of the special scheme. In
order to safeguard the legitimate interests of the preferential holders of the Project,
on 15 January 2018, the Company instituted a proceeding to the People’'s High Court
of Beijing (“Beijing High Court”) against Qinghui Leasing Co., Ltd. (FEFHEHGR A7)
(“Qinghui Leasing”), being the equity originators of the Special Scheme and Hongyuan
Petrochemical, claiming for an aggregate of RMB530 million. Beijing High Court
registered the case on 22 January 2018. Afterwards, Qinghui Leasing and Hongyuan
Petrochemical submitted the Applications on Jurisdictional Objection to Beijing High
Court, claiming that the case be transferred to the People’s High Court of Liaoning
and the People’s High Court of Shaanxi, respectively, for handling. Beijing High Court
issued the Civil Ruling Paper on 3 April 2018 and ruled and rejected such jurisdictional
objection made by Qinghui Leasing and Hongyuan Petrochemical. Notwithstanding,
Qinghui Leasing and Hongyuan Petrochemical appealed to the Supreme People's
Court in turn. The Supreme People’'s Court issued the Civil Ruling Paper on 19 October
2018 and ruled and rejected such jurisdictional objection made by Qinghui Leasing and
Hongyuan Petrochemical. As a result, the case will still be heard in Beijing High Court
and the hearing of the case has not yet proceeded. In addition to filing for trial, the
Company applied for property preservation in the process of litigation. As at the end of
the Reporting Period, Beijing High Court closed down certain bank accounts of Qinghui
Leasing and sealed up certain assets and bank accounts of Hongyuan Petrochemical

stepwise.
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2)
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The lawsuits filed by the preferential holders of the Special Scheme against the
Company

Since June 2018, the Company has successively received the civil indictments brought
by Xinyuan Fund Management Limited (B TE & BIE AR A A]), Galaxy Jinhui Securities
Assets Management Co., Ltd. (R & EEHEEEIEFR2AR]), Goldstate Capital Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (£TCIELZESEEFRAF]), Bank of Nanjing Co., Ltd. (FARER
T AR A F)), Chuangjin Hexin Fund Management Limited (Bl&&EE S EE AR A
7l) and Tianhong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (KaAE & E IR B R A 7)), the preferential
holders of the Qinghui Leasing asset-backed special scheme Phase | (collectively the
“Plaintiffs”), claiming for the repayment of the outstanding principals (i.e., RMB20 million,
RMBB60 million, RMB130 million, RMB100 million, RMB40 million and RMB35 million,
respectively), and the interest payable and relevant charges by the Company. The
Plaintiffs claimed that the Company, as the manager of the Special Scheme, had failed
to perform its responsibilities in accordance with the laws and regulations as well
as the requirements under the agreements and documents in relation to the Special
Scheme, and therefore shall be liable for compensation to the Plaintiffs. Since August
2018, the Company has made counterplea against the Plaintiffs at the competent
courts according to the time schedule of the competent courts in succession.

On 20 December 2018, Beijing Second Intermediate People’s Court ruled and rejected
the lawsuit filed by Galaxy Jinhui Securities Assets Management Co., Ltd., Goldstate
Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Bank of Nanjing Co., Ltd. On 29 December
2018, the above three companies appealed to the People’'s High Court of Beijing.
On 27 November 2018, the lawsuit against the Company filed by Xinyuan Fund
Management Limited, Chuangjin Hexin Fund Management Limited and Tianhong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. was heard at the Finance Street People’s Court of the People's

Court of the Xicheng District in Beijing and is currently pending for judgment/ruling.



Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

The dispute with regard to the Tianxing Targeted Additional Issuance No. 1 and No. 2
Collective Assets Management Schemes under the management of the Company

The Company set up the Hengtai Tianxing Targeted Additional Issuance No. 1 Collective
Assets Management Scheme (“TXTI No. 1") and Hengtai Tianxing Targeted Additional
Issuance No. 2 Collective Assets Management Scheme (“TXTI No. 2”) on 19 June 2015
and 30 June 2015, respectively, and invested in the Donghai Ruijing — Ruixiang NEEQ No.
1 special assets management scheme (“Ruixiang No. 1”) and Donghai Ruijing — Ruixiang
NEEQ No. 2 of the special assets management scheme (“Ruixiang No. 2") issued by Donghai
Ruijing Asset Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (R/8mREEER(LH)BRAR]) (“Donghai
Ruijing”), respectively. TXTI No. 1 and TXTI No. 2 fell due and expired on 28 June 2017
and 5 July 2017. However, since TXTI No. 1 and TXTI No. 2 failed to be cashed out due to
the failure of selling off of the assets of Ruixiang No. 1 and Ruixiang No. 2, into which the

investment was made, the Company has yet to allocate the entrusted property so far.

In July 2018, the Company received the notice of appearance from the court, pursuant
to which, on the grounds that the Company failed to perform its legal obligations and
agreements under contracts in the course of management, 25 principals of TXTI No. 1 and
TXTI No. 2 had initiated court proceedings against the Company, claiming for compensation
totaling approximately RMB150 million and claiming that all litigation fees be borne by the
Company. Since August 2018, the Company has made counterplea against the principals
at the competent courts according to the time scheduled by the competent courts in
succession. Meanwhile, Donghai Ruijing has taken proceedings in respect of the disputes
involving the assets into which it made investment. The Company will allocate the entrusted
property to the principals after cashing out the underlying assets under TXTI No. 1 and TXTI
No. 2.

The People's Court of the Xincheng District in Hohhot issued the written judgment on 19
December 2018, rejected the claim of Ms. Chu Xiugin, the principal of TXTI No. 1, and the
plaintiff made no appeals. In addition, the lawsuits against the Company filed by the other
24 principals have been heard in the competent courts. So far, all of the 24 principals have

withdrawn the lawsuits.
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Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

3. The lawsuits filed by the Company against Mr. Han Yiwen and Ms. Chao Ye for the
equity pledged borrowings project

Beijing Hengtai Puhui Information Service Co., Ltd. (“Hengtai Puhui”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary established by Hengtai Pioneer, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on 17
April 2015. Hengtai Pioneer transferred 70% of the equity in Hengtai Puhui held by it on 28
June 2017, and holds 30% of the equity in Hengtai Puhui at present. As the internet financial
platform, Hengtai Puhui established the NEEQ-Gongzhun Company-Pledge-602191 project on
4 August 2016. Mr. Han Yiwen (¥83%& X), the legal representative of Gongzhun Meat Products
Incorporated Company (“Gongzhun Company”), a company listed on the NEED, made a
borrowing of RMB60 million from 225 capital contributors through the platform as pledged
by certain equity in Gongzhun Company held by him. The term of the pledge was one year
and the interest rate was 6.5% per annum. The borrowings were to be used to replenish the
working capital of Gongzhun Company. As the share price of Gongzhun Company was lower
than the agreed compensation price, Ms. Chao Ye (Mr. Han Yiwen's spouse), the director and
deputy general manager of Gongzhun Company, increased the pledged shares of Gongzhun
Company to Hengtai Puhui on 26 April 2017. Upon the expiry of the loan term, the borrower
was unable to repay the principal and interest and caused the default.

In October 2017, the Company received the creditor’s rights transfer as a registered user of
the platform, and filed a case in the People’'s Court of the Xicheng District in Beijing (“Xicheng
District Court”) on 2 November 2017. The court first mediated. When the mediation failed,
the Company, in accordance with the agreed jurisdiction, filed a lawsuit concerning the
loan contract dispute litigation to the People’'s Court of the Xicheng District in Beijing on
2 January 2018. the Company claimed that the defendants, Mr. Han Yiwen and Ms. Chao
Ye, shall repay the principal, interest, default interest of the creditor’s transfer of credits
previously received by the Company totaling RMB16,999,900.09; and bear the expenses for
execution of creditor’s rights including the litigation fees and property preservation fees and
that the Company be entitled to the priority of compensation for the pledged shares of the
two defendants after the auction sale. A formal court session of the case was held on 25
July 2018. On 28 September 2018, Xicheng District Court issued the verdict, requiring the
defendants, Mr. Han Yiwen and Ms. Chao Ye, repaying the principal, interest and default
interest within ten days after the judgment came into effect. On 19 November 2018, the
Company made an application to the Enforcement Bureau of Xicheng District Court on the
enforcement of the case on this Gongzhun project to facilitate its enforcement procedure.
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Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

The lawsuit filed by the Company against Shenwu in relation to bond transactions

On 7 December 2016, the Company purchased in the market corporate bonds with an
aggregate face value of RMB70 million, which were part of the corporate bonds issued by
Shenwu Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (f8 B REFMA D BERAA]) (“Shenwu”) by
way of non-public issuance in 2016 (“16 Shenwu Bonds”, bond code:118579). 16 Shenwu
Bonds were unconditionally and irrevocably, jointly and severally, guaranteed by Shenwu
Technology Group Corporation Limited (##FERHE & B IR B A 5] and Mr. Wu Daohong, the
de facto controller of Shenwu (the “Guarantors”). On 6 February 2018, Shenwu published
an announcement informing investors about the upward adjustment to the coupon rate of
16 Shenwu Bonds. Subsequently on 13 February 2018, the Company submitted application
through the securities trading system for selling back 16 Shenwu Bonds it held to Shenwu as
agreed under the investor put option. As at 14 March 2018, however, the Company had not
received the payment of the principal of 16 Shenwu Bonds and the interest accrued thereon
in the aggregate amount of RMB75.60 million. On 15 March 2018, Shenwu published an
announcement that it was unable to pay the principal of 16 Shenwu Bonds and the interest
accrued thereon due to strained liquidity.

On 10 May 2018, the Company filed a lawsuit with the Beijing No. 3 Intermediate People’s
Court, demanding that Shenwu pay the principal of 16 Shenwu Bonds and the interest
accrued thereon, the relevant legal fees and fees for property preservation in the aggregate
sum of RMB76,853,911.01, and requesting that the Guarantors assume joint and several
liabilities for such payments. Further, the Company also files an application for property
preservation to freeze the equivalent cash deposits of Shenwu and the Guarantors. Beijing
No. 3 Intermediate People’'s Court issued the judgment on 28 August 2018, ruling that
Shenwu shall pay the principal of 16 Shenwu Bonds and the interest accrued thereon,
the relevant legal fees and fees for property preservation to the Company. On 15 October
2018, Shenwu appealed to People's High Court of Beijing, claiming that the legal fees are
excessively high and it lacks legal ground to support fees for property preservation. The case is
expected to be heard in April 2019.

The arbitration with regard to the Pingyin Kaidi electricity on-grid tariff asset-backed
specialized scheme (Phase Il) under the management of the Company

On 11 November 2015, the Company established the Pingyin Kaidi electricity on-grid tariff

asset-backed specialized scheme (Phase Il) (the “Project” or “Special Scheme") and

acted as the manager thereof. The underlying asset is the electricity on-grid tariff during a
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Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

(n)

()

particular period. The expected maturity date of the Project is 23 September 2021. The equity
originators of the Special Scheme are Chongyang Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(=P eyl masr @RI AR A R)), Laifeng Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd. (38 [Bl&
S4B LR ZE AR A ), Jiangling Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd. (IFES%s/lid@
4R AERBIZE AR A Al), Chibi Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd. (FREES)| 4% & IR ET
£ ABR A Al) and Gucheng Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd. (235 % sl s 4% 5 BE IR 5 2%
BIRAF]), all of which are subsidiaries of Kaidi Ecological and Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd. (sliEA sEIRBRIF M AR A 7)) (“Kaidi Ecological”). Kaidi Ecological is the promisor for
the shortfall payment under the Special Scheme.

As Kaidi Ecological is involved in indebtedness default, it triggered the early termination
events for the Special Scheme. After the termination of the Special Scheme, all of the asset-
backed securities under the Special Scheme will mature. Equity originators shall pay all
unpaid principal and interest of the asset-backed securities to the Special Scheme and Kaidi
Ecological shall perform the payment obligation on the difference of the outstanding principal
and interest of the asset-backed securities based on the priority of the Special Scheme.
In order to safeguard the legitimate interests of the holders of the Project, on 10 August
2018, the Company, as the manager and on behalf of the Special Scheme, submitted the
arbitration application on five cases and the application for property preservation to China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, requiring the respondents repaying
the outstanding principal and expected return of the Special Scheme with an aggregate sum
of RMB1,215 million as well as default interest losses. The first respondents are Chongyang
Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd., Laifeng Kaidi Green Energy Development
Co., Ltd., Jiangling Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd., Chibi Kaidi Green Energy
Development Co., Ltd. and Gucheng Kaidi Green Energy Development Co., Ltd. The second
respondent is Kaidi Ecological. The five arbitration cases filed by the Company on behalf of
the Special Scheme, were heard on 10 January 2019 and no arbitration award has been issued

by the arbitral tribunal so far.

Cases Concluded in the Reporting Period

None in the Reporting Period.

Cases on Enforcement Procedures and Bankruptcy Proceedings

None in the Reporting Period.
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1. The Company entered into a property lease contract with China Everbright Bank, Hohhot Branch
on 1 September 2015, pursuant to which the Company leased from China Everbright Bank, Hohhot
Branch the space of 14-18/F, Everbright Bank Building, Oriental Junzuo Block D, Chile Chuan
Avenue, Saihan District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, China for a term of 1 year
commencing from 1 September 2015. The property lease contract was renewed on 1 September
2016 and 1 September 2017, respectively. The rental paid by the Company for the Reporting Period
was RMB3,001,500.

2. The Company entered into a property lease contract with China Life Real Estate Co., Limited on 1
March 2016, pursuant to which the Company leased from China Life Real Estate Co., Limited the
space of the Unit 1101, 11/F, China Life Centre, Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, China
for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 March 2016. The rental paid by the Company for the
Reporting Period was RMB21,980,300.

The Group carried out connected transactions in strict compliance with the Listing Rules and requirements

of the Group’s internal regulations under the principles of impartiality, openness and fairness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company and Huarong Investment entered into a property leasing and
related services framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) on 16 May 2018 to regulate the
properties leasing relationship and property management services between the Group and Huarong
Investment. The SASAC of Xicheng District, through Finance Street Xihuan Properties, Finance Street
Investment and Huarong Infrastructure (collectively, the “Finance Street Group”), is interested in
approximately 20.42% of the total issued share capital of the Company, and therefore it is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, Finance Street Group and its
associates are connected persons of the Company. Huarong Investment is a holding company of Finance
Street Xihuan Properties, and is therefore an associate of the Finance Street Group. Accordingly, Huarong
Investment is a connected person of the Company and transactions that the Company enters into with
Huarong Investment and its associate constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

The Framework Agreement became effective from 1 January 2018 and will expire on 31 December 2020,
subject to renewal. Since one or more of the applicable percentage ratios stipulated under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the annual caps for the Framework Agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less
than 5%, the Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement
are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements, but exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All applicable
percentage ratios calculated with reference to the rentals and management fees already incurred from 1
January 2018 to 30 April 2018 falls below 0.1% and therefore were exempt from reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements. For details of the principal terms and pricing basis of the Framework
Agreement, please refer to the announcement in relation to continuing connected transactions of the
Company dated 16 May 2018. The amount of the above continuing connected transactions during the
Reporting Period was RMB8,047,131, not exceeding the 2018 annual caps of RMB10 million disclosed in

the above announcement.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
have confirmed that such continuing connected transactions:

(1) are in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(2) are conducted on normal commercial terms; and
(3) are conducted in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and

reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has received a letter from the auditors of the Company in respect of the continuing connected
transactions mentioned above, a copy of which has been provided to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and in which the auditors have expressed the following opinion on the disclosed continuing connected
transactions:

Based on the foregoing and for the continuing connected transactions disclosed:

a. nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing connected

transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions set out in the
attached list of continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the 2018 annual cap
as set by the Company in the Announcement.

Save as disclosed above, other transactions set out in Note 57 to the consolidated financial statements do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions or are exempt from compliance

with reporting, announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company did not obtain any new business qualifications during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not adopt nor implement any share option scheme or equity

incentive scheme.
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In the classified evaluation of the PRC securities companies in 2018 carried out by the CSRC, the Company

was assigned a BB rating in Class B.

The Company appointed Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP and RSM Hong Kong as its external
auditors for 2018 for providing correlated audit and review services, based on China’s Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises and International Financial Reporting Standards, respectively.
Whether appointed other accounting firms in the past three years: Yes.

As the Company could not reach a consensus with KPMG on the audit fee proposed for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016, the resolution in respect of the change of International Auditors was considered
and approved at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016, pursuant to which
the Company ceased to re-appoint KPMG as its international accounting firm for 2016 and appointed RSM
Hong Kong (in November 2018, its Chinese name was changed to “Z&HE& I E /AT, while there is no
change of its English name) as its international accounting firm for 2016.

1. Domestic accounting firms, signing accountants and service lengths:

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP, Ms. Pan Shuai and Mr. Hu Wei, 11 years.

2. International accounting firms and service lengths:

RSM Hong Kong, 3 years.

3. Remunerations for accounting firm

The Company paid RMB1.63 million to Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP for annual audit fee
in 2018.

The Company paid RMB0.70 million to RSM Hong Kong for interim review fee in 2018 and RMB1.80

million for annual audit fee in 2018.
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Section 7 Other Material Particulars (Continued)

Change of Shareholders, Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of
the Company after the Reporting Period

None.
Annual Profit Distribution Plan of the Company

Please refer to "Section 6 Report of the Board of Directors — IV. Profit Distribution and Profit
Distribution Plan”.

Major Investment and Financing after the Reporting Period

1. Major investment of the Company
None.
2. Major financing of the Company

On 1 March 2019, the Company issued the beneficiary certificates "1B&IZEE205%" with an

issuance size of RMB200 million and a term of 364 days at an interest rate of 5.00%.

Significant Litigations and Arbitrations after the Reporting Period

On 1 March 2019, the Company received a notice of response to action from the People’s Court
of Futian District of Shenzhen, according to which, China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (ZH
FRBIGIEFEBER A F]), a preferential holder of Qinghui Leasing asset-backed special scheme Phase
| (the” Special Scheme”), filed a lawsuit against the Company, alleging that the Company failed
to perform its duties as the manager of the Special Scheme in accordance with the provisions of
laws and regulations as well as the requirements specified in certain agreements and documents in
respect of the Special Scheme. Therefore, it requested the Company to assume the compensation
obligation for the principal amount of RMB30 million, plus accrued interest and related expenses. It is
expected that the People’s Court of Futian District of Shenzhen will hear the case in April 2019. For
the details of the Special Scheme, please refer to the subsection headed “lI. Significant Lawsuits
and Arbitrations” under section 7 “Other Material Particulars”.
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(V)

(V1)

(vi)

(Vi)

Merger or Disposal of Subsidiaries after the Reporting Period

None.

Other Major Subsequent Events which may Affect the Financial Conditions,
Operating Results, and Cash Flow of the Company

None.

Change of the Articles of Association after the Reporting Period

On 26 February 2019, the first extraordinary general meeting of the Company in 2019 considered
and approved the resolution on the Change of the Company’s Registered Address and Amendments
to the Articles of Association and agreed to change the Company's registered address and make
amendments to the corresponding provision in the Articles of Association. For details, please
refer to the circular dated 11 January 2019 and the announcement dated 26 February 2019 of the
Company. The change of the Company’s registered address and the amendments to the Articles
of Association will come into effect after approval has been granted by the relevant regulatory
authorities of the PRC. Further announcement will be made by the Company in accordance with the

Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

Others

On 16 May 2018, the proposal regarding Reduction of Registered Capital of Hengtai Capital
Investment Co., Ltd., a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company was considered and approved at
the 5th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board, pursuant to which it was approved
to reduce the registered capital of Hengtai Capital to RMBO0.6 billion in steps. On 22 August 2018,
Hengtai Capital completed the industrial and commercial registration for the change of registered
capital from RMB1.5 billion to RMB1.2 billion. On 11 March 2019, Hengtai Capital completed the
industrial and commercial registration for the change of registered capital from RMB1.2 billion to
RMBO.8 billion.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Company's share capital was 2,604,567,412 shares, among which
2,153,721,412 shares was held by holders of Domestic Shares, representing 82.69% of the total issued
share capital, and 450,846,000 shares was held by holders of H Shares, representing 17.31% of the total

issued share capital.

CHANGES IN SHARES

None in the Reporting Period.

SHAREHOLDERS

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had 50 registered shareholders, including 22 registered

holders of Domestic Shares and 28 registered holders of H Shares.

(n

At the End of the Reporting Period, the Shareholding of More than 5%
Shares or Top 10 Shareholders is as Follows:

Number Pledge or
of shares ~ Numberof ~ Number of freezing status
changed  sharesheld sharesheld  Status
Nature of Class of Number of during  without sale with sale  of
No.  Name of shareholders shareholders  shares shares held Percentage theyear  limitations  limitations  shares Number
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited' Overseas legal ~ HShares 450,781,900 17.31% - 450,781,900 0 - -
person
2 Baotou Huazi Industry Co., Ltd. Social legal Domestic 308,000,000 11.83% - 308,000,000 0 - -
person Shares
3 Beijing Qingyun Intercontinental Social legal Domestic 226,961,315 8.71% - 22691315 0 Pledged 214,932,520
Technology Co., Ltd. person Shares
4 Beijing Finance Street Xihuan State-own legal ~ Domestic 211,472,315 8.12% - 211472315 0 - -
Properties Co., Ltd. person Shares
5 Beijing Huijin Jiaye Investment Co., ~ Social legal Domestic 206,182,000 7.92% - 206,182,000 0 Pledged 201,973,858
Ltd. person Shares
6 Beijing Finance Street Investment ~ State-own legal ~ Domestic 165,418,345 6.35% - 165418345 0 - -
(Group) Co., Ltd. person Shares
7 Beijing Huarong Infrastructure State-own legal ~ Domestic 155,079,698 5.95% - 155,079,698 0 - -
Investment Co., Ltd. person Shares
8 Tibet Dazi Huifa Investment Social legal Domestic 154,000,000 591% - 154,000,000 0 - -
Co., Ltd. person Shares
9 Beijing Hongzhi Huitong Industrial ~ Social legal Domestic 154,000,000 5.91% - 154,000,000 0 Pledged 123,500,000
Co., Ltd. person Shares
10 Hua Chen Trust Limited State-own legal ~ Domestic 92,297,832 3.54% - 92,297,832 0 Frozen 92,297,832
Corporation person Shares
Note:
1. Shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited are owned by non-registered H shareholders.
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(1)

Company’s Controlling Shareholder and De Facto Controller

The Company does not have any controlling Shareholder or de facto controller.

Status of Shareholders Holding 10% or More of the Company’s Shares

Excluding HKSCC Nominees Limited, the shares held by which were owned by non-registered H

shareholders.

Name of Legal Date of Registered
shareholders representative  establishment capital  Registered address Principal business
(RMBO000)
Baotou Huazi Industry ~ Song Weidong 30 November 1998 48,493.20  South Road of National Rare Production and sales of sugar, molasses;

Co,, Ltd. (REF) Earth High-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Baotou
City, Inner Mongolia

Autonomous Region, China

HENGTOU SECURITIES

operation of export of products and
relevant technologies manufactured
and developed by itself; operation of
importing of raw and auxiliary materials,
machinery, equipment, instruments
and spare parts required for production;
conducting foreign co-production and
compensated trade business



Iv.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors after having made all reasonable enquiries,

the following persons (excluding the Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company) had

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which had to be notified to

the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and were recorded, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, in the register referred to therein:

Approximate  Long

percentage of  positions/
Approximate the Company's  short
percentage of totalissued  positions/
total number of Domestic ~ shares
Name of substantial Number of issued shares of Shares/  available
shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of interest shares held  the Company' H Shares'  for lending
(shares) (%) (%)
Huarong Infrastructure® Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 155,079,698 595 720 Long positions
Finance Street Capital’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 155,079,698 5.95 720 Long positions
Finance Street Investment’ Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 165,418,345 6.3 7.68  Long positions
Finance Street Xihuan Properties’  Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 211,472,315 8.12 9.82  Long positions
Huarong Investment Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 211,472,315 8.12 9.82  Long positions
SASAC Xicheng District? *** Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 531,970,358 20.42 2470 Long positions
Baotou Huaz?® Domestic Shares  Beneficial ownerfparties acting in concert 443,868,000 17.04 20.61  Long positions
Tomorrow Holding® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation/ 443 868,000 17.04 20.61  Long positions
parties acting in concert
Zhongchang Hengyuan® Domestic Shares  Beneficial ownerfparties acting in concert 443,868,000 17.04 20.61  Long positions
Shanghai Yida® Domestic Shares  Beneficial ownerfparties acting in concert 443,868,000 17.04 20.61  Long positions
Huifa Investment® Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 154,000,000 591 7.15  Long positions
Ms. Chen Shan® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 715 Long positions
Mr. Shen Weimin? Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 7.15  Long positions
Huijin Jiaye’ Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 206,182,000 192 957 Long positions
Shanghai Xishida’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 206,182,000 792 9.57  Long positions
Shenzhen Zhongxin’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 206,182,000 792 9,57 Long positions
Shanghai Julu” Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 206,182,000 792 957  Long positions
Mr. Ci Penghul’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 206,182,000 792 9.57  Long positions
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Section 8 Equity (Capital) Changes and Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Approximate  Long

percentage of  positions/
Approximate the Company's  short
percentage of  totalissued  positions/

total number of Domestic ~ shares
Name of substantial Number of issued shares of Shares/  available
shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of interest shares held  the Company' H Shares'  for lending
(shares) (%) (%)

Qingyun Intercontinental® Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 226,961,315 8N 10.54  Long positions

Ningbo Shike® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 226,961,315 8.1 10.54  Long positions

Shaanxi Hongya® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 226,961,315 8.71 10.54  Long positions

Mr. Duan Shuai® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 226,961,315 8N 1054 Long positions

Mr. Sun Yuanlin® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 226,961,315 8.1 10.54  Long positions

Hongzhi Huitong® Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 154,000,000 591 7.15  Long positions

Shaanxi Tianchen® Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 715 Long positions

Hangzhou Ruisi’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 7.15  Long positions

Suzhou Bingtal’ Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 7.15  Long positions

Mr. Zhang Li° Domestic Shares  Interests of controlled corporation 154,000,000 591 715 Long positions

Guotai Fund Management Co., Ltd. ~ H Shares Investment manager 62,235,000 2.39 13.80  Long positions

([ERESERERAA)

Pohua JT Private Equity Fund L.P.""  H Shares Beneficial owner 67,880,000 261 1505  Long positions

Pohua JT Capital Partners Limited®  H Shares Interests of controlled corporation 67,880,000 261 15,06 Long positions

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2018, there was a total of 2,604,567,412 shares of the Company in issue, comprising
2,153,721,412 Domestic Shares and 450,846,000 H Shares.

2. Huarong Infrastructure is wholly-owned by Finance Street Capital, which is in turn wholly-owned by SASAC
Xicheng District. Therefore, each of Finance Street Capital and SASAC Xicheng District is deemed to be
interested in 155,079,698 Domestic Shares held by Huarong Infrastructure.

3. Finance Street Investment is wholly-owned by SASAC Xicheng District. Therefore, SASAC Xicheng District is
deemed to be interested in 165,418,345 Domestic Shares held by Finance Street Investment.

4. 90.00% of the equity interest in Finance Street Xihuan Properties is held by Huarong Investment, which is in turn
wholly-owned by SASAC Xicheng District. Therefore, each of Huarong Investment and SASAC Xicheng District is
deemed to be interested in 211,472,315 Domestic Shares held by Finance Street Xihuan Properties.

(5%, Tomorrow Holding, Zhongchang Hengyuan and Shanghai Yida have entered into an agreement to act in concert

in respect of their shareholding in the Company. Therefore, each of Tomorrow Holding, Baotou Huazi (which is
held by Tomorrow Holding as to approximately 54.32%), Zhongchang Hengyuan and Shanghai Yida is deemed to
be interested in 443,868,000 Domestic Shares (being an aggregate of 308,000,000, 75,100,000 and 60,768,000
Domestic Shares held by Batou Huazi, Zhongchang Hengyuan and Shanghai Yida, respectively).
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Section 8 Equity (Capital) Changes and Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

10.

53.33% and 46.67% of the equity interest in Huifa Investment is held by Mr. Shen Weimin (L &RK) and Ms.
Chen Shan (FR#), respectively. Therefore, each of Mr. Shen Weimin (L&) and Ms. Chen Shan (BR#) is
deemed to be interested in 154,000,000 Domestic Shares held by Huifa Investment.

99.99% of the equity interest in Huijin Jiaye is held by Shanghai Xishida. 95.00% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Xishida is held by Shenzhen Zhongxin. 99.47% of the equity interest in Shenzhen Zhongxin is held by
Shanghai Julu. 35.00% of the equity interest in Shanghai Julu is held by Mr. Ci Penghui (24[i5#2). Therefore, each
of Shanghai Xishida, Shenzhen Zhongxin, Shanghai Julu, and Mr. Ci Penghui (25#8) is deemed to be interested
in 206,182,000 Domestic Shares held by Huijin Jiaye.

70.00% of the equity interest in Qingyun Intercontinental is held by Ningbo Shike, which is in turn held by
Shaanxi Hongya as to 99.60%. Shaanxi Hongya is held by Mr. Duan Shuai (EX87) and Mr. Sun Yuanlin (fZ7c#k) as
t0 49.00% and 51.00%, respectively. In addition, 0.40% of the equity interest in Ningbo Shike is held by Mr. Sun
Yuanlin (F2JC#K). Therefore, each of Ningbo Shike, Shaanxi Hongya, Mr. Duan Shuai and Mr. Sun Yuanlin (FRJTHK)
is deemed to be interested in 226,961,315 Domestic Shares held by Qingyun Intercontinental.

97.08% of the equity interest in Hongzhi Huitong is held by Shaanxi Tianchen. 98.67% of the equity interest
in Shaanxi Tianchen is held by Hangzhou Ruisi. 94.00% of the equity interest in Hangzhou Ruisi is held by
Suzhou Bingtai. 81.82% of the equity interest in Suzhou Bingtai is held by Mr. Zhang Li (5&%). Therefore, each
of Shaanxi Tianchen, Hangzhou Ruisi, Suzhou Bingtai and Mr. Zhang Li (58%) is deemed to be interested in
154,000,000 Domestic Shares held by Hongzhi Huitong.

Pohua JT Private Equity Fund L.P. is wholly-owned by Pohua JT Capital Partners Limited. Therefore, Pohua JT
Capital Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in 67,880,000 H Shares held by Pohua JT Private Equity
Fund L.P..

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company is not aware of any other persons

(excluding the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company) having any interest or short

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which will be required to be recorded in the
register under Section 336 of the SFO.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the Reporting Period.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and the relevant PRC laws

which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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I.  BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT INCUMBENT DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND THOSE LEAVING
OFFICE DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

() Directors

Total remuneration
(before tax) received

from the Company
during the
No. Name Gender Age  Positions Term of office Reporting Period Remarks
(RMB in thousand)
1 PangJiemin  Male 47 Chairman of the Board ~ From 22 December 2017 1,943 -
(ENE) and executive Director  to 21 December 2020
2 WuYigang Male 59 Vice chairman of the From 22 December 2017 920 -
(REEH) Board and executive  to 21 December 2020
Director
3 Zhang Tao Male 40 Non-executive Director ~ From 22 December 2017 75 -
(&) to 21 December 2020
4 Sun Chao Male 35 Non-executive Director  From 22 December 2017 75 -
(i) to 21 December 2020
5  Dong Hong Female 49 Non-executive Director  From 5 January 2018 to 75 Obtained approval
(E4T) 21 December 2020 of qualification
as a Director on
5 January 2018
6  GaoLiang Female 48 Non-executive Director ~ From 31 January 2018 to 69 Obtained approval
(&E) 21 December 2020 of qualification
as a Director on
31 January 2018
7 ZhoulJianjun  Female 49 Independent non- From 22 December 2017 150 -
(A% executive Director to 21 December 2020
8  Lam SekKong Male 59 Independent non- From 22 December 2017 150 -
(W55 executive Director to 21 December 2020
9 LvWendong Male 51 Independent non- From b January 2018 to 150 Obtained
(& 38R executive Director 21 December 2020 approval of

HENGTOU SECURITIES

qualification as
an independent
Director on 5
January 2018



(m

(1)

Supervisors
Total remuneration
(before tax) received
from the Company
during the
No. Name Gender Age  Positions Term of office Reporting Period Remarks
(RMB in thousand)
1 Guo Liwen Male 58 Chairman of Supervisory ~ From 22 December 2017 79 -
Elby Committee to 21 December 2020
2 Peilinging  Female 35  Shareholder From 22 December 2017 4
(ERE) representative to 21 December 2020
Supervisor
3 Wang Hui Male 45  Employee representative From 22 December 2017 50 -
(2) Supervisor to 21 December 2020

Senior Management

Total remuneration
(before tax) received

from the Company
during the
No. Name Gender Age  Positions Term of office Reporting Period Remarks
(RMB in thousand)
1 Niu Zhuang Male 46 President From 22 December 2017 1525 -
(51t) to 21 December 2020
2 Zhang Wei Male 48 Vice president, secretary From 22 December 2017 926 -
(RfE) of the Board to 21 December 2020
3 Fulixin Female 52 Vice president From 22 December 2017 804 -
(S8 to 21 December 2020
4 Wu Lihui Female 47 Vice president From 22 December 2017 926 -
(HER) to 21 December 2020
5  Zhao Peiwu Male 54 Vice president From 22 December 2017 192 -
(5 to 21 December 2020
6  Huang Weiguo Male 41 Vice president From 22 December 2017 1,569 -
(ERE) to 21 December 2020
7 LiuQuansheng Male 43 Vice president From 22 December 2017 805 -
2128 to 21 December 2020
8  PanglJiemin  Male 47 Chief compliance officer  From 2 November 2017 - -
(ENR) (acting) to present
9  YuFang Female 38 Chief risk officer From 22 December 2017 805 -
(F5) to 21 December 2020
10 Yang Shufei ~ Female 45 Chief financial officer From 22 December 2017 806 -
(AR to 21 December 2020
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APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPANIES AND OTHER

COMPANIES

() Appointment in Shareholders’ Companies

Position in the

Position in
shareholders’

No. Name Company Employing unit company Term of office
1 Zhang Tao Non-executive Baotou Huazi Industry Chairman of May 2008 to
(3RE) Director Co., Ltd. (BSEZEEES  supervisory present

2 Sun Chao
(1R 718)

3 Dong Hong
(EBA4D)

4 Gao Liang
(=ER)

HENGTOU SECURITIES

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

i B BRAR)

Beijing Qingyun
Intercontinental
Technology Co., Ltd.
JERBEEMERIRBR
~al)

Dalian Ben Hao Cheng
Industrial Co., Ltd. (X
BAEREEBRAR)

Beijing Finance Street
Investment (Group)
Co., Ltd. (Jtr&miR
B(&EE) AR QA

Beijing Huarong
Infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd.
(JERERMEMRBIRE
BREERA)

Beijing Finance Street
Investment (Group)
Co., Ltd. (b Re&®MER
B(&EBE)BRRR)

committee
Chairman of

the board

and general

manager

Chairman of
the board
and general
manager

Chief legal
advisor

Director

Director

December 2013
to present

August 2013 to
present

March 2015 to
present

November 2016
to present

December 2013
to present



Position in the

Position in

shareholders’

No. Name Company Employing unit company Term of office
5 Pei Jingjing Shareholder Beijing Huijin Jiaye Executive February 2013
(&R representative  Investment Co., Ltd. director to present
Supervisor (tRESZF¥EEABR  and general
~A)) manager
Shanghai Xishida Executive April 2012 to
Electronics Co., Ltd. director present
(LBEMEBEFHMA  and general
RRA) manager
(1) Appointment in other Units
Position in Position in
No. Name the Company Employing unit other units Term of office
1 Pang Jiemin  Chairman of the Inner Mongolia Securities President April 2016 to
(FEMTR) Board and & Futures Association present
executive in China (FBIAS & &
Director HFHEHS)
2 Zhou Jianjun Independent Beijing Zhongchuan Chief April 2009 to
(A=) non-executive  Xinju Accounting Firm accountant May 2018
Director Company Limited (1t
h)l| &R EBA
BREERA)
Beijing Xinlian Renhe Finance June 2018 to
Investment Co., Ltd (It manager present
REBCAREERA
Al)
3 Lam Sek Independent Messrs. S.K. Lam, Alfred Partner June 1996 to
Kong non-executive  Chan & Co. (#8535 present
(PR$5 ) Director PR BR B ERMAT)
APT Satellite Holdings Independent July 2007 to
Limited (Za K BTEIER non- present
BRAT) executive
director
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Position in Position in

No. Name the Company Employing unit other units Term of office
4 Lv Wendong Independent Business School Professor December 2009
(m= 3UR) non-executive  of University of to present
Director International Business

and Economics (¥14ME

BEHRNPHEER)

Scientic Decision Making President January 2011 to
Magazine ((EIERE) present
FETSAL)

Chinese Social and Vice-chairman December 2014
Economic Systems to present

Analysis Research
Association (T B &
EERB DTS

b Gao Liang Non-executive Finance Street Holdings  Chairman January 2017 to
(=#R) Director Co., Ltd. (& RUAETERR IR present
MAERLRE)
China Securities Vice-chairman  February 2017
Pyrophosphate Copper to present

Fund Management Co.
Ltd (FBERESERE

BRAF)

China Association for Deputy April 2017 to
Public Companies chairman present
(FE ETARBE)
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

n

Directors

Mr. Pang Jiemin (EE/1'R), aged 47, has been a Director and the chairman of the Board and legal
representative since December 2010. Before joining our Group, Mr. Pang served in Beijing Huarong
Comprehensive Investment Company (Jt REGERE R E A F]) as a deputy general manager from
May 2010 to December 2010. Mr. Pang graduated from Hebei University of Economics and
Business (AL 48 & K2 formerly known as Hebei College of Finance and Economics (] it B 4% £2f57))
in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree of finance in July 1993. He then
obtained a master’s degree of economics from Central Institute of Finance and Banking (F R Ef &
BbE2ET now known as Central University of Finance and Economics (R B4 AE)) in Beijing, the
PRC in March 1996. Mr. Pang obtained a doctor’'s degree of economics in Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (AR B8 A2 in Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC in January 2005.
From December 2007 to May 2008, Mr. Pang was a visiting post-doctor researcher at the ICMA
Centre of University of Reading in the United Kingdom. Mr. Pang was granted the qualification
as economist (BRI E ) by Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People's
Republic of China (FZEARLMBEIA S ERMAZIRESS) in November 1997. He also passed the
21st qualification test for senior management of securities institutions organized by the Securities
Association of China in December 2010.

Mr. Wu Yigang (Z:ER), aged 59, has been a Director and the vice chairman of our Board since
October 2008 and June 2015, respectively. Mr. Wu is currently responsible for formulating our
corporate and business strategies and making major corporate and operational decisions and
responsible for the corporate governance matters. Mr. Wu served as the president of the Company
from April 2003 to June 2015. Mr. Wu completed a college course in radio fax and graduated
from Inner Mongolia University (W5 & A2 in Hohhot, Inner Mongolia, the PRC in July 1987. He
completed an undergraduate course in economics and management and graduated from Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region Party Committee Party School (FEAAFZFHEAREEZEEER) in
Hohhot, Inner Mongolia, the PRC in January 1997. Mr. Wu then completed a postgraduate course in
market economy and graduated from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (&
e R FE£RR) in Beijing, the PRC in November 1998.

Mr. Zhang Tao (55)&), aged 40, has been a Director since November 2008. Concurrently, he
has also been assuming the position of chairman of the board of supervisors in Baotou Huazi (a
substantial shareholder of our Company) since May 2008. Before joining our Group, he served in
Baotou Huazi as a director, in charge of investment and financing from September 2001 to April
2008. Mr. Zhang graduated from The Open University of China (FFREFEER AZ) in Beijing, the
PRC in May 2005, majoring in law.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Mr. Sun Chao (&), aged 35, has been a Director since January 2015. He has concurrently been
acting as the president and general manager of Dalian Ben Hao Cheng Industrial Co., Ltd. (K&K
ENE X EBRAT]) and the president and general manager of Qingyun Intercontinental in charge of
designing, negotiating and managing the investment project since August 2013 and December 2013,
respectively. Before joining our Group, he served as an assistant to general manager in charge of
industry research and a deputy general manager in charge of direct project investment management
in Dalian Ben Hao Cheng Industrial Co., Ltd. (KEAEKEZE B R AF]) from July 2008 to September
2010 and from September 2011 to August 2013, respectively. He also worked as a deputy general
manager in charge of project investment management in Qingyun Intercontinental from September
2012 to December 2013. Mr. Sun graduated from East China Normal University (ZERAT& KE)
in Shanghai, the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in software engineering in July 2008. He
obtained a master’s degree of arts majoring in international financial analysis from University of
Newcastle upon Tyne in Newcastle, the United Kingdom in September 2011.

Ms. Dong Hong (£41), aged 49, has been a Director since January 2018. Ms. Dong successively
served as an assistant judge and judge at the economic tribunal of Fengtai District People's Court
of Beijing Municipality (At RTT 2 & & ARERE) from August 1989 to May 2000. She was then
successively served as a judge of the commercial tribunal and a deputy chief judge and a chief judge
of Nanmofang People’s Tribunal (B E&E ARJERE) at Chaoyang District People’s Court of Beijing
Municipality (it =T EE5 R A RERT) from May 2000 to March 2015. She has been the general
counsel in Finance Street Investment since March 2015. Ms. Dong graduated from Beijing College
of Politics and Law (1t RBUEBE 2 EF%) formerly known as Beijing School of Justice (1t = B/ AE4)
in Beijing, the PRC with a specialized secondary diploma majoring in law in July 1989; from Peking
University (1t 5X KX £) in Beijing, the PRC with a college’s diploma majoring in law in December 1991;
from Correspondence Institute of Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C (Fh #rh R E R K
#EP7) in Beijing, the PRC with a bachelor diploma in politics and laws in December 1997 and from
Peking University (1t X&) in Beijing, the PRC with a degree of Bachelor of Laws in January 2004.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Ms. Gao Liang (5#2), aged 48, has been a Director since January 2018. Ms. Gao served as a
teacher of The Third People’s Police School of Beijing (It R = ARZERER) from July 1993 to
July 1994. Ms. Gao successively served as an employee, the manager and the assistant to general
manager of Beijing Finance Street Property Management Co., Ltd. (It RE&REWEETIEARET
2 8]) from July 1994 to December 1995, and the deputy general manager of Jinxiao Real Estate
Advisory Co., Ltd. (£EEEMEZABRAR]) from January 1996 to March 1998. Ms. Gao served as
the manager of Finance Street Construction & Development Co., Ltd. (@ RIEEZRABERSTEL
A]) from March 1998 to October 1999, the deputy general manager and deputy managing director
of Finance Street Holdings Co., Ltd. (2 BEHERRKRMD AR A E]) from October 1999 to June 2011.
Ms. Gao serves as the deputy general manager of Finance Street Investment from July 2011 to July
2014, and has been a director of the company since December 2013. Furthermore, Ms. Gao served as
the chairman and general manager of Beijing Finance Street Investment and Management Co., Ltd
(EREREREEEAR AR from December 2011 to July 2014 and the deputy managing director
of Beijing Finance Street Capital Management Centre (It RE& A E ANEZ L)) from March 2012
to July 2014. Ms. Gao is a director of Finance Street Holdings Co., Ltd. (& BEETHERR A% 1D B R A 8))
since April 2013, and served as the general manager of Finance Street Holdings Co., Ltd. (& @gh#1ZE
F& IS B BR A 7)) from August 2014 to January 2017, and served as the president of Finance Street
Holdings Co., Ltd. (& @& D BBR A R]) since January 2017. Ms. Gao obtained the bachelor's
degree in laws from China University of Political Science and Law (FFEIBUEAZ) in July 1993,
graduated from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Science (7 Bt &Rl Zp 504
BE) in July 1998, majored in business management, and obtained an executive master of business
administration degree from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (F&RHRAZ) in
November 2007.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Ms. Zhou Jianjun (F#), aged 49, has been an independent Director since April 2015. Ms.
Zhou graduated from Northwest Agriculture University (FaitZ2 K2) (now known as Northwest
A&F University (Fdb 2MEHLKE)) in Shaanxi, the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in
soil and plant nutriology in July 1992. Ms. Zhou graduated from Lanzhou University of Finance
and Economics (BN E2T) in Lanzhou, Gansu Province, the PRC in June 1999 and majored in
accounting. Ms. Zhou was qualified as China's certified tax agent and certified public accountant
in November 2002 and March 2004, respectively. Ms. Zhou worked in Lanzhou Chemical Industry
Company (BEM{LE T2 A 5], which was merged by absorption by China National Petroleum Lanzhou
Petrochemical Corporation (A R M AM{L T /AF]) as an accountant and a chief accountant from
July 1992 to November 2001. She served as an auditor in Gansu Wulian United Accounting Firm
(BB A A &5HEIEHPT) (now known as Gansu branch of Ruihua Accounting Firm (fZEe:t
RIS (R T BEE) B D FT) from November 2001 to September 2004. Then she worked in
Ningbo Kexin Accounting Firm (B KEHE & 5tENEHFT AR 2 5) as a project auditing manager from
September 2004 to November 2006. She also worked as a finance manager in Kongchuang (Beijing)
Technology Company Limited (#Z8]AtF)BHEHB R A F]), from November 2006 to April 2009. Ms.
Zhou was a chief accountant in Beijing Zhongchuan Xinju Accounting Firm Company Limited (43
N EZEBEAMEBARET AR from April 2009 to May 2018 and has been serving as the finance
manager of Beijing Xinlian Renhe Investment Co., Ltd (1t R{EBH=FIE B A 7)) since June 2018.

Dr. Lam Sek Kong (#$5¢), aged 59, has been an independent Director since April 2015.
Concurrently, Dr. Lam has been an independent non-executive director of APT Satellite Holdings
Limited (Ge AETEIENRBR/A 7)) (the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1045) since July 2007, in which he also served as the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee.
Dr. Lam is a partner of Messrs. S.K. Lam, Alfred Chan & Co. He has been practicing law in Hong
Kong since 1987. Dr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Society of Notary Public, a member of
the China Appointed Attesting Officers Association in Hong Kong and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (UK). Dr. Lam is also admitted as barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court
of Australian Capital Territory, legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales and
barrister in federal court of Australia. Dr. Lam obtained a bachelor's degree and a master’'s degree
of laws from University of Hong Kong, in Hong Kong, in November 1984 and November 1991,
respectively. Dr. Lam also obtained a master's degree in economic law from Peking University (1t
KE), in Beijing, the PRC in June 2004 and a Ph. D. degree in civil and commercial law from Tsinghua
University (5% X&), in Beijing, the PRC in January 2007.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

(m

Mr. Lv Wendong (5 30#8), aged 51, has been an independent Director since January 2018. Mr.
Lv worked in Taiyuan Science and Technology Committee (KR RIZFMTZE B €) as a clerk from
July 1990 to August 2000. He acted as a clerk of Intellectual Property Affairs Center of Science
and Technology Department (BHZ AN E#E F 540 from August 2000 to September 2001. He
was a professor of School of Insurance and Economics of University of International Business and
Economics ($19MEEE 5 AZ) from May 2006 to November 2009, and he has been the professor
of Business School of University of International Business and Economics (¥14MSEE 5 A£2) since
December 2009. Mr. Lv graduated from Shanxi University (LIFEAXE%) with a bachelor degree in
economics in August 1990; graduated from Renmin University of China (B A R KEZ) with a master
degree in business administration in July 1999; graduated from School of Government, Peking
University (It R RKEBHFEEERT) in June 2004 with a juris doctor degree and graduated from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University (It R KE ¢ FEEIBERT) with a postdoctoral
certificate in business administration in June 2006.

Supervisors

Mr. Guo Liwen (36/1X), aged 58, has been a Supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee since December 2010. Mr. Guo joined the Company in June 1999 and served as the
general manager of coordination development department from June 1999 to October 2008. Mr.
Guo served as a director of the Company from October 2008 to November 2011. Mr. Guo graduated
from a graduate course of philosophy from Inner Mongolia University (A5 & A2 in Hohhot, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC in July 1984.

Ms. Pei Jingjing (388 &), aged 35, has been a Supervisor since January 2015. She has also been
assuming positions of general manager and executive director both in Shanghai Xishida Electronics
Ltd. (B BEMEZ TRITAR A ]) and Huijin Jiaye since April 2012 and February 2013, respectively.
Ms. Pei graduated from Beihang University (1t RAZ A AE) in Beijing, the PRC with a bachelor's
degree majoring in economics in July 2007. Ms. Pei is deemed to be interested in 206,182,000
Domestic Shares held by Huijin Jiaye in the Company immediately after the completion of the Global
Offering.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

(1)

Mr. Wanghui (£ %), aged 45, has been an employee representative Supervisor since September
2012, a deputy manager of office of the Board from July 2009 to January 2017 and manager of
office of the Board since January 2017. Concurrently, he has also been a supervisor of Hengtai
Changcai, Hengtai Pioneer, Hengtai Futures, Shanghai Yingwo Investment Management Co, Ltd.
(EERKIZREEIEBAMR AT, Beijing Hengtai Hongze Investment Co., Ltd. (dt RIEFLBIREBFR A
Al), Shanghai Hongdian Investment Management Co., Ltd. (/83 EEE AR A ) and Inner
Mongolia Hengtai Shengda Investment Management Co., Ltd. (R HERHKEREEIRAR AR
since October 2012, January 2013, June 2013, July 2013, April 2015, May 2015 and November
2015, respectively. Before joining the Group, Mr. Wang served successively as a deputy chief
of staff and deputy director of office of the board in Beijing Huarong Comprehensive Investment
Company (It RERA AR E AT from October 2005 to July 2009. Mr. Wang graduated from
East China University of Metallurgy ((EE/E& 2 T) in Ma'anshan, An'hui Province, the PRC with
a bachelor’'s degree majoring in ferrous metallurgy in July 1995. He obtained a master's degree
majoring in business administration from Beijing Jiaotong University (3t Xz AE) in Beijing, the
PRC in May 2004.

Senior Management

Mr. Niu Zhuang (47f), aged 46, has been the president of the Company since June 2015 and is
currently mainly responsible for formulating the Company’s corporate and business strategies and
making major corporate and operational decisions, being fully responsible for the Company’s overall
operation and management and execution of the Board resolutions. Mr. Niu served as the chief
financial officer and an executive vice president of the Company from February 2004 to September
2012 and from September 2012 to June 2015, respectively. Concurrently, Mr. Niu also has served
as the chairman of the board and the legal representative of Inner Mongolia Hengtai Shengda
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (AEXHERBEREEIREMR A F]) and an executive director
and the legal representative of Shanghai Yingwo Investment Management Co, Ltd. (E/8ZKEE
BEIE AR AT]) from November 2015 and September 2016, respectively. Mr. Niu has served as an
executive director and the legal representative of Hengtai Capital from December 2015, and the
general manager thereof since January 2017. Mr. Niu graduated from Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology (1t RARFEEBT) in Beijing, the PRC with a bachelor's degree majoring in industrial
management engineering in July 1993. He obtained a master’'s degree majoring in accounting from
Renmin University of China (FBI A K KXE) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2005.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Wei (5=1&), aged 48, has been a vice president, the secretary of the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company since September 2008, November 2011 and March 2015,
respectively. He is currently in charge of the president office and the Board office, management of
the operation of Hengtai Changcai. Concurrently, Mr. Zhang has been a director in Hengtai Futures
and the legal representative, executive director and general manager in Hengtai Changcai since
December 2009 and June 2014, respectively. Mr. Zhang served as the president assistant and a
vice president of the Company from August 2002 to November 2006 and from November 2006 to
September 2008, respectively. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhang served as a manager of general
management department in China National Heavy Duty Truck Finance Co., Ltd (FBE 585 A R
2 8]) from July 1994 to May 1999. Mr. Zhang worked in China National Heavy Duty Truck Group
Jinan Truck Co., Ltd. (FEI&EF&E EE<E QA as a secretary of the Communist Youth League
from May 1999 to August 2002. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shandong University (L5 X&) in Ji'nan,
Shandong Province, the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in public finance in July 1994.

Ms. Yu Fang (T75), aged 38, has been the chief risk officer of the Company since April 2014. She is
currently in charge of our risk management department and audit department and risk management
and internal audit. Concurrently, Ms. Yu also has been a director of New China Fund since August
2015. Ms. Yu was the chief compliance officer of the Company from January 2013 to November
2017. Before joining the Group, Ms. Yu served in New Times Securities Co. Ltd. (¥R ESBRE
f£/2 7)) as the general manager assistant and a vice president, in charge of compliance management
department, audit department and legal management department from June 2008 to June 2012 and
from June 2012 to December 2012, respectively. Ms. Yu graduated from Hunan University (87 AX£3)
in Changsha, Hunan Province, the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in law in June 2003.

Ms. Fu Lixin (f32%7), aged 52, has been a vice president of the Company since May 2008. She is
currently responsible for the operation of Hengtai Futures. She has also been assuming positions of
the chairman of the board and legal representative of Hengtai Futures as well as executive director
and legal representative of Hengtai Yingwo Asset Management Co. Ltd. ([EZREAEEESIEGR A7)
since December 2009 and February 2016, respectively. Ms. Fu served as a president assistant of
the Company, in charge of brokerage business department, research and e-commerce from October
2003 to May 2008. Before joining the Group, Ms. Fu worked in Fuyou Securities Brokers Co., Ltd.
(BRFBEHELABREMLAR]) successively as a manager and a vice president from April 1993 to
October 2003. Ms. Fu graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics (KJZEBf 4K E2,
formerly known as Tianjin College of Finance and Economics (K281 4 E7)) in Tianjin, the PRC with
a bachelor’'s degree majoring in statistics in July 1988. She obtained a master’'s degree majoring in
politics and economics from Harbin Institute of Technology (FM&EE/E T 2 KX£2%) in Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC in March 1994.
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Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Ms. Wu Lihui (ELE %), aged 47, has been a vice president of the Company since July 2012. She
is currently responsible for the financial market department and supervision of the management of
Hengtai Pioneer. Concurrently, Ms. Wu has been assuming positions of an executive director, the
legal representative and the general manager in Hengtai Pioneer since January 2013, respectively.
Ms. Wu served successively as a director of office of the Board and the assistant to the chairman
of the Board of the Company from November 2009 to July 2012 and as an executive director and
the legal representative of Beijing Hengtai Hongze Investment Co., Ltd. (At REFRLZBEREABR D
&]) from April 2015 to January 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Wu worked in Guantao Law Firm
(BREE7ERDEEFT) in Beijing as a lawyer and a partner from February 2000 to December 2007. Then
she assumed the position of a deputy general manager in Finance Street Xihuan Properties from
January 2008 to October 2009. Ms. Wu graduated from China University of Mining and Technology
(FREREZE KE) in Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC with a bachelor's degree majoring in material
management project in July 1993 and obtained a master’'s degree majoring in civil law from
Heilongjiang University (28I X£) in Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Zhao Peiwu (55 %), aged 54, has been a vice president of the Company since September
2009. He is currently responsible for the management of the brokerage business department and
supervision of the operation of the Changchun branch office, and all of the securities branches
as well as the asset custody department and institutional investment consultant department. Mr.
Zhao consecutively served as a deputy director of operating department of the Company from
October 1988 to September 1989, the general manager of the sales department from April 1993 to
April 2000, a director of president office from April 2000 to January 2004, a manager of brokerage
department from January 2004 to March 2008 and an assistant to the president of the Company
from March 2008 to September 2009, respectively. Mr. Zhao also served in Hengtai Changcai as
the general manager from September 2009 to July 2011 and from July 2013 to June 2014. He also
acted as an executive director and the legal representative for Hengtai Changcai from July 2011
to June 2014. Mr. Zhao finished his three-year financial courses in Shanxi Institute of Finance and
Economics (BRPEEF 4 E3B%) (now known as Schools of Economics and Finance of Xi'an Jiaotong
University (FAZ X BAEKEESFZPT)) in Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, the PRC in July 1994. Mr.
Zhao graduated from The Open University of China (R EEERKXEZ) in Beijing, the PRC with a
bachelor's degree (part-time) majoring in finance in December 2012.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Section 9 Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees (Continued)

Mr. Huang Weiguo (=/E[), aged 41, has been a vice president of the Company since December
2015. He is currently responsible for the management of Shanghai Hongdian Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (E/&RA IR EE IR B R A F]), and he served as an executive director and legal
representative of Shanghai Hongdian Investment Management Co. Ltd. since April 2015. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked in the head office of investment banking of Guosen Securities
Co., Ltd. (BEEHMHAEBRARD, the head office of investment banking of Industrial Securities Co.,
Ltd. (EEFHIMDBR AT and the head office of investment banking of Pacific Securities Co.,
Ltd. (K FZBERMDAMR AT from December 2000 to August 2006, August 2006 to March 2007
and March 2007 to July 2010, respectively. He served as the deputy general manager and the
secretary to the board of Shanghai Kanda Biotechnology Co., Ltd. ( E8ESE WM AR A7)
from July 2010 to May 2012 and as the deputy general manager and the secretary to the board of
Wouxi Lihu Corporation Limited (&1 BRI AR Q) from May 2012 to October 2014.
Then he served as the president of Jinduo (Shanghai) Asset Management Co., Ltd. (B % (/&) &E
EEAMR /AT from October 2014 to April 2015. Mr. Huang graduated from the School of Finance
of Central University of Finance and Economics (R REf4E K 2) with a bachelor's degree majoring
in international finance in June 1998. Mr. Huang graduated from finance department of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/8R4 RE) with a master's degree majoring in currency
banking in July 2003.

Mr. Liu Quansheng (2|2 %), aged 43, has been a vice president of the Company since 31 May
2016. He heads our internet finance department and institutional trading department. Mr. Liu served
as an assistant in the computer department of Baotou Gangtie Street Securities Branch (£ 38 il & X
B AL %E6) and manager of the securities service department of the Company from July 1999 to
February 2003 and from February 2003 to March 2004, respectively. Mr. Liu served as the assistant
to general manager of brokerage business department from March 2004 to March 2006, assistant
to general manager of Baotou Gangtie Street Securities Branch from March 2006 to September
2007, general manager of Linhe District Shengli North Road Securities Branch(B& Al 5 R4t B8 & % &8)
from September 2007 to September 2009, general manager of brokerage business management
head office and assistant to president of the Company from September 2009 to December 2011 and
from December 2011 to May 2016, respectively, and executive Director and legal representative
of Beijing Hengtai Puhui Information Service Co., Ltd. (It RIEER LR BEREER AT from April
2015 to June 2017. Mr. Liu graduated from Inner Mongolia University (K5 & A£2) with a bachelor's

degree, majoring in computational mathematics and application software in July 1999.
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Ms. Yang Shufei (15/57), aged 45, has been the chief financial officer of the Company since 11
October 2016. Ms. Yang has concurrently served as the chairman of the supervisor committee
of New China Fund and a supervisor of Hengtai Capital since February 2017 and October 2017,
respectively. Before joining the Group, Ms. Yang served as a staff member of the management
department and fund department of Aerospace Trust Investment Co., Ltd. (M AEEIREBRE
£/27]) from July 1995 to September 2001. After then, Ms. Yang worked in CASIC Finance Co.,
Ltd. (AR T AR EL 2 R]) and served as a staff member of the investment department from
October 2001 to September 2002, the manager of the clearing department from October 2002 to
March 2005, the manager of the risk management department from April 2005 to June 2008 and
chief accountant, general counsel, board secretary and vice president consecutively during the
period from July 2008 to November 2015. From November 2015 to June 2016, Ms. Yang served
as the chief financial officer of Huahao Xinlian (Beijing) Kemao Co., Ltd. (FE&EH (LR RIZ AR
A7]). Ms. Yang graduated from Renmin University of China (FR B A R X2 with a bachelor degree
in international finance in July 1995 and obtained a master degree in economics from Peking
University (1t 52 K2} in November 2005 and an executive master degree of business administration
from Tsinghua University (BZAZ) in July 2010.

Changes in Directors

1. On 5 January 2018, the Inner Mongolia Securities Regulatory Bureau of CSRC issued the
Approval on Qualification of Dong Hong as a Director of Securities Company (Nei Zheng Jian
Xu Ke [2018] No. 1) KEARBALESF N REFEBERMNME) (REEFFAI[2018]158)), pursuant
to which, Ms. Dong Hong's qualification as a director of securities company was approved.
Thus, the appointment of Ms. Dong Hong as a non-executive Director of the fourth session of

the Board of Directors has become effective from 5 January 2018.

2. On 5 January 2018, the Inner Mongolia Securities Regulatory Bureau of the CSRC issued the
Approval on Qualification of Lv Wendong as an Independent Director of Securities Company

(Nei Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2018] No. 2) (R ZEB XREFESF AR BT ESERERNIE) (K
BEEFFAI[2018]25%)), pursuant to which, Mr. Lv Wendong's qualification as an independent
director of securities company was approved. Thus, the appointment of Mr. Lv Wendong as
an independent non-executive Director of the fourth session of the Board of Directors has

become effective from 5 January 2018.
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3. On 31 January 2018, the Inner Mongolia Securities Regulatory Bureau of the CSRC issued
the Approval on Qualification of Gao Liang as a Director of Securities Company (Nei Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2018] No. 4) KR SRESHF R AIEEEWEBRHOILE) (NFEEFTAI[2018]45%)),
pursuant to which, Ms. Gao Liang's qualification as a director of securities company has been
approved. Thus, the appointment of Ms. Gao Liang as a non-executive Director of the fourth
session of the Board of Directors has become effective from 31 January 2018.

4. The biographical details of the above Directors were disclosed in the circular dated 6

November 2017 and the supplemental circular dated 7 December 2017, respectively.

Changes in Supervisors

None in the Reporting Period.

Changes in Senior Management

None in the Reporting Period.

Remuneration System and Decision-making Procedures of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

The remuneration of the Directors shall be proposed by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee for consideration and approval by the Board, then submitted to general meeting for
approval; the remuneration of the Supervisors shall be reviewed and approved by the general
meeting; and the remuneration of the senior management of the Company shall be proposed by the

Remuneration and Nomination Committee to the Board for approval.

Basis for Determining the Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Directors and Supervisors who have not entered into any employment contracts with the Company
are entitled to allowances, and those who have entered into employment contracts with the
Company shall obtain remuneration in accordance with the requirement of the Company.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company shall be proposed by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee in accordance with the remuneration and assessment
system with reference to operating results, responsibilities and the comparable level of the industry

and market for consideration and approval by the Board.
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Payment of more than 40% of annual performance-based remuneration for full-time Directors,
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee and senior management of the Company shall be deferred
for a period of at least three years. The deferred payment of remuneration shall be divided
equally. The specific proportion of deferred payment and the period of deferred payment shall be
reviewed and determined by the Board. The Board will formulate and implement the specific plan
for deferred payment of annual performance-based remuneration of business managers according
to the requirements of these measures on an annual basis. The Company does not pay non-cash

compensation.

Changes in Shareholdings of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

During the Reporting Period, save as Ms. Pei Jingjing (& &), none of the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company held any shares, share options or restricted shares of the

Company.
Remuneration Payment of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

For remuneration payment of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management, please refer to
“l. Basic Information about Incumbent Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management and those
leaving office during the Reporting Period” in this section. Total remuneration for the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company in 2018 is RMB13,979 thousand. The
remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors is set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements of this report.

Remuneration of the five highest paid individuals of the Company is set out in Note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements of this report.
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() " Number and Composition of Employees

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had 2,064 employees in total, including 1,559

employed by the Company and 505 employed by its subsidiaries, the structure of which is as below:

The Group The Company

Age Number Percentage Number Percentage
30 or below 605 29.31% 435 27.90%
31-40 877 42.49% 644 41.31%
41 or above 582 28.20% 480 30.79%
Total 2,064 100.00% 1,659 100.00%
Specialty Structure Number Percentage Number Percentage
Brokerage 1,087 52.66% 1,039 66.65%
Asset management 120 5.81% 32 2.05%
Proprietary trading 27 1.31% 27 1.73%
Investment banking 156 7.56% 55 3.53%
Compliance, risk control and

audit 76 3.68% 47 3.01%
Research 33 1.60% 3 0.19%
Planning and accounting 40 1.94% 20 1.28%
Information technology 89 4.31% 68 4.36%
Transaction settlement 75 3.63% 27 1.73%
Administration 71 3.44% 15 0.96%
Other business 290 14.05% 226 14.50%
Total 2,064 100.00% 1,659 100.00%
Educational background Number Percentage Number Percentage
Postgraduate or above 441 21.37% 206 13.21%
College graduate 1,384 67.05% 1,153 73.96%
Junior college graduate or

below 239 11.58% 200 12.83%
Total 2,064 100.00% 1,659 100.00%
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Remuneration of Employees

The remuneration of employees comprises of basic wage, allowances, benefits and others. The
Company has made contributions to, among others, social insurance and housing provident fund
on behalf of its employees in accordance with relevant requirements of the PRC. The Company
has strictly complied with the Labor Law of the PRC, Labor Contract Law of the PRC and other
applicable laws and regulations, and have a sound human resources management system and
process in place to regulate its employment procedures, so as to effectively protect the rights and
interests of the employees.

Staff Training Plans

The Company highly values staff training. At the beginning of the year, the Company made surveys
and analysis in respect of staff training by issuing Training Questionnaire for 2018 and, based on
the information so collected, prepared the 2018 Training Plan of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd through

summarization, statistics and analysis.

During the Reporting Period, the Company organized large-scale training activities including 1
session of training for development of back-ups for brokerage business, 1 session of special training
on information technology and 1 session of training for investor educational business. In addition,
the Company also organized online training for new recruits and developed 4 online training courses.

241 employees have participated in the online training.

According to the requirements of the Securities Association of China, the Company has made
applications for follow-up trainings on behalf of all current in-house practitioners who have
qualification certificates to engage in securities business, funds or futures intermediary business.
In addition, the Company has made applications on behalf of its senior management and all
departments for participating in 62 training sessions organized by the Securities Association of
China, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and other external training institutions, covering 78 trainees.
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Vil. INFORMATION ABOUT CUSTOMERS SOLICITATION AND CUSTOMER
SERVICES OF COMMISSIONS BROKERS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the securities branches of the Company had 1,204 brokers, who
were directly managed by the wealth management center of the securities branches. The securities
practitioner qualifications of the brokers were under centralized management of the human resources
department of the Company. Upon signing the entrustment contracts, the brokers will receive pre-job
training provided by relevant securities branches and follow-up training provided by the Company. They will
not be allowed to carry out business until obtaining securities practitioner qualifications. The Company's
management of its in-house brokers has complied with the relevant laws, regulations of the PRC and
the wealth management system of the Company. Brokers could introduce the general information of
the Company and the securities market; the basic information of securities investment, and business
processes such as account opening, trading, fund deposit and withdrawal; laws and regulations relating
to securities trading, relevant provisions of the CSRC, self-regulatory rules and relevant regulations of the
Company to the customers; and deliver a research report to the customers provided by the Company and
information related to securities investments.
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Basic Information on Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company operated in strict compliance with requirements of laws,
regulations and regulatory documents of the PRC and jurisdictions where the Company’s shares are
listed, including the Company Law of the PRC, the Securities Law of the PRC, the Regulations on
the Supervision and Administration of Securities Companies, the Corporate Governance Rules for
Securities Companies and the Corporate Governance Code, to continuously improve the corporate
governance level. The Company has further optimised its rules and systems and constantly

improved its corporate governance structure.

During the Reporting Period, the general meetings, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Committee and the management of the Company have performed their fiduciary duties according
to the relevant requirements, ensuring the standard operation of the Company. The convocation,
voting and decision-making procedures of general meetings of the Company and meetings of the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee were legal and valid. The corporate governance

practices of the Company were in full compliance with the relevant requirements.

Corporate Governance Policies and the Board’s Responsibilities on Corporate
Governance

The Company strictly complied with the Corporate Governance Code and all applicable provisions
under the Corporate Governance Code, and satisfied substantially all of the recommended best
practices under the Corporate Governance Code. In respect of the corporate governance, the

responsibilities of the Board shall include:
1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and

senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable

to employees and directors; and

5 to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board had performed the aforementioned responsibilities and

reviewed the Corporate Governance Report contained in this report prior to the publication of this
report, and is of the view that the content of this section is in line with the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

n

(m

Rights of General Meetings and Shareholders

The Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure for General Meetings have stipulated the
rights and obligations of the shareholders, the authority of general meetings, and the convocation,
voting and decision-making of general meetings. The general meeting is the supreme authority of
the Company.

General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened 1 general meeting in total, the details of which
are set out as follows:

1. On 31 May 2018, the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company was held, at which the
resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and approved: the Report
of the Board of Directors for the year 2017, the Report of the Supervisory Committee for
the year 2017, the Annual Report of the Company for the year 2017, the Profit Distribution
Plan for the year 2017, the Final Accounts Report for the year 2017, the Re-appointment of
Domestic Auditor for the year 2018, and the Re-appointment of International Auditor for the
year 2018. The Work Report of Independent Directors for the year 2017 was heard at the
meeting.
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Duties of the Board and the Management

Duties of the Board

The rights and duties of the Board are set out in the Articles of Association. The main duties of
the Board include convening general meeting and reporting to the general meeting; implementing
resolutions of general meeting; determining the Company’s business plans and investment plans;
formulating the annual financial budgets and final accounting plans of the Company; formulating the
profit distribution plan and loss makeup plan of the Company; formulating proposals for the Company
in respect of increase or reduction of the registered capital, issue of bonds or other securities and
the listing thereof; formulating plans for material acquisitions, purchase of shares of the Company
or merger, division, dissolution or transformation of the Company; determining within the authority
granted by the general meeting such matters as external investment, acquisition and disposal of
assets, asset mortgage, entrusted wealth management, connected transactions and other matters;
determining the establishment of internal management organizations of the Company; appointing
or dismissing the Company's president, secretary to the Board, chief compliance officer, chief risk
officer; appointing or dismissing the Company’s senior management including vice president(s),
and chief financial officer in accordance with the nominations by the president, and determining
their remunerations and rewards and penalties; formulating the basic management system of the
Company, etc..

Duties of the management

The main duties of the management include organising and implementing the Board’s resolutions
and to report to the Board; organising and implementing the annual operation plan and investment
plan of the Company; preparing plans for the establishment of the Company’s internal management
organizations; developing the Company's basic management system and specific rules; deciding to
appoint or remove executives other than those appointed or removed by the Board; and performing
such other duties and powers as authorised by the Board.

Composition of the Board

Directors shall be elected or replaced at general meetings. A Director shall serve a term of three
years from the date of the resolution passed at general meeting, and may seek re-election upon
expiry of the said term. Currently, the Board consists of nine Directors, including two executive
Directors (Mr. Pang Jiemin (/T &) (Chairman) and Mr. Wu Yigang (:2:ERI) (Vice Chairman)), four
non-executive Directors (Mr. Zhang Tao (3%/5), Mr. Sun Chao (i), Ms. Dong Hong (E4L) and Ms.
Gao Liang (2#)) and three independent non-executive Directors (Ms. Zhou Jianjun (EZE), Dr.
Lam Sek Kong (#£85%¢) and Mr. Lv Wendong (& 3 R)).
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The appointment of Mr. Lv Wendong as an independent non-executive Director of the fourth session
of the Board was approved by the shareholders at the 2017 first extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 22 December 2017 and subject to the approval by relevant governmental
authorities of the PRC. On 5 January 2018, the Inner Mongolia Securities Regulatory Bureau of the
CSRC issued the Approval on Qualification of Lv Wendong as an Independent Director of Securities
Company (Nei Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2018] No. 2) KERZ AR NRESF AR BYESTEERNILEN (A
FBEEFFAI[2018]25%)), pursuant to which, Mr. Lv Wendong's qualification as an independent Director
of securities company was approved. Thus, the appointment of Mr. Lv Wendong as an independent
non-executive Director of the fourth session of the Board of Directors has become effective from
5 January 2018. Following the appointment of Mr. Lv Wendong as the independent non-executive
Director, the number of independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules has been fulfilled. From 5 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, the Board has complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors (the number of which represented at least one-third of the Board) with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the Board

members (particularly the Chairman and the President).

Meetings of the Board

The Board convenes meetings on a regular basis and at least four Board meetings are held each
year. All Directors will be given a notice at least 14 days prior to every regular Board meeting or
within an appropriate time period prior to any other special Board meeting, and they can add new
matters to be discussed to the agenda. The agenda and enclosed documents relating to a Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least three days before the proposed date of the Board
meeting. Each Director shall be entitled to access to documents relating to Board meetings and
other relevant documents and to receive advices and services provided by the company secretary.
The Directors may also seek independent professional opinions. The minutes shall be kept by the
company secretary. After conclusion of a Board meeting, the initial and finalised minutes shall be
sent to all the Directors in due time, with the initial ones to be commented on by the Directors and
the finalised ones for their record.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board convened 11 meetings, the details of which are set out as

follows:

1. On 23 February 2018, the 1st extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board
was held, at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered
and approved: the Category Asset Allocation Plan for Proprietary Business for 2018, the
Amendments to the Internal Review and Auditing Measures and the Administrative Measures
for Reporting of Review and Auditing Results of the Company, and the Authorisation to the
Management by the Board of Directors to Establish an Assessment Team for Assessing the

Effectiveness of Compliance Management of the Company.

2. On 26 March 2018, the 2nd extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was
held, at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and
approved: the Work Report of the Strategic and Investment Committee of the Board of
Directors for the year 2017, the Work Report of the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee
of the Board of Directors for the year 2017, the Work Report of the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors for the year 2017, and the Work Report of the Remuneration and

Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors for the year 2017.

3. On 27 March 2018, the 3rd extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was
held, at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and
approved: the Plan for Provision of Bonus for Staff for 2017, the Plan for Provision of Bonus
for Senior Management for 2017 and the Plan for Bonus Distribution of Senior Management
for 2017.

4, On 28 March 2018, the 2nd meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held, at which
the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and approved: the 2017
Annual Work Report of the Management, the 2017 Annual Report of the Board, the 2017
Annual Work Report of the Independent Directors of the Company, the Approval of the Annual
Results Announcement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017, the 2017
Annual Report of the Company, the 2017 Self-Assessment Report of Internal Controls of the
Company, the 2017 Profit Distribution Plan of the Company, the 2017 Compliance Report of
the Company, the 2017 Risk Management Report of the Company, the Payment of External
Auditors’ Service Fees for 2017, the 2017 Annual Final Accounting Report of the Company,
the 2018 Annual Budget Proposal of the Company, the 2018 Annual Business Plan of the
Company, the 2018 Work Plan for Auditing Projects of the Company, the Re-appointment of
Domestic Auditor for the year 2018, the Re-appointment of International Auditor for the year
2018, and the Convening of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company. The 2017
Special Report of the Company on Net Capital and Other Risk Management Indicators was

heard at the meeting.
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On 30 March 2018, the 4th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was
held, at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and
approved: the Implementation of the Guaranteed Remuneration for the Chief Compliance
Officer, Chief Risk Management Officer, the Head and Staff of each of the Compliance, Risk
Control and Auditing Departments in Accordance with the Regulatory Requirements, the
2018 Annual Risk Preference Strategy of the Company and the Proposed Remuneration for
the Secretary of the Communist Party of China Discipline Inspection Committee of Hengtai

Securities.

On 16 May 2018, the bth extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held,
at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and approved:
the Amendments to the Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates of the Company, the
Matters relating to Continuing Connected Transactions of the Company and the Reduction
of Capital Contribution by the Company to Its Wholly-owned Subsidiary Hengtai Capital

Investment Co., Ltd.

On 29 May 2018, the 6th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held,
at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and approved:
the Establishment of the Office of the Labour Union and the Special Asset-backed Plan based
on Creditor’s Rights over Margin Loans for Financing of the Company.

On 12 July 2018, the 7th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held,
at which the resolution in relation to the following matter was considered and approved: the

2017 Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

On 30 July 2018, the 8th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held,
at which the resolution in relation to the following matter was considered and approved: the

Change of the Company’s Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong.

On 24 August 2018, the 3rd meeting of the fourth session of the Board was held, at which
the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and approved: the Interim
Results Announcement of the Company for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2018, and the
2018 Interim Report of the Company. The Special Report of the Company on Net Capital and
Other Risk Management Indicators for the First Half of 2018 was heard at the meeting.

On 14 November 2018, the 9th extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Board was
held, at which the resolution in relation to the following matter was considered and approved:
the Termination of Provision of Shortfall Guarantee by the Company to Its Wholly-owned
Subsidiary Hengtai Changcai Securities Co., Ltd.
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(IV) Objections from Independent Non-executive Directors to Relevant Issues of
the Company

None in the Reporting Period.

(V) Attendances of Directors at Board Meetings and General Meetings during

Their Terms of Office for the Reporting Period

Attendance at Board meetings

Attendance at

general meetings

Number Number of
of required required Number of
attendances Number of Number of attendances  attendances
atBoard  attendances  attendances Number of  Voting at general at general
Name of Director  Position meetings in person by proxy absences  results meetings meetings
Pang Jiemin Executive Director N " 0 0 Allagreed 1 1
EAR)
Wu Yigang Executive Director M " 0 0 Alagreed 1 1
(RER)
Zhang Tao Non-executive 1 " 0 0 Alagreed 1 1
&%) Director
Sun Chao Non-executive 11 11 0 0 Allagreed 1 1
(&) Director
Dong Hong Non-executive 1 10 1 0 Allagreed 1 0
(B Director
Gao Liang Non-executive 11 11 0 0 Allagreed 1 1
(&8 Director
Zhou Jianjun Independent Non- N 1 0 0 Allagreed 1 1
(B3 executive Director
Lam Sek Kong Independent Non- 1 " 0 0 Alagreed 1 1
(HrE5sE) executive Director
Lv Wendong Independent Non- 1 1 0 0 Alagreed 1 1
(&30 executive Director

The Chairman met with the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive

Directors) without any executive Directors present once during the Reporting Period. According to

the amendments to Code Provision A.2.7 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Company shall

comply with the requirement that the Chairman shall meet with the independent non-executive

Directors without any other Directors present at least once a year from 2019.

Minutes of all meetings of the Board and special committees of the Board are kept at the Company,

and are available for inspection by the Directors upon request.
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Trainings for Directors

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code in relation to the training of Directors.

The Company attached great importance to the continuous training for the Directors and
Supervisors. During the Reporting Period, all Directors and Supervisors proactively participated
in and completed the Online Training Program for Directors launched by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Meanwhile, certain Directors and Supervisors proactively participated in trainings and
seminars organized by the regulatory authorities and the industrial associations so as to improve
their capabilities to fulfill their duties. Details of the trainings are as follows:

Name Position Training content
Pang Jiemin Chairman, and Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
(ENTR) Executive Director Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored

by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
on 28 November 2018
Sun Chao Non-executive Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
(R 78) Director Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored
by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
on 28 November 2018
Zhou Jianjun Independent non- Attended follow-up trainings for certified public
(ARE) executive Director accountants sponsored by Beijing Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (3t & FHEIHHE) from June to
September 2018
Attended the follow-up training for certified tax agents
sponsored by Beijing Certified Tax Agents Association
{Ht FEMBRIEEH 2) from June to September 2018
Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored
by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
on 28 November 2018
Lv Wendong Independent non- Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
(B XHR) executive Director Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored
by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
on 28 November 2018

Guo Liwen Chairman of the Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
(FF ) Supervisory Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored
Committee by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
on 28 November 2018
Pei Jingjing Shareholder Attended the 48th seminar on the “Enhanced Continuing
BT representative Professional Development” (ECPD Seminar) sponsored
Supervisor by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries

on 28 November 2018
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The Board has four special committees, namely, Strategy and Investment Committee, Risk Control and
Supervisory Committee, Audit Committee and Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The special
committees of the Board shall, within their terms of reference specified in their respective rules of
procedures, perform their duties and be accountable to the Board.

Composition of the Special Committees of the Board:

Strategy and Investment Pang Jiemin (Chairman of the Committee, executive Director), Sun Chao
Committee: (non-executive Director) and Lam Sek Kong (independent non-executive
Director)
Risk Control and Supervisory Pang Jiemin (Chairman of the Committee, executive Director), Wu Yigang
Committee: (executive Director) and Zhang Tao (non-executive Director)
Audit Committee: Zhou Jianjun (Chairman of the Committee, independent non-executive

Director), Zhang Tao (non-executive Director) and Lam Sek Kong
(independent non-executive Director)
Remuneration and Nomination  Zhou Jianjun (Chairman of the Committee, independent non-executive
Committee: Director), Pang Jiemin (executive Director) and Lam Sek Kong
(independent non-executive Director)

(I) Strategy and Investment Committee

1. Duties of the Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the Strategy and Investment Committee include:
studying the national macro-economic policies; studying the medium to long-term strategic
goals and development plans of the Company; studying the business plans of the Company,
understanding the basic operational situation of the Company, analysing and understanding
the latest development of the domestic industries; studying and making suggestions on the
capital budgets projects and financing plans within the authorisation of the Board; studying
and making suggestions on projects of capital operation, assets management, and assets
disposal within the authorisation of the Board; conducting inspection for the implementation
status of the above items; and other duties as authorised by the Board. For specific duties
and responsibilities of the Strategy and Investment Committee, please refer to Rules of
Procedure for the Strategic and Investment Decision-making Committee of the Board of
Directors of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd, which has been published on the Company’'s website
and the HKExnews website.

The main work completed by the Strategy and Investment Committee in 2018 includes:

- considered the Category Assets Allocation Plan for Proprietary Businesses of the
Company for 2018;

- proposed reasonable suggestions on the Company’s business plan for 2018 based
on the status quo of the development of domestic securities industry and the actual
operations of the Company, which facilitated the Company to proactively promote
various businesses and achieve the Company’s strategic goals.
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Meetings of the Committee

During the Reporting Period, 1 meeting was convened by the Strategy and Investment
Committee, particulars of which are as follows:

On 15 January 2018, the Strategy and Investment Committee of the fourth session of the
Board held the 1st meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Category
Asset Allocation Plan for Proprietary Business of the Company for 2018 was considered and
approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

Number of Number of
Name of member required attendances actual attendances
Pang Jiemin (BT R) 1 1
Sun Chao (f£#8) 1 1
Lam Sek Kong (#853¢) 1 1

Risk Control and Supervisory Committee

1.

Duties of the Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee include:
reviewing general goals and fundamental policies of the compliance management, risk
management and internal control of the Company, and making suggestions on the same;
reviewing the establishment and responsibilities of the compliance management, risk
management and internal control, and making suggestions on the same; evaluating the risks
of major decisions which shall be reviewed by the Board and making suggestions on the
solutions to the major risks; reviewing the compliance report and risk assessment report
which shall be reviewed by the Board and making suggestions; formulating regulation system
of the Company, supervising its implementation status and making suggestions to the Board,
reviewing and supervising the training and continuing professional development of Directors
and senior management officers; reviewing and supervising the policies of the Company
in compliance with laws and regulations and the implementation status of such policies;
formulating, reviewing and supervising the code of professional conduct and compliance
manual of employees and Directors; reviewing the observance of Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules as well as the information
disclosure according to Corporate Governance Report by the Company; and other duties as
authorised by the Board of the Company. For specific duties and responsibilities of the Risk
Control and Supervisory Committee, please refer to Rules of Procedure for the Risk Control
and Supervisory Committee of the Board of Directors of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd, which
has been published on the Company’s website and the HKExnews website.

The main work completed by the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee in 2018 includes:

- considered the 2017 Compliance Report of the Company, the 2017 Risk Management
Report of the Company and the 2017 Self-Assessment Report of Internal Controls
of the Company, etc., and proposed reasonable suggestions on the Company’s
compliance management, risk management, internal control objectives and policies,
etc;
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- organized the Company's 2 joint meetings on business situation, analyzed risk
prevention and control and response to risks as well as the risk factors faced in the
Company's operations in 2018, and proposed corresponding risk response measures
and specific work arrangements and deployment;

- advanced the Company's conscientious implementation of external supervision
and internal risk management requirements, and adopted various risk management
measures to ensure that the risks of the Company’s various businesses were
controlled within a reasonable range; proactively promoted the construction of
the Company’s internal control system and evaluated the scientificity, rationality,
effectiveness and implementation of the internal control system.

2, Meetings of the Committee

During the Reporting Period, 3 meetings were held by the Risk Control and Supervisory
Committee, particulars of which are as follows:

On 23 March 2018, the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee of the fourth session of
the Board held the 1st meeting in 2018, at which the resolutions in relation to the 2017
Compliance Report of the Company, the 2017 Risk Management Report of the Company, the
2017 Self-assessment Report of Internal Control of the Company and the 2017 Special Report
of the Company on Net Capital and Other Risk Management Indicators were considered and
approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

On 29 June 2018, the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee of the fourth session of the
Board held the 2nd meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Establishment
of Second-level Department by the Compliance Management Department to Perform the

Duty of Internal Audit for OTC Market Business Department was considered and approved.

On 21 August 2018, the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee of the fourth session of the
Board held the 3rd meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Special Report
of the Company on Net Capital and Other Risk Management Indicators for the First Half of
2018 was considered and approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

Number of Number of

Name of member required attendances actual attendances

Pang Jiemin (BT R)
Wu Yigang (=R zERl)
Zhang Tao (58/5)
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() Audit Committee

1. Duties of the Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include: reviewing the financial
monitoring, risk management and internal control systems of the Company and the
effectiveness of the implementation of these systems, discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with the management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have in place effective systems and reporting to the Board. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’'s accounting and financial reporting function; conducting
study on important findings of risk management and internal control and management’s
responses on such findings actively or commissioned by the Board; guiding the work of
the internal audit department of the Company, and supervising the internal audit system
and its implementation; monitoring the annual audits; examining and supervising related
party transactions and assessing the appropriateness of related party transactions; making
suggestions to the Board on the appointment, reappointment or replacement of external
auditors, approving the compensation and terms of engagement for external auditors, as well
as handling any matters regarding the resignation or dismissal of external auditors; reporting
relevant affairs of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and other duties as authorised by the Board
of the Company and as required by the laws, regulations and rules including the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. For specific duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee, please refer to
Rules of Procedure for the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Hengtai Securities
Co., Ltd, which has been published on the Company’s website and the HKExnews website.

The main work completed by the Audit Committee in 2018 includes:

- considered the 2018 Work Plan for Auditing Projects, the 2017 Self-Assessment
Report of Internal Controls of the Company and the 2017 Risk Management Report of
the Company;

- made recommendations on the engagement of external auditors to the Board and
considered the compensation and terms of engagement for external auditors;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control system and the adequacy
of accounting and financial reporting functions;

- organized the working meetings of the Company’s planning and financing department
and the audit department, at which listened to the 2017 work summary and the
2018 work plan of the planning and financing department and the audit department,
respectively, and proposed constructive comments on the Company’s internal finance
and audit work;

- supervised and evaluated the audit on the Company’s financial report, and listened to
the special report of the Company’s international auditor and domestic auditor on the
audit on the 2017 financial report, discussed the relevant issues in the audit process,
and evaluated the audit plan, procedures and report.
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2, Meetings of the Committee

During the Reporting Period, 3 meetings were held by the Audit Committee, particulars of

which are as follows:

On 23 March 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board held the 1st
meeting in 2018, at which the resolutions in relation to the Payment of External Auditors’
Service Fees for 2017, the 2018 Work Plan for Auditing Projects of the Company, the Re-
appointment of Domestic Auditor for the year 2018, the Re-appointment of International
Auditor for the year 2018, the 2017 Self-Assessment Report of Internal Controls of the
Company, the Approval of the Annual Results Announcement of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the 2017 Risk Management Report of the Company were

considered and approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

On 11 May 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board held the 2nd
meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Amendments to the Accounting
Policies and Accounting Estimates of the Company was considered and approved and

submitted to the Board for consideration.

On 23 August 2018, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board held the 3rd
meeting in 2018, at which the resolutions in relation to the Interim Results Announcement
of the Company for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2018 and the 2018 Interim Report of the

Company were considered and approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

Number of Number of
Name of member required attendances actual attendances
Zhou Jianjun (EEE) 3
Zhang Tao (5R&) 3

Lam Sek Kong (#85 3¢)
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(IV) Remuneration and Nomination Committee

1.

Duties of the Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
include: considering appropriate remuneration policy, performance measuring system, and
rewards and punishments incentives for the Company in accordance with the features
of the securities industry, the responsibilities and importance of Directors and senior
management officers, and comparing with the remuneration level of relevant companies,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
Directors' and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to be made to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy; reviewing and approving the remuneration proposals of
Directors and senior management officers in accordance with the Company’s development
strategy and goal set by the Board; reviewing the selection criteria and procedures of the
Directors, senior management officers of the Company, and making recommendations to
the Board; identifying candidates with suitable qualifications to become Board members,
senior management officers of the Company in an extensive manner, and selecting and
nominating relevant candidates for Directors and senior management officers or making
recommendations to the Board in this regard; assessing and making recommendations on
the candidates of Directors and senior management officers, assessing the independence
of independent Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors (especially Chairman of the
Board and the president); ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; other duties as authorised
by the Board of the Company. For specific duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee, please refer to Rules of Procedure for the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd, which has
been published on the Company’s website and the HKExnews website.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee extensively searches for qualified candidates
for Directors through various channels and advises the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors. In assessing the suitability of candidates for Directors, the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee will consider factors including the achievements,
professional knowledge and industry experience of the candidates which are relevant to
the Company, the commitment in respect of available time and the Board diversity policy of
the Company. For candidates for independent non-executive Directors, their independence
will also be assessed. Upon review and determination of candidates for Directors by way of
resolution by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the Board, the nomination
will be tabled at the general meeting of the Company in the form of a written proposal for
consideration.
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The main work completed by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee in 2018 includes:

- Made recommendation to the Board on the packages of individual Directors and senior

management of the Company for 2017, including the plan for bonus distribution;

- reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, and made recommendations on any proposed changes to be

made to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

- considered appropriate remuneration policy, performance measuring system, and
rewards and punishments incentives for the Company in accordance with the features
of the securities industry, the responsibilities and importance of Directors and senior

management officers, compared with the remuneration level of relevant companies;

- considered and evaluated the plan for bonus distribution of senior management of the

Company and made recommendations to the Board.

The Board diversity policy is set out in the subsection head “VIIl. Other Related Issues - (X)
Board Diversity Policy” under this section.

2. Meetings of the Committee

During the Reporting Period, 3 meetings were held by the Remuneration and Nomination

Committee, the particulars of which are as follows:

On 14 January 2018, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the fourth session
of the Board held the 1st meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the
Implementation of the Remuneration Assurance for the Chief Compliance Officer, Chief
Risk Management Officer, the Head and Staff of each of the Compliance, Risk Control and
Auditing Departments in Accordance with the Regulatory Requirements was considered and
approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

On 2 February 2018, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the fourth session of
the Board held the 2nd meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Proposed
Remuneration for the Secretary of the Discipline Inspection Committee of CPC of Hengtai

was considered and approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.
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On 22 March 2018, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the fourth session of

the Board held the 3rd meeting in 2018, at which the resolution in relation to the Plan for
Bonus Distribution of Senior Management of the Company for 2017 was considered and

approved and submitted to the Board for consideration.

Number of Number of
Name of member required attendances actual attendances
Zhou Jianjun (AZE)
Pang Jiemin (EENR)
Lam Sek Kong (75 ¢) 3 3

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the president of the Company are taken by different
persons. Mr. Pang Jiemin (EE/TR) serves as the chairman of the Board and Mr. Niu Zhuang (471) serves as
the president. Their duties and authorities are clearly divided and specified in the Articles of Association.

Mr. Pang Jiemin, Chairman of the Board, leads the Board in determining the overall development strategy
of the Company to guarantee the effective operation and performance of the Board, supervises and
reviews the implementation of the resolutions of the Board, and debriefs the work reports of the senior
management of the Company so as to ensure that the corporate governance of Company is in a virtuous
order and the resolutions of the Board are in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole. Mr. Niu Zhuang, the president, presides over the business operations of the Company, organizes
the implementation of the resolutions of Board and reports to the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has four non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors in total. For
their appointment, please refer to Section 9 “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees”.
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Duties of the Supervisory Committee

Duties of the Supervisory Committee are specified in the Articles of Association and its main duties
and authorities include: to review the periodic reports of the Company prepared by the Board
and express its written opinion; to check the financial condition of the Company; to monitor the
performance of duties by Directors and senior management officers, raise questions to or propose
dismissal of such Directors and senior management officers as in breach of the laws, regulations,
the Articles of Association or the resolutions of general meetings; to require Directors and senior
management officers to make corrections in the event that their conduct has damaged the interests
of the Company; to propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings and, in the event that
the Board does not perform the obligations to convene and preside over the general meetings in
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, to convene and preside over the general meetings;
to initiate legal proceedings against Directors and senior management officers; to monitor the
compliance and validity of the decision-making of the Board; to organize the off-office auditing
for the senior management officers; and other duties as stipulated by the laws, regulations,

departmental rules and the Articles of Association.

Composition of the Supervisory Committee

Shareholder representative Supervisors are elected or replaced in general meetings while Employee
Representative Supervisors are elected or replaced by the employees of the Company by means of
the Company’s democratic election. The Supervisors are elected for a term of three years and may
be re-elected upon expiry of their terms of office. The Supervisory Committee currently consists
of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Liwen (2 /1X), the chairman of the Supervisory Committee,
Ms. Pei Jingjing (268 &%), the shareholder representative Supervisor, and Mr. Wang Hui (£Z), the

employee representative Supervisor.

Meetings of the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee held 3 meetings during the Reporting Period, particulars of which are as

follows:

1. On 28 March 2018, the 2nd meeting of the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee
was held, at which the resolutions in relation to the following matters were considered and
approved: the 2017 Report of the Supervisory Committee of the Company, the 2017 Annual
Report of the Company, the 2017 Self-assessment Report of Internal Control of the Company,
the 2017 Profit Distribution Plan of the Company, the 2017 Annual Final Accounting Report
of the Company, the 2017 Risk Management Report of the Company and the 2018 Annual
Budget Proposal of the Company.
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2. On 16 May 2018, the 1st extraordinary meeting of the fourth session of the Supervisory
Committee was held, at which the resolution in relation to the following matter was

considered and approved: the Changes in Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates.

3. On 24 August 2018, the 3rd meeting of the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee was
held, at which the resolution in relation to the following matter was considered and approved:

the 2018 Interim Report of the Company.

Meeting Attendances of Supervisors

Number of
Name of Required  Attendances Attendances Voting
Supervisor Position attendances in person by proxy Absences results
Guo Liwen  Chairman of the 3 3 0 0 Allagreed
(Fhx) Supervisory Committee
Pei Jingjing  Shareholder representative 3 3 0 0 Allagreed
(FE R Supervisor
Wang Hui Employee representative < 3 0 0 All agreed
(£Z) Supervisor

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company held general meetings according to the Articles of Association and Rules of Procedure
for General Meetings to guarantee the equal status and full exercise of rights for all Shareholders,
especially the small and medium ones. When a general meeting is held, all of the Company’s
Directors, Supervisors and secretary to the Board should attend the general meeting and the
president and other senior management may attend the general meeting as observers according to

requirements and answer the Shareholder’s questions.

According to Article 73 of the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding
10% or more of the shares of the Company shall be entitled to request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, and shall put forward such request to the Board in writing. The Board
shall, pursuant to laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, give a written reply on whether
to convene the extraordinary general meeting or not within 10 days after receipt of the proposal.
In the event that the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, it shall serve a
notice of such meeting within 5 days after the resolution is made by the Board. In the event of any
change to the original proposal set forth in the notice, the consent of relevant shareholder(s) shall
be obtained. In the event that the Board does not agree to hold the extraordinary general meeting
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or fails to give a reply within 10 days after receipt of the proposal, shareholder(s) severally or jointly
holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall be entitled to propose to the Supervisory
Committee to convene an extraordinary general meeting, and shall put forward such request to the
Supervisory Committee in writing. In the event that the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene
the extraordinary general meeting, it shall serve a notice of such meeting within 5 days after receipt
of the said request. In the event of any change to the original proposal set forth in the notice, the
consent of relevant shareholder(s) shall be obtained. In the event that the Supervisory Committee
does not issue the notice for the general meeting within the term stipulated, the Supervisory
Committee shall be deemed as failing to convene and preside over the general meeting. As a
result, the shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 10% or more of the shares of the Company for
90 consecutive days or longer may convene and preside over such meeting by itself/themselves.
According to Article 75 of the Articles of Association, for the general meeting convened by the
Supervisory Committee or shareholders on its/their own, the Board and the secretary to the Board
shall cooperate. The Board shall provide the register of shareholders on the record date of the equity
interests. According to Article 78 of the Articles of Association, the shareholder(s) severally or jointly
holding 3% or above of the shares of the Company shall be entitled to propose motions concerning
such matters other than nominating candidates for directors (including independent directors) or
supervisors to the Company. The shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 3% or above of the
shares of the Company may submit written provisional motion to the convener 10 days before a
general meeting is held. The convener shall serve a supplementary notice of general meeting within
2 days after receipt of such motion, and notify the shareholders of the contents of the provisional
motion. Save as specified in the preceding paragraph, the convener shall not change the motion set
out in the notice of general meeting or add any new motion after the said notice announcement is
served. Such motions which are not specified in the notice of the general meeting or which do not
comply with Article 77 of the Articles of Association shall not be voted or resolved at the general
meeting. According to Article 87 of the Articles of Association, any shareholder entitled to attend
and vote at a general meeting shall have the right to appoint one or several persons (who may not

be shareholders) to act as his/her proxy to attend and vote at the meeting on his/her behalf.

Resolutions passed at the general meeting shall be immediately announced in accordance with the
laws, regulations, departmental rules, normative documents, provisions of the securities regulatory
authorities at the place where the shares of the Company are listed, or the provisions of the Articles
of Association. Such minutes of meeting, together with the signatures of the shareholders attending
meeting and the powers of attorney concerning the proxies attending the meeting on behalf of
others, shall be kept at the domicile of the Company. Shareholders may consult photocopies of the
minutes of meetings free of charge during the business hours of the Company. In the event of any
shareholder asking for photocopies of such minutes, the Company shall deliver the photocopies in 7

days after receiving rational expenses.
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Shareholders or their proxies shall declare their opinions when considering issues and can make
inquiries on issues affecting their judgment and vote and ask reporters to give explanation. Save
for such matters in relation to the business secrets of the Company that cannot be disclosed at the
general meeting, Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers shall provide explanations
in relation to the inquiries and suggestions made by shareholders in general meetings.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has also adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. Having made specific enquiry
with all Directors and Supervisors, all Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Liability Insurance of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of
the Company

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed regularly.

Responsibilities of Directors for Financial Statements

The declarations of the responsibilities of Directors concerning financial statements set out
hereinafter and the responsibilities of auditor in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of this report shall
be read jointly but understood independently.

All the Directors confirmed their responsibility of preparing the financial statements that can truly
reflect the Company’s operating results for each financial year. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, no event or circumstance that may cause material adverse impact on the Company's
continuous operations needs to be reported.

Appointment and Remuneration of Auditors

Please refer to the subsection headed “VIII. Engagement of Accounting Firms"” in Section 7 “Other
Material Particulars” of this report.

Review of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s consolidated financial statements of 2018.
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(VII) Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Zhang Wei (5R1&) and Ms. Leung Wing Han Sharon (Z581) are joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Leung Wing Han Sharon (vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited) provides assistance to Mr. Zhang Wei in the discharge of his duties as a company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang Wei, the secretary to the Board and the joint company
secretary of the Company, serves as the primary contact person between Ms. Leung Wing Han
Sharon and the Company. During the Reporting Period, Mr. Zhang Wei and Ms. Leung Wing Han
Sharon have both received no less than 15 hours of professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29

of the Listing Rules.

(VIIl) Communications with Shareholders

The general meeting shall be the supreme authority of the Company. All Shareholders exercise their
power through the general meeting. The Company convened general meetings in strict accordance
with relevant provisions and ensured all shareholders could enjoy equal status and fully exercise
their rights as shareholders. In strict accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company

operates orderly in the interest of the Company and shareholders.

Attaching great importance to opinions and suggestions of its shareholders, the Company
designated staff to keep in contact with shareholders and meet their reasonable demands in time.
The Company releases its announcements, financial data and other relevant data in the column of
Investor Relations on its website www.cnht.com.cn. The shareholders may contact the Company
for any enquiry by email (dongban@cnht.com.cn) or telephone (+86 10 8327 0996) or by writing to
the Company’s address (11/F, China Life Centre, No. 17 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing,

the PRC). The Company will properly handle all enquiries in time.

The Company welcomes suggestions from shareholders and encourages shareholders to
attend general meetings or directly express misgivings that they may have to the Board and the
management. Usually, Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company would attend

annual general meeting to answer questions put forward by shareholders.
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Investor Relation Activities

The Company has always paid high attention to investor relation management. During the Reporting
Period, the Company communicated with investors through multiple ways like making phone
calls, sending emails, receiving visitors and attending investor meetings, so as to reinforce the

communication services to investors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company proactively performed its obligations on information
disclosure in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations and regulatory provisions to ensure
that all investors can know the Company’s material matters in a timely, truthful, accurate, complete

and fair manner, and fully exercise their rights to protect their relevant interests.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the Board diversity policy according to the Code Provision A.5.6 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

The Board diversity policy can be summed up as follows: The Company believes that the Board
diversity is important in terms of the corporate governance and the efficiency of the Board. In
designing the Board’s composition, the Company considers board diversity from a number of
aspects to ensure a balance among the Board members in terms of techniques, experiences as well
as perspective diversity, so as to promote the effective operation of the Board and maintain the
corporate governance standard at a high level. Nominations and appointments of the members of
the Board will be based on meritocracy and requirements of the routine operation of the Board with

due consideration given to the benefit from Board diversity.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for recruitment of candidates
with appropriate capacity to be Directors. Meanwhile, it takes into account of Board diversity policy
in the selection. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee will discuss at least annually all
the agreed measurable objectives (that means selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, ethnicity, language, cultural and educational background,
industry experience and professional experience) to ensure the continuous effectiveness of the
Board. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is satisfied with its current composition and
believes that it is in compliance with the requirements of the Board diversity policy formulated by

the Company.
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Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Reporting Period, the Articles of Association of the Company were amended once as

follows:

On 22 December 2017, the resolution in relation to the Proposed Amendments to the Articles of
Association was considered and approved at the 2017 first extraordinary general meeting of the
Company. Relevant provisions of the Articles of Association have been amended in accordance with
the requirements under the Measures for Management of the Risk Control Indexes of Securities
Companies ((FH QA RIABIEHIEIZEIEIL)) and the Measures for Compliance Management of
Securities Companies and Securities Investment Fund Management Companies ({F&% A Bl F1 &A%
BHSEBENRIABEERIDE)) promulgated by CSRC and the Overall Risk Management Standards
of Securities Companies (FEHAAIZEEREEIRE)) and the Guidelines on Implementation of
Compliance Management of Securities Companies ((ZFHRal & REEEMEIES])) issued by the
Securities Association of China. The proposed amendments came into effect after approval by the
relevant securities regulatory authorities. As at 27 March 2018, upon approval by the Inner Mongolia
Securities Regulatory Bureau of the CSRC with the Reply on Approval of Amendments to Important
Articles of the Articles of Association by Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd. (Nei Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2018]
No. 8) KERZEEBRIIFROHERAANEELFEREZRRNILE) (NFEEFTAI[2018]85%)), the
Company was approved to change the important articles of the Articles of Association. The revised
Articles of Association took effect on 27 March 2018.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are featured with a defined management
structure with limits of authority and well-rounded policies and procedures, and are designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance
of business activities, to identify and cope with potential risks, and to safeguard asset security of
the Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board also recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. In
addition, the Audit Committee also has the responsibility for reviewing and assessing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.
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Responsibility statement of the Board on risk management and internal control

In accordance with the requirements of the Enterprise Internal Control Standard System and
the Corporate Governance Code, it is the responsibility of the Board to establish, implement
and oversee a sound and effective risk management and internal control systems, assess its
effectiveness and truthfully disclose the assessment report. The Supervisory Committee monitored
the establishment and implementation of risk management and internal control by the Board. The
management is responsible for the organising and leading the daily operations of corporate risk
management and internal control. The objectives of risk management and internal control of the
Company are to ensure that all operation activities of the Company strictly comply with relevant
state laws and regulations, industrial regulatory requirements and the internal management system
of the Company and that business activities of the Company are continuously in line with the
Company's risk preference system and be effectively carried out with acceptable risks; promote
the operation of operational and management activities in a healthy manner, guarantee the security
and integrity of the Company's property and the truthfulness and accuracy of its financial reports;
facilitate the overall implementation of the development strategy and the achievements of the
business objectives of the Company; improve operation efficiency and performance and safeguard
the sustainable development of the Company with health and stability. Since there are inherent
limitations in risk management and internal control, only reasonable guarantees can be provided for
achieving the abovementioned objectives.

In 2018, the Company has adopted the following policies and procedures and taken the following

measures to improve the risk management and internal control systems of the Group:

1. Building of risk management and internal control systems

The Company has been attaching great importance to the building of risk management and
internal control systems since its establishment, and continuing to strengthen the building of
the risk management and internal control systems and mechanisms by virtue of reasonably
formulating and effectively implementing various systems, measures and detailed rules, to
ensure the effectiveness of the supervision and balance between departments and positions
and lay the foundation for the Company’s normalised development.

The Company has continuously improved its internal management and actively carried out the
building and optimisation of risk management and internal control systems during the course
of the Company’s operation and development in accordance with relevant requirements of
external supervisory regulations such as the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, the Basic Standards for Enterprise Internal Control, the Norms for the
All-rounded Risk Management of Securities Companies and the Guidance for the Internal

Control of Securities Companies.
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During the Reporting Period, in order to adapt to the constantly changing regulatory
requirements and ensure the guiding function of the internal control system for operation
and management and business development, the Company timely organized all departments,
branches, subsidiaries to sort out and establish internal control systems in strict compliance
with related laws, regulations, rules and norms. Besides, the Company has formulated the
Management Provisions on Client Trading Activities of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ({/BZ=1E
HERDBERRANEERZITAEERMRT)), the Management Provisions for Risk Management
Positions of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ((EFRIEHFR LB AR R RKBREIEMERRTE)) and the
Management Rules on Engagement in Credit Investment Business with Self-owned Capital of
Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ((IBERIFHFRMNER AT EBESLBEERBEREEBETEEAD). It
has also amended the Measures for Operational Risk Management of Hengtai Securities Co.,
Ltd (KERIEFRMDBRAFIRIERREIEHET)) and the Management Provisions on Client
Trading Activities of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ({(IBERIEHFBRNDERARNBLRBITAEER
JE)), further improving the risk management and internal control systems of the Company.

The Company will continue to improve the risk management and internal control systems,
sort out the present risk management and internal control processes and integrate the
key points of the risk management and internal control work in respond to changes in the
actual business situation of the Company and external regulatory laws and regulations.
The Company will also update and improve various management and control measures for
business processes and solidify the measures by means of relevant systems, so as to make
the risk management and internal control systems more systematic and scientific and form a

long-term effective management mechanism.

2. Risk management and internal control evaluation

There are inherent limitations in risk management and internal control, and macro
environment, policies and regulations and the internal environment are constantly changing,
which may lead to the deviation of previous management and control activities. As a result,
the risk management and internal control can only provide reasonable guarantee to achieve
the aforesaid objectives. The Company has established an independent and objective
mechanism for internal review and audit, which requires inspection on the compliance of
daily business operation with laws and regulations and timely update and improvement of
risk management and internal control systems to be done from time to time pursuant to the
provisions of internal and external rules and regulations, providing ex post supervision over
risk management and internal control and promoting the sustainable development of the

Company.
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Pursuant to the Basic Standards for Enterprise Internal Control and ancillary relevant
guidelines, the Guidance for the Internal Control of Securities Companies issued by the CSRC
and the requirements of relevant standards, the Board has conducted an overall evaluation on
the internal control for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The evaluation
scope comprises 30 first-tier business processes including securities brokerage business and

other businesses, with over 1,230 risk control points.

The Board believes that the Company has established relatively sound risk management and
internal control systems. During the Reporting Period, the Company has maintained effective
risk management and internal control in all material respects. As such, there were no
major defects in the risk management and internal control mechanisms and systems of the
Company, nor was there any material deviation during implementation of such mechanisms
and systems, which means the overall risk management and internal control of the Company

was effective.

On 22 March 2019, Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP issued the Special Report on
Internal Control of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd. (Rui Hua Zhuan Shen Zi [2019] No. 01340002)
(EFRIEFRMNHBR D FAEEHFIERSE) FHEZEFETF(2019]0134000258)) in respect of the
Company’s risk management and internal control, believing that the Company has maintained
effective risk management and internal control over financial reporting in all material respects
during the Reporting Period according to the Basic Standards for Enterprise Internal Control

and relevant regulations.
3. Other matters

(1) Building of compliance system

During the Reporting Period, the Company, in strict accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, earnestly implemented the requirements of industry regulatory authorities
and those set by the Board in relation to compliance management and orderly
carried out overall compliance management, taking risk control as the starting point,
implementation of internal control as the measure and effective management as the
goal. In accordance with the requirements of the CSRC and other regulatory agencies
on compliance management, the Company revised and issued the Compliance
Management Measures of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ((BFIEER LD AR A RA R
EIBHE)) in 2017, which clarified the responsibilities of management at all levels
of the Company and improved performance support and organizational structure for

compliance management.
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During the reporting period, the Company comprehensively improved the compliance

management system, sorted out and optimized the compliance management system,

and strengthened guidance on performance of compliance officer. At the same time,

according to the latest Guidelines for Internal Control of Investment Banking Business
of Securities Companies ((FH AR ERITEEKAILIESIIES])) and the actual
management of the Company, an Internal Audit Affairs Department was established

under the Compliance Management Department to be responsible for the Company’s

daily internal audit.

@

Constantly improving the Company’s compliance management system

In order to adapt to the ever-changing regulatory requirements and ensure
the guiding role of the internal control system for business management and
business operations, the Compliance Management Department organised
departments, branches, subsidiaries, etc. to sort out and build internal control
system in a timely manner in strict accordance with relevant laws, regulations,
standards and specifications. During the Reporting Period, 241 systems
(including relevant agreements signed with investors) were reviewed, 127
implementation systems were submitted to the president office for release, and

56 system review opinions were issued to various departments.

Carrying out compliance inspection and examination

Compliance inspection is an important part of front-end control of business risk.
The occurrence of business risks is revealed and controlled through prudent
compliance inspection. During the Reporting Period, the Company organised
inspection over 117 special projects submitted by all the departments including
the Brokerage Business Department, Asset Management Department, Asset
Custody Department, Shenzhen Branch, etc., 2,888 agreements and contracts
relating to the Company, 36 applications for various permits and 91 approvals
on other matters and issued 27 written compliance inspection opinions. The
Company strengthened the management of business departments, identified
potential risks in a timely manner and promoted business compliance. During
the Reporting Period, compliance inspection was completed for 22 business
departments; and compliance examination was completed for the Asset

Management Department, Shenzhen Branch, etc.
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® Compliance training and promotion

The Compliance Management Department interprets laws and regulations,
regulatory rules, and internal control system through internal and external
compliance trainings and various forms of propaganda, and explains the
special business to achieve compliance management transformation from rule
understanding to active binding. During the Reporting Period, the Compliance
Management Department organised 15 internal compliance training sessions
on interpretation of company systems, interpretation of laws and regulations,
anti-money laundering training, etc.; prepared 6 issues of Briefing on Laws and
Regulations, 46 issues of weekly on industry dynamics and 7 issues of Anti-
money Laundering Briefing; and attended the Company’s 8 external training
sessions including training of associations and organizations and industry

exchanges.
@ Strengthening information firewall

During the Reporting Period, the Company periodically identified people
involving sensitive information and maintained name lists for inspection and
restriction. The Company added a module as information firewall on the internal
control platform to strengthen business isolation management, avoiding interest
conflicts and tunneling. The Company has sent 14 name lists for inspection and

77 notices of name lists for restriction to relevant departments.
® Handling complaints and tip-offs

The Company specially appointed persons to collect complaints and tip-offs from
all branches and business departments, track the handling progress, supervise
related departments properly dealing with the complaints and tip-offs and report
complaints from corporate clients to the regulatory authorities on a regular
basis. There were 4 quarterly reports and 12 monthly reports on corporate client

complaints delivered to the regulatory authorities during the Reporting Period.
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® Fulfilling obligations of anti-money laundering and financial stability

The Company earnestly accomplished the groundwork for anti-money
laundering, continuously promoted anti-money laundering and improved the
quality of block trade reporting and suspicious transaction reporting, effectively
fulfilling its obligations of anti-money laundering. During the Reporting Period,
the Company amended 7 anti-money laundering systems of the Company and
improved the anti-money laundering monitoring system in accordance with the
requirements of the Notice of the People’'s Bank of China Concerning Relevant
Issues on Strengthening the Customer Identification for Anti-Money Laundering
(Yin Fa [2017] No.235) (P BARBITENMBREEZF SO BRNEBIIE
R AN) (SR 3£[2017]12355%)); a total of 270 block trade data were generated in
the treatment system, 12,630 suspicious transactions were excluded, and 15
reports on general suspicious transaction were confirmed; 24 reports and 17
statements were submitted to the People’s Bank of China, Hohhot Branch; the
2017 anti-money laundering rating was carried out for the Company according to
the requirements of the People’s Bank of China; pilot extraction of anti-money
laundering inspection data was conducted and the extracted data was reported
to the People’s Bank of China, Hohhot Branch and Xi‘an Branch.

@ Assessing the effectiveness of compliance management

During the Reporting Period, as authorised by the Board, the Company assessed
the effectiveness of compliance management in 2018. The Company conducted
an overall appraisal on compliance of business development in terms of its
progress followed by tracking, supervising, improving and implementing
over issues discovered, and the compliance management mechanism of the

Company was constantly improved as a result.

Inspections completed by the Compliance Department

During the Reporting Period, according to the requirements of regulatory authorities,
the Company conducted compliance inspections with special focus on brokerage
business, asset management business, proprietary business and others. Compliance
advices for existing problems were offered with requirements of proactive improvement

by all departments in charge and subsequent implementation.

For the purpose of strengthening management on securities branches, promptly
identifying potential risks and promoting compliance development of business.
Compliance inspections involving 22 securities branches were conducted during the

Reporting Period.
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Inspection and audit completed by the audit department

The Group has an internal audit function. During the Reporting Period, the Company
carried out comprehensive review and audit work with internal audit focused on
regulatory key points, key positions, high risk and new business aspects. It established
projects adhering to the corporate strategy and achieved the working goal of full
coverage of internal audit. The Company continued to enhance the three-level review
mechanism for audit projects by placing emphasis on achievement of audit results
and innovating audit thoughts and methods. It further constantly improved audit
quality of projects, timely notified, regularly followed up and continually supervised
the issues identified during the audit, thus effectively increased the proportion of audit
rectification and awareness of risk prevention of the units being audited, and resolved

potential risks.

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed 93 audits, produced 93 auditor’s
reports, and submitted more than 450 enquiry letters regarding audit risks to the
management and relevant departments and issued 4 quarterly reports on progress of

rectification supervision.

Monitoring risk control indicators and building replenishment mechanism

For the purpose of building a sound dynamic monitoring system of risk control
indicators, a capital replenishment mechanism, and a risk control system centering
on net capital and liquidity, carrying out business with measurable, controllable and
manageable risks, the Company, pursuant to the Administrative Measures for Risk
Control Indicators of Securities Companies ({GE#H Q& E R H FEEZEIBIE)) of
the CSRC, the Guidance for the Dynamic Monitoring System of the Risk Control
Indicators of the Securities Companies ((FFH R AR B IEH IRIZShREEL I X8 31))
of the Securities Association of China and other pertinent regulations, defined the
Administrative Measures for Risk Control Indicators of Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd ({8
FIEHR N BR A BIRRIEHIFEIZE ENE)) and other internal control rules.

In accordance with regulatory requirements, the Company established a dynamic
monitoring system of risk control indicators for net capital and realized dynamic
monitoring of risk control indicators and automatic warning. The dynamic monitoring
system of the Company covers the business activities that affect risk control indicators
such as net capital and liquidity and dynamically calculates risk control indicators such
as net capital and liquidity; it carries out dynamic monitoring with particular business
features taken into consideration and gives automatic warning on risk control indicators
such as net capital and liquidity according to preset valve values and monitoring
standards; it is capable of generating monitoring reports on risk control indicators such

as net capital.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Section 10 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

(5)

HENGTOU SECURITIES

The Company regularly prepares the supervisory report on risk control indicators
for net capital every month, sets up multi-level warnings on risk control indicators,
practices dynamic monitoring of risk control indicators, follows and analyzes the
causes of changes in indicators, and guides the business departments to timely
respond to abnormal situations.

The Company established a stress testing mechanism to assess the impact of new
business developments and other matters on risk control indicators such as net
capital through regular and special stress tests. When it is found that indicators such
as net capital are about to break regulatory alert standards, the Company will launch
a contingency plan to take measures such as adjusting business scale and business
structure, evaluating and adjusting business operation plans, expanding financing
channels, optimizing asset and liability structure and issuing subordinated bonds
when necessary to further replenish capital so as to support the long-term and stable
business development.

Standardisation of accounts

The Company carried out account management in strict compliance with the relevant
requirements of laws and regulations, and continued to improve the mechanism for
routine auditing of account management to further improve the long-term effectiveness
of the mechanism on standardised account management. During the Reporting Period,
the Company passed the on-site inspection organised by China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited.

During the Reporting Period, the Company launched a centralized operation platform,
which enables the centralized review at the headquarter and basically covered
all common account business, thereby effectively avoiding the occurrence of
unstandardised accounts; it standardised and cleaned up the unqualified, dormant
and risk disposal accounts and other unstandardised accounts for several times. As at
the end of Reporting Period, the Company logged 120,590 dormant accounts, 20,294
pure capital accounts, frozen accounts and lost accounts, 41 unqualified accounts,
and no risk disposal account. The Company will continue to strengthen standardised
management of accounts, and effectively implement various requirements of

standardised management of accounts.



4, Procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information

During the Reporting Period, the Company provided inside information training courses to
the Directors and senior management of the Company to ensure that all relevant facts and
circumstances that may have material effect on the share price of the Company is assessed
in a timely manner and that any material information which comes to the knowledge of
any one or more officers of the Group be promptly identified, assessed and, if appropriate,

escalated for the attention of the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

5. Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

Details of the significant risks of the Company and the process used to identify, evaluate
and manage the same are set out the subsection headed “VIII. Risk Factors and
Countermeasures” under Section 5 “Management Discussion and Analysis”, which forms a

part of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board normally conducts review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems at least on an annual basis. During the year of 2018, the Board, together with the
Audit Committee and the Risk Control and Supervisory Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control of the Company, covering all material controls, financial,
compliance and operational controls as well as risk management mechanisms once and considered
the risk management and internal control systems of the Company are adequate and being

implemented effectively.
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Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had established 144 securities branches, details of which are

set out in the following table:

Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

1 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun 3/F, Yigi Finance Building, No. 711 1990.5.12 Dong Xishen 0431-87626400
Dongfeng Avenue Securities Branch Dongfeng Avenue, Automotive Industry (EHR
(BRIEFRNHBBLARERBAAE Development Zone, Changchun, Jilin
FreEH) ([EREREMIERERRAAETI1H

—AHBRE=E)

2 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun Room 602, 6/F, Dianyueshangqi, No.2221  1990.5.12 Zhao Chunrui 0431-84947885
Dongnanhu Road Securities Branch Dongnanhu Road, Changchun Economic (HER)
(BRIEFRHERAINRERDHAR & Development Zone, Jilin (EME RS
BHexH) MEERERRENAR2221 R ROHH

6126025 %)

3 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hohhot Xincheng No. 62 Xincheng North Street, Hohhot, 1992.6.23 Lv Zhongkai 0471-3330759
North Street Securities Branch (BZiF %5 Inner Mongolia (N5 & B8R A& (B2
RIAERD RS AL E162%%)

FreEH)

4 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun Xi'an  15/F, No. 1077 Xi'an Blvd, Chaoyang 1992.11.27  Zhang Lifeng 0431-88497775
Blvd Securities Branch (ERIEAMHER  District, Changchun, Jilin (EHE KRBT (R &)
NAREARARESREXH) HHEARKKI10775158)

5 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun No. 1215 Beijing Avenue, Kuancheng 1993.4.23 Zhu Qingguo 0431-82703518
Beijing Avenue Securities Branch District, Changchun, Jilin(E#& K& (REE)
(BRIEFRNHBBLAARELRAE RHE I R AR 1215%)

FrexH)

6 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun 22/F and 23/F, No. 1055 Gongnong Road,  1993.4.24 Liu Guangsen 0431-85647591
Gongnong Road Securities Branch Chaoyang District, Changchun, Jilin (% (BIEH)
(BRESRNERAARELEAR W REMHAGETRAHK1056%22//23
FREEH) B

7 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hohhot Ulangab ~ 4/F, Building 102, Yuanyi Yujing 1993.6.4 Zhang Yu 0471-4962351
East Road Securities Branch (EZIE 5% Community, Ulangab East Road, Saihan (5R™)
HNERDAFMESSHEAREESEE  District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia (A5 &

#) BRRMAERTETRSREMREE
AR/ NE1025B4E)

8 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baotou Gangtie ~ 5/F, Commercial guild hall Office, No. 56 1993.10.22  Yang Huilin 0472-6990128
Street Securities Branch (BFRIE %17 Kunqu Gangtie Avenue, Baotou, Inner (FE3H)
BRRBEREREEFEEH) Mongolia (REH BRERETEEME

AE56F T E BB FiEE)
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Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

9 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hohhot Daxue ~ Rooms 1802-1804, 18/F, Mengxi Culture ~ 1993.10.22  Kang Cheng 0471-6286962
West Street Securities Branch (EZ&IE%  Square, Daxue West Street, Yuguan (BE3)
NERAFFMERAERGESEED) District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia (A5 &

REFAERETERRASAGHRAN
{tE%518/81802,1803,1804%%)

10 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chifeng Hada Building 1, Jiushenmiao neighborhood 1996.8.20 Zhang Hongyun 0476-8353933
Street Securities Branch (BFRILAMK 1 committee, Xitun Office, Hongshan (RAE)

RAGIREREGESE £ District, Chifeng, Inner Mongolia (A% &
BRRAETALRALRERNGEE
1%

11 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai No. 383 Xiangde Road Shanghai (E/8M# 1996.10.30  Lian Wanpeng 021-65085138
Xiangde Road Securities Branch (BFiI% 23835 (EBIE)

R ERAR DEREREFEEH)

12 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Meilin - Room 1001, 10th Floor, Unit B, Block B, ~ 1996.11.4 Liu Jianjun 0755-83534805
Road Securities Branch (EFRIEFHRMEMR  South Zone of Excellence Meilin Center (BIRE)

RARYIBHEESE %) Plaza, Meilin Road, Meilin Street, Futian
District, Shenzhen,Guangdong (BE 4 &
Y118 B R AR ET MR 2 G AR O
&% (E&)BEBET10/10013)

13 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai 4/F, No. 3399 Zhangyang Road, Pudong 1996.12.21 Li Lisong 021-68533517
Zhangyang Road Securities Branch (EZSE  District, Shanghai ( £/ ERATE FIFHE (FED)

HRODERAR DERGEEREEH) 33995 M E)

14 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd HLD Hexi Complex Office Building of Administration  1997.7.30 Zhu Shengwang 0470-8352899
development District Securities Branch Commission, Hailaer Economic and (KBZ)
(BRIEFBRHBERATEGHATERFMEEE  Technological Development Zone,

HEER) Hulunbeir, Inner Mongolia (A5 & E8E
TREBATELARSERMAREEZ
SRNGEE)

15 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Ulangab Jianshe  Room 301, 302, 303, Building K18 Anda ~ 1997.7.31 Guo Lifeng 0474-8222000
Road Securities Branch (BZIFARHER  Guoji Jiayuan, Enhe Road, Jining District, (1)
AEBHEAMBERRESLED) Ulangab, Inner Mongolia (A5 & B4R

ERENMEERRARLZAERZE
K181#301 » 302 * 303)

16 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hohhot Xilin No. 601, Block C, Yingjia Guoji, Xilin South  1997.8.5 Li Sheng 0471-6917051

South Road Securities Branch (BZ1E5 8 Road, Saihan District, Hohhot, Inner (ZE)

NERARMAERANEEESEXD)

Mongolia (NE & BRBFMERTEZE
RS %A RERCE01%)
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Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

17 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dongsheng No. 11 Erdos West Street, Dongsheng, 1997.8.13 He Jun 0477-8331678
Erdos Street Securities Branch Tﬁ?%iH? Inner Mongolia (A5 & BARRBTHE (%)

BRAERLARBIREMAGEFEEH)  SHAEE1R)

18  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Linhe District 4/F, Hua'ao Building, No.1 Shengli North ~ 1997.8.13 Cheng Xiaohu 0478-8226336
Shengli North Road Securities Branch (E Road, Linhe District, Bayannur, Inner (’/NRR)
FIFRNERLABABMILEZESREE  Mongolia (RRE B RBREEZBM A
) BENERIFERAENE)

19 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd WuHai Haila No. 26 Haila South Road, Haibowan 2000.8.3 Lv Zhongkai 0473-2017526
South Road Securities Branch (E&IE#M%  District, Wuhai, Inner Mongolia (R & (A
NERLAGSILARESEEH) BeR 58T EDERSHHE26%)

20 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun Room 1223-1228 & Room 1240-1244, 2000.9.18 Liu Hong 0431-87989955
Jingyang Road Securities Branch (8% Unit 2, Building A5, Zhonghai (B
FROERAAREEHAREFLEY) Kaixuanmen,Qimao Community East

Jingyang Road South, Lvyuan District,

Changchun, Jilin (& REMHER T
BNRNRESHARARR G EPIAGE
2B71223E-1228% + 1240Z-1244 %)

21 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Room 240, second Floor, Shenzhen Hotel, 2000.9.30 Gao Wa 010-63431907
Guang'anmenwai Street Securities Branch ~ No. 1 Guang'anmenwai Street, Xicheng (=)
(BRIEFRNBBAFNLRERIISAEE  District, Beijing t RMABREERFIIMNK
FEXH) HIRANRE2E 2405 F &)

22 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changchun Southern Zone, 15/F, Redbuds Hotel, No.  2002.2.27 Cui Chunyu 0431-82982159
Renmin Street Redbuds Securities Branch 5688 Renmin Street, Nanguan District, (EER)
(EREAERDERRAREARKEEAL  Changchun, Jilin (ERERETHEEA
BHEEH) RAH56885 LHAERE T LEAE)

23 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jilin Tongtan Rooms 1 & 2 & 3 & 4, building 5-1 2002.6.6 Su Xiurong 0432-62785999
Avenue Securities Branch (EZIE%AM(3E  Tongtan West Community, Changyi (EAR)
BRAGHREAREFE£L) District, Jilin City, Jilin Province (E#%

EMmEERREARS-11K1-2-3 4
FIERE)

24 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Rooms 101 & 201, Building No. 14 & 2003.3.28 Shi Min 010-84128668

Dongzhimennei North Alley Securities No. 18, North Alley, Dongzhimennei, (£8)

Branch (BFAEFRNAR AR RREM
mit/MEES 2% )

HENGTOU SECURITIES
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Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

25 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Rooms 1001-1004, No. 251 Xiaomugiao ~ 2003.5.16 Li Xiaogin 021-64433290
Xiaomugiao Road Securities Branch (8% Road, Xuhui District, Shanghai (L8 % (FEE)
EFRHERAR LS ARREFEEM  ER/AREHK25151001 - 1002 - 1003 -

1004%)

26 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Nanjing No. 203 Shuiximen Avenue, Jianye 2003.9.30 Chong Xinong 025-84780368
Shuiximen Avenue Securities Branch (E%&  District, Nanjing, Jiangsu (LEx& B R (ZEE)
EFRHERARBRKEFIAGEFEE  BERKEMIKAE203%)

i)

27 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hangzhou Fenggi Cells A-J, Room 801, No. 96 Fengqi Road, 2004.7.20 Chen Yiping 0571-85802451
Road Securities Branch (BZILAM AR Xiacheng District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang (BEF)

NERMBIEREERE £ (T &M T E B 29655801 FA-
JE)

28 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenyang Rooms 601-609, No.351 Fengtian Street,  2004.9.10 Heng Jianwei 024-86018088
Fengtian Street Securities Branch (BZRIE  Shenhe District, Shenyang, Liaoning (i (E’EE)
FROBRAREGERGEFEEH) BB mEEEXR3519(601-609)

29  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jinan Jiefang 4/F, Block A East, Guohua Building, 30-1  2006.11.29  Bai Rong 0531-81853932
Road Securities Branch (BZRIEAM(7ER  Jiefang Road, Jinan, Shandong (1L /& (B%)

REBARRBESEEH) AT RE30- 1Bl E X EARR )

30  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Tongliao Central ~ (Underground 114 and 115, 1-2/F, Building 2009.1.20 Zhang Bin 0475-8271162
Avenue Securities Branch (BZRIE &7 6, Halal Chech-in Halal Community) (RIE)
RATBERLOAEEFEED) Yong'an Middle Road, Khorchin District,

Tongliao, Inner Mongolia (A5 & B4R
BETHENRAKZETRBERFR
BRI E6#21-2BFH T E114Z - 115
%)

31 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chifeng Pingzhuanghahe Street East North, 2009.1.20 Wang Yuelong 0476-3517417
Pingzhuanghahe Street Securities Branch Yuanbaoshan District, Chifeng, Inner (2%
(BERIEARHERAARET TR Mongolia (AF & B/aRAET TEILE
2EH) FimAaR LR

32 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Rooms 1201 & 1202, No. 575 Wusong 2009.3.10 Chen Yong 021-65617128
Wusong Road Securities Branch (E251F%  Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (_£)& ()

RVERRA LERMBESFERH) i AR RMEE7551201 + 1202%)

33 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing 1/F,11A, and 2/F, 11B, Building 5, No. 76~ 2009.3.10 Yang liu 010-87751985

Dongsanhuan Central Securities Branch Baiziwan South Second Road, Chaoyang (B

(BRESRNERAALRR=FTEES

ES

District, Beijing At =R m#GRE FER =
HI6%ITERE1E11A ~ 2/E11B)
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34 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Xilinhot Tuanjie ~ Xinlinguole Hotel Business Building, 2009.5.11 Xu Changfeng 0479-8248846
Avenue Securities Branch (BZIFAMR{E  Tuanjie Avenue, Xilinhot, Inner Mongolia (rRE)
BRAGHEREEAEEFEEH) (AF & B aRHWERSTEEKEGHMD

BEEHZR)

35 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baotou Qingshan 10-103, Guanghui No.1 Community, 2009.6.8 Du Hongwei 0472-2629188
District Wenhua Road Securities Branch Jiankang Xincheng, No. 4 Minzhu (HZE)
(BRIARHERARBEEURLEE  Road, Qingshan District, Baotou, Inner
HFEEH) Mongolia (AR H BRRREMELER

TRAFED R R ELE—R10-103)

36 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baotou Youyi No. 126 Culture Creativity Park, No. 67 2009.6.8 Jin Xuxia 0472-2318629
Street Securities Branch (ERIEAM%E  Youyi Street, Qingshan District, Baotou, (E1BE)
RAGRBERAAGEREED) Inner Mongolia (N& & BB EEM S L

&R A #6753 X £ EE-126%)

37  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chifeng Tianyi ~ Unit 01012, No. B-16,Yulongjiayuan 2009.6.22 Yang Linfeng 0476-8828997
Road Securities Branch (BRIEAMAAR  Community, Tianyi Road West, Quanning (1BHi)

ARRERERBHFEED) Street North, Bajiazutuan, Xincheng
District, Chifeng, Inner Mongolia (5 &
BRBRETHNE \ZAEZEHILX
R EREKE/\EB-165701012)

38  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Erdos Xuejiawan 2/F, Donghua Commercial-residential 2009.6.23 Huang Haikuan 0477-4212298
Junggar Road SecuritiesBranch (E%&1F%  Building, Junggar Road South Power (EBE)
BOERLADESNER L EEEBEES  Supply Administration East, Xinglong
2E4) Avenue, Junggar Banner, Inner Mongolia

(AL ERERBEEEHEERRR
HHERRRERTE_2)

39  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd YakeshiQingsong Shop 1-8, First Floor, Complex Building, ~ 2009.10.23 ~ Geng Zhenshan 0470-7357266
Road Securities Branch (EZIEHRHER  Xingong Street Office, Qingsong Road (BkiRIL)
ARFRBBELRERFEED) East, Yakeshi, Inner Mongolia (RE % &

RETRATHINERENRRGAE
—EFm1-8%)

40  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Zhalantun Buteha Shop 1005, Building 6, Xiushui Yiyuan 2009.10.23  Yu Zhaojun 0470-3218089
North Road Securities Branch (BZ=1E5M  Community, Buteha Road, Zhalantun, (FKE)

BERLAEFEEM R EESEEH) Inner Mongolia (NE & B8 &% HHE TR
SR AR R65IE10057R)
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41 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Manchuria Shulin  3/F, Main Building of Jinding Building, 2009.10.23  Yue Hailong 0470-6239595
Road Securities Branch (EZIEHMHER  No. 17 Shulin Road, North District, (E5E)

RARMERRBESEED) Manchuria, Inner Mongolia (RE & B34
BRMNETLRERK TR RAETE
=)
42 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Erenhot Xinhua ~ No. 010110, Building 5, Xuefuxinyuan 2009.11.4 Huo Dongsheng ~ 0479—7517860

Avunue Securities Branch (BFiE& (D Community, Xinhua Avunue North (BRE)
BRAIZEESNENGERFEE) Qianjin Road West, Erenhot, Inner

Mongolia (R & BJRE Z @& Hm
EXMHL - AEREENERRETE

010110%)

43 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Alashan League  Minsheng Garden Shop, Jilantai Road 2009.11.23  Zhang Mei 0483-8351609
Bayanhaot Jilantai Road Securities Branch  South, Bayanhaot Town, Alashan League (K3
(BRIFBHERARMUZEEEESS  Alashan Left Banner, Inner Mongolia (7
BRBEREED) MU ERMAELEEEERRER

TREREERES)

44 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jilin Panshi Rooms 6 and 7, No. 11 Longchang 2010.2.9 Bie Wei 0432-65041516

Dongning Street Securities Branch (BZ1E  Shangcheng, Dongning Street, Panshi, (RIIE)

FRNERARGHERREEEFLED)  Jin EHREERTREGRE LHNRE
6 75:F9)

45 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baishan Hunjiang Justice Bureau, Xinjian Street, Badaojiang  2010.3.17 Li Jie 0439-3299456
Street Securities Branch (BFIE#M 1 District, Baishan, Jilin (E#M& AL N\E (ZH)
BARBLETINEEFEED) IEIRERERMD)

46 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Tonghua No. 665 Dongchang Road, Dongchang 2010.8.5 Jing Yafu 0435-3707171
Dongchang Road Securities Branch (8% District, Tonghua, Jilin (& BILmR (ETX)
IEFROERARABCRERES &) ER R 2 %665%)

47  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baicheng No. 2-2 Changging South Street, 2010.10.25  XuKe 0436-3202666
Changging South Street Securities Branch ~ Baicheng, Jilin (574 Bm REREH (&%)
(EFREARHERLABAREREERE 2220
3

48  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Liaoyuan Hening  Shop 102, Building G2, Yangguang 2010.10.28  Feng Dong 0437-6678008
Street Securities Branch (BFRILAMK 1 Xincheng-Dongxing Shanyucheng, (2%

RAGERNEGESFEE) Hening Street, Xi'an District, Liaoyuan,

Jiin EREERTAZRAZEE TN
REIEHG2571E102P9)
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49 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Qianguo Hasaer  2/F, No.18 & No.19 Zongshe Shanggi, 2011.3.16 Sun Yuman 0438-6620000
Road Securities Branch (EFIEABMAER  Jinzuo Estate, Wenzhiwei District, (52
ARpBRERREFE £ Hasaer Road, Qianguo County, Jilin (&

WENDERERR R R e BESER
18+ 19=EmH)

50  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Erdos Dalad Zonghe Building, Xinni Street South Xinhua 2011.10.24  Li Chunping 0477-5223035
Banner Securities Branch (EZIE A (7 Road East, Shulinzhao Town, Dalad (ZFTF)
RARSALIMENREESE£H) Banner, Erdos, Inner Mongolia (N5 4 &

RESRLTEA SRR AR
MATERREAE)

51 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhai Wuda Room 301, No. 1 Jiefang South Road, 2011.10.24  Liu Qiuli 0473-3029977
District Bayinsai Street Securities Branch ~ Wuda District, Wuhai, Inner Mongolia (7 (BIFAF)
(BERIFROERAASESEREEEE FLERREETEERBRRERIRI01
BHEE) Z)

52 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Baotou Salagi Shop No. 4, Main Tower of Tumed Right ~ 2012.3.16 Wang 0472-8921256
Zhenhua Street Securities Branch (B%&1E  Hotel, Tumed Right Banner, Baotou, Xiangyang
FROERAFABEENEREAHESE  Inner Mongolia (RF 4 BREBEM T H (EMAE)

E3=) BEEREAGTRERTRINEE

53 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chifeng Huaxin Community, Daning Road East, 2012.3.16 Chen Shichao 0476-4255161
Ningcheng Daning Road Securities Branch  Tianyi Town, Ningcheng County, (B thiB)
(BRIERNEBAANFESHAERES  Chifeng, Inner Mongolia (W5 & EJARTR
25 BHERGRZEAERRA(ESR))

54 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chaozhou Shop 11 and 12, No. 1 Haiyi, Chengxinxi ~ 2014.1.13 Ye Xi 0768-2520003
Chengxinxi Road Securities Branch (B% Road, Xianggiao District, Chaozhou, (EmE)
IESFRHERAABMBHEREFEEH)  Guangdong (BREMMTEBENHT

KRR 12585 H)

b5 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Finance ~ Room 507, 5/F, Block C, No. 33 Finance ~ 2014.1.13 Gao Jia 010-56673868
Street Securities Branch (BFRL AR Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (1t i (&)
RAALRERAGESEEH) P& & B A #3355 CAEBE507)

56 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Liuxiang  Room 104, 1/F, Building 2, No. 88 Liuxiang 2014.1.13 Zu Linlin 010-56762190
Road Securities Branch (B IEAMR(ER  Road, Fengtai District, Beijing (1t R & (1B 33H)

N REBEEFEEH) A EBAEe8R25E1/E104)

57  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 701,Yangguang Gao'erfu Building, ~ 2015.1.12 Shi Buren 0755-82828137

Shennan Avenue Securities Branch (2% Shennan Avenue, Futian District, (i)

BN ERARRIREAEEFEEH)

HENGTOU SECURITIES
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58  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Zhongshan Block 20, Building 81/82/83/85, Shunjing  2015.1.22 Li Jianhua 0760-88833653
Zhongshan Forth Road Securities Branch Garden, East District, Zhongshan, (FEE)
(BRIFRMEBARTLPLTNEESE  Guangdong (RREFUTREIBZEE
%) 81/82/83/851%20)

59  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Liaocheng Room 1027, Fortune Center Building, 2015.1.26 Wang Peng 0635-2110887
Dongchang Road Securities Branch (B% No. 86 Dongchang Road, Economic (15
EARHBBARAMRRERESEED) and Technological Development Zone,

Liaocheng, Shandong (L34 B3 i 45 &
BT ERERE BRI EROAE027
%)

60  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Weifang Fushou  Room 601, No. 1 Jinnuo Building, No. 2015.1.29 Zhao Wenyuan 0536-8986553
East Street Securities Branch (BZE% 5603 Fushou East Street, Kuiwen (#3058)
HERDFESRSREEFEED) District, Weifang, Shandong (LLIE4&

MENERSRA603F1FESHEAE
601%)

61  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Qingdao Donghai No.16A Donghai Middle Road,Shinan 2015.2.3 Pang Jian 0532-85710711
Middle Road Securities Branch (E%&1F%  District, Qingdao, Shandong (LR£&& (Eef2)
ROBRAREERETRELEEH) T & R 165 F)

62  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Hennan Room 15J, 13/F, No. 33 Hennan South 2015.3.6 Meng Shuang 021-62030568
South Road Securities Branch (EZIF#4 %  Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai (& (&%)

PERAR LETRAREFEEH) MEARTHEEIRI13E1E)

63  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Room 807, No. 858 Longhua East Road, ~ 2015.3.18 Yang Shifang 021-63357216
Longhua East Road Securities Branch (2 Huangpu District, Shanghai (F/8T & (IHHF)

FEFROHERRF LEEERREFEEX  REFRNKE8H07E)
#)

64  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Guangzhou Self Unit 12, Room 3801, No. 17 Zhujiang  2015.3.20 Lu Liang 020-38206520
Zhujiang West Road Securities Branch (E West Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, (E52)
FIEAFBROEBRRREMKIAREFES Guangdong (BEREBMTRABLIA
) B1753801E B R 122 )

65  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Guanghua Room B207A, 2/F, Building 30, No. 8 2015.6.18 Liu Teng 010-65921230
Road Securities Branch (EFUE#AER  Guanghua Road, Chaoyang District, (31%8)

DAL RREREFEED) Beijing (3t T4 & ft £ B 895 B 3018 —
EB207AER)

66  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dalian Southwest Unit 07, 19/F, Sanhe Building, NO.929 2015.6.26 Zhang Lei 0411-68837268

Road Securities Branch (EZ A1 AR  Southwest Road, Shahekou District, (K%

AAIREREREFEEL) Dalian, Liaoning (EZEA AEMPAOE

AR 9295 = A AE19E075)
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67  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Qingdao No.7a-9 Yanerdao Road, South District, 2015.6.30 Fan Shuhui 0532-86108627
Yanerdao Road Securities Branch (EZ&f  Qingdao, Shandong (LREEEMHEE (BERE)
FROBRAAEERZEREFZED) RSB H-95)

68  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Zhichun ~ Room 1293, 12/F, Building 1, No. 128 2015.7.1 Zhao Yajing 010-62423585
Road Securities Branch (EZIE#MM AR Zhichun Road, Haidian District, Beijing (B )

RELRMERESEFH) (R ERAFR1 2851512128
1293)

69  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changzhou No. 7-105, Fuxi Garden Shop, Xinbei 2015.7.2 Chen Le 0519-85551099
Longjin Road Securities Branch (E%&IE%  District, Changzhou, Jiangsu (T &% &M (BRge)
BROERAREMEREEFEEH) AR A EE#7-105%)

70 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chongging Room 13-6, Building 3, No.40 Donghu 2015.7.8 Shen Jie 023-63109978
Taishan Avenue Securities Branch (EZ1E  South Road, North New District, (B4
FROBRAFAZEERILABEFZEH) Chongaing (EE Tt 24T E R AR 405%

31E13-6)

71 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhan Xibeihu ~ No. 99 Beihu Road, Jianghan District, 2015.7.14 Fan Chunhua 027-85898177
Road Securities Branch (BRIEFR{AAER ~ Wuhan, Hubei (Hit & REMITERILH (BEE)
RERERILAREFSEH) NEE995R)

72 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Lanhua Room 1207, No.333 Lanhua Road, Pudong 2015.7.20 Li Jianhao 021-50800860
Road Securities Branch (EZRIEAMMBER  New District,Shanghai (EATREEHE FE=)

NELEREBEFEED) WTEIR3335%1207%)

73 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Shop 18, Lobby 1/F, Unit D2, 15/F, No.778 2015.7.21 Chen Shaofeng 021-31089988
Dongfang Road Securities Branch (EZ5ilf  Dongfang Road, Shanghai Pilot Free (RDE)

ERNERDA LERABRELZLED) Trade Zone, Shanghai (F/8BME 7%
BRFKTI8H 15028 - 1ERE18
i)

74 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Shangdi ~ Room 102, Door 3, 1/F, Building 3, Shangdi 2015.7.31 Cheng Zhanhua 010-82899169
Third Street Securities Branch (E&IEAM  Information Industry Base Third Street, (B5E)
RERARLR L =HE5E %) Haidian District, Beijing (1t /& E @ £

iz BEREM =35 21/E3F1102)

75 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Lujiazui Room 31026, 31/F, No. 66 Huayuan 2015.85 Huang Hui 021-61086538
Securities Branch (BZRIEARMABR AR Shigiao Road, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade (E1B)

HEERERA2ET) Zone, Shanghai (EBEHE SHBETE
RE#665731E31026%)

76 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Haining Room 1905, No. 469 Wusong Road, 2015.8.12 Pan Xiaoli 021-66275131

Road Securities Branch (EZIEARHER  Hongkou District, Shanghai (/&40 (RER)

AALEERESERE)

HENGTOU SECURITIES
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77 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dongguan Rooms 1101, 1102 and 1103, Finance 2015.8.12 Ruan Hai 0769-81198561
Dalang Meijing Middle Road Securities Building, No. 568 Meijing Middle Road, (Bri8)

Branch (EFIIARINEBAGRZAEE  Changtang Community, Dalang Town,

FRREFEE) Dongguan, Guangdong (ER & R
AAEREHEXRTHO68KEMAE
1101+ 1102 * 1103%)

78  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Foshan Foping ~ Shop 2/F, Yujing City Garden Qumingxuan, 2015.8.24 Xie Wen 0757-86288102
Road Securities Branch (EZIEFM{H AR  No. 6 Guichengfoping Third Road, (#X)

REBILBTRESEED) Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong (&
REBITREEENHET=RBeTHRM
mEEEEEE_ERH)

79 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hangzhou Room 1008, Building 1, Xinyada 2015.8.25 Jin Zhenyao 0571-86965997
Jianghong Road Securities Branch (EZ=1E  International Creative Center, No. 1750 (218
FROERAAMMIIRBEREED) Jianghong Road, Binjiang District,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang (3T & MU &S T
BITABR1 750K ERERR A F.0 108
1008%)

80  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hangzhou Xixi ~ No. 529-3 Xixi Road, West Lake District, ~ 2015.8.26 Wang Weifang 0571-86538803
Road Securities Branch (BRIEAMAAR  Hangzhou, Zhejiang (AT & MM M FHE (EEH)

REAMMNEEREFZEH) o E$529-35)

81  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Yitian  5007B-5008, 50/F, Zhuoyue Times Square, 2015.8.27 Wu Rongrong 0755-82801189
Road Zhuoyue Times Square Securities No. 4068 Yitian Road, Futian Street, (&%)

Branch (ERIEHMRHBERLAFIIZAE  Futian District, Shenzhen (R & RIIH
SHRRESESE M) RERRHEERAK40687 ZHIES
501£5007B-5008)

82  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Yanan  Room 2607, No.1116 Yanan West Road, ~ 2015.9.6 Xu Enlei 021-62379677
West Road Securities Branch (BZRIE#5[  Changning District ,Shanghai (/8 & (RBE)

DERLR LEELRARESEEH) ERIERAE1116%2607%)

83  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wenzhou Gu'an  Rooms 001 and 014, 3/F, Building 1, 2015.9.6 Chen Kai 0577-88709188
Road Securities Branch (EZIEAMMER  Yixiang Business Building, Ouhai (B1=)

REEMAERESEEH) District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang (/4 &M
MEEREREEE 11E3E001 - 014)

84 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Caoxi  Room 704, No.398 Caoxi North Road, 2015.9.10 Sun Jianing 021-62785699

North Road Securities Branch (EZ-IE% M Xuhui District, Shanghai (L/&M#:ERE (BES)

PERAR LEEEILEREFERE)

B §539855 704 %)
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85  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing, Room 308, Block A, Beiruanshuangxin 2015.9.14 Zhang Jia 010-62596752
Beixinzhuang Road Securities Branch ({8 Kechuangyuan, Beixinzhuang Road, (R
FIEAFBROEBRRA R FEREFES Sijiging Town, Haidian District, Beijing
#) QtRTERENEFEL FERI BN

REIEAB308R )

86  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Taizhou Shifu No. 387 and 389 Shifu Avenue, Taizhou, ~ 2015.9.16 Liu Liangping 0576-89039186
Avenue Securities Branch (BFIL#(7 Zhejiang (4114 &M T AE387 BIRF)
RARGMARAEEFEEH) 389%)

87  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Guangzhou Tiyu  Room 1205, No. 103 Tiyu West Road, 2015.9.18 Zeng Jianyuan 020-38479013
West Road Securities Branch (EZIE%A  Tianhe District, Guangzhou, Guangdong (B2
HERARBMEERRES LX) (BREEMMATEEEFHK10351205

)

88  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Xujiahui Room 19C, No. 555 Xujiahui Road, 2015.9.21 Li Jingjing 021-63083060
Road Securities Branch (EZIE#MER  Huangpu District, Shanghai (£/8 M= (&)

RAELBRREREFE XN B ARKERD55519CE)

89  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Yantai Yingchun ~ Rooms 1903 & 1904, 19/F, Block One, 2015.9.23 Xing Xiaoliang 0535-2106601
Avenue Securities Branch (BZiE%5ME  Runhua Building, No. 177 Yingchun =2
RAREENENGELFLEL) Avenue, Laishan District, Yantai,

Shandong (L& EEMRILRIDERE
1773 BEAE 5219219031904
%)

90  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Zhuhai Jiuzhou  No. 01, 7/F, Block A, Fuhuali Center 2015.9.30 Guo Xiangfu 0756-8626355
Avenue Fuhuali Securities Branch (E3iE  Office, 2021 Jiuzhou Avenue West, (F1Em)
FRODERATDNENMNRESERZESE  Zhuhai, Guangdong (BRATRETAMNAK
) ER0NHEEET LR TRAETEO

)

91  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shijiazhuang No. 1805, Ximei Wuzhou Building, Yaging  2015.10.9 Lv Haijun 0311-66500778
Huaian Road Securities Branch (B%&if%  Street,Yuhua District, Shijiazhuang, (BEE)
ROBRARNARERLZERFEEH) Hebei (13L& AR MHEREFHFE

R AE 1805%)

92 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Unit 1208, Zhengzhong Times Building, 2015.10.9 Long Xiaoling 0755-89452231

Longcheng Street Securities Branch (828 No.89 Longcheng Avenue, Longcheng (BE/MR)

RO ERATRIEAA SRS ELD

HENGTOU SECURITIES
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93  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 1603, New World Center, No.6009, 2015.10.9 Shen Jing 0755-23909699
Fuzhong Road North Securities Branch (8 Yitian Road, Lianhua Street, Futian (L#)
REHFRHBBARRIBRRILEHE? District, Shenzhen, Guangdong (EX %

#) RY[TTIE R BT 4 H 560095 At
REBHL1603E)

94 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Jiaxing Nanhu Room B1601, Building 1, Business 2015.10.13  ZhengYi 0573-82513531
Avenue Securities Branch (BFIE A (7 & Finance Tower, Economic and (&%)
RAGEEBHAEEREED) Technological Development Zone,

Jiaxing, Zhejiang (41)1 74 32 B 48 E R
FEREBLRARENBI601)

95  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Taiyuan Pingyang Shops 1001,1002 & 1003, 3/F, 14#, No. ~ 2015.10.13  Xie Yueqing 0351-3958073

Road Securities Branch (ERIE5R1WER 65, Pingyang Road, Xiaodian District, (HEW

REARYGRESEER) Taiyuan, Shanxi (LLFE K ET/NER T
B53655% 14#=/E1001 * 1002 * 1003% %

)

96  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Room 1717, No. 16 Huayuan Road, 2015.10.13
Huanyuan Road Securities Branch (BZ5iE  Hongkou District, Shanghai (84 A
HRDERAR DEEEREFEEH) BEERB1651717%)

97  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Room 509, 5th Floor, Block B, No. 495 2015.10.19
Shangzhong Road Securities Branch (E%  Shangzhong Road, Xuhui District,

EFRAERAR LB FRBEFEEH) Shanghai (FBTRER -H 4955 B
51#509%)

98  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Liuzhou Tianshan 2-2-9 Tianshangcheng Community, 2015.10.21
Road Securities Branch (EZIEAMH AR No.245 Shuinan Road, Liuzhou, Guangxi
REVINRILBE %S %) (EFE WM Tk R 2455 K I L3/ B

2-2-9%,)
99  Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Nanning Minzu ~ Rooms 2207 and 2208, 22/F, Bogongguoji, 2015.10.27

Avenue Securities Branch (BZIE &7
ROFHERKAEZEREED)

No.127 Minzu Avenue, Qingxiu District,
Nanning, Guangxi (B EEEMEARR
BRE1275R A= BIIR 22182207 - 22085%
%)

06A09, 5/F, No. 2 Dongsanhuan North
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (1t &
HABER =R 255E06A09)

100 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing 2015.11.2
Dongsanhuan North Road Securities
Branch (ERIEFRNBBAFLRR =R

EEFEZEE)

Zhang Baichuan
(=l

Huang Dan

(EF)

Yu Jing
(T

Qu Chi
(®5h)

Lin Pu
(@)

021-66081821

021-64321658

0772-8807519

0771-5535796

010-84464188
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Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches (Continued)

Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

101 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Qihe  Block B, 1/F, 251 Qihe Road, Pudong 2015.11.3 Feng Qiang 021-50308398
Road Securities Branch (BZRIEFRHER  District, Shanghai (/BT REIEET K (%)

RE LT KRS S EH) 2515 —[EBE)

102 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hangzhou Room 1806, Building 1, No. 217 Wujiang ~ 2015.11.3 Wang Bao 0571-86979032
Wujiang Road Securities Branch (EZx1E%  Road, Shangcheng District, Hangzhou, (£8)

RABRAGMMETLEES %) Zhejiang (AT EHMT HHRETHE217
$19%E1806%)

103 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Rui‘an No. 422 and 424 Gongruishan Road 2015.11.9 Jin Hairu 0577-66889168
Gongruishan Road Securities Branch (8% Anyang Street, Rui'an, Zhejiang (#1/1% (&/8%)
EFROERAGZHE R UBEFEEDR)  wRmRGHBHIRILNEA22 - 424%)

104 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Xinhua ~ Room 2302,23/F, Building 3, No.58 Xinhua 2015.11.11 Feng Zhaojin 010-85772321
Avenue Securities Branch (BRII#{3E  West Street, Tongzhou District, Beijing (HER2)
BRRLRMERGEFEEH) CERT @M E S E R #0685 35223 E

2302)

105 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wuhan Guanggu Room 1706, 17/F, Rongzhong International 2015.11.18  Li Jing 027-87680670
International Square Securities Branch (B Office Building, the north of Luoyu Road (Z&)
RIEFRHBBLRARELBEBESES  and the west of Lumo Road, East Lake
EEH) High-Tech Development Zone, Wuhan,

Hubei (#3L& BUEM RS RITAEEE
MBI BERNARRERS TR
E1706%)

106 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 13C, Shenmao Commerce Center,  2015.11.24  Sun Rui 0755-82529525
Xinwen Road Securities Branch (E%1I%  No.59 Xinwen Road, Lianhua Street, (%3
BOBERADFHERESE L) Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

(BRE R MEERETHBNERKL%
REEEFD13C)

107 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Boshan Room 109B and Room C, No. 6, Lane 202, 2015.12.9 Wang 021-68781070
Road Securities Branch (EFRIEH&EMR  Boshan Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Yonghong
RAILBELBERE %) Free Trade Zone (FEI(L)8) BHEF 3, (TBZ)

BEIEI202%6571098 « CZ)

108 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Nanhu Room 102,Building 4, No. 16 Nanhu South  2015.12.12  Zhang Ge 010-64738862
South Road Securities Branch (EZ=1E58%  Road, Chaoyang Distrist, Beijing (3t = (&X)
HNERRALRENERESE£H) HEEDEREK 1654521025

109 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenyang Room 902, Block A, Tongfang Building, 2015.12.14  Gao Xiufeng 024-82573500
Hunnan Third Road Securities Branch (B No.1-8 Hunnan Third Road, Hunnan (BHE)

FIFRNERATEGEI=BEFEER
)

HENGTOU SECURITIES

District, Shenyang, Liaoning (ZZ4 &5
B ER =K 1-8A A AEAREILE)



Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches (Continued)

Date of Person in
No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)
110 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Wanfeng  Unit A2-13, 2/F, Block A, Wankai Center,  2015.12.14  Xue Fenxia 010-83669805
Road Securities Branch (EZIEFRHER  No. 316 Wanfeng Road, Fengtai District, (EWE)
RAGREEREFZEH) Beijing Ik RME S BE L3165 ER T
DABE2EBA2-13ETT)
111 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Jintian 30A, Shidai-Caifu Building,Futian District, ~ 2015.12.16  Liu Zhenfu 0755-23913045
Road Securities Branch (B4 M{ER  Shenzhen,Guangdong (BRE FYhER BEE)
RERIEHBESSED) ERMEERAREREEAEI0A
112 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Hangzhou Room 1006, Building 3, Qianjiang 2015.12.16  Yan Yueping 0571-87899209
Fuchun Road Securities Branch (EZ&1E%  International Times Square, Jianggan (R
BHOERDAMMEEREREER) District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang (#1iT & il
I #EEETARERES3E1006%)
113 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shaoxing Shengli Room 1301, Shimao Horizon Center, 2016.1.18 Zhang Ye 0575-88002391
Road Securities Branch (’\‘ﬁé’?ﬁ#ﬂ%’ﬁﬁﬂﬁ No. 379 Shengli East Road, Yuecheng (E)
REREBNRESE %) District, Shaoxing, Zhejiang (T &4
T R B RIS BR 3795t S R IR AR
1301%)
114 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Huizhou Bailuhu  Room 07,1/F, Building 4,Hubin Fengging ~ 2016.1.18 Liu Wei 0752-7399393
Securities Branch (BRIEFRH AR A Commercial Street, No. 1 Yajule Avenue, (B1R0)
ENOBENEFLE) Ruhu Town, Huicheng District, Huizhou,
Guangdong (BR & EMNT B ELHE
BEEREIFHERBRFEHMRIE0T
5
115 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Tianjin Room 602, Ronggiao Center Office 2016.1.19 Li Qiang 022-83698158
Changjiang Avenue Securities Branch (8 Building, the intersection of Changjiang (Z8)
RIEFROHBERRARERIBEFZEH)  Avenue and Nankai Sixth Road, Nankai
District, Tianjin (X MR R &ITEERE
RASEROEBETLETEE)
116 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Jintian  Room 4702,Golden Central Tower, 2016.1.21 Mai Lv 0755-22922980
Road Golden Central Tower Securities No.3037 Jintian Road, Futian Street, (E47)
Branch (ERUEFBRHBERAFAFYIEMAE  Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
SHREESEEN (BRE XY MREREREESMHE3037
FEPREBAEIT02E)
117 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shaoxing 103 & 105, 1/F, Zhongxing South Road, 2016.1.27 Shen Liuyue 0575-85223533
Zhongxing South Road Securities Branch ~ Yuecheng District, Shaoxing, Zhejiang (e A)

(BRIFENERATARDRERERE
)

(TEAEN S ETERERK103 105
)
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Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches (Continued)

Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)
118 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Room 303, Unit 7, No. 1599 Xinjingiao 2016.1.28 FuLei 021-60758505

Xinjingiao Road Securities Branch (fE%1F  Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade (%)

FROBRAF LENEBREFZED) Zone, Shanghai (DETHE (LG EHRE

HRBENEEH 15995 71E303E)

119 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Changsha Jinxing Room 1806, 18/F, Office Building, Jiaxing  2016.1.29 ZhouGuanliang 0731-83091899

Road Securities Branch (EZIEHMHER  International Grand Hotel, No. 67 (ARR)

RERD G EREHFLEH) Xianjiahu West Road, Yuelu District,

Changsha, Hunan (@4 RO T EERE
FAEROTRERER NBESFIE1618

1806/%)

120 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Room 904, No.1065 Zhongshan West 2016.2.2 Feng Yuangang
Zhongshan West Road Securities Branch Road, Changning District, Shanghai (- Vo)
(BRIFROHERAF LETIIERESE  BHRERTILERK10655%904%)

)

121 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Zhengzhou Room 1, East of 1/F and 2/F, Building 24,  2016.2.15 Shi Jin
Nanyang Road Securities Branch (E%%1E%  No. 206 Nanyang Road, Jinshui District, (£#)
ROBRATDMEHERESE %) Zhengzhou, Henan (TE%& Bl & K&

A5 206% 24511 -2BR15)

122 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 201, Block A, 1 Qianwan First 2016.2.24 He Ling
Qianhai Securities Branch (BFRIE#M 7 Road, Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong (fA135)
RARRIEEESE £ Kong Cooperation Zone, Shenzhen,

Guangdong (9J, Fengye Tower, Nanshan
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen) (&
RERTRIERBLERAE—K1HA
B201E(RYITRILERILABRERE
9J))

123 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dalian Huizhan ~ Rooms 2 and 3, 11/F, Building 3, No. 67  2016.3.16 Wang Yu
Road Securities Branch (B%&IF5{H AR Huizhan Road, Shahekou District, Dalian, (E4F)
RAABEREEFZRH) Liaoning (EE& XEM YA 0BG RHK67

FIELI1E2 - 3%)
124 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Zibo Jinjing Road Shop 22, Yijielongfengyuan Community, ~ 2016.3.17 Li Lei

Securities Branch (EFIEARHEBAAF  Jinjing Road, Boshan District, Zibo, (ZE)
KEERREFEEY) Shangdong (LRESEMELERE &K

afERE Rt -REH)

HENGTOU SECURITIES

021-23560170

0371-55268382

0755-86969582

0411-82310300

05633-4913277



Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches (Continued)

Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

125 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Linyi Guangzhou North side of 3/F, Block A of Yanjie 2016.3.17 Wang Jingbao 0539-8606369
Road Securities Branch (BZRIEARHER  Building, Daguanyuan Community, (ERE)

ARETEMNBESE£E) Intersection of Guangzhou Road and
Menghe Road, Liuging Avenue, Lanshan
District, Linyi, Shandong (Il R & B
BLRNEHERNBERER TR IERT
JEEEAR =LA

126 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Xianyou 825 3/F, Lanxihuayuan Premises, No. 45825 2016.3.25 Zheng 0594-8097766
Street Securities Branch (BRILAMH Street, Licheng Avenue, Xianyou County, Zhangwen
BRAMIBN - EAHRFLEH) Putian, Fujian (8724 & H il 82 &85 (BHEX)

HENZRAHRRELRERE=E)

127 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Xi'an Gaoxin Room 1803, PICC (Shaanxi) Financial 2016.3.29 Wang Hao 029-89132956
Third Road Securities Branch (BZF 4%  Building, No. 12 Gaoxin Third Road, (T%)
HERARAALRRNZREFLEED Zhangba Street Office, Gaoxin District,

Xi'an, Shaanxi (RAE AL M= HELN
R =R125% P EARKE (RFE) €
BAE1803%)

128 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen 11LMN, Block A, Haoming Fortune Plaza, 2016.4.6 Wu Gang 0755-83980166
Xianglin Road Securities Branch (E%&1E%  No. 7002 Shennan Blvd, Xiangmihu (S0)

B BERARRIENBEEHE £ Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong (BREFIIMBEHESRE
HEERAAET002E%E B EBAE
T1LMN)

129 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Dongguan No.1007, 10/F, Fukang Commercial 2016.4.6 Li Sutao 0769-82226576
Huangjiang Securities Branch (BZ&iE%5M  Building, Fukang Garden, Banhu (336
NERAFAIREEIEHE£) Village, Huangjiang Town, Dongguan,

Guangdong (BR & R m & LHERM T
ERCEEREEAE10E10075)

130 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Wenzhou Jinxiu  Room 515, Building 1, Zhixin Center, No. ~ 2016.4.8 Feng Xiao 0577-85228658
Road Securities Branch (EZIEAM{HAR 1067 Jinxiu Road, Lucheng District, (%)

ARRMBEREREEL) Wenzhou, Zhejiang (i T & B M TR E
HRRI1067REETL1EBE15F)

131 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 104, Block A, Skyworth Building, 2016.4.12 Yin Wenzhu 0755-26911575

Gaoxinnan No. 1 Road Securities Branch No. 8 Gaoxinnan No. 1 Road, Yuehai (ED3CHE)

(BRIFRNERARRIGHE—BES

2XH)

Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong (BR & RIIT R ILEE /5
BRI —B008H Al REAREI04E)
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Appendix Particulars of Securities Branches (Continued)

Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

132 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Guangzhou Room 1505, Office Tower, CITIC Plaza, 2016.4.13 Liu Haitao 020-38909661
Tianhe North Road Securities Branch (8%  No. 233 Tianhe North Road, Tianhe (BE%)
EHRHBBARBMNKTILEERFEES)  District, Guangzhou, Guangdong (BRA

EMTRAERILE233F R E RS
AKE1506%)

133 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Fuzhou Software Room B, 24/F, Building 3, Block F, Fuzhou 2016.4.14 Zhou Xin 0591-83300507
Avenue Securities Branch (EZRIEA 7 Software Park,No.89 Software Avenue, ()
RARBMNEERERSEEH) Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian (B4 78

MTSERE G RESIR BN KRS
224 EB)

134 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Room 1005, Unit 2, 10/F, Building 2, 2016.4.15 Zhang Xiaoming 010-82916166
Jiancaicheng West Road Securities Branch ~ No. 87 Jiancaicheng West Road, (REH)
(BRIEFRHERLALREMBARES  Huilongguan Town, Chanping District,

BEH) Beijing (It =& T EREERRMAA
8752572 10828 711005)

135 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Qingnian  Room 31804, 18/F, Building 3, No. 7 2016.4.22 Zhang Weiqging 010-87141707
Road Securities Branch (EZIEAMMER  Courtyard, Qingnian Road, Chaoyang (REE)

AALREEREFEED) District, Beijing (It R #AZREFHTH:
Fr35%1218/231804/%)

136 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Room 1308, Vanke Tower, Longxiang Blvd, 2016.4.25 Zhu Ming 0755-88312899
Longxiang Blvd Securities Branch (EZ&R1E  Longcheng Avenue, Longgang District, (RH)
FRABERDAREIAREEFZED) Shenzhen, Guangdong (B & Rl

REMEEEANNBERANE1308)

137 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shanghai Rooms1242 & 1243, No.133 Haichao 2017.2.17 Shi Hui 021-58358085
Haichao Road Securities Branch (E%1F%  Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai(_£/& iz
BRAERLR LEEHREFEXH) BRRIENH13391242 - 1243%)

138 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Ningbo Yongjiang (2-2) Block 005, No. 48, Block 6, No. 168  2017.2.24 Chen Lin 0574-55337786
Avenue Securities Branch (BFIL# (7 Yongjiang Avenue, Yinzhou District, (38
RARERBINERSEEH) Ningbo, Zhejiang (/L& EXHHMNEE

JTKiE168%% 61248570051 (2-2) %)

139 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Room 0510, Zhongfang Building, No. 19 2017.2.27 Wu Xiaohui 010-65262718

Jianguomen Nei Avenue Securities Branch  Jianguomen Nei Avenue, Dongcheng (fh/)\B8)

(BFREARNERAAL REBFIAAEE
FERH)

HENGTOU SECURITIES

District, Beijing At R RAREEFRA
195 R 5 RNE0S10E)



Date of Person in

No. Name Office address (in China) incorporation charge Contact No. (+86)

140 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Financial  Room 1001, 10/F, Building 17, Nos. 17, 2017.3.6 Dong Feng 010-83270881
Street Second Securities Branch (E%&1F%  17A, 17B, and 17C Financial Street, (E)
BROBRAFTNREBMAHE-_FHEEH  Xicheng District, Beijing St RTEMES

BAE175 - F17% - 2175 RU7%
1751210/1001)

141 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Guang'an Rooms 0414-0415, 4/F, Building 3, No. 9 2017.3.17 Liu Yuging 010-63361221
Road Securities Branch (EZRIE#MMER  Guang'an Road, Fengtai District, Beijing (BlFE)

RALREREESEEH) (ERTE R REZRITIIFE4E
0414 - 0415%)

142 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Chengdu Renmin No. 1001, Building 2, Shangshan Guoji, 2017.4.24 Peng Yan 028-85011007
South Road Securities Branch (B No.46-1 Renmin South Road Forth #E)
HNERDARBAREBREREE) Portion, Wuhou District, Chengdu,

Sichuan (M) B HB TR EEARERN
FR46%: 115 L ZEIR2ER10015%)

143 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Beijing Beichen 1009, Unit 4, 9-10/F, No.69 Beichen West 2017.5.8 Li Jian Jun 010-58772228
West Road Securities Branch (EZIE4M  Road, Chaoyang District, Beiiing (1t & (ZFEE)
PRERARLRIRAERES LX) BRI RFEHK6959Z 10/84E 7T 1009)

144 Hengtai Securities Co., Ltd Shenzhen Unit 34E1,Block E,Building 6, Dachong 2017.5.10 Hao Ying 0755-86713626
Tonggu Road Securities Branch (EZ1E%  Business Center (Block E, CR Land (&)

BOBRDARFSHEEFE )

Building), No. 9672 Shennan Blvd, Shahe
Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong (BER&RYIT LR
ERAABIOT2R A HEE R OETIBERE
(FHERMARER)ME1ET)
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HENGTOU SECURITIES

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liabilities under the Chinese
corporate name "18ZF U1 HR A A" and carrying on business in Hong Kong as “18#2i&% " (in Chinese) and
“"HENGTOU SECURITIES” (in English))

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hengtou Securities (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 194 to 326, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Consolidation of assets management schemes;

2. Fair value measurements;

3. Information technology (“IT") system and control; and
4. Impairment of financial assets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of assets management schemes

Refer to Note 55 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group has investments in a number of assets
management schemes where it acts as manager (the

“Schemes”).

Generally, the Group will have power over the
relevant activities of the Schemes under the authority
delegated to it through the management agreements
and will be exposed to variability of returns through its
remuneration, including management and performance

fees, and its investments in the Schemes.

In order to determine whether the Group has control
over the Schemes, IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” (“IFRS 10") requires that management
assess whether the Group has the ability to use its
power to affect its returns from its involvement with
the Schemes (“Linkage”). In making this assessment,
management mainly focuses on two key indicators
of Linkage: the strength of any kick-out rights held
by other parties in the Schemes and the Group's
aggregate economic interests in the Schemes
(including both its remuneration and investments).
The assessment involves significant management
estimation and judgement in evaluating whether the
combination of kick-out rights and aggregate economic

interests result in control of the Schemes.

HENGTOU SECURITIES

Our procedures in relation to consolidation of the

Schemes included:

o Assessing each arrangement against the
relevant requirements in IFRS 10 to determine
whether management’'s treatment in the
consolidated financial statements was

appropriate;

° For significant arrangements, reviewing the
key contractual provisions of the relevant
legal documents including the management

agreements; and

o For significant arrangements, checking
the data adopted and the accuracy of the
calculations made by management in assessing
the variability associated with the Group's
aggregate economic interests relative to the

total variability of returns of the Schemes.



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Fair value measurements

Refer to Note 60 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss catergorised as level
3 amounted to approximately RMB363,674 million.
Determination of their fair values involves significant
management estimation, particularly the selection
of unobservable inputs. At each reporting date, the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. These fair value measurements
have significant impact to the financial performance

and position of the Group.

Our procedures in relation to fair value measurements

included:

o Assessing whether the valuation methodologies

adopted by management were appropriate;

o Testing the evidence supporting the
unobservable inputs utilised in the level 3 fair

value measurements; and
o Evaluating the adequacy of the level 3 fair value

measurement disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

IT system and control

The Group is highly dependent on the IT system to
handle a significant number of transactions for its
brokerage business on a daily basis. The adequacy and
effective operation of the controls over the IT system is
critical to the integrity of the Group's financial reporting

process.

HENGTOU SECURITIES

Our procedures in relation to IT system and control

included:

o Meeting with the persons responsible for the
Group’'s IT matters and reviewing relevant
documents to understand the general IT control
environment, in particular controls over the
system development, management of system

change, system maintenance and data security;

o Understanding the design and operation of
controls over IT applications related to the

trading and margin financing systems;

o Reviewing the suitability of the design of the

general IT controls; and

o Performing test of the operating effectiveness
surrounding management controls over the

trading and margin financing systems.



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of financial assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets held under resale agreements,
margin account receivables and refundable deposits
(collectively known as ‘other financial assets”) with
carrying amounts of RMB55.426 million, RMB1,161.988
million, RMB3,237.924 million and RMB480.502 million

respectively.

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018. The
key changes arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 are
that the Group's credit losses are now estimated based
on an expected loss model rather than an incurred loss
model.

The expected credit loss model requires the Group to
recognise a loss allowance based on either 12-month
expected credit losses (“ECLs") or lifetime ECLs
depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on the other financial assets

since initial recognition.

The Group considers past due status and other
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort in assessing significant
increases in credit risk.

The Group measures ECLs applying a probability of
default approach using KMV model.

The determination of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on the other financial
assets since initial recognition and the calculation of
ECLs involves significant management judgements and

estimates.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of other financial assets included:

o Understanding management impairment
provisioning policy in respect of other financial

assets;

o Evaluating management’'s assessment of

significant increases in credit risk;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the
impairment model used by management and
testing the evidence supporting the inputs to
the model with the assistance of our in-house

impairment valuation specialists; and
o Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures in

respect of impairment of other financial assets

in the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information comprises all the information

included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2018 2017

Fees and commission income 7 1,475,729 1,945,058
Interest income 8 790,041 862,421
Net investment (loss)/income 9 (180,418) 1,313,637
Other income and gains 10 14,302 113,247
Total operating income 2,099,654 4,234,363
Fees and commission expenses 1 (147,339) (156,585)
Interest expenses 12 (535,691) (743,113)
Staff costs 13 (863,721) (1,086,402)
Depreciation and amortisation 14 (97,149) (93,074)
Taxes and surcharges (16,130) (19,373)
Other operating expenses 15 (669,579) (766,092)
Impairment losses 16 (152,078) (35,423)
Fair value losses from financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss and derivative financial instruments (436,719) (319,710)
Total operating expenses (2,918,406) (3,219,772)
Operating (loss)/profit (818,752) 1,014,591

Share of profits less losses of associates (1,668) (1,686)
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,420) 1,012,905

Income tax credit/(expense) 17 184,440 (243,834)
(Loss)/profit for the year (635,980) 769,071
Attributable to:

Ordinary shareholders of the Company (673,446) 706,202

Non-controlling interests 37,466 62,869

(635,980) 769,071

(Loss)/earnings per share

Basic and diluted 18 RMB(0.30) RMBO0.23
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2018 2017
(Loss)/profit for the year (635,980) 769,071
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified to profit or l0ss:
Available-for-sale financial assets:

— Net movement in the investment revaluation reserve - 302,534
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 21 - 302,534
Total comprehensive income for the year (635,980) 1,071,605
Attributable to:

Ordinary shareholders of the Company (673,446) 1,009,159

Non-controlling interests 37,466 62,446

(635,980) 1,071,605
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2018 2017

Non-current assets
Property and equipment 23 521,781 516,773
Investment properties 24 42,758 18,288
Goodwill 25 43,739 43,739
Intangible assets 26 115,268 117,464
Interests in associates 28 12,557 16,101
Available-for-sale financial assets 29 - 1,343,855
Financial assets held under resale agreements 30 - 614,910
Refundable deposits 31 480,502 614,506
Deferred tax assets 32 231,103 112,194
Other non-current assets 28 41,033 66,495
Total non-current assets 1,488,741 3,464,325
Current assets
Margin account receivables 34 3,237,924 5,322,835
Other current assets 85 559,242 585,448
Available-for-sale financial assets 29 - 396,444
Financial assets held under resale agreements 30 1,161,988 1,046,749
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income 36 55,426 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 37 11,840,596 12,997,560
Cash held on behalf of brokerage clients 38 7,475,631 9,491,666
Clearing settlement funds 39 980,059 773,387
Cash and bank balances 40 3,115,472 2,338,573
Total current assets 28,426,338 32,952,662
Total assets 29,915,079 36,416,987
Current liabilities
Debt instruments 42 3,853,082 1,500,000
Placements from a financial institution 43 500,000 700,000
Account payables to brokerage clients 44 7,691,497 10,028,333
Employee benefit payables 45 287,689 415,732
Contract liabilities 46 34,331 -
Other current liabilities 47 1,616,090 3,626,753
Current tax liabilities 10,280 74,330
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 48 3,742,325 5,065,778
Total current liabilities 17,735,294 21,410,926
Net current assets 10,691,044 11,541,736
Total assets less current liabilities 12,179,785 15,006,061
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2018 2017

Non-current liabilities
Debt instruments 42 2,218,236 3,344,857
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 48 - 590,000
Deferred revenue - 6,938
Deferred tax liabilities 32 16,728 121,834
Total non-current liabilities 2,234,964 4,063,629
NET ASSETS 9,944,821 10,942,432
Equity
Share capital 49(a) 2,604,567 2,604,567
Share premium 49(b) 1,665,236 1,665,236
Perpetual capital securities 50 1,500,000 1,500,000
Reserves 51 3,766,606 4,801,474
Total equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company and holders of perpetual capital securities 9,536,409 10,571,277
Non-controlling interests 408,412 371,155
TOTAL EQUITY 9,944,821 10,942,432
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Jiemin Wu Yigang

Chairman of Board of Directors

Yang Shufei
Chief Financial Officer

Vice Chairman of Board of Directors
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and holders of perpetual capital securities

Perpetual Investment Non-
Share Share capital Surplus General Transaction revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  securities reserve risk reserve risk reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Note 49(6) ~ Note 49(b) Note 50 Note 51(a) ~ Note 51(b) ~ Note 51(c) ~ Note 51(c)

At 1 January 2017 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 449,200 598,597 547,291 87,350 2208719 9,660,960 275,245 9,936,205
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 302,957 706,202 1,009,159 62,446 1,071,605
Dividends paid (Note 22) - = = = = - - (102,000 (102,000) - (102,000)
Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - 59,706 - - - (59,706) - - -
Appropriation to general risk reserve - - - - 110,644 - - (110,644) - - -
Appropriate to transaction risk reserve - - - - - 62,708 - (62,708) - - -
Capital contribution to a subsidiary - - - - - - - 3,158 3,158 (3,158) -
Capital contribution by non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 37,440 37,440
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (818) (818)
Changes in equity for the year - - - 59,706 110,644 62,708 302,957 374,302 910,317 95,910 1,006,227
At 31 December 2017 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 508,906 709,241 609,999 390,307 2583021 10,571,277 371,155 10,942,432
At 1 January 2018 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 508,906 709,241 609,999 390,307 2,583,021 10,571,277 371,155 10,942,432
Adjustment on initial application of

IFRS 9 Note 2) - - - 224 251 221 (390,307) 390,646 1,035 (209) 826
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 2,604,567  1,665236 1,500,000 509,130 709,492 610,220 - 2,973,667 10,572,312 370,946 10,943,258
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - (673,446)  (673,446) 37,466 (635,980)
Dividends paid (Note 22) - - - - - - - (362,457)  (362,457) - (362,457)
Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - - - - - - -
Appropriation to general risk reserve - - - - 24,893 - - (24,893) - - -
Appropriate to transaction risk reserve - - - - - 904 - (904) - - -
Changes in equity for the year - - - - 24,893 904 - (1,061,700)  (1,035,903) 37466 (998,437)
At 31 December 2018 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 509,130 734,385 611,124 - 1,911,967 9,536,409 408,412 9,944,821
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,420) 1,012,905
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses 535,691 743,113
Share of profits less losses of associates 1,668 1,686
Depreciation and amortisation 97,149 93,074
Impairment losses 152,078 35,423
Loss on disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets 3,631 609
Gain on disposal of an associate (17) -
Foreign exchange losses - 1,663
Net realised gains from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - (320,093)
Dividend income and interest income from available-for-sale financial
assets - (1,239)
Net changes in fair value of financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss, net 436,169 222,683
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (14,635)
Operating profit before working capital changes 405,949 1,775,189
Refundable deposits 134,004 (147,796)
Receivables and prepayments 140,581 88,955
Margin account receivables 2,103,618 (178,356)
Financial assets held under resale agreements 7,149 200,934
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,486,544 (4,897,308)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 745,328 -
Cash held on behalf of brokerage clients 2,016,035 2,455,993
Restricted bank deposits (39,365) (53,885)
Placements from other financial institutions (200,000) (200,000)
Account payables to brokerage clients (2,336,836) (2,173,004)
Employee benefit payables (128,043) (92,360)
Other payables and accruals (2,003,907) 1,947,583
Contract liabilities 19,099 -
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (1,913,453) 62,592
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 436,703 (1,211,463)
Income tax paid (156,417) (302,050)
Interest paid for operating activities (272,971) (456,583)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 7,315 (1,970,096)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and

intangible assets 314 1,066
Proceeds from disposal of an associate 204 -
Dividend income and interest income received from

available-for-sale financial assets - 3,767
Dividend income received from an associate 1,689 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - 3,392,639
Purchases of property and equipment, intangible assets and

other non-current assets (129,959) (118,468)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets - (517,899)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 61(a) - 7,840
Other net cash flows from investing activities (115,700) 20,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (243,452) 2,788,945
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution by non-controlling shareholders of a

subsidiary - 37,440
Proceeds from issuance of debt instruments 2,946,630 3,100,000
Repayment of debt instruments (1,740,000) (4,400,000)
Interest paid for financing activities (236,805) (280,215)
Dividends paid (362,457) (102,000)
Other net cash flows from financing activities (4,325) (78,969)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 603,043 (1,723,744)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 366,906 (904,895)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 3,632,643 4,539,201
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (899) (1,663)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 41 3,998,650 3,632,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Company was set up in Inner Mongolia Automonous Region by Inner Mongolia Branch of People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC") in 1988. The Company has restructured into a joint stock company with limited
liability pursuant to the approvals by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") in 2008.
The Company has obtained securities institution license No. Z20815000 and business licence No.
150000000001019. The registered address of the Company is 14-18/F, Everbright Bank Building, Oriental
Junzuo Block D, Chile Chuan Avenue, Saihan District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. As at
31 December 2018, the share capital of the Company is RMB2,604,567,412.

The Group principally engaged in securities underwriting and sponsorship, agency sale of securities and
financial product, securities and futures brokerage, assets management, investment consultancy, margin
financing and securities lending, fund establishing and management, and other business as approved by
the CSRC.

The Company listed its H shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15
October 2015.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, of these the following developments are relevant to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e.
applied the classification and measurement requirements retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as comparative information

was prepared under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The adoption of IFRS 9 resulted in the following changes to the Group’s accounting policies:

(1) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b)

Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ir)

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time

of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVTOCI.

Measurement

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for

managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures its financial assets at its fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ir) Measurement (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model

for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three

measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

HENGTOU SECURITIES

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognsied in other gains/(losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b)

Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ir)

(iii)

Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For trade receivables (i.e. fee, commission and other receivables), the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Meanwhile, other financial assets (i.e.
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets held under
resale agreements, margin account receivables and refundable deposits) are adopting general

approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)
Set out below is the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on the Group.

The following table summarise the impact on the Group's opening retained profits as at 1

January 2018 is as follows:

ARMB’'000
Reclassification of investment revaluation reserve 390,307
(Increase)/decrease in impairment loss for:
— margin account receivables (note b) 22,832
— financial assets held under resale agreements (note b) (22,590)
— other current assets (note b) 858
Related reserves which were determined based on net profits (696)
Related deferred tax (274)
Adjustment to retained profits from adoption of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018 390,437
Attributable to:
— ordinary shareholders of the Company 390,646
— non-controlling interests (209)
390,437
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's

financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

Carrying Carrying

Classification Classification amounts amounts

Financial assets under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 under IAS 39 under IFRS 9

Equity investments (note a) Available-for-sale ~ FVTPL 1,740,299 1,740,299

Equity investments FVTPL FVTPL 4,246,338 4,246,338

Debt investments FVTPL FVTPL 7,952,583 7,952,583

Debt investments (note b) FVTPL FVOCI 798,639 798,639

Financial assets held under resale  Loans and Amortised cost 1,661,659 1,639,069
agreements (note c) receivables

Refundable deposits Loans and Amortised cost 614,506 614,506
receivables

Other non-current assets Loans and Amortised cost 66,495 46,195
receivables

Other non-current assets Loans and FVTPL 20,300 20,300
receivables

Margin account receivables Loans and Amortised cost 5,322,835 5,345,667
(note c) receivables

Other current assets (note c) Loans and Amortised cost 585,448 586,306
receivables

Cash held on behalf of brokerage Loans and Amortised cost 9,491,666 9,491,666
clients receivables

Clearing settlement funds Loans and Amortised cost 773,387 773,387
receivables

Cash and bank balances Loans and Amortised cost 2,338,573 2,338,673
receivables
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group's equity is as follows:

Effect on
Effect on Effect on Effect on investment Effect on
surplus general  transaction  revaluation retained
reserve  risk reserve  risk reserve reserve profits
Opening balance - IAS 39 508,906 709,241 609,999 390,307 2,583,021

Reclassification of trading equity

investments from available-for-sale to

financial assets at FVTPL (note a) - - - (390,307 390,307
(Increase)/decrease in impairment loss

for:
- margin account receivables (note ¢/ = = = - 17,124
- financial assets held under resale

agreements (note c) = - = - (16,942)
- other current assets (note ¢/ = = = = 853
Appropriation to related reserves 224 251 221 - (696)
224 251 221 (390,307) 390,646
Opening balance - IFRS 9 509,130 709,492 610,220 - 2,973,667
Notes:
(a) Under IFRS9 equity investments are generally measured at FVTPL. As a result, assets with a fair value

of approximately RMB1,740 million were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at FVTPL and fair value gains of RMB390.307 million were reclassified from the investment
revaluation reserve to retained profits on 1 January 2018.

(b) These debt investments represent investments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI").
Under IFRS 9 these debt investments are measured at FVOCI.

(c) Financial assets held under resale agreements, other current assets and margin account receivables
that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at amortised cost. A net
decrease of RMB1.035 million in the allowance for impairment over these receivables was recognised in
opening retained profits at 1 January 2018 on transition to IFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has determined that the application of IFRS 9 impairment model requirements at 1
January 2018 results as follows:

RMB'000
Impairment allowance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 52,449
Addition/(reversal) of impairment recognised as at 1 January 2018 on:
— margin account receivables (22,832)
— financial assets held under resale agreements 22,590
— other current assets (858)
Impairment allowance at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 51,349

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related

interpretations.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 has not been restated, i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under IAS 18
and related interpretations.

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not result any significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Carrying Carrying
amount amount under
previously HKFRS 15
reported at 31 at 1 January
December 2017 Reclassification 2018
(Note)
Current liabilities
— Other current liabilities 3,626,753 (8,294) 3,618,459
— Contract liabilities - 15,232 15,232
Non-current liabilities
- Deferred revenue 6,938 (6,938) =

Note:

As at 1 January 2018, receipts in advance of RMB8.294 million previously included in current liabilities and
deferred revenue of RMB6.938 million were reclassified to contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These new and revised IFRSs include the

following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
IAS 19 “Employee benefits” on plan amendment, 1 January 2019
curtailment or settlement
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on prepayment features 1 January 2019

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sales or contribution of assets between and To be determined
and |IAS 28 investor and its associate or joint venture

Amendments and IAS 28 Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint 1 January 2019

Ventures
Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material 1 January 2019
IAS 8
Annual Improvements to  2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019

IFRS Standards
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments and
new standards is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of IFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Group
may also change its accounting policy elections, including the transition options, until the standards

are initially applied in that interim financial report.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with
optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). IFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in IAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore

continue to classify leases as operating or financing leases.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior

to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. The Group's office property leases are currently classified as operating leases and
the lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under IFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and
measure a liability at the present value of the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability and
depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s assets and

liabilities will increase and the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(c)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 54, as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to RMB220.753 million. These leases are
expected to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once IFRS
16 is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of discounting and the transition reliefs

available to the Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the
transition adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as described above could have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements from 2019 onwards.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of IAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how to apply that standard when there is
uncertainty about income tax treatments. Entities are required to determine whether uncertain tax
treatments should be assessed separately or as a group depending on which approach will better
predict the resolution of the uncertainties. Entities will have to assess whether it is probable that
a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the accounting treatment will be
consistent with the entity’s income tax filings. If not, however, entities are required to account
for the effects of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome or expected value method
depending on which method is expected to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the interpretation on the consolidated financial

statements until a more detailed assessment has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. financial instruments that are measure

at fair value).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company

and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interests in associates.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest
thousands, which is the functional currency of the Group and the Company, except when otherwise

indicated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
on the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant

risk of material adjustments in the subsequent period are discussed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(4)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

(ii)

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control
is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as

incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an
obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is
classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date
and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(4)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests

and the shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in

relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
Note 3(8)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate

or joint venture (see Note 3(4)(iii)).

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 3(14)), unless the investment is classified as held for

sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(4)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iii)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of

the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 3(5)
and 3(14)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the

investees' other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. If the associate or the joint venture subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or

the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(4)

(5)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iii)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which

case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for

under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a

financial asset (see Note 3(8)).

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, investments in associates and joint
ventures are accounted for under the equity method, unless classified as held for sale (or

included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)

(ii)

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity

interest in the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the

acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(5)

(6)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Goodwill (Continued)

When (i) is greater than (ii), the excess is recognised as goodwill. When (ii) is greater than (i), then

this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see Note
3(14)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in

the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi,

which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is translated
to RMB at the spot exchange rates ruling at the date of receipt. Other foreign currency
transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to RMB at the exchange rates that

approximate the spot exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates.

A spot exchange rate is quoted by the PBOC, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange,
or a cross rate determined based on quoted exchange rates. A rate that approximates the
spot exchange rate is determined by a systematic and rational method, normally the average

exchange rate of the current period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(6) Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements (Continued)

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated into RMB at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting date and translation differences are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to RMB using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured. The exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss, except for the exchange differences arising from the translation of non-

monetary financial assets which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency

are translated using the exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates.

(7) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(8)

Financial instruments

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the

financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash

assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(8) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a

trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets

that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their

entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial

assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the following measurement

categories:
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Amortised cost: if the investment is held for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest method.

FVTOCI: recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL: if the investment does not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment (including

interest) are recognised in profit or loss.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(8)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether

classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified as financial assets measured at
FVTPL. Any attributable transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

Investments which did not fall into any of the above categories were classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair value was remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation reserve (recycling). Dividend
income from equity investments and interest income from debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method were recognised in profit or loss respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from debt securities were also recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity

was reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(9)

(10)

Margin financing and securities lending

Margin financing and securities lending refer to the lending of funds by the Group to customers for
purchase of securities, or lending of securities by the Group to customers for securities selling, for

which the customers provide the Group with collateral.

The Group recognises margin financing receivables as receivables carried at amortised cost,
and recognises interest income using effective interest rate method. Securities lent are not
derecognised when the risk and rewards are not transferred, and interest income is recognised using
effective interest rate method.

Securities trading on behalf of margin financing or securities lending customers are accounted for as

securities brokerage business.

Financial assets held under resale agreements and sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the Group acquires financial
assets which will be resold at a predetermined price at a future date under resale agreements.
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are transactions where the Group sells financial
assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase

agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale or sold under
repurchase agreements in the consolidated statements of financial position. Assets held under
resale agreements are recorded in memorandum accounts as off-balance sheet items. Assets sold
under repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the consolidated statements of financial

position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that between the sale and
repurchase consideration, is amortised over the period of the respective transaction using the

effective interest method and is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(11) Property and equipment and construction in progress

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 3(14)). Cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the

following:
° the cost of materials and direct labour;
o any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for

their intended use;

° when the Group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which

they are located; and

° capitalised borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and

equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is

recognised in profit or loss.
Costs of construction in progress are determined based on the actual expenditures incurred
which include all necessary expenditures incurred during the construction period, borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation and other costs incurred to bring the asset to its intended use.

ltems classified as construction in progress are transferred to property and equipment when

such assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(11) Property and equipment and construction in progress (Continued)

(ii) Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the
transfers do not change the carrying amount of property transferred and do not change the

cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purpose.

(iii)  Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.

(iv)  Depreciation

ltems of property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or,
in respect of self-constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for
use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss, unless the amount is included in the
carrying amount of another asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated
Estimated residual Depreciation
Types of assets useful lives values rates
Buildings 35 years 3% 2.77%
Motor vehicles 5 years 0% 20%
Electronic equipment 4 years 0% 25%
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 0% 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(11) Property and equipment and construction in progress (Continued)
(iv) Depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction, and is stated at cost less

impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted if appropriate.

(12) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or

services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is initially measured at its cost, which includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of items. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment property
is accounted for using the cost model and stated in the consolidated financial statement at cost
less accumulated depreciation, and impairment losses (see Note 3(14)). The cost of investment
property, less its estimated residual value and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, unless the investment property is classified as

held for sale.

Estimated
Estimated residual Depreciation
Types of assets useful lives values rates
Investment property 3b years 3% 2.77%

The gain or loss in disposal of an investment property is the difference between the net sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(13)

(14)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment loss (see Note 3(14)). For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost

less impairment loss is amortised on the straight-line method over its estimated useful life.

The respective amortisation periods for intangible assets are as follows:

Types of assets Estimated useful lives
Trading rights 5 years
Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
Impairment

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except goodwill, an impairment loss

recognised previously no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property and equipment

o investment properties

o intangible assets

o equity investment in subsidiaries and associates

o goodwill

o leasehold improvements and long-term prepaid expenses

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is

any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets (i.e. a
cash-generating unit, or CGU). Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing
is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting
purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt
instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables (i.e. fee
and commission receivables) and other receivables (i.e. margin account receivables, financial
assets held under resale agreements and refundable deposits). The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction

of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial

instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries
in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that

relate to the Group’'s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit

risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular

financial instrument;
o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or

technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low

credit risk if:

(a) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(b) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the

near term, and

(c) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow

obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”. Performing

means that the counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of

the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the counterparty;
o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
o the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the

counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

o The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries

made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and

other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest

rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets

for which simplified approach was used.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(14) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether its financial assets (other
than those at fair value through profit or loss) are impaired, based on objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of

the investment below its cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually, the
Group assesses them collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio, observable
changes in economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised

in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(15) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the

employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are

rendered by employees.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
the Group participated in the social pension schemes for employees arranged by local
government labour and security authorities. The Group makes contributions to the retirement
schemes at the applicable rates based on the amount stipulated by the government. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis. When employees retire, the
local government labour and security authorities are responsible for the payment of the basic

retirement benefits to the retired employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Group has made an offer of
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the

reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(16) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are

recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any
tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

o temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable

profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the

foreseeable future; and
o taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the

manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(16) Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised

simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involves a series of judgements
about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change
its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities

will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(17) Operating leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are recognised as costs or expenses on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payments are recognised as expenses in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases are depreciated in accordance
with the Group's depreciation policies described in Note 3(11)(iv). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 3(14). Income
derived from operating leases is recognised in the profit or loss using the straight-line method
over the lease term. If initial direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased out are
material, the costs are initially capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Otherwise, the costs are charged to
profit or loss immediately. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

(18) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future

cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot

be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(19) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts in a fiduciary activity as a manager, a custodian, or an agent for customers. Assets
held by the Group and the related undertakings to return such assets to customers are recorded as

off-balance sheet items as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with customers.

(20) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinct performance
obligation in the contract with the customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is measured
at the transaction price, being the amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled
to in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer, net of taxes.
The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation of each distinct good or service
promised in the contract. The basis of allocation is that allowed by IFRS 15. Depending on the
substance of the contract, revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied,
which may be at a point in time or over time.

(i) Commission income from brokerage business

Brokerage commission income is recognised at a single point in time, i.e. on a trade date
when the relevant transactions are executed. Handling and settlement fee income arising

from brokerage business is recognised when the related services are rendered.

(ii) Underwriting and sponsor fees
Underwriting and sponsor fees are recognised at a single point in time when the performance
obligation is satisfied, that is, the economic interests may flow into the Group and the

relevant revenue and costs may be calculated reliably.

(iii)  Assets management, advisory and custody fees

Assets management, advisory and custody fees are recognised over time as services
rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’'s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Dividend distribution

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit appropriation plan, which will be authorised
and declared after the reporting date, are not recognised as a liability at the end of the year but

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements separately.
Government grants

Government grants related to purchase of asset are recognised initially as deferred income at fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Group will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant, and are then recognised in profit or loss as other income

on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other

income on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised.
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(24)

(25)

Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating segments which are determined based on
the structure of the Group's internal organisation, management requirements and internal reporting
system. An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose financial performance are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s management to make decisions about resource to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which consolidated financial statement regarding financial position,

financial performance and cash flows is available.

Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment if the
segments have same or similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
each products and service, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers for
the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and

the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions
for segment reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the

consolidated financial statements.

Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting year are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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(1)

(2)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration in the assessment of whether the
Group, as an investor, controls the investee. The principle of control includes three elements: (i)
power over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use power over the investee to affect the amount of investors’
returns. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate

that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

For assets management schemes where the Group involves as the manager, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds, if any, together with its remuneration creates
exposure to variability of returns from the activities of the assets management schemes that is of
such significance indicating that the Group is a principal. The assets management schemes shall be
consolidated if the Group acts in the role of principal.

Details of interest in assets management schemes is disclosed in Note 55 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets
is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets
and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Group
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent
with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes

were required during the periods presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(3) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased
the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value at the reporting
date and it is usually possible to determine their fair values within a reasonable range of estimates.

For part of the above financial instruments, quoted market prices are readily available. However, the
determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable market
price, requires the use of valuation technique. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and
have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other
risks affecting the specific instrument. Details of fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 60
to the consolidated financial statements.
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(5)

(6)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses of receivables under IFRS 9 requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of

allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

Details of impairment of receivables are disclosed in Notes 30, 31, 34, 35 and 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the carrying amount exceeds the

recoverable amount of the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Since the market price of an asset (the asset group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value
of the asset cannot be estimated reliably. In assessing the present value of future cash flows,
significant judgements are exercised over the asset’s selling price, related operating expenses and
discounting rate to calculate the present value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are
used for estimation of the recoverable amount, including the estimation of the selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and supportable assumption. During the year, no
impairment (2017: Nil) was recognised for non-financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(7)

(8)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provision involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group evaluates carefully tax implication of transaction and tax provision are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management's judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management's assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to
be recovered. The amount of income tax recognised in profit or loss based on the estimated profit

from operations was disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statement.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property and equipment, investment property, intangible assets, leasehold improvements and long-
term deferred expenses are depreciated and amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives after taking into account residual values. The estimated useful lives are
regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each reporting
date. The estimated useful lives are determined based on historical experiences of similar assets
and the estimated technical changes. If there is an indication that there has been a change in
the factors used to determine the depreciation or amortisation, the amount of depreciation or
amortisation will be revised. The depreciation and amortisation charged for the year were disclosed

in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 487,319 454,307
Investment properties 11,532 12,097
Intangible assets 98,966 102,082
Investments in subsidiaries 1,996,583 1,996,583
Available-for-sale financial assets - 59,090
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 614,910
Refundable deposits 200,040 165,438
Deferred tax assets 260,809 76,330
Other non-current assets 25,739 32,084
Total non-current assets 3,080,988 3,512,921
Current assets
Margin account receivables 3,237,924 5,322,835
Other current assets 424,790 328,112
Available-for-sale financial assets - 212,206
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,084,889 479,132
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,729,918 9,117,843
Cash held on behalf of brokerage clients 7,133,835 8,680,182
Clearing settlement funds 711,108 741,963
Cash and bank balances 1,908,182 1,129,951
Total current assets 23,230,646 26,012,224
Total assets 26,311,634 29,525,145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Current liabilities
Debt instruments 2,161,070 1,500,000
Placements from a financial institution 500,000 700,000
Account payables to brokerage clients 6,916,864 8,798,554
Employee benefit payables 175,784 276,061
Contract liabilities 1,569 -
Other current liabilities 290,442 248,754
Current tax liabilities - 56,169
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 3,491,425 4,329,701
Total current liabilities 13,537,154 15,909,239
Net current assets 9,693,492 10,102,985
Total assets less current liabilities 12,774,480 13,615,906
Non-current liabilities
Debt instruments 3,910,248 3,304,857
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements - 500,000
Deferred revenue - 6,938
Total non-current liabilities 3,910,248 3,811,795
Net assets 8,864,232 9,804,111
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31

DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
Equity
Share capital 2,604,567 2,604,567
Share premium 1,665,236 1,665,236
Perpetual capital securities 1,500,000 1,500,000
Reserves 3,094,429 4,034,308
Total equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company and holders of perpetual capital securities 8,864,232 9,804,111

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and is signed on its behalf by:

Pang Jiemin Wu Yigang
Chairman of Board of Directors Vice Chairman of Board of Directors
Yang Shufei

Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Group's main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate
Corporate income tax Based on taxable profits 25%
Value added tax (“VAT") Based on taxable revenue 4% - 6%
City maintenance and construction tax Based on business tax and VAT 7%
Education surcharge and local education surcharge Based on business tax and VAT 2% - 3%
2018 2017
Fees and commission income arising from:
— Securities brokerage business 624,216 868,100
— Assets management business 548,784 619,254
— Underwriting and sponsoring business 115,114 162,910
— Financial advisory business 58,231 115,543
— Futures brokerage business 61,279 70,668
— Investment advisory business 17,220 62,721
— Custody business 50,885 45,862
Revenue from contracts with customers within the
Scope of IFRS 15 1,475,729 1,945,058
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) The following table shows revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue

recognition:
Assets
management,
Securities financial and Underwriting
and futures investment and
brokerage advisory sponsoring Custody
businesses businesses business business Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
For year ended
31 December 2018
Timing of revenue
recognition
Over time - 624,235 - 50,885 675,120
Point in time 685,495 - 115,114 - 800,609

(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the expected timing of recognising revenue as follows:

Assets
management,
Securities financial and Underwriting
and futures investment and
brokerage advisory sponsoring Custody
businesses businesses business business Total
RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000
Within one year - 32,914 - 1,417 34,331
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Interest income arising from:
— Margin financing and securities lending 370,799 396,770
— Deposits in financial institutions 318,953 376,183
— Financial assets held under resale agreements 85,792 88,944
— Others 14,497 524
790,041 862,421
2018 2017
Net realised gains from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets - 320,093
Dividend income and interest income from available-for-sale
financial assets - 1,239
Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 896 -
Dividend income from financial instruments at FVTPL and
derivative financial instruments 474,050 707,943
Net realised (losses)/gains from disposal of financial instruments
at FVTPL and derivative financial instruments (656,176) 271,186
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 14,635
Gain on disposal of an associate 17 -
Others 795 (1,459)
(180,418) 1,313,637
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Foreign exchange losses (899) (1,663)
Rental income
— Investment properties 2,238 2,125
— Others 779 890
Government grants 14,006 7,139
Loss on disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets (3,631) (609)
Gain from financial instruments at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments 550 98,027
Others 1,259 7,338
14,302 113,247

Government grants were received from several local government authorities for supporting the Group's

operation, of which the entitlement was unconditional.

2018 2017

Expenses arising from:
— Securities brokerage business 121,823 155,056
— Underwriting and sponsoring business 25,472 1,529
— Custody business 44 -
147,339 156,585

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017

Interest expenses arising from:
— Account payables to brokerage clients 33,700 41,892
— Placements from other financial institutions 28,282 37,139
— Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 235,143 239,203
— Debt instruments 262,720 284,507
— Other investors under the assets management schemes (18,959) 134,344
— Limited partners under limited partnerships (5,483) 6,028
— Others 288 -
535,691 743,113
2018 2017
Short-term benefits 791,296 1,028,368
Defined contribution plan 72,425 58,034
863,721 1,086,402

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes in the PRC whereby the Group is required
to pay contributions for its employees at certain rates of the wages of employees. The Group has no
other material obligations for payment of retirement benefits to its employees beyond the contributions
described above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017

Depreciation of:
— property and equipment (Note 23) 40,736 36,924
— investment properties (Note 24) 826 826

Amortisation of:
— intangible assets (Note 26) 38,640 35,271

— leasehold improvements and long-term prepaid expenses

(Note 33) 16,947 20,053
97,149 93,074
2018 2017
Auditors’ remuneration 4,804 5,481
Business entertainment expenses 27,227 27,426
Business travel expenses 38,032 44,068
Consulting fees 82,037 49,496
Electronic equipment operating expenses 76,629 87,513
Miscellaneous office expenses 9,362 15,442
Other commission expenses 82,750 80,633
Postal and communication expenses 18,902 20,973
Rental expenses 118,485 119,878
Securities investor protection funds 9,055 54,150
Utilities and building management fees 17,880 14,850
Others 184,416 246,182
669,579 766,092
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

16. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

tatements

2018 2017
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) on:

— margin financing and securities lending 4,125 664
— available-for-sale financial assets - 19,679

— financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income 58 -
— financial assets held under resale agreements 7,433 (587)
— other current assets 140,462 2,330
— other non-current assets - 13,337
152,078 35,423

17. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

2018 2017
Current tax 39,851 251,832
Deferred tax (Note 32) (224,291) (7,998)
(184,440) 243,834
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The provision for the PRC corporate income tax is calculated based on the statutory income tax rate of

25% (2017: 25%). Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

2018 2017
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,420) 1,012,905
Tax at the PRC statutory income tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) (205,105) 253,226
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7,716 9,150
Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,624) (19,596)
Tax exemption (2,500) 583
Others 18,073 471
Income tax (credit)/expense (184,440) 243,834

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

2018 2017
Earnings
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company (673,446) 706,202
Less: Dividends for cumulative perpetual capital
securities required (102,000) (102,000)
(775,446) 604,202
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in basic
earnings per share calculation 2,604,567 2,604,567

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares (2017: Nil), hence

the diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

19. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

2018
Salaries, Contributions to Total
allowances and Discretionary  social pension emoluments
Fees benefits in kind bonuses schemes before tax
Executive directors
Pang Jiemin - 1,888 - 55 1,943
Wu Yigang - 871 - 49 920
Non-executive directors
Zhang Tao 75 - - - 75
Sun Chao 75 - - - 75
Dong Hong' 75 - - - 75
Gao Liang? 69 - - - 69
Independent non-executive
directors
Zhou Jianjun 150 - - - 150
Lam Sek Kong 150 - - - 150
Lv Wendong® 150 - - - 150
Supervisors
Guo Liwen - 750 - 49 799
Wang Hui - 518 - 52 570
Pei Jingjing 45 - - - 45
789 4,027 - 205 5,021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration (Continued)

2017
Salaries, Contributions to Total
allowances and Discretionary social pension emoluments
Fees  benefits in kind bonuses schemes before tax
Executive directors
Pang Jiemin - 1,883 4,764 51 6,698
Wu Yigang - 866 4,235 20 5,121
Non-executive directors
Zhang Tao 50 - - = 50
Chen Guanglei 50 - - - 50
Sun Chao 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive
directors
Zhou Jianjun 100 - - - 100
Peng Diyun® 100 - - - 100
Lam Sek Kong 100 - - - 100
Supervisors
Guo Liwen - 745 4,235 20 5,000
Wang Hui - 505 340 51 896
Pei Jingjing 30 - - - 30
480 3,999 13,574 142 18,195

On 5 January 2018, Ms. Dong Hong was appointed to be non-executive director.

On 31 January 2018, Ms. Gao Liang was appointed to be non-executive director.

On 5 January 2018, Mr. Lv Wendong was appointed to be independent non-executive director.

On 22 November 2017, Mr. Chen Guanglei ceased to be non-executive director.

On 22 December 2017, Mr. Peng Diyun ceased to be independent non-executive director.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Directors’ and supervisors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director or supervisor of the Company and the director’s or
supervisor’'s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

reporting date or at any time during the year.

During the year, excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales generated by the
individuals, the five highest paid individuals include one director (2017: one), whose emoluments are

disclosed in Note 19. The emoluments for the rest of the five highest paid individuals during the year are as

follows:
2018 2017
Salaries and allowances 1,860 4,319
Discretionary bonuses 9,633 38,707
Employer’s contribution to pension schemes 213 188
11,706 43,214

The emoluments of the other individuals with the highest emoluments mentioned above are within the

following bands:

2018 2017
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 1 =
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 2 =
HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000 1 =
HKD8,500,001 to HKD9,000,000 - 1
HKD9,000,001 to HKD9,500,000 - 2
HKD22,500,001 to HKD23,000,000 - 1

No emoluments are paid or payable to these individuals as retirement from employment or as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The components of other comprehensive income, including reclassification adjustments are as follows:

2018 2017
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets - 405,078
Less: Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal - (1,680)
Tax effect (Note 32) - (100,864)
- 302,534
2018 2017

Final dividend in respective of the financial year ended
31 December 2017 of RMBO0.10 per ordinary share (Note i) 260,457 -
Dividend paid to holders of perpetual capital securities (Note ii) 102,000 102,000
362,457 102,000

Notes:

(i) The dividends paid for year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately RMB260.457 million being final

dividend of RMBO0.10 per ordinary shares in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017.

(ii) The dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately RMB102 million (2017: RMB102
million) being dividend calculated at 6.8% per annum on the nominal value of perpetual capital securities.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Motor Electronic  Furniture and  Construction

Buildings vehicles equipment fixtures in progress Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 179,482 25,733 192,813 25,955 303,795 727,778
Additions - 1,976 26,879 2,351 32,154 63,360
Transfer in/(out) (150) 343 2,288 - (20,544) (18,063)
Disposals = (2,285) (18,604) (3,460) = (24,349)
Disposal of subsidiaries - = (81) = = (81)
At 31 December 2017 179,332 25,767 203,295 24,846 315,405 748,645
Additions - 1,102 16,613 3,496 65,597 86,808
Transfer 145,861 - 11,897 1,134 (214,818) (55,926)
Disposals - (3,370) (17,139) (1,636) - (22,145)
At 31 December 2018 325,193 23,499 214,666 27,840 166,184 757,382
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017 (48,886) (21,449) (128,047) (17,926) = (216,308)
Charge for the year (4,919) (1,455) (27,935) (2,615) = (36,924)
Disposals - 1,055 18,245 3,443 - 22,743
Disposal of subsidiaries - - 21 - - 21
At 31 December 2017 (53,805) (21,849) (137,716) (17,098) - (230,468)
Charge for the year (6,861) (1,312) (29,470) (3,093) - (40,736)
Disposals - 3,299 16,990 1,440 - 21,729
Transfer 15,260 - - - - 15,260
At 31 December 2018 (45,406) (19,862) (150,196) (18,751) - (234,215)
Impairment
As at 1 January 2017 (719) - (627) (68) - (1,414)
Disposals - - 2 8 - 10
At 31 December 2017 (719) - (625) (60) - (1,404)
Disposals - - 15 3 - 18
At 31 December 2018 (719) - (610) (57) - (1,386)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 279,068 3,637 63,860 9,032 166,184 521,781
At 31 December 2017 124,808 3,918 64,954 7,688 315,405 516,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of buildings without title deeds is amounted to RMB23.37
million (2017: RMB24.27 million). The Group is still in the midst of applying for the outstanding title deeds
of these premises. The management of the Group expected that there would be no significant cost in
obtaining the title deeds.

2018 2017
Cost
As at 1 January 29,664 29,664
Transfer 40,556 -
As at 31 December 70,220 29,664
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January (11,376) (10,550)
Charge for the year (826) (826)
Transfer (15,260) -
As at 31 December (27,462) (11,376)
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 42,758 18,288

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB295.37
million (2017: RMB214.04 million). The fair value was derived using direct comparison approach with
reference to comparable sale transactions for similar properties in the same location and condition. This is

categorised as level 3 fair value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2018 2017
As at 1 January and 31 December 43,739 43,739
Funds management (1) 30,604 30,604
Futures brokerage (2) 13,135 13,135
43,739 43,739

(1) In 2015, the Group further acquired equity interest in New China Fund Management Co., Ltd. (“New China

Fund”), and resulted New China Fund and its subsidiary became subsidiaries instead of associates of the Group.

The Group recognised the excess of fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net

identifiable assets acquired as the goodwill arising from funds management CGU.

(2) In 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in Hengtai Futures Co., Ltd (“Hengtai Futures”). The Group

recognised the excess of fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net identifiable assets

acquired as the goodwill of the futures brokerage CGU.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group performed goodwill impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts

of the CGUs are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal using market approach by reference

to market comparable transactions. This categorised as level 3 fair value measurement. No impairment

losses were recognised for the goodwill related to futures brokerage CGU and funds management CGU as

the recoverable amount exceeded their carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Trading rights Software Others Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 9,589 206,748 5,307 221,644
Transfer - 16,404 - 16,404
Additions - 36,614 20 36,634
Disposals - (2) (19) (21)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (20) (20)
As at 31 December 2017 9,589 259,764 5,288 274,641
Transfer - 13,662 - 13,662
Additions - 26,328 - 26,328
Disposals - (3,639) - (3,639)
As at 31 December 2018 9,589 296,115 5,288 310,992
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2017 (9,289) (107,331) (5,307) (121,927)
Charge for the year - (35,270) (1) (35,271)
Disposals - 1 19 20
Disposal of subsidiaries - - 1 1
As at 31 December 2017 (9,289) (142,600) (5,288) (157,177)
Charge for the year - (38,640) - (38,640)
Disposals - 93 - 93
As at 31 December 2018 (9,289) (181,147) (5,288) (195,724)
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2018 300 114,968 - 115,268
As at 31 December 2017 300 117,164 - 117,464

The remaining amortisation period of trading rights and software ranged from 1 to 5 years (2017: 1 to 5
years).

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Unlisted shares, at cost 1,996,583 1,996,583
Details of principal subsidiaries are as follows:
Place of Equity interest directly
incorporation/ Registered UL L] Principal
Name of company establishment capital 2018 2017 activity Statutory auditor
Hengtai Changcai Changchun, PRC RMB200 million 100% 100%  Securities Ruihua Certified
Securities Co., Ltd. underwriting  Public
BRRHES and Accountants LLP
BREALNA sponsoring mES A SR
(“Hengtai Changcai”) business, (EHEBER)
securities ("Ruihua”)
investment
fund
marketing
Hengtai Futures Shanghai, PRC RMB125 million 80% 80%  Futures Ruihua
BREERHER AR brokerage
business
New China Fund Chongging, PRC RMB217.5 million 58.62% 58.62%  Funds Ruihua
MEESEERRD management
BRAR
Hengtai Pioneer Beijing, PRC RMB100 million 100% 100%  Investment, Ruihua
Investments Co., Ltd. advisory and
BREBREBRAA business
("Hengtai Pioneer”) management
Hengtai Capital Investment ~ Shenzhen, PRC RMB1,200 million 100% 100%  Equity Ruihua
Co., Ltd. investment,
BREFREER and funds
EEAFY management

("Hengtai Capital”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Company has consolidated certain structured entities which are
controlled by the Company.

1 The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

2 On 22 August 2018, Hengtai Capital completed the industrial and commercial registration for the change of
registered capital from RMB1.5 billion to RMB1.2 billion.

2018 2017

Share of net assets 12,557 16,101

Details of the Group's principal associates are as follows:

Percentage of ownership
Place of interest/voting power/

incorporation/  Registered Dl

Name registration capital 2018 2017 Principal activities
Yifeng Internet Financial Shanghai, PRC RMB9.8 million 49% 49% Internet financial
Information Services services

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Beijing Hengtai Puhui Beijing, PRC RMB10.0 million 30% 30% Investment

Information Service Co., Ltd. management and

consultancy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of the amounts of all individually immaterial

associates that are accounted for using the equity method.

2018 2017
At 31 December:
Carrying amounts of interests 12,557 16,101
Year ended 31 December:
Profit less losses from operations (1,668) (1,686)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income (1,668) (1,686)
2018 2017
Available-for-sale financial assets:
— Current - 396,444
— Non-current - 1,343,855
- 1,740,299
At fair value:
— Equity securities - 1,595,761
— Assets management schemes - 71,060
— Investment funds - 73,478
- 1,740,299
Analysed into:
— Listed outside Hong Kong - 623,108
— Unlisted - 1,117,191
- 1,740,299
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Financial assets held under resale agreements:
— Non-current - 614,910
— Current 1,161,988 1,046,749
1,161,988 1,661,659
Analysis by collateral type:
— Equity securities 753,157 849,125
— Debt securities 443,100 816,780
Less: Impairment losses (34,269) (4,246)
1,161,988 1,661,659
Analysis by market:
— Shenzhen Stock Exchange 753,157 917,370
— Shanghai Stock Exchange 341,100 293,670
— Interbank 102,000 450,312
— Others - 4,553
Less: Impairment losses (34,269) (4,246)
1,161,988 1,661,659

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any collateral under resale agreements for which the
Group was permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default for the transactions (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Deposits with stock exchanges
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited:
— Shanghai Branch 39,262 47,709
— Shenzhen Branch 28,962 31,582
— Beijing Branch 999 1,240
69,223 80,531
Deposits with futures and commodity exchanges
— China Financial Futures Exchange 146,983 266,702
— Shanghai Futures Exchange 88,791 107,797
— Shanghai International Energy Exchange 13,926 -
— Dalian Commodity Exchange 44,439 47,808
— Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange 28,438 22,522
322,577 444,829
Deposits with other institution
— China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 88,702 89,146
480,502 614,506
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The components of deferred tax recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Changes in

fair value
of financial ~ Changes in
instruments  fair value of

Employee at fair value available-for-

Deferred taxation Impairment benefit through sale financial
arising from: Note losses payables profit or loss assets Others Total
At 1 January 2017 19,429 114,377 (39,586) (29,116) 23,746 88,850
Recognised in profit or loss 17 7,713 (23,878) 9,096 - 15,067 7,998
Recognised in other

comprehensive income 21 - - - (100,864) - (100,864)
Disposal of subsidiaries 61(a) (3,334) (2,290) = = = (5,624)
As at 31 December 2017 23,808 88,209 (30,490) (129,980) 38,813 (9,640)
Adjustment on initial

application of IFRS 9 (276) = (129,980 129,980 - (276)
As at 1 January 2018 23,532 88,209 (160,470) - 38,813 (9,916)
Recognised in profit or loss 17 28,082 (27,930) 170,203 - 53,936 224,291
As at 31 December 2018 51,614 60,279 9,733 - 92,749 214,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position

2018 2017
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position 231,103 112,194
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (16,728) (121,834)
214,375 (9,640)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has no material unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2018

(2017: Nil).
2018 2017
Leasehold improvements and long-term prepaid expenses (note) 32,710 38,954
Prepayments 8,323 7,241
Investments classified as receivables - 33,637
Less: Impairment losses - (13,337)
41,033 66,495
Note:
The movements of leasehold improvements and long-term prepaid expenses are as below:
2018 2017
At 1 January 38,954 37,411
Transfer - 3,122
Additions 10,703 18,474
Amortisation (16,947) (20,053)
At 31 December 32,710 38,954
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017

Individual receivables 3,227,675 5,237,910
Institution receivables 21,005 114,387
Less: Impairment losses (10,756) (29,462)
3,237,924 5,322,835

The fair value of collaterals for margin financing and securities lending business is analysed as follows:

2018 2017

Equity securities 8,070,585 13,998,678
Cash 567,343 761,903
8,637,928 14,760,581

The Group evaluates the collectability of receivables from margin clients based on management'’s
assessment on the credit rating, collateral value and the past collection history of each margin client.

2018 2017

Fees and commission receivables (note a) 209,215 115,103
Interest receivables (note b) 222,056 332,874
Prepaid expenses 13,130 12,059
Other receivables (note c) 114,841 125,412
559,242 585,448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

(a) Fees and commission receivables

The ageing analysis of fees and commission receivables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year 324,820 114,094
Over one year 865 1,009
Less: Impairment losses (116,470) -
209,215 115,103
(b) Interest receivables
2018 2017
Interest receivables arising from:
— Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 179,273 257,718
— Margin financing and securities lending 48,299 75,137
— Bank deposits 8,505 3,950
— Financial assets held under resale agreements 9,678 2,669
Less: Impairment losses (23,699) (6,600)
222,056 332,874
(c) Other receivables
2018 2017
Other receivables 139,617 144,153
Less: Impairment losses (24,776) (18,741)
114,841 125,412
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Current:
— Debt securities 55,426 -
Analysis into:
— Unlisted 55,426 -
2018 2017
Held for trading:
— Debt securities 6,398,431 8,306,950
— Equity securities 3,617,252 2,432,186
— Investment funds 1,228,268 789,992
— Assets management schemes 596,645 1,024,160
11,840,596 12,553,288
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss:
— Debt securities - 444,272
11,840,596 12,997,560
Analysis into:
— Listed in Hong Kong 75,805 488,262
— Listed outside Hong Kong 6,390,496 7,809,250
— Unlisted 5,374,295 4,700,048
11,840,596 12,997,560
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Group maintains segregated deposit accounts with banks and authorised institutions to hold
clients’ monies arising from its normal course of business. The Group classified the brokerage clients’
monies as cash held on behalf of brokerage clients under the current assets section, and recognised the
corresponding account payables to the respective brokerage clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of their brokerage clients’ monies. Cash held for brokerage clients for their
transaction and settlement purposes is subject to regulatory oversight by third-party depository institutions
in accordance with CSRC regulations.

2018 2017
Deposits with stock exchanges

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited:
— Shanghai Branch 464,694 393,663
— Shenzhen Branch 365,204 286,926
— Beijing Branch 51,200 28,039
Deposits with futures and commodity exchanges 98,961 64,759
980,059 773,387

As at 31 December 2018, the clearing settlement funds arising from consolidated assets management
schemes are amounted to RMB15.873 million (2017: RMB18.202 million).

2018 2017

Cash in hand 82 79
Bank balances 3,115,390 2,338,494
3,115,472 2,338,573

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances arising from consolidated assets management
schemes are amounted to RMB14.079 million (2017: RMB26.206 million).

Bank balances comprise time and demand deposits which bear interests at the prevailing market rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Cash in hand 82 79
Bank balances with original maturity within three months 2,799,690 2,138,494
Clearing settlement funds 980,059 773,387
Financial assets held under resale agreements with original
maturity within three months 443,257 905,756
Less: restricted bank deposits (224,438) (185,073)
3,998,650 3,632,643
2018 2017
Beneficiary certificates 3,071,318 1,604,857
Subordinated bonds 1,500,000 1,740,000
Long-term corporate bond 1,500,000 1,500,000
6,071,318 4,844,857
Analysis by remaining maturity:
Current
Within one year 3,853,082 1,500,000
Non-current
Between one year and two years 718,236 1,604,857
Between two years and five years 1,500,000 1,740,000
2,218,236 3,344,857
6,071,318 4,844,857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Beneficiary certificates:

2018
Par value
Book value
As at As at 31 as at 31
Issuance Interest 1 January December Accrued  December
Name Parvalue date Due date rate 2018 Issuance  Redemption 2018 Interest 2018
{E8IREN0.6 100,000 24.022017  22.02.2019 5.70% 104,857 - - 104,857 5,700 110,557
[E8I%EN0.8 300,000 08.03.2017  08.03.2018 5.20% 300,000 - (300,000) - - -
BEIREN0.9 200,000 10.03.2017  09.03.2018 5.20% 200,000 - (200,000 - - -
{BEIZEN0.11 500,000 27.06.2017  27.06.2018 5.78% 500,000 - (500,000) - - -
ERFEENo12 500,000 21.07.2017  20.07.2018 5.45% 500,000 - (500,000) - - -
ERIZEN013 500,000 14.03.2018  14.03.2019 6.20% - 500,000 - 500,000 - 500,000
[EAZENo.14 500,000 04.07.2018  04.07.2019 5.85% - 500,000 - 500,000 - 500,000
[E8IZENo15 500,000 25.07.2018  25.07.2019 5.50% - 500,000 - 500,000 - 500,000
[E8IZEN0.16 80,000 31.08.2018  28.11.2019 5.40% - 80,000 - 80,000 1,456 81,456
BEIZEN0.17 300,000 27.09.2018  26.09.2019 5.40% - 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
[E8IZEN019 300,000 16.11.2018  16.11.2020 5.75% - 300,000 - 300,000 2174 302,174
[EENo.14 60,130 18.01.2018  17.01.2019 5.50% - 60,130 - 60,130 - 60,130
18ENo.17 140,940 27.062018  26.06.2019 5.60% - 140,940 - 140,940 - 140,940
[BEN0.19 160,000 25.07.2018  24.07.2019 5.60% - 160,000 - 160,000 - 160,000
f8ENo.16 140,140 11.042018  13.04.2020 6.20% - 140,140 - 140,140 6,308 146,448
[8EN0.18 148350 11.07.2018  08.01.2020 5.80% - 148,350 - 148,350 4,102 152,452
f8EN0.20 85,000 26122018 21.12.2020 5,00% - 85,090 - 85,090 70 85,160
[BEN0.21 31,980 27122018 22.12.2020 5.00% - 31,980 - 31,980 21 32,001
1604857 2,946,630 (15000000 3,051,487 19831 3,071,318
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42. DEBT INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Beneficiary certificates: (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2017
Par value

Book valug
As at As at 31 asat 31
Issuance Interest 1 January December Accrued December
Name Parvalue date Due date rate 2017 Issuance  Redemption 2017 Interest 2017
Hengfu No. 9 300,000 06.05.2015  04.05.2017 6.55% 332,604 - (332,624) - - -
BEIZENo. 1 500,000 12.09.2016  13.03.2017 350% 500,000 - (500,000 - - -
1B&IZENo. 2 500,000 14.09.2016  15.03.2017 360% 500,000 - (500,000) - - -
BEIREN0. 3 500,000 17.11.2016 17112017 3.70% 500,000 - (500,000) - - -
BAIZENo. 4 500,000 18112016  17.11.2017 3.80% 500,000 - (500,000 - - -
BEIZEENo. 5 500,000 23.11.2016  23.11.2017 380% 500,000 - (600,000 - - -
[B8IZENo. 6 100,000 24022017 22.02.2019 5.70% - 100,000 - 100,000 4,857 104,857
B&I%ENo. 8 300,000 08.03.2017  08.03.2018 5.20% = 300,000 = 300,000 = 300,000
[E8IZENo. 9 200,000 10032017 09.03.2018 5.20% - 200,000 = 200,000 - 200,000
fBEIZEN0. 11 500,000 27.06.2017  27.06.2018 5.78% = 500,000 = 500,000 = 500,000
[ERIZEN0. 12 500000 21.07.2017  20.07.2018 5.45% - 500,000 = 500,000 - 500,000
2832624 1600000  (2,832,624) 1,600,000 4857 1,604,857
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Subordinated bonds:

Name

Issuance date  Due date

42. DEBT INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Nominal
interest rate

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Book value

as at

1 January

2018

14 B%f£(123262)

BRIAEHER
AR0TRRE

EFHERD
ARAFIRAE

30.01.2015 30.01.2020
(with early redemption option
on 30.01.2018)

01.11.2017 01.11.2022
(with early redemption option
on 01.11.2020)

15.08.2016 15.08.2020
(with early redemption option
on 15.08.2018)

6.70%

5.90%

6.00%

200,000

1,500,000

40,000

1,740,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Subordinated bonds: (Continued)

2017
Book value Book value
as at as at
Nominal 1 January 31 December
Name Parvalue  Issuance date Due date interest rate 2017 Issuance  Redemption 2017
14 18%15(123321) 1,000,000  11.11.2014 11.11.2019 6.90% 1,000,000 - (1,000,000 -
(with early redemption option
on 11.11.2017)
14 B%{E(123291) 300,000 16.12.2014 16.12.2019 6.54% 300,000 = (300,000) =
(with early redemption option
on 16.12.2017)
14 BRfE(123262) 200,000  30.01.2015 30.01.2020 6.70% 200,000 - - 200,000
(with early redemption option
0n 30.01.2018)
ERIARHAER 1,500,000  01.11.2017 01.11.2022 5.90% - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
RARNTARE {with early redemption option
on 01.11.2020)
ERAERNER 40,000  15.08.2016 15.08.2020 6.00% 40,000 - - 40,000
NARBE (with early redemption option
on 15.08.2018)

1,540,000 1,500,000 (1,300,000) 1,740,000

As approved by CSRC, the Company issued 5-year subordinated bonds with a nominal value of RMB1.0
billion on 11 November 2014, RMB300 million on 16 December 2014 and RMB200 million on 30 January
2015. These subordinated bonds were listed at Shanghai Stock Exchange.

As approved by CSRC, the Group issued 4-year subordinated bond with nominal value of RMB40 million on

15 August 2016 and 5-year subordinated bond with nominal value of RMB1.5 billion on 1 November 2017.
These subordinated bonds were unlisted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Short-term corporate bonds:

2017
Book value Book value
as at as at
Issuance Nominal 1 January 31 December
Name date Due date interest rate 2017 Issuance Redemption 2017
BRERED3 14.09.2016  14.09.2017 3.7% 300,000 - (300,000) -
Long-term corporate bond:
2018
Book value Book value
as at as at
Issuance Nominal 1 January 31 December
Name date Due date interest rate 2018 Issuance Redemption 2018
1418%:05(136215) 29.01.2016 29.01.2019 3.42% 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
2017
Book value Book value
as at as at
Nominal 1 January 31 December
Name Issuance date Due date interest rate 2017 Issuance 2017
14182205(136215) 29.01.2016 29.01.2019 3.42% 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017

Placements from China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 500,000 700,000

As at 31 December 2018, the placements from China Securities Finance Corporation Limited bear interests
ranging from 4.6% to 5.5% (2017: 5.4% to 5.5%) per annum, with remaining maturities within 1 and 3
months (2017: within 1 and 2 months).

2018 2017

Clients’ deposits for:
— margin financing and securities lending 574,109 794,279
— other brokerage business 7,117,388 9,234,054
7,691,497 10,028,333

Account payables to brokerage clients represent the monies received from and repayable to brokerage

clients. Account payables to brokerage clients are interest bearing at the prevailing interest rate.

The majority of the account payables balances are repayable on demand except where certain account
payables to brokerage clients represent monies received from clients for the margin financing activities
under normal course of business, such as margin financing and securities lending. Only the amounts in
excess of the required amount of margin deposits and cash collateral are repayable on demand.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does

not give additional value in view of the nature of there businesses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018

As at Accrued Payments As at

1 January for the year made 31 December

Short-term benefits 415,243 791,296 (919,174) 287,365

Defined contribution plans 489 72,425 (72,590) 324

415,732 863,721 (991,764) 287,689

2017
As at Accrued Payments Disposal of As at
1 January for the year made subsidiaries 31 December
(Note 61(a))

Short-term benefits 514,864 1,028,368 (1,121,092) (6,897) 415,243
Defined contribution

plans 488 58,034 (67,670) (363) 489

515,362 1,086,402 (1,178,762) (7,260) 415,732

Contract liabilities represent receipt in advance from customers and deferred revenue. The increase in
contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the increase in advances received from customers in relation

to provision of assets management services at the end of the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised revenue of RMB15.08 million that
was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Payables to:
— other investors of consolidated structural entities 1,196,788 3,254,570
— limited partners of consolidated limited partnerships 8,434 18,242
Other payables 212,343 163,695
Interest payables 175,252 148,884
Taxes and surcharges payables 23,273 41,362
1,616,090 3,626,753
2018 2017
Analysis by collateral type:
Non-current
— Equity securities - 90,000
— Rights and interests in margin financing - 500,000
- 590,000
Current
— Debt securities 3,197,325 2,465,778
— Equity securities 45,000 -
— Rights and interests in margin financing 500,000 2,600,000
3,742,325 5,065,778
3,742,325 5,655,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Analysis by market:
Non-current
— Bank and other financial institutions - 590,000
Current
— Inter-bank market 968,825 713,080
— Shanghai Stock Exchange 1,783,000 1,362,884
— Shenzhen Stock Exchange 347,500 389,814
— Bank and other financial institutions 643,000 2,600,000
3,742,325 5,065,778
3,742,325 5,655,778
Analysis by transaction type:
Non-current
— Pledged - 590,000
Current
— Pledged 3,538,750 4,915,998
- Sold 203,575 149,780
3,742,325 5,065,778
3,742,325 5,655,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and

margin account receivables that had been placed as financial assets sold under repurchase agreements of

the Group are listed as below:

2018 2017

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,016,882 2,872,498
Margin account receivables 559,372 3,465,247
4,576,254 6,337,745

(a)

(b)

Share capital

All shares issued by the Company are fully paid ordinary shares. The par value per share is RMB1.
The Company’s number of shares issued and their nominal value are as follows:

2018 2017

At 1 January and 31 December 2,604,567 2,604,567

In October 2015, a total of 356,400,000 H shares with a par value of RMB1 each were issued by the
Company at a subscription price of HKD3.92 per share, through the H share initial public offering to
Hong Kong and overseas investors. In November 2015, a total of 53,460,000 H shares with a par
value of RMB1 each were issued by the Company at a subscription price of HKD3.92 per share, as a
result of the exercise of the over-allotment option.

Share premium

Share premium arising from the issuance of new shares at prices in excess of face value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

On 29 June 2015, the Group issued a perpetual subordinated debt (the “Debt”) with nominal value of

RMB1,500 million. The Debt is undated and bears a 6.80% coupon rate until the first redemption date on

29 June 2020. The coupon rate will be reset every five years if the Debt are not redeemed.

The Group does not have any contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to redeem the

Debt. The redemption of the Debt is solely at the discretion of the Group.

(a)

(b)

Surplus reserve

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Company and its subsidiaries in PRC are required to appropriate

10% of its net profit, as determined under the PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“PRC

GAAP"), to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered

capital. Subject to the approval of shareholders, statutory surplus reserve may be used to make

good prior year losses, if any, and may convert into capital, provided that the balance of statutory

surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital before such

capitalisation.

General risk reserve

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In accordance with the requirements of the CSRC Circular regarding the Annual Reporting
of Securities Companies in 2007 (Zhengjian Jigou Zi [2007] No. 320) issued on 18 December
2007, the Company and its subsidiary, Hengtai Changcai, appropriate 10% of its annual net

profit, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the general risk reserve.

In accordance with the requirements of the CSRC Interim Measures for Supervision and
Administration on Risk Reserve for Public Securities Investment Fund Raising (Zhengjianhui
Ling [No. 94]), the Group's subsidiary, New China Fund, appropriate 10% of its annual net
profit, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the general risk reserve.

In accordance with the requirements of the Ministry of Finance Circular regarding the Issuance
of Implementation Guidance on Financial Planning of Financial Institutions (Caijin [2007] No.
23) issued on 30 March 2007, the Group's subsidiary, Hengtai Futures, appropriate 10% of its

annual net profit, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the general risk reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Transaction risk reserve

In accordance with the requirements of the CSRC Circular regarding the Annual Reporting of
Securities Companies in 2007 (Zhengjian Jigou Zi [2007] No. 320) issued on 18 December 2007
and in compliance with the Securities Law, for the purpose of covering securities trading losses,
the Company and its subsidiary, Hengtai Changcai, appropriate 10% of its annual net profit, as

determined under PRC GAAP, to the transaction risk reserve.

Investment revaluation reserve
2018 2017
As at 1 January 390,307 87,350
Changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income - 405,501
Less: deferred tax - (101,375)
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal - (1,680)
Less: deferred tax - 511
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (390,307) -
As at 31 December - 390,307
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Perpetual General Transaction Investment
Share Share capital Surplus risk risk revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium  securities reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity

As at 1 January 2017 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 449,200 515,466 503,260 30291 2,069,634 9,337,654
Total comprehensive income for

the year - - = = = = (28609 597,066 568,457
Dividend paid (Note 22) = = = = = = - (102,000 (102,000)
Appropriation to:

- surplus reserve - - - 59,706 - = = (59,706) =

- general risk reserve - - - - 59,706 - - (59,706) -

- transaction risk reserve - - - - - 59,706 = (59,706) =
At 31 December 2017 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 508,906 575,172 562,966 1,682 2385582 9,804,111
As at 1 January 2018 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 508,906 575,172 562,966 1,682  2,385582 9,804,111
Adjustment on initial application

of IFRS 9 (Note 2) - - - 224 224 223 (1,682) (861) (1,872)
Restated balance at

1 January 2018 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 509,130 575,396 563,189 - 2384721 9,802,239
Total comprehensive loss for

the year - - - - - - - (575,550)  (575,550)
Dividend paid (Note 22) - - - - - - - (362,457) (362,457
At 31 December 2018 2,604,567 1,665,236 1,500,000 509,130 575,396 563,189 - 1,446,714 8,864,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into certain transactions in which it transfers
recognised financial assets to third parties or customers. If these transfers qualify for derecognition,
the Group derecognises all or part of the financial assets where appropriate. If the Group has retained

substantially all the risks and rewards on these assets, the Group continues to recognise these assets.

Transferred financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition include securities lent to customers
for securities selling, for which the customers provide the Group with collaterals that could fully cover
the credit risk exposure of the securities lent. The customers have an obligation to return the securities
according to the contracts. The Group has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards

of these securities and therefore has not derecognised.

2018 2017
Carrying amount Carrying amount Carrying amount Carrying amount
of transferred of related of transferred of related
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Repurchase agreements 207,016 203,575 145,387 149,780

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments outstanding not provided for in the consolidated

financial statements are as follows:

2018 2017

Acquisition of property and equipment 369,396 374,600
Acquisition of intangible assets 146,400 147,280
515,796 521,880
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Lease commitments

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are payable as follows:

2018 2017

Within 1 year (inclusive) 94,937 99,806
1-2 years (inclusive) 62,240 48,572
2-3 years (inclusive) 42,231 15,700
After 3 years 21,345 7,011
220,753 171,089

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are receivable as follows:

2018 2017

Within 1 year (inclusive) 350 1,400
1-2 years (inclusive) - 350
350 1,750

Underwriting commitments

As at 31 December 2018, according to the relevant underwriting agreements, underwriting commitments
taken but not provided for by the Group are amounted to RMB46,347 million (2017: RMB50,020 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Interests in structured entities consolidated by the Group

Structured entities consolidated by the Group mainly stand for the assets management schemes
where the Group involves as manager and also as investor, the Group assesses whether the
combination of investments it holds together with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the assets management schemes to a level of such significance that it

indicates that the Group is a principal.

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the consolidated assets management schemes are
RMB1,574.61 million (2017: RMB4,595.50 million), and the carrying value of interests held by the
Group in the consolidated assets management schemes are RMB57.812 million (2017: RMB86.85
million), which are accounted for as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in respective

financial statements of the entities.

Structured entities sponsored by third party institutions in which the Group
holds an interest

The types of structured entities that the Group does not consolidate but in which it holds an interest
include assets management schemes, trust schemes, wealth management products, investment
funds and asset-backed securities products issued by banks and other financial institutions. The
nature and purpose of these structured entities are to generate fees from managing assets on
behalf of investors. These vehicles are financed through the issuance of investment units to

investors.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the related accounts in the consolidated statement
of financial position is equal to the maximum exposure to loss of interests held by the Group in the

unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by third party institutions, which are listed as below:

2018

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Assets management schemes 3,874
Investment funds 304,702
308,576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Structured entities sponsored by third party institutions in which the Group
holds an interest (Continued)

2017

Financial assets at

Available-for-sale  fair value through

financial assets profit or loss Total

Assets management schemes 10,250 1,123,960 1,134,210
Investment funds 585 150,163 150,748
Asset-backed securities products - 724,234 724,234
10,835 1,998,357 2,009,192

(c) Structured entities sponsored by the Group

Structured entities for which the Group served as general partner or manager, therefore has power
over them during the year are assets management schemes and investment funds. Except for the
structured entities that the Group has consolidated as set out in Note 55(a), the Group’s exposure to
the variable returns in the structured entities in which the Group has interest are not significant. The

Group therefore did not consolidate these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2018, the details of these unconsolidated structured entities managed by the

Group are as follows:

2018 2017
Total assets of unconsolidated structured entities 40,669,350 32,383,585
Carrying amount of the investments held by the Group 643,192 474,227
Fees receivables by the Group 12,188 11,658
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group involved in the following legal, arbitration or administrative

proceedings:

(i)

Since June 2018, the Company has successively received the civil indictments brought by Xinyuan
Fund Management Limited (BLEEEIE AR A7), Galaxy Jinhui Securities Assets Management
Co., Ltd. BRASEBHFEEEIE AR LA, Goldstate Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (&7t
% ZE&EEHRAT), Bank of Nanjing Co., Ltd. (ARIRITIRMH B2 E]), Chuangjin Hexin Fund
Management Limited (Bl& & EE£EIE AR A F)) and Tianhong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (X
LEELEEBRAT]), the preferential holders of the Qinghui Leasing asset-backed specialized
schemes Phase | (collectively the “Plaintiffs”), claiming for the repayment of the outstanding
principals (i.e., RMB20 million, RMB60 million, RMB130 million, RMB100 million, RMB40 million and
RMB35 million, respectively), and the interest payable and relevant charges by the Company. The
Plaintiffs claimed that the Company, as the manager of the Special Scheme, had failed to perform
its responsibilities in accordance with the laws and regulations as well as the requirements under
the agreements and documents in relation to the Special Scheme, and therefore shall be liable for
compensation to the Plaintiffs. Since August 2018, the Company has made counterplea against
the Plaintiffs at the competent courts according to the time schedule of the competent courts in

succession.

On 20 December 2018, Beijing Second Intermediate People’s Court ruled and rejected the lawsuit
filed by Galaxy Jinhui Securities Assets Management Co., Ltd., Goldstate Capital Fund Management
Co., Ltd. and Bank of Nanjing Co., Ltd. On 29 December 2018, the above three companies appealed
to the People’'s High Court of Beijing. On 27 November 2018, the lawsuit against the Company filed
by Xinyuan Fund Management Limited, Chuangjin Hexin Fund Management Limited and Tianhong
Asset Management Co., Ltd. was heard at the Finance Street People’s Court of the People’'s Court

of the Xicheng District in Beijing and is currently pending for judgment/ruling.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) The Company set up the Hengtai Tianxing Targeted Additional Issuance No. 1 Collective Assets
Management Scheme (“TXTIl No. 1”) and Hengtai Tianxing Targeted Additional Issuance
No. 2 Collective Assets Management Scheme (“TXTI No. 2”) on 19 June 2015 and 30 June
2015, respectively, and invested in the Donghai Ruijing — Ruixiang NEEQ No. 1 special assets
management scheme (“Ruixiang No. 1") and Donghai Ruijing — Ruixiang NEEQ No. 2 of the special
assets management scheme (“Ruixiang No. 2”) issued by Donghai Ruijing Asset Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B)8HREEEE(L8)HFR2AR) (“Donghai Ruijing”), respectively. TXTI No.
1 and TXTI No. 2 fell due and expired on 28 June 2017 and 5 July 2017. However, since TXTI No. 1
and TXTI No. 2 failed to be cashed out due to the failure of selling off of the assets of Ruixiang No.
1 and Ruixiang No. 2, into which the investment was made, the Company has yet to allocate the
entrusted property so far. In July 2018, the Company received the notice of appearance from the
court, pursuant to which, on the grounds that the Company failed to perform its legal obligations
and agreements under contracts in the course of management, 25 principals of TXTI No. 1 and
TXTI No. 2 had initiated court proceedings against the Company, claiming for compensation totaling
approximately RMB150 million and claiming that all litigation fees be borne by the Company. Since
August 2018, the Company has made counterplea against the principals at the competent courts
according to the time scheduled by the competent courts in succession. Meanwhile, Donghai
Ruijing has taken proceedings in respect of the disputes involving the assets into which it made
investment. The Company will allocate the entrusted property to the principals after cashing out the
underlying assets under TXTI No. 1 and TXTI No. 2. The People’s Court of the Xincheng District in
Hohhot issued the written judgment on 19 December 2018, rejected the claim of Ms. Chu Xiugin,
the principal of TXTI No. 1, and the plaintiff made no appeals. In addition, the lawsuits against the
Company filed by the other 24 principals have been heard in the competent courts. So far, all of the
24 principals have withdrawn the lawsuits.

The Group considers the above cases to be probable that the judgement will be in its favour and has
therefore not recognised a provision in relation to these claims.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

Relationship of related parties

(i)

Major shareholders

Major shareholders include shareholders of the Company with 5% or

above ownership as

below.
2018 2017

Baotou Huazi Industry Co., Ltd (“Baotou Huazi")* 11.83% 11.83%
Beijing Qingyun Intercontinental Technology Co., Ltd 8.71% 8.71%
Beijing Financial Street Xihuan Properties Co., Ltd 8.12% 8.12%
Beijing Huijin Jiaye Investment Ltd 7.92% 7.92%
Beijing Financial Street Investment (Group) Co., Ltd 6.35% 6.35%
Beijing Huarong Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd 5.95% 5.95%
Beijing Hongzhi Huitong Industrial Co., Ltd 5.91% 5.91%
Tibet Dazi Huifa Investment Co., Ltd 5.91% 5.91%
Zhongchang Hengyuan Holding Co., Ltd

("Zhongchang Hengyuan”)* 2.88% 2.88%
Shanghai Yida Technology Investment Co., Ltd

("Shanghai Yida")* 2.33% 2.33%
* Baotou Huazi is held by Tomorrow Holding Limited Company (“Tomorrow Holding”) as to

approximately 54.32%. Tomorrow Holding, Zhongchang Hengyuan and Shanghai Yida, being

direct or indirect shareholders of the Company, entered into an acting-in-concert agreement. As

at 31 December 2018, Baotou Huazi, Zhongchang Hengyuan and Shanghai Yida aggregately are

interested in approximately 17.04% of the Company’s share capital.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Relationship of related parties (Continued)

(ii) Subsidiaries of the Company
The details information of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in Note 27.

(iii)  Associates
The details information of the Group’s associates is set out in Note 28.

(iv)  Other related parties
Other related parties can be individuals or enterprises, which include: members of the Board
of Directors, the board of supervisors and senior management, and close family members of

such individuals.

(b) Related parties transactions and balances

Transactions/balances between the Group and major shareholders:

2018 2017
Balances as at reporting date:
— Account payables to brokerage clients 8,754 15,064
— Other current assets - 342
Transactions during the year:
— Fees and commission income 3 338
— Interest expenses 39 65
— Rental expenses 8,047 7,993

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(c)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons who have the power to, directly or indirectly, plan,
direct and control the activities of the Group, including members of the Board of Directors, board of
supervisors and other members of the senior management.

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 19 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in Note 20, is as follows:

2018 2017
Short-term benefits
Fees, salaries, allowance and bonus 24,779 49,299
Post-employment benefit
Contribution to pension schemes 906 707
25,685 50,006

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” as disclosed in Note 13.

Applicability of the listing rules related to connected transactions
The related party transactions in respect of rental expenses above constitute connected transactions

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Those transactions are complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Group manages and conducts its business activities by business segments. In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has identified the following

segments:

(a)

Brokerage and wealth management segment engages in the trading of stocks, funds, bonds and
futures on behalf of the clients, and also providing investment and financing solutions to high-
end, professional and institutional clients, including sale of financial products, margin financing and

securities lending, securities-backed lending;

Investment banking segment provides corporate finance services, including financial advisory,
equity underwriting and debt underwriting services as well as New Over-the-Counter Board-related
services to institutional clients; Also, as chief agency broker, provides services to companies

entering into National Equities Exchange and Quotations for share quotation and transfer;

Proprietary trading segment engages in trading of equities, bonds, funds, and derivatives for the
Group;

Investment management segment includes businesses on assets management, private equity

investments and alternative investments; and

Other segment mainly represents other operations of head office, including investments in

associates, as well as interest income and interest expenses arising from general working capital.

Segment profit or loss represents the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment without the allocation

of income tax expense and the share of profits less losses of its associates. Segment assets and liabilities

are allocated to each segment, excluding deferred tax assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Brokerage
and wealth Investment Proprietary Investment
management banking trading management Others Total
For the year ended
31 December 2018
Revenue
- External 1,330,443 190,661 (303,064) 806,802 60,510 2,085,352
- Inter-segment (4) - 4 - - -
Other income and gains (3,804) 984 8 597 16,517 14,302
Segment revenue and
other income 1,326,635 191,645 (303,052) 807,399 77,027 2,099,654
Segment expenses (1,213,107) (166,918) (516,071) (836,829) (185,481) (2,918,406)
Segment operating (loss)/profit 113,528 24,727 (819,123) (29,430) (108,454) (818,752)
Share of profits less losses of
associates - - - - (1,668) (1,668)
(Loss)/profit before tax 113,528 24,727 (819,123) (29,430) (110,122) (820,420)
Other segment information:
Interest income 642,083 17,316 30,528 39,604 60,510 790,041
Interest expenses (270,864) - (262,206) (2,621) - (535,691)
Depreciation and amortisation (68,036) (2,192) (175) (18,009) (8,737) (97,149)
(Impairment losses)/reversal
of impairment losses (18,307) (135) (131,781) (2,236) 381 (152,078)
Capital expenditure 80,017 151 58 8,060 41,988 130,274
At 31 December 2018
Segment assets 7,919,787 484,808 8,627,943 4,311,548 8,339,890 29,683,976
Deferred tax assets 231,103
Total assets 29,915,079
Segment liabilities 10,845,336 67,897 7,038,564 1,803,715 198,018 19,953,530
Deferred tax liabilities 16,728
Total liabilities 19,970,258

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Brokerage
and wealth Investment Proprietary Investment
management banking trading  management Others Total
For the year ended
31 December 2017
Revenue
- External 1,988,455 297,414 887,788 869,916 77,543 4,121,116
- Inter-segment (16,908) = 1 16,907 - -
Other income and gains 1,732 734 - 105,157 5,624 113,247
Segment revenue and other
income 1,973,279 298,148 887,789 991,980 83,167 4,234,363
Segment expenses (1,797,211) (227,247) (298,405) (706,715) (190,194) (3,219,772)
Segment operating profit/(loss) 176,068 70,901 589,384 285,265 (107,027) 1,014,591
Share of profits less losses of
associates - - - = (1,686) (1,686)
Profit/(loss) before tax 176,068 70,901 589,384 285,265 (108,713) 1,012,905
Other segment information:
Interest income 711,463 14,454 17,718 41,243 77,543 862,421
Interest expenses (359,278) = (208,757) (175,078) = (743,113)
Depreciation and amortisation (67,520) (2,542) (265) (15,999) (6,748) (93,074)
(Impairment losses)/reversal
of impairment losses (28,227) - 18,153 (25,349) - (35,423)
Capital expenditure 68,729 354 M 27,702 21,672 118,468
At 31 December 2017
Segment assets 17,952,096 492,156 8,892,666 7,425,721 1,542,154 36,304,793
Deferred tax assets 112,194
Total assets 36,416,987
Segment liabilities 16,620,584 102,730 4,208,419 4,296,017 124,971 25,352,721
Deferred tax liabilities 121,834
Total liabilities 25,474,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The Company and its subsidiaries mainly operate in the PRC. The Group's operating assets are
substantially situated in the PRC. As a result, no segment analysis based on geographical locations of the
customers and assets is provided.

The Group monitors and controls key exposures to the credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational

risk from its use of financial instruments.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from the failure of a debtor or counterparty

to meet its obligation or commitment to the Group.
During the year, the Group was exposed to three types of credit risk:
(i) default risk of the issuer or counterparty in debt securities trading;

(ii) risk of losses arising from default of customers in credit business such as margin financing
and securities lending, securities-backed lending and stock repurchases; and

(iii) risk of losses to the funds of the Company or customers arising from default of the financing
party in innovative credit business.

The Group uses its risk management systems to monitor its credit risk on a real time basis, keep
track of the credit risk of the Group's business products and its transaction counterparties, provide
analyses and pre-warning reports, and adjust its credit limits in a timely manner. The Group will also
measures the credit risks of its major operations through stress test and sensitivity analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

For credit risk in debt securities trading, the Group monitors the issuer and bonds during the year.
The Group established the credit rating framework and conducted research on the debt securities
held by the Group. The Group also assessed the creditability of counterparties to mitigate related
default risk. In respect of margin financing and securities lending, securities-backed lending and
stock repurchases business, the Group evaluates the customers, aiming to have a thorough
picture of the customers’ credit level and risk tolerance and determines the customers’ credit
rating. Penalties for defaults were specified in contracts and risk disclosure statements. The Group
monitors the collateral of the margin financing and securities lending, securities-backed lending
and stock repurchases business and promptly communicated with customers on any abnormalities
identified to avoid defaults. In respect of innovative credit business, preliminary due diligence was
performed with a comprehensive project feasibility report and a due diligence report submitted for
approval by the Group before a project can be launched.

(i) The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group without taking account of any
collateral and other credit enhancements:

2018 2017
Refundable deposits 480,502 614,506
Other current assets 546,104 573,389
Margin account receivables 3,237,924 5,322,835
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 55,426 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit of loss 6,398,431 8,751,222
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,161,988 1,661,659
Clearing settlement funds 980,059 773,387
Cash held on behalf of brokerage clients 7,475,631 9,491,666
Bank balances 3,115,390 2,338,494
23,451,455 29,527,158

(ii) Risk concentrations

The Group’s major credit exposures are with counterparties domiciled in the PRC as of 31
December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)  Credit rating analysis of financial assets

The Group adopts credit rating method to monitor the credit risk of the debt securities
portfolio. Rating of debt securities is referred from major rating institutions in which debt
issuers located. The carrying amount of debt securities at the reporting date are categorised

by rating distribution as follows:

2018 2017

Rating
- AAA 2,568,950 1,941,397
— From AA- to AA+ 2,897,825 5,538,389
- A-1 - 239,224
5,466,775 7,719,010
-B 64,800 -
-C 7,292 -
Non-rating 914,990 1,032,212
6,453,857 8,751,222

(iv) Expected credit loss measurement

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between

the Group's different customer bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs

for fees and commission receivables as at 31 December 2018:

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

Within one year 35.75% 324,820 116,114
Over one year 41.16% 865 356
325,685 116,470

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past two years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only when there was objective

evidence of impairment.
The Group's fee and commission receivables were neither past due nor impaired. The

amount related to a range of receivables with low credit risk and there was no recent history
of default.

HENGTOU SECURITIES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of fees and commission receivables
during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
At 31 December under IAS 39 - =
Impact on initial application of IFRS9 832 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January 832 -
Impairment losses recognised for the year 115,638 -
At 31 December 116,470 -

Financial assets at FVTOC/

All of the Group’s investments at FVTOCI are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Management considers ‘low credit risk’ for listed debit securities to be an investment grade
credit rating with at least one major rating agency. Other instruments are considered to be
low credit risk when they have a low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet

its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI includes listed debt securities. The loss allowance for debt
investment at FVTOCI is recognised in profit or loss and reduces the fair value loss otherwise

recognised in other comprehensive income.

The loss allowance for financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2017 reconciles to the
opening loss allowance on 1 January 2018 and to the closing allowance as at 31 December

2018 as follows:

2018
At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 -
Impact on initial application of IFRS9 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 -
Impairment losses recognised for the year 58
At 31 December 2018 58

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt investments that are measured at
FVTPL. The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of
these investments of RMB6,398.431 million (2017: RMB8,751.222 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises in the investment activities, financing activities and capital management of the
Group. Liquidity risk includes:

(1) market liquidity risk of being unable to make a large size transaction at a reasonable price

while trading volume in market is comparatively small;
(2) funding liquidity of being unable to meet financial obligations when they come due.

The following tables show the details of the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities. Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

2018

More than  More than  More than
1 month 1 year 1 year

but less but less but less

Carrying Repayable Less than than than than  More than
amount ondemand  1month 3 months 5 years 5 years 5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Debt instruments 6,071,318 - 1,504,076 677,868 1,811,422 2,547,923 - 6,541,289
Placements from a financial
institution 500,000 - 200,386 302,647 - - - 503,033
Account payables to
brokerage clients 7,691,497 7,691,497 - - - - - 1,691,497
Other current liabilities 1,616,090 1,309,822 98,566 55,335 116,512 31,793 4,062 1,616,090
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 3,742,325 - 3,699,324 483 47174 - - 3,746,981
19,621,230 9,001,319  5502,352 1,036,333 1,975,108 2,579,716 4,062 20,098,890
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2017
More than ~ More than ~ More than
Tmonth 3 months 1 year
but less but less but less
Carrying  Repayable  Less than than than than ~ More than
amount  on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year b years 5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Debt instruments 4,844,857 - 5177 504,801 1,103,052 3,986,150 - 5,599,180
Placements from a financial
institution 700,000 - 702,728 - - - - 702,728
Account payables to
brokerage clients 10,028,333 10,028,333 - - - - - 10,028,333
Other current liabilities 3,626,753 51,859 35,237 115,138 3,424,519 - - 3,626,753
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 5,655,778 1,729,701 736,560 966 2,698,710 535,044 - 5,700,981
24,855,721 11,809,893 1,479,702 620,905 7,226,281 4,521,194 - 25,657,975

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s income and value of financial instruments

held, arising from the adverse market movements such as changes in interest rates, stock prices,

foreign exchange rates and so on. The objective of market risk management is to monitor and

control the market risk within the acceptable range and to maximise the risk adjusted return.

The Group monitors the market risk for proprietary trading portfolios. Stress testing is conducted

regularly, and the potential movements of risk and operating indicators in a variety of scenarios are

calculated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk of proprietary trading portfolios

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

For those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the reporting date, the Group adopts sensitivity analysis to measure the
potential effect of changes in interest rates on the Group’s net profit. Assuming all other

variables remain constant, interest rate sensitivity analysis is as follows:

Sensitivity of net profit

2018 2017

Change in basis points
Increase 100 basis points (129,161) (139,146)
Decrease 100 basis points 138,882 145,074

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk arising from foreign exchange business of the Group, which is

attributable to the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates.

The Group's currency risk primarily relates to the Group's operating activities whose
settlements and payments are denominated in foreign currencies different from the functional

currency of the Group.

The foreign currency assets and liabilities held by the Group are not material compared to
the total assets and liabilities. In terms of the Group's revenue structure, the majority of the
business transactions are denominated in RMB, with only insignificant revenue from foreign

currency transactions. The Group considers that their currency risk is immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments concluded in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss financial instruments. Price risk facing by
the Group is mainly the fluctuation in the Group's net profits due to the price fluctuation of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2017: proportionate fluctuation in the
Group's net profits and other comprehensive income).

The analysis below is performed to show the impact in the Group's net profit (2017: net profit
and other comprehensive income) due to change in the prices of equity securities by 10%

with all other variables held constant.

Sensitivity of net profit

2018 2017
Increase by 10% 408,162 318,475
Decrease by 10% (408,162) (318,475)

Sensitivity of net other

comprehensive income

2018 2017
Increase by 10% - 130,522
Decrease by 10% - (130,522)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s and the Company’s objectives of capital management are:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

To safeguard the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that
they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

To support the Group’s and the Company’s stability and growth;

To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of their business; and

To comply with the capital requirements under the PRC regulations.

In accordance with Administrative Measures for Risk Control Indicators of Securities Companies

(Revision 2016) (the “Administrative Measures”) issued by the CSRC, the Company is required to

meet the following standards for risk control indicators on a continual basis:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

Risk coverage ratio (the ratio of net capital divided by the sum of its various risk capital

provisions) shall be no less than 100% (“Ratio 1");

Capital leverage ratio (the ratio of net core capital divided by total assets on and off statement
of financial position) shall be no less than 8% (“Ratio 2");

Liquidity coverage ratio (the ratio of high quality liquid assets divided by net cash outflows in
the coming 30 days) shall be no less than 100% (“Ratio 3");

Net stable funding ratio (the ratio of stable funds available divided by stable funds required)
shall be no less than 100% (“Ratio 4");

The ratio of net capital divided by net assets shall be no less than 20% ("“Ratio 5");

The ratio of net capital divided by liabilities shall be no less than 8% (“Ratio 6”);

The ratio of net assets divided by liabilities shall be no less than 10% (“Ratio 7");

The ratio of the value of proprietary equity securities and derivatives held divided by net
capital shall not exceed 100% (“Ratio 8"); and
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tatements

59. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Capital management (Continued)

(ix)  The ratio of the value of proprietary non-equity securities and derivatives held divided by net

capital shall not exceed 500% (“Ratio 9").

Net capital refers to net assets after risk adjustments on certain types of assets as defined in the

Administrative Measures.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company maintained the above ratios as follows:

2018 2017
Net Capital 6,104,858 7,834,239
Ratio 1 255.50% 203.78%
Ratio 2 23.25% 26.25%
Ratio 3 244.24% 520.72%
Ratio 4 162.58% 154.83%
Ratio 5 67.77% 78.82%
Ratio 6 57.62% 71.19%
Ratio 7 85.02% 90.32%
Ratio 8 42.61% 33.28%
Ratio 9 112.80% 86.58%

Similar to the Company, certain subsidiary of the Group is also subject to capital requirements set

by the CSRC, and it has complied with the capital requirements as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(e)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Categories of financial instruments

2018 2017

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

— Held for trading 11,840,596 12,553,288

— Designated at fair value through profit or loss - 444,272
Financial assets at amortised cost (including cash and cash

equivalents) 17,006,611 20,803,556
Available-for-sale financial assets - 1,740,299
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 19,597,957 24,806,065

The Group adopts the following methods and assumptions when evaluating fair values:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets including cash and bank balances, cash held for brokerage clients, clearing
settlement funds, financial assets held under resale agreements, and financial liabilities including
placements from other financial institutions and financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
are mainly short-term financing or floating interest rate instruments. Accordingly, the carrying

amounts approximate their fair values.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives financial assets are stated at fair
value. For the financial instruments traded in active open markets, the Group uses market prices
or markets rates as the best estimate for their fair values. For the financial instruments without
any market price or market rate, the Group determines the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities by discounted cash flow or other valuation methods.

The fair values of debt instruments are determined with reference to the available market prices
or quotes from brokers or agents. If there is no quoted market price in an active market, the Group
refers to the yield of financial instruments with similar characteristics such as credit risk and

maturity, to estimate the fair values using pricing models or discounted cash flow.

Margin account receivables and other current assets, account payables to brokerage clients are

within one year. Accordingly, the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

The carrying amount and fair value of debt instruments which are not presented at fair value are listed as

below:

2018 2017
Carrying amount of financial liabilities:
— subordinated bonds 1,500,000 1,740,000
— long-term corporate bond 1,500,000 1,500,000
3,000,000 3,240,000
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value of financial liabilities:
— subordinated bonds - 1,509,325 - 1,509,325
— long-term corporate bond - 1,498,827 - 1,498,827
- 3,008,152 - 3,008,152
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value of financial liabilities:
— subordinated bonds - 1,681,301 40,000 1,721,301
— long-term corporate bond - 1,466,613 - 1,466,613
- 3,147,914 40,000 3,187,914

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company considers that the carrying amount of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three level inputs to valuation techniques

used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date

of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value measurements:
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
— Debt securities 1,024,180 5,255,130 119,121 6,398,431
— Equity securities 2,495,734 1,002,593 118,925 3,617,252
— Investment funds 765,467 337,173 125,628 1,228,268
— Assets management schemes - 596,645 - 596,645
4,285,381 7,191,541 363,674 11,840,596
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Debt securities - 55,426 - 55,426
4,285,381 7,246,967 363,674 11,896,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (Continued)

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value
measurements:
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
— Debt securities for trading
purpose 1,852,906 6,417,044 37,000 8,306,950
— Equity securities 2,283,316 111,232 37,638 2,432,186
— Investment funds 312,331 458,661 19,000 789,992
— Assets management
schemes - 1,024,160 - 1,024,160
— Debt securities designated at
fair value through profit or
loss 100,704 343,568 - 444,272
4,549,257 8,354,665 93,638 12,997,560
Available-for-sale financial
assets
— Equity securities 280,688 388,270 926,803 1,595,761
— Investment funds - 33,163 40,315 73,478
— Assets management
schemes - 71,060 - 71,060
280,688 492,493 967,118 1,740,299
4,829,945 8,847,158 1,060,756 14,737,859
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

60. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (Continued)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

except for:

2018
Two equity securities with fair value of RMB877.214 million which were successfully listed during
the period was transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 and two equity securities with fair value of

RMB5.348 million were transferred from level 3 to level 1 due to resumption of trading listed.

2017

Two equity securities with fair value of RMB103.458 million which were successfully listed during

the year were transferred from Level 3 to Level 1 and Level 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Reconciliation of financial assets measured at fair value based on Level 3:

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other

through profit ~ comprehensive

or loss Income Total
At 1 January 2018 1,060,756 - 1,060,756
Reclassification on initial application of IFRS 9
— from financial assets at FVTPL to financial assets at FVTOCI (37,000) 37,000 -
- from other non-current assets to financial assets at
FVTPL 20,300 - 20,300
Losses for the year (1,752) - (1,752)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss (52,612) - (52,612)
Purchases 111,050 - 111,050
Transfer (705,973) - (705,973)
Sales and settlements (31,095) (37,000) (68,095)
At 31 December 2018 363,674 - 363,674
Total gains or losses included in profit or loss for financial
assets during the year (54,364) - (54,364)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Reconciliation of financial assets measured at fair value based on Level 3:

(Continued)
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit  Available-for-sale
or loss financial assets Total
At 1 January 2017 411,624 675,785 1,087,409
Losses for the year (11,337) - (11,337)
Changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income - 338,604 338,604
Purchases 19,000 60,997 79,997
Transfers - (103,458) (103,458)
Sales and settlements (325,649) (4,810) (330,459)
At 31 December 2017 93,638 967,118 1,060,756

Total gains or losses included in profit
or loss for financial assets during the

year - - -

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including the financial assets held during the
year are presented in net investment income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In year 2017, the total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income are presented in

fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value measurements as at 31 December 2018

The Group's financial market department is responsible for the fair value measurements of
financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial market department reports directly to the Board of Directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the

financial market department and the Board of Directors periodically.

Certain of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss classified as Level 2 consist of debt
securities and bond investments trading in the inter-bank bond market and the over-the-counter
market. Fair values are determined based on recent transaction prices in inactive markets and
using valuation techniques. The remaining of the financial assets through profit or loss classified as
Level 2 consist of restricted shares, close-end funds and collective assets management schemes.
Fair values of restricted shares are determined by the quoted market prices of the shares with an
adjustment of discount for lack of marketability. Fair values of close-end funds are determined by
trading price which is based on the net asset value as at the reporting date. Fair values of collective
assets management schemes are determined based on the fair value of the underlying investments

in each portfolio.

For financial instruments in Level 3, prices are determined using valuation methodologies such as
discounted cash flow models and other similar techniques. Determinations to classify fair value
measures within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy are generally based on the significance of the

unobservable inputs to the overall fair value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

2018
Effect on
Valuation Unobservable fair value for
Description technique inputs increase of inputs
Unlisted equity investments Market Discount rate Decrease
comparable for lack of
companies marketability
Net assets value N/A N/A
Debt securities Discounted cash  Risk adjusted Decrease
flow discount rate
2017
Effect on
Valuation Unobservable fair value for
Description technique inputs increase of inputs

Unlisted equity investments

Market comparable

companies

Net assets value

There were no changes in the valuation techniques used.

Discount rate
for lack of
marketability

N/A

Decrease

N/A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

Disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

(i)

Disposal of Shenzhen Hengtai Xihe Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 22 March 2017 entered into between a subsidiary of the
Company, Hengtai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (EZEAIEEBREEL AR, “Hengtai Capital”)
and an independent third party, Hengtai Capital disposed its interest in a 51%-owned
subsidiary, Shenzhen Hengtai Xihe Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (&JI1EZ
SMIEREESLERABMR AT, “"Hengtai Xihe”) for a cash consideration of RMB0.85 million.
The consideration was the same as the net assets value of Hengtai Xihe attributable to the

Group, resulting in no gain or loss on disposal of Hengtai Xihe.

Hengtai Xihe was engaged in investment consulting, investment management, entrusted
management of equity, investment funds, equity investment in unlisted companies, entrusted
assets management and equity investment during the period. The disposal was completed on
30 March 2017.

Disposal of Beijing Hengtai Puhui Information Service Co., Ltd.

On 13 February 2017, a subsidiary of the Company, Hengtai Pioneer Investments Co., Ltd. (1B
Z I EBR/AR], “Hengtai Pioneer”), entered into an agreement to dispose 70% equity
interests of its wholly owned subsidiary, Beijing Hengtai Puhui Information Service Co., Ltd.
FtREFETEEEREAR AR, “Hengtai Puhui”), at a consideration of RMB20.790 million.
The disposal was completed on 1 August 2017, and the Group recorded a sum of gain on
disposal amounted to RMB14.635 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(a)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As of the disposal date, the net assets of the above disposed subsidiaries were as follows:

Property and equipment 60
Intangible assets 19
Deferred tax assets 5,624
Other non-current assets 20,155
Other current assets 2,023
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,100
Financial assets held under resale agreements 150
Cash and bank balances 13,802
Employee benefit payables (7,260)
Other current liabilities (19,221)
Current tax liabilities (717)
Non-controlling interests (818)
Net assets disposed of 15,917
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) 14,635
Total consideration 30,552
Consideration satisfied by:

— Cash consideration 21,642
— Fair value of remaining equity interest 8,910
30,552

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received 21,642
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (13,802)
7,840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Debt Interest
instruments payable Total
Note 42
At 1 January 2017 6,172,624 91,426 6,264,050
Financing cash flows (1,332,624) (247,591) (1,580,215)
Non-cash changes:

Interest expenses 4,857 279,650 284,507
At 31 December 2017 4,844,857 123,485 4,968,342
Financing cash flows 1,206,630 (236,805) 969,825
Non-cash changes:

Interest expenses 19,831 242,889 262,720
At 31 December 2018 6,071,318 129,569 6,200,887

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The
changes included the reclassification of fair value gain of financial instruments from “net vestment
income” to “other income and gains” and fair value loss of financial instruments from “net investment” to
“other operating expenses”. The new classification of the accounting items was considered to provide a
more appropriate presentation of the state of affairs of the Group. The comparative other income and gains

have been re-presented to include those changes in the current year.
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